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TAKE NOTICE THAT the Responding Party (Plaintiff) will apply to a judge of this Court, 

on Friday March 13, 2015 at 10:00 a.m., for an order striking or ignoring the Affidavit of 

Jennifer Gam bin. 

PROPOSED METHOD OF HEARING: The motion is to be heard orally. 

THE MOTION IS FOR JUDGMENT AND ORDERS AGAINST 

• PRlCEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN; 
• KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED; 
• PHILLIP ST. EVALATKINSON; 
• RICHARD IV AN COX; AND 
• MARCUS ANDREW HATCH: 

(a) Striking an Affidavit of Jennifer Gambin filed by them in support of a motion to set 

aside their noting in default; or 

(b) In the alternative, an order that the affidavit be ignored in whole or in part: 

(c) Such further remedy as the Court feels is just and appropriate 

THE GROUNDS FOR THIS MOTION ARE: 

(A) HISTORY/BACKGROUND: 

1. The Plaintiff served Statement of Claim on the above-noted defendants who did not 

file a response in time in accordance with the Rules. 

2. The Plaintiff had these defendants noted in default. 
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3. In support of a motion to set aside the noting in default, these defendants filed an 

affidavit of Jennifer Gambin which contains conclusory and hearsay statements. 

4. The Plaintiff warned the Defendant Moving Parties that this motion would be 

brought. This was ignored. 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE will be used at the hearing of this 

Motion: 

1. Affidavit of Donald Best, sworn February 6, 2015; 

2. Such further material as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court may permit. 

THE RESPONDING PARTY MAY BE SERVED WITH DOCUMENTS PERTINENT 
TO THIS APPLICATION: 

By service through: 

I 

Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 

1062 College Street, Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H 1A9 
Tel: (416) 536-1220; Fax (416) 536-8842 

Counsel for the Responding Party (Plaintiff) 

DATED AT TORONTO, this 6th day of February, 2015. 

Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 

1062 College Street, Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H 1A9 
Tel: (416) 536-1220; Fax (416) 536-8842 

LSUC # 259981 

Counsel for the Responding Party (Plaintiff) 
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The Registrar 
Superior Court of Justice 
Barrie, Ontario 

Mark Polley 
Barrister and Solicitor 
Polley Faith LLP 
The Victoria Building 
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Toronto, ON 
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Tel: (416) 365-1600 
Fax: (416) 365-1601 
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TAKE NOTICE THAT the Responding Party (Plaintiff) will apply to a judge of this 

Court, on Friday March 13, 2015 at 10:00 a.m., for an order striking or ignoring the 

Affidavit of Jennifer Gam bin. 

PROPOSED METHOD OF HEARING: The motion is to be heard orally. 

THE MOTION IS FOR JUDGMENT AND ORDERS AGAINST 

• PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN; 
• KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED; 
• PHILLIP ST. EVAL ATKINSON; 
• RICHARD IV AN COX; AND 
• MARCUS ANDREW HATCH: 

(a) Striking an Affidavit of Jennifer Gambin filed by them in support of a motion to set 

aside their noting in default; or 

(b) In the alternative, an order that the affidavit be ignored in whole or in part: 

(c) Such further remedy as the Court feels is just and appropriate 

THE GROUNDS FOR THIS MOTION ARE: 

(A) HISTORY/BACKGROUND: 

I. The Plaintiff served Statement of Claim on the above-noted defendants who did 

not file a response in time in accordance with the Rules. 

2. The Plaintiff had these defendants noted in default. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 



3 

3. In support of a motion to set aside the noting in default, these defendants filed an 

affidavit of Jennifer Gam bin which contains conclusory and hearsay statements. 

4. The Plaintiff warned the Defendant Moving Parties that this motion would be 

brought. This was ignored. 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE will be used at the hearing of 

this Motion: 

1. Affidavit of Donald Best, sworn February 6, 2015; 

2. Such further material as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court may 
permit. 

THE RESPONDING PARTY MAY BE SERVED WITH DOCUMENTS 
PERTINENT TO TIDS APPLICATION: 

By service through: 

I 

Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 

1062 College Street, Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H 1A9 
Tel: (416) 536-1220; Fax (416) 536-8842 

Counsel for the Responding Party (Plaintiff) 

DATED AT TORONTO, this 7th day ofFebruary, 2015. 

Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 

1062 College Street, Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H 1A9 
Tel: (416) 536-1220; Fax (416) 536-8842 

LSUC # 259981 

Counsel for the Responding Party (Plaintiff) 
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TO: 
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The Registrar 
Superior Court of Justice 
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Mark Polley 
Barrister and Solicitor 
Polley Faith LLP 
The Victoria Building 
80 Richmond Street West 
Toronto, ON 
M5H 2A4 

Tel: (416) 365-1600 
Fax: (416) 365-1601 

Counsel for the Moving Party Defendants, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean; Kingsland Estates 
Limited; Phillip St. Eval Atkinson; Richard Ivan Cox; and Marcus 
Andrew Hatch: 
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I, Donald Best, of the County of Simcoe, Ontario, MAKE OATH AND SAY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

1. I am the Plaintiff in this case. I am 60 years of age. I am Canadian born, in 

Ontario where I have always been resident. Although I was forced starting in 

late 2009 to spend over two years outside of Canada as a direct result of the 

actions of the defaulting Barbados defendants now represented by Mr. Mark 

Polley; namely Kingsland Estates Limited, Richard Ivan Cox, Marcus Andrew 

Hatch, Philip St. Eval Atkinson, PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean 

(Formerly 'PricewaterhouseCoopers') ("the Barbados Defendants") and 

another defaulting Barbados defendant not represented by Mr. Polley (Eric 

lain Stewart Deane ("Deane")), and their co-conspirators, I have never 

applied for or been granted residency or citizenship in any other country. 

2. I have read the January 22, 2015 affidavit of Mr. Polley's legal assistant 

Jennifer Gambin. I note that the Gambin affidavit attaches only selected 

letters between Mr. Polley and my lawyer Paul Slansky and omits almost half 

of the highly relevant letters between the two lawyers, concerning the issue 

of default by Mr. Polley's clients. I have attached the missing letters as 

exhibits to my affidavit, so the court may consider a complete and accurate 

correspondence record: 

a. Exhibit 'A': December 8, 2014 - Slansky to Polley re clients noted in 

default 

b. Exhibit 'B': December 15, 2014 - Slansky to all re: Barbados 

defendants default. Deane default judgement. 

c. Exhibit 'C': January 14, 2015 - Slansky to Polley re default motion 

materials 

d. Exhibit 'D': January 14, 2015- Slansky to Wardle & Polley re PWCECF 

e. Exhibit 'E': January 15, 2015- Polley to Slansky remotion materials. 

1 



f. Exhibit 'F': January 19, 2015 - Slansky to Polley re default motion 

affidavits 

g. Exhibit 'G': January 21, 2015 - Polley to Slansky re default motion 

affidavits 

3. I note that the letters omitted from Ms. Gambin's affidavit contain evidence 

contrary to a position advanced by the defendants in their Motion to set aside 

the noting of default. In summary, Mr. Polley takes a position in the motion 

and post-default letters that the noting of default against Mr. Polley's clients 

was an unreasonable, unexpected surprise that occurred in the middle of a 

mutual discussion by counsel as to how Mr. Polley's clients should proceed. 

4. The evidence contained in the complete record of correspondence between 

Mr. Slansky and Mr. Polley confirms and corroborates my memory that from 

the start my lawyer consistently, clearly and continually warned Mr. Polley 

and his clients that they must act and respond to my Statement of Claim 

according to the Ontario Rules of Civil Procedure including the response 

times therein, or they would be noted in default. 

5. Mr. Slansky persuaded me several times to extend time past the default dates 

to allow these defendants to file a Defence or to bring their jurisdiction 

motion as required by the rules. They refused to do either, despite Mr. 

Slansky's written warnings that they were already in default and that we 

would note them in default if they did not serve and file their motion. As Mr. 

Slansky communicated to the Barbados Defendants, I was prepared to leave 

the scheduling of the hearing of the motion to the Honourable Mr. Justice 

McCarthy once the motion was served and filed. This is what was 

contemplated when the issue was inserted in the proposed agenda for Justice 

McCarthy. After repeated written warnings and time extensions amounting 

to eight weeks past the initial 60 days that the defendants had to respond to 

2 
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the Statement of Claim under the rules, the defendants were noted in default 

on December 3, 2014. 

6. A reading of the correspondence record, including the letters omitted from 

the Gambin affidavit, corroborates my memory that there was no 

miscommunication or room for misunderstanding: From the start, Mr. Polley 

consistently, clearly and continually announced that his clients did not intend 

to respond to the Statement of Claim within the time allotted and in any 

manner consistent with the Ontario Rules of Civil Procedure. Despite 

multiple warnings over an eight-week time extension, Mr. Polley's clients 

advertently decided to not file a Defence or to bring a motion to challenge 

jurisdiction. 

7. There is no evidence in the affidavit of Ms. Gambin that the Barbados 

Defendants were made aware of my positions, communicated by Mr. Slansky 

to Mr. Polley. There is no evidence in the affidavit of Ms. Gam bin that, if the 

Barbados Defendants knew of my positions, that they had an intention to file 

a jurisdiction motion before they were noted in default. In fact, I listened in 

at the Case Management Conference before Justice McCarthy on December 

16, 2014, after the Barbados Defendants were noted in default. Mr. Polley 

sought to not file a jurisdictional motion until after others brought and had 

determined their motion to strike. Mr. Polley only indicated that he would 

serve and file the jurisdictional motion when directed to do so by Justice 

McCarthy. There is still no evidence that the Barbados Defendants intend to 

serve and file a jurisdictional motion to be heard on June 15-19, 2015. There 

is only the assertion of their counsel. This is not evidence. 

8. Further, there is every possibility that either side may appeal an adverse 

ruling on the motion to strike, and under the Polley defendants' arbitrary and 

3 



unreasonable intent, they would then continue to wait for a resolution before 

filing anything; perhaps waiting for years. 

Background to noting in default of Mr. Polley's clients 

9. Mr. Polley's October 24, 2014 letter (Exhibit 'G' to the Gambin affidavit) was 

his initial communication to Mr. Slansky informing that he represented the 

Barbados Defendants. This letter was delivered on Friday, October 24, 2014, 

the last business day before defendants Hatch and PricewaterhouseCoopers 

East Caribbean defaulted by failing to file a response by Sunday, October 26, 

2014. October 26, 2014 was 60 days after Hatch and 

PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean were personally served with the 

Statement of Claim on August 27, 2014 in Barbados. 

10. Mr. Polley's letter states in part: 

a. "In the event that the motion to strike being brought by other 

defendants does not succeed, we intend to contest jurisdiction on 

behalf of our clients, and as a result do not intend to serve a Notice of 

Intent to Defend or a Statement of Defence. As such, we trust you will 

not note any of our clients in default." 

11. In response, Mr. Slansky sent a November 6, 2014 letter (Exhibit 'I' to the 

Gambin affidavit) that clearly and in no uncertain terms warns that Mr. 

Polley's clients are in default, or about to be within a few days, and that if 

they do not take steps to respond according to the rules, they will be noted in 

default without further notice. As a courtesy, Mr. Slansky provided a total 

time extension of seven weeks over the original 60 days provided by the 

rules. Mr. Slansky's letter reflects my position and was sent on my 

instructions. 

4 
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12. Mr. Slansky's November 6, 2014letter states in part: 

a. "Your clients PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean and Hatch are 

now in default. The others will be in default shortly ((Atkinson: 

November 9) and (Kingsland and Cox: November 11))." 

b. "I will not move to have your clients noted in default if steps are taken 

in a reasonably prompt manner to get the case going. Taking the latest 

date for possible default in respect of your group of clients (November 

11 ), you should be able to comply 2 weeks later. Accordingly, My 

position is that you must do one of the following: 

-serve a statement of defence by November 25; 

- serve a Notice of Intent to Defend by November 13 and then a 

Statement of Defence served by November 25; OR 

- serve a motion to challenge jurisdiction returnable on June 15, 2015 

by November 25. 

That gives you approximately 3 weeks from now and 4 weeks since 

your October 24 letter, in addition to the time that you have already 

have been given in accordance with the Rules, to prepare these 

documents." 

c. "If one of these options is not exercised by November 25, I have been 

instructed to have your clients noted in default without further notice 

to you." 

These portions of Mr. Slansky's letter reflect my position and was sent on my 

instructions. 

13. On November 20, 2014, Mr. Slansky again warned Mr. Polley in writing 

(Exhibit 'L' to the Gambin affidavit) that the defendants were already in 

default, and would be noted in default if they did not "take a real step to deal 

with this lawsuit as opposed to merely writing letters." As a final courtesy 

Mr. Slansky again extended the deadline from November 25, 2014 to 

5 



December 2, 2014, at which time Mr. Polley's clients would all be noted in 

default. Mr. Slansky's letter reflects my position and was sent on my 

instructions. 

14. Mr. Slansky's November 20, 2014letter states in part: 

a. "I gave you a deadline past the date by which you are required to 

respond to the Statement of Claim: November 25. By writing letters 

instead of acting you have wasted much of that time. I have persuaded 

my client to give you a little more time. However, you must take a real 

step to deal with this lawsuit as opposed to merely writing letters. I 

will give you until Dec. 2, 2014." 

b. "To keep things proceeding expeditiously, to minimize undue expense 

to your clients and to give you an option that does not require your 

clients from attorning to the jurisdiction, my client proposes that you 

choose one of the following two options: 

i. Accept the jurisdiction of the Ontario Courts and serve and file 

a Statement of Defence by December 2, 2014; 

ii. Serve and file your jurisdictional motion by December 2, 2014, 

returnable on a date to be fixed and on terms to be fixed by 

Justice McCarthy at the Case Management Conference." 

c. "No steps will be taken to have your clients noted in default if one of 

these options is met by December 2, 2014. Your clients are already in 

default. You have agreed to none of my previous proposals. A failure 

to accept one of these reasonable proposals or to meet a December 2 

deadline will result in your client being noted in default without 

further notice." 

These portions of Mr. Slansky's letter reflect my position and was sent on my 

instructions. 

6 
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15. A reading of the letters omitted from the Gambin affidavit corroborates my 

memory that there was no miscommunication or discussion: Mr. Polley 

continually announced that his clients did not intend to respond to the 

Statement of Claim or file a jurisdictional motion within the time allotted and 

in any manner consistent with the Ontario Rules of Civil Procedure. My 

lawyer Paul Slansky continually warned Mr. Polley and his clients that they 

must conform to the rules or they would be noted in default. 

16. The first letter omitted from the Gambin affidavit and attached hereto as 

Exhibit 'A', is a December 8, 2014 letter from Paul Slansky to Mr. Polley, 

which states in part: 

a. "On December 1, 2014, you wrote and said that you won't serve and 

file anything but will seek instructions from Justice McCarthy. Absent 

filing something, you have no status to even address Justice McCarthy. 

My client has given you several indulgences. You have been warned 

about being noted in default. Your clients have ignored these 

warnings. 

b. Your clients are all experienced professionals well familiar with 

litigation in general, the litigation in Ontario, and with the issues in 

this case. They have advertently decided to default, apparently for 

strategic purposes, notwithstanding being granted multiple 

extensions of time amounting to seven weeks past the 60 days 

required by the rules. 

c. Your clients have now been noted in default." 

17. During the December 16, 2014 case management call with Justice McCarthy, 

Mr. Polley still maintained his clients' unreasonable position that they should 
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not have to file anything for a period amounting to almost a year after being 

served with the Statement of Claim. During that meeting, Justice McCarthy 

rejected this position and declared that Mr. Polley's clients would have to 

bring a Motion to set aside the default on March 13, 2015, and, if the noting in 

default was set aside, they would have to file their jurisdictional motion by 

March 31, 2015. 

18. Accordingly, I verily believe that Mr. Polley's clients never intended to file a 

jurisdictional motion in the time before they were in default and noted in 

default. This was a deliberate, strategic decision to ignore and/or disobey the 

Ontario Rules of Civil Procedure. 

19. The Polley defendants included only his Assistant's affidavit, despite my 

lawyer communicating the need for proper evidence to be filed in their 

motion to set aside the noting of default. 

20. After reading the January 22, 2015 affidavit of Mr. Polley's legal assistant 

Jennifer Gambin, I am no further enlightened as to the Barbados defendants' 

purported intents, motivations and behaviours leading to their joint decision 

to default. Ms. Gambin would be unable to answer these and other important 

questions. Even I as a non-lawyer can see that cross-examination of Ms. 

Gambin would be a waste of resources and time and would reveal little real 

evidence. The use of Ms. Gambin is, as far as I know, simply another move in 

the defendants' larger strategy to refuse cross-examination or examination of 

defendants, and thereby limit the evidence that is available to the court. 

21. On January 14, 2015, Mr. Slansky wrote a detailed letter (Exhibit 'C' to my 

affidavit) to Mr. Polley addressing his defendants' forthcoming motion to set 

aside the default, and the quality of evidence that is expected. Mr. Slansky's 

letter said in part: 
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"I am writing to you regarding the motion materials that you may be 
preparing as I write this letter, in respect of your motion to set aside 
your clients noting in default. 

Unless your materials establish a good answer to my concerns, it is my 
client's position that your clients do not meet the test to set aside a 
noting in default. 

(case law in letter not included here) 

Accordingly, my position is that in applying to set aside a noting in 
default the Court must exercise its discretion and determine: 

Whether it is just to set aside the noting in default in light of 
the factual context. 

The Court should consider factors such as: 

(1) the behaviour of the plaintiff and of the defendant, 
(2) the length of the defendant's delay, 
(3) the reasons for the delay, 
(4) the complexity and value of the claim involved 
(5) the intent to defend in the relevant time period and 
(6) the existence of a defence (generally not the strength) 

It is expected that my client will dispute each of these factors on your 
motion. Your clients' default required that the motion to set aside 
noting in default be heard prior and decided before the motion 
materials could be served and filed on the motion to strike and 
jurisdictional motion. The delay in filing caused by the default has 
unjustly prejudiced my client. 

Your clients could have avoided this by filing the jurisdictional motion 
materials leaving Justice McCarthy to set a date for hearing. This is 
what ultimately occurred on December 16, 2014. My client gave your 
clients several opportunities and time extensions to file your 
jurisdictional motion materials. Your clients have ignored these 
opportunities. Your clients advertently decided to default, apparently 
for strategic purposes. 

As I advised you in respect of the jurisdiction motion, I expect that 
your materials will address the factual considerations addressed 
above. In respect of the jurisdictional motion, I advised you that: 
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I expect a jurisdictional motion, to be a proper motion based on 
affidavits from your clients, not an assistant or articling 
student. In light of the lack of merit to any opposition to 
jurisdiction, I expect that any basis advanced to challenge 
jurisdiction will be disputed. Failure to file proper supporting 
material will result in a motion to strike the affidavit(s) and/or 
to have the motion summarily dismissed. 

The same position applies to your materials in support of the motion 
to set aside noting in default. Your stated intention at the Case 
Management Conference was to merely file correspondence. I expect 
evidence from your clients, not a pro forma affidavit with attached 
correspondence." 

Mr. Slansky's letter reflects my position and was sent on my instructions. 

Barbados Defendants are sophisticated and experienced international 

litigators, advised by senior counsel. 

22. As detailed herein and in my December 15, 2015 affidavit, I include evidence 

that each of the Barbados Defendants is a sophisticated litigator, experienced 

in Canada, Barbados and other jurisdictions. Each person has a minimum of 

ten years and sometimes decades of experience in various civil litigations, in 

receiving legal advice and directing senior legal counsel, to do with high-

stakes international matters and civil litigation. Each is individually well 

aware of their responsibility to respond to a Statement of Claim under the 

rules of various jurisdictions, and of the consequences of a decision to not do 

so. 

23. Kingsland Estates Limited ("KEL") was one of the principal parties seeking 

costs against me personally, seeking documents from and examination of me 

and seeking to have me found in contempt. Richard Ivan Cox ("Cox") was the 

directing mind of KEL and was instructing KEL's counsel to take these steps 

and how. 
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24. The other principal party seeking costs against me personally, seeking 

documents from and examination of me and seeking to have me found in 

contempt was not a legal entity. Originally, Nelson Barbados Group Limited 

("NBGL") sued the auditor, "PricewaterhouseCoopers (Barbados)". Their 

counsel, Fasken, Martineau DuMoulin ("Faskens") through Gerald Ranking 

("Ranking") advised NBGL counsel at the time, Mr. McKenzie, that this was 

not the proper name of the auditor. NBGL was advised that the proper name 

was "PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm" ("PWCECF"). This was 

also supported by an affidavit of Marcus Hatch, who claimed to a principal of 

the firm. During a cross-examination of Hatch, both Hatch and Ranking again 

asserted that "PWCECF" was a legal entity. Based on these assertions, this 

name was added to and retained in the Statement of Claim. As detailed in 

other affidavits sworn by me, it was later discovered that PWCECF did not 

and does not exist. In the course of examinations in 2013, Ranking twice 

provided documentation about a name change of the entity he was now 

saying was his client to PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean ("PWCEC") 

in 2011; years after steps were taken against me by Faskens and Ranking. 

This partnership was not the entity Faskens and Ranking were previously 

claiming to represent in 2007-2011 (PWCECF). As the purported principals 

of PWCEC and PWCECF, Mr. Hatch and Mr. Atkinson, were the directing 

minds of PWCEC and were the persons instructing Faskens and Ranking to 

take the actions against me and how. 

25. I am aware and have seen documents indicating that defendant Cox and 

companies he has directed have been involved in high-level international 

civil litigation since at least 1998 if not before. Similarly I am aware and have 

seen documents indicating that defendants Marcus Andrew Hatch and/or 

Philip St. Eval Atkinson and/or their businesses have been involved in 

various international lawsuits since at least 1997 if not before. As an 
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example, attached hereto as Exhibit 'H' to my affidavit is a 1999 decision by 

the Supreme Court of Texas concerning a 1997 civil case involving millions of 

US dollars where Marcus Hatch and his then accounting business were 

defendants. 

26. I note that the Supreme Court of Texas found: 

a. "In this case, the record supports a finding that Barbados and Hatch 

sent false information into Texas, knowing it would be relied upon by 

TIG in determining whether to release the $7.6 million premium 

payment to Commercial Acceptance. The record also supports a 

finding that Barbados and Hatch knew the brunt of the injury from 

their alleged misrepresentation and fraud would be felt in Texas by 

TIG from its loss of the $7.6 million premium payment. Considering 

these facts de novo, we hold the trial court did not err in determining 

Barbados and Hatch could reasonably anticipate being haled into a 

Texas court to answer for their actions and that Texas courts have 

specific jurisdiction over them." 

27. The defaulting Barbados defendant not represented by Mr. Polley, Eric lain 

Stewart Deane, is also a sophisticated and experienced international litigator 

with over two decades of experience as detailed in my December 15, 2014 

affidavit. 

28. Each Barbados defendant including Mr. Deane is well funded and has 

previously shown that they are able to retain senior counsel from leading 

Canadian law offices in major lawsuits where legal fees can approach or 

exceed millions of dollars. 
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29. In the Nelson Barbados v. Cox et allawsuit launched in 2007, Cassels Brock 

and Blackwell LLP law office representing defendant Kingsland Estates 

Limited and Richard Ivan Cox invoiced about a million Canadian dollars for 

two year's work. Similarly Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP law office 

representing defendants Marcus Andrew Hatch and Philip St Eval Atkinson 

also invoiced about a million Canadian dollars for the same two-year period. 

30. Senior counsel Mark Polley currently represents the Barbados defendants, 

with the exception of Eric lain Stewart Deane. Mr. Polley is the senior partner 

of the Richmond and Bay Street law office bearing his name, Polley Faith LLP. 

According to his website, he was called to the Ontario Bar in 2001, has wide 

experience including as an Assistant Crown Attorney and with the litigation 

group of a large national law office, apparently McCarthy Tetrault LLP. He 

instructs at Osgoode Hall, and is a former clerk to the Justices at the Ontario 

Court of Appeal. 

31. Mr. Polley's stated "core practice of high-level commercial litigation" 

representing "institutional clients" indicates to me that Mr. Polley is a senior 

counsel able to attract and retain high-end clients, and that he would charge 

towards the upper end of the fees scale. It is my understanding that Mr. 

Polley's minimum rate is CDN$625 an hour. 

32. Mr. Polley's clients enjoy high-end legal advice from senior counsel. While it 

is reasonable to assume that, as an experienced senior counsel, Mr. Polley 

would have advised and cautioned his defendant clients, probably in writing, 

that their strategic decision to not respond to my Statement of Claim 

according to the Ontario Rules of Civil Procedure carried certain risks and 

dangers, and that such a decision was not to be taken lightly, there is no 

evidence that any of the clients were so advised. Logically, either Mr. Polley 
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negligently represented his clients by failing to provide this advice or they 

made a deliberate decision to default, knowing the risks of so doing. 

33. I note that the November 17, 2014 letter from Mr. Polley claims as the 

purported reason that his defendants wish to delay filing any court 

documents for a year is to avoid "our clients to incur costs unnecessarily." In 

context of the Ontario Rules of Civil Procedure and the ability and history of 

the Barbados defendants to engage high-priced lawyers, I verily believe the 

defendants' claim to be worried about costs to be absurd, and an obvious 

attempt to game the judicial system by deliberate and contrived delay. 

Defendants' Default was deliberate, strategic and with purpose 

34. For reasons listed below, and also in my affidavit sworn December 15, 2014 

concerning the default of Mr. Deane, I verily believe, and include evidence, 

that the Barbados Defendants' and Deane's joint default and failure to file a 

defence and/or jurisdictional motion to my Statement of Claim was 

deliberate and strategic, and came after their extensive consideration, almost 

certainly in legal consultation with senior lawyers and other defendants, as 

to the possible benefits, consequences and risks of this strategy to default. 

The default of all of these defendants shows a unity of purpose and a 

considered strategy amongst these parties. Attached hereto as EXHIBIT 'I' 

(under separate cover) is my December 15, 2014 affidavit. 

35. Considering the following evidence, I verily believe that the decision of the 

Barbados Defendants and Deane to default, was deliberate, strategic and 

done with purpose to obtain certain benefits: 

a. As indicated elsewhere in my affidavit, each of the Barbados 

defendants is a sophisticated and experienced litigant in international 
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lawsuits. As such, each has experience about and is aware of their 

responsibility to respond to Statements of Claim and other court 

documents in a manner conforming to the jurisdictional rules. 

b. Each of the Barbados defendants decided to place no evidence before 

the court, either in the Gambin affidavit or from themselves, as to why 

they chose to default, or in the alternate that it was an accident, 

inadvertent or misunderstanding. The defendants decided to not 

submit evidence about this crucial issue. There is no evidence before 

the court from Mr. Polley or his clients about why the Barbados 

defendants decided to default. 

c. My lawyer, Paul Slansky, repeatedly warned the defendants in writing, 

that they were in default, and would be noted in default unless they 

adhered to the Ontario Rules of Civil Procedure. 

d. As a senior counsel, Mr. Polley probably advised and cautioned his 

defendant clients, probably in writing, that their strategic decision to 

not respond to my Statement of Claim according to the Ontario Rules 

of Civil Procedure carried certain risks and dangers, and that such a 

decision was not to be taken lightly. Nonetheless, Mr. Polley's clients 

defaulted. That was a decision by Mr. Polley's clients. 

e. The decision to default by Mr. Polley's clients is paralleled by the 

default of their Barbados co-defendant, Eric lain Stewart Deane. As 

indicated in my Statement of Claim, my December 15, 2014 affidavit 

and my previous affidavits, the wrongdoing against me by Mr. Polley's 

clients and Mr. Deane is very much a common action by a group 

including all the Barbados defendants and other co-conspirators. 

Notwithstanding that Mr. Polley does not represent Mr. Deane, Deane 

remains a co-defendant in this lawsuit. As such, his actions in the past 

and now are closely tied to Mr. Polley's clients, as is Mr. Deane's 

recent decision to default. 
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f. As described in my December 15, 2014 affidavit, it is on the court 

record that the defendant Richard Ivan Cox made statements during 

the Nelson Barbados civil case, to the effect that a judgement from a 

Canadian court will never be able to be enforced in Barbados. 

g. This statement by Cox and similar statements made on a website 

controlled by some of the defendants and their supporters, indicate 

that Cox and the other Barbados defendants are confident that a 

judgement from a Canadian court will never be able to be enforced in 

Barbados. This provides additional motivation and reason for the 

Barbados defendants to strategically default. As detailed in my 

December 15, 2014 affidavit, the defendants and their supporters 

published on this anonymous underground website for many years 

and use it to illegally and recklessly distribute my Identity 

Information as defined in the Criminal Code, and to threaten, 

intimidate and harass my witnesses, my lawyer, our family members 

and me, including to publish the names of my children and to call for 

acts of violence against me and other persons. Although some of these 

publications have been moderated, many are still available on the 

internet in 2015. 

h. As described in detail in my December 15, 2014 affidavit, there is 

evidence showing, and I verily believe, that the Barbados defendants 

defaulted in this current civil case because, inter alia, they know that 

they have no viable defence to the extremely serious allegations 

against them. The defendants know they can only defend on a 

procedural basis, and that they cannot defend upon the truth and fact. 

i. As described in my December 15, 2014 affidavit, the defaulting 

Barbados defendants know that the evidence against them is credible 

and strong; even overwhelming, and includes irrefutable voice 

recordings and business records that prove the defendants: fabricated 

false evidence, lied to the courts on multiple occasions to maliciously 
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obtain my conviction and incarceration for contempt, illegally hired 

and paid a corrupt Ontario Provincial Police detective sergeant 'on the 

side' to commit illegal actions against me, fraudulently claimed to 

represent a fake, fictitious business entity called 

'PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm', recklessly distributed 

Identity Information contrary to the Criminal Code and committed 

other wrongdoing. 

j. By the act of defaulting, Mr. Polley's clients gained immediate and 

long-term strategic benefits for themselves and their Canadian co-

defendants as detailed in the following section of my affidavit. 

Strategic Benefits to Defendants resulting from their choice to default 

36. By not engaging in the court process according to the Ontario Rules of Civil 

Procedure, and by not submitting affidavits from the individual defendants, 

the Barbados defendants are strategically acting to deny the court and me 

the evidence, exhibits and knowledge they possess as they know this 

evidence will either be exposed as perjury or will further incriminate 

themselves and other defendants, including the Canadian defendants. 

37. Further, by their default the Barbados Defendants have limited the time to 

deal with the three (3) motions set to proceed on June 15, 2015. Had the 

Barbados Defendants complied with the deadlines (i.e., December 2, 2014), 

there would have been time between December 16, 2014 and June 15, 2015 

(6 months) to perfect the motions. Because of the default, there is only 3 

months available to perfect these motions. This gives rise to a greater risk of 

steps not being completed in time and the potential delay of this litigation. 

This has also caused me needless expense and diverted my lawyer's time and 

efforts from the main case. 
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38. Further, it is my belief that many of the Barbados defendants have a history 

of doing business in Ontario and with Ontario residents, and that they travel 

and have travelled to Ontario for business purposes, including marketing. 

The Barbados defendants also wish to avoid examination or cross-

examination as they know that their business history in Ontario will 

undermine their jurisdiction motion. 

39. As indicated in more detail in my December 15, 2014 affidavit, the 

defendants do not want to formally engage in the court process because they 

know that they face strong evidence implicating them in acts of wrongdoing, 

including a long running campaign of harassment, intimidation, violence and 

other criminal acts against myself, other plaintiffs, witnesses, lawyers and 

our family members who oppose and opposed the defendants and their co-

conspirators in various past and current legal actions ('The Campaign'). 

40. Since my return to Canada in 2012, the defendants and their lawyers have 

steadfastly refused to allow me to examine any of the defendants responsible 

for fabricating and placing false/deceptive evidence before the courts, 

including the defendants who committed fraud upon the courts by 

fraudulently claiming that they represented 'PricewaterhouseCoopers East 

Caribbean Firm' when such business entity did not and has never existed. As 

well, I have never been able to examine the defendants who illegally hired 

and paid the corrupt Ontario Provincial Police detective sergeant 'on the side' 

to commit illegal actions and to deceive the courts. Further, no court, 

including the Superior Court, the Ontario Court of Appeal or the Supreme 

Court has ever listened to the voice recording of November 17, 2009 that 

proves I was convicted upon deliberately fabricated and falsified evidence, 

nor have I been allowed to examine those responsible. As part of their legal 

strategy, the defendants have always refused to be examined. 
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41. The choices made by the Barbados Defendants to default, to present an 

Assistant's affidavit as 'evidence' and to refuse to submit affidavits which 

would expose them to cross-examination, are a continuation of their long-

held legal strategy of ongoing refusals, manoeuvres and delays. 

Irrelevant and False and Misleading assertions of re-litigating issues 

42. This motion is a motion to set aside the noting of the Barbados Defendants in 

default. Whether the lawsuit should be struck as an abuse of process is 

irrelevant to this issue and will be the subject of a motion in June 2015. The 

Barbados Defendants focus on this irrelevant issue because they have not 

and cannot justify their deliberate default. 

43. While I do not wish to fall into the trap of answering another motion, I am 

concerned that if these false and misleading assertions of re-litigation are left 

unanswered, my lawsuit will be seen in a negative light. This is in fact the 

real strategy of the Barbados Defendants. Accordingly, I feel obliged to briefly 

address this issue. 

44. Contrary to the claims in the defendants' factum (which are primarily 

argument made as 'fact' without supporting evidence) my Best v. Ranking et 

a/ civil case contains substantially different and new issues and evidence 

than has ever been decided by Ontario courts. The NBGL lawsuit was about 

corporate financial interests in Barbados. It had to do with alleged theft, 

fraud and breach of trust in respect of an estate and in respect of real estate 

in Barbados. 

45. The present lawsuit is explained in the Statement of Claim. However, by way 

of summary, it has to do with the manner in I was treated in respect of costs 

proceedings, an examination and a contempt proceeding in four respects: 
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(a) The lies and misrepresentations that led to the finding of contempt 

and my incarceration; 

(b) The investigations of me by a serving police officer, James Van Allen, 

unlawfully acting as a private investigator in respect of these proceedings; 

(c) The obtaining, release and publishing of private and confidential 

information that harmed me; 

(d) The perpetration of a fraud on the Court by acting on behalf of a non-

entity, PWCECF. 

These issues are completely unrelated to the financial interests of NBGL in a 

lawsuit in respect of issues in Barbados. The present lawsuit relate to the 

manner of investigation, litigation, conspiracy and cover-up against me 

personally in respect of Ontario litigation, leading to personal and financial 

harm to me personally. Many of their acts of wrongdoing and the harm are 

ongoing to this day. 

46. The proceedings brought by the lawyers and law firms on behalf of Deane 

and the Barbados defendants for costs against me personally, to seek 

documents from and examination of me and to have me found in contempt 

and incarcerated do not flow from the NBGL litigation. Had they merely 

sought costs against NBGL, this might be arguable. Instead, they targeted me 

personally for reasons unrelated to costs. The piercing of the corporate veil, 

to seek allegedly seek costs against me was never litigated and no court 

concluded that appropriate. This was improperly assumed to be legitimate. 

The Motion materials returnable on November 2, 2009 makes this clear. A 

copy of these materials is attached hereto as Exhibit T of this affidavit. 

4 7. The production of documents and examination of me was purportedly for 

purposes of obtaining costs on the action from me. This was demonstrated 

to be unconnected to costs on the NBGL action. Costs were fully settled in 

June 2010. This is clear from the Minutes of Settlement. A copy is attached 
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hereto and is marked as Exhibit 'K' of this affidavit. When I brought a motion 

to set aside the finding of contempt made against me in my absence, the 

Barbados Defendants and some of the lawyers and law firms continued to 

insist on the production of documents and the examination even though 

costs had been settled in full. This ulterior motive was conceded by Mr. 

Ranking three times. Once, on December 2, 2009, he said: 

"The whole issue of this case being started in Ontario through a sham 
corporation is as much alive today as it will be tomorrow when a 
different jurisdiction is chosen, another action is commenced, and I 
can tell you that there have been rumblings about actions being 
commenced in Florida. So, I am more than happy to settle this case 
today if my client were paid the caveat that I would insist upon, is that 
anybody related to- whether it's John Knox or Marjorie Knox, or 
whoever is behind all of this, provides a full and final general release 
that my client, and I'm sure I speak for all the defendant's, will not be 
sued anywhere else, because that is a legitimate concern." 

48. A copy of the December 2, 2009 transcript is attached hereto and is marked 

as Exhibit 'L' of this affidavit. Again, during the October 22, 2013 

examination of one of the Defendant lawyers, Pendrith, Mr. Ranking said that 

the reason the answers were still sought to the questions was because it was 

thought that it may be useful in relation to other continuing litigation. This 

portion of the transcript of the examination of Pendrith (p. 138) is attached 

hereto and is marked as Exhibit 'M' of this affidavit. Finally, Mr. Ranking 

admitted this on a motion before Justice Feldman, as is reflected in her 

reasons (motion for Security for costs) heard October 13, 2013. A copy of 

these reasons, in which she found the abuse of process issue based on this 

fact to be arguable, is attached hereto and is marked as Exhibit "N" of this 

affidavit. When I was jailed in Lindsay, Ontario in solitary confinement, some of 

the defendants approached persons whom they knew cared about me, and 

offered to release me from jail if these persons would settle litigation taking 

place in other jurisdictions and/or pay them money. 
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49. The December 2, 2009 contempt motion against me was purportedly for 

purposes of enforcing the production and examination orders against me for 

purposes of obtaining costs on the action from me. A copy of the Contempt 

motion materials returnable on December 2, 2009, which makes this clear, is 

attached hereto and is marked as Exhibit '0' of this affidavit. This purpose 

was demonstrated to be unconnected to costs on the NBGL action. Costs were 

fully settled in June 2010. This is clear from the Minutes of Settlement. When 

I brought a motion to set aside the finding of contempt made against me in 

my absence, the Barbados Defendants and some of the lawyers and law firms 

continued to insist on the production of documents and the examination 

even though costs had been settled in full. 

50. I was not aware of the examination and production motion or order until I 

was told about the latter by the trial coordinator on November 16, 2009, the 

day before the examination was to be conducted on November 17, 2009. I 

was out of the country at the time. I had left because of threats and actual 

violence towards me and my family as a result of release of confidential 

information and a campaign to harm and or intimidate me that is a part of 

the present lawsuit. I tried to comply by being examined by telephone. When 

I called in to the Special Examiner's office, I explained to counsel (most of 

whom are defendants on the present lawsuit) that I had just found out about 

the order, that I did not have a copy of it and that I was willing to be 

examined over the telephone. I explained that I could not come soon because 

I had safety concerns. This was ignored and counsel, primarily Mr. Ranking 

and Mr. Silver, created a false record stating the opposite of what I had said. 

This record was presented by them as the truth and my version (sent by 

letter) was called lies and defamation. The false version was later relied upon 

by the Honourable Mr. Justice Shaughnessy in finding me in contempt, as 

reflected in his January 25, 2010 reasons (paragraphs 7, 16, 17, 24). The 

actual call on November 17, 2009 was recorded by me and proves that the 

22 

29 



30 

lawyers lied in writing and orally to Justice Shaughnessy to have me found in 

contempt. 

51.1 was unaware of the December 2, 2009 motion return date (although I had 

been told that a motion might be brought that day). 

52.1 was unaware of the January 10, 2010 contempt hearing date. 

53. In the 2012-2013 application to have the contempt order set aside, evidence 

was presented to the Court to prove the foregoing three paragraphs. 

However, because Justice Shaughnessy was assured by Mr. Ranking and Mr. 

Silver that they were telling the truth and I was lying, Justice Shaughnessy 

refused to consider any of this evidence. On December 11, 2012, he said that: 

But from your affidavit materials, clearly, you know, you've turned 
your siKhts on them and I just want to say to you Mr. Best, that's not 
what I'm dealinK with. I'm dealing with contempt, already found. 
I've already found you in contempt of the court and in contempt of 
court orders and you're seeking to change that .... if you're sayinK 
that you're going prove that the fundamental basis to set aside 
was the contempt, was maleficence on the part of Mr. RankinK 
and Mr. Silver. and I'm going to say to you, go back and read again, 
my reasons which were then supported in court and you chose not to 
attend court when you had notice of the application. But I'm 
saying to you, I'm not expanding this to a brand new hearing. I'm 
not re-litiKating. You must understand this Mr. Best; I am not the 
Court of Appeal. I made - I gave a judgment. I made a finding. I am 
not the Court of Appeal . The Court of Appeal deals with anything 
that they feel I did wrong. The Court of Appeal is where you make 
applications for new evidence, not me. 

A copy of this December 11, 2012 transcript excerpt (mischaracterized as Mr. 

Ranking, but in fact it was Justice Shaughnessy speaking) is attached hereto 

and is marked as Exhibit 'P' of this affidavit. This thinking was adverted to in 

the April 30, 2013 hearing and in the reasons of Justice Shaughnessy 

dismissing my application to set aside the contempt (May 3, 2013). 

Accordingly, the initial Contempt order was made based on false evidence 
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presented by the lawyers and the Barbados Defendants. No viva voce 

evidence was heard, even though the facts presented were disputed, because 

the Court relied upon the presumed ethics of senior counsel before the Court 

instead of an absent party. Under the circumstances, it would be 

inappropriate to say that the challenging of these findings is abuse of process. 

Further, Justice Shaughnessy never made any findings based on evidence 

presented by me in my affidavits. That was left for the Court of Appeal. 

Accordingly, Justice Shaughnessy never adjudicated the issues that are now 

part of the present lawsuit. 

54. In the Court of Appeal, on a motion to remove Mr. Ranking and Silver from 

the Record, Justice Feldman did not make a finding, but deferred to the 

decision of Justice Shaughnessy for purposes of the motion. She indicated 

that the panel on the appeal would ultimately determine the issue. A copy of 

her Reasons on the motion to remove counsel is attached hereto and is 

marked as Exhibit 'N' of this affidavit. The decision to which she deferred it 

was a determination that there had been no misconduct by Mr. Ranking and 

Mr. Silver. However, it must be remembered that this determination was 

made without any consideration of my affidavits, which was left to a fresh 

evidence application on the appeal. That appeal was never heard on the 

merits because of my inability to pay the costs orders made against me. 

55. On a review to a panel, the Court did not make a finding but deferred to 

Justice Feldman, who deferred to Justice Shaughnessy, who did not consider 

my evidence. 

56. On a motion for a stay pending an application for leave to appeal to the 

Supreme Court of Canada, Justice MacPherson did not have any of these 

issues before him. The only issue being considered on the stay application 

and the leave application was the propriety of administratively dismissing an 
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appeal of a criminal or quasi-criminal decision involving the liberty of the 

subject due to the inability to pay costs orders in excess of $200,000. 

57. Based on the foregoing, it is clear that no court has ever considered my 

evidence to which the present lawsuit relates. Justice Shaughnessy refused to 

consider it, leaving it to the appeal to the Court of Appeal on the merits. 

Justice Feldman and the panel on review merely deferred to this non-

decision, leaving the issue to the panel hearing the appeal on the merits. That 

appeal was never heard because of my inability to pay over $200,000 in 

costs. 

58. Other issues in this lawsuit, in respect of Van Allen, PWCECF and the privacy 

breaches have never been decided by any court. 

59. With respect to the issues and evidence in the Best vs. Ranking et allawsuit, 

the vast majority of the defendants' past and continuing acts of wrongdoing 

against me took place in Ontario and/or were directed to and/or received in 

Ontario. Similarly the resultant harm against me primarily happened and is 

continuing in Ontario. I have no idea upon what grounds the Barbados 

Defendants could successfully contest the jurisdiction in Best v. Ranking et al. 

The jurisdiction issues are simple and very straightforward. 

Sworn before me at the City of 0 / //;tt ) 
In the County of Simcoe 

A Commissioner, etc. 

Kerry Ann ici!Stein, a Commissioner, stc., 
Province of Ontario. forthl6ovemment of 
Onllrlo. Mlnlllry olthl Attomly 6enlral. 

) 

) 

) 
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Dec 8. 2014 BY FAX 

Polley Faith LLP 
The Victory Building 
80 Richmond St. W. 
Suite 1300 
Toronto, ON 
M5H2A4 

Mr. Polley: 

SLANSK'i PAGE 02/03 

Slansky Law Professional Corp. 
1062 CoJlege St 

Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6lllA9 

pbone: (416) 536-lllO 
fax: (416) S36-8842 

pau1.s1aosky@bellnft.ca 

Re: Best v. Ranking, et. al. (PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean, 
Ho.tch.Atkinson. Kingsland Estates Ltd. and C9J) 

I am writing to you further to your letter dated December 1, 2014. 

My client gave you a deadline by which you we.-e required to respond to the Statement of 
· Claim: November 25. By writing letters instead of serving and filing something your 

clients have wasted much of that time. We told you that failure to serve and file 
something would result in having your clients noted in default. 

I then persuaded my client to give you a little more time. We gave you until Dec. 2, 
2014. We again said that failure to serve and file something would result in having your 
clients noted in default. 1 gave you the option to serve and file a jurisdiction motion and 
have Justice McCarthy determine when the motion should proceed. 

On December 1, 2014, you wrote and said that you won't serve and file anything but will 
seek instructions from Justice McCarthy. Absent flling something, you have no status to 
even address Justice McCarthy. My client has given you several indulgences. You have 
been warned about being noted in default. Your clients have ignored these warnings. 

Your clients are all experienced professionals well familiar with litigation in general, the 
litigation in Ontario, and with the issues in this case. They have advertently decided to 
default, apparently for strategic purposes, notwithstanding being granted multiple 
extensions of time amotmting to seven weeks past the 60 days required by the rules. 
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Your clients have now been noted in default. 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "B" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 

A Commissioner etc. 

Kerry a Commissioner, etc., 
Province o1 ::;ic, ··J, io1 •llhlmment of 
0a11r1o. Ministry of the Attorney Generll. 
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December 15, 2014 

Tara Lynn Mountney 
Assistant to The Honourable Mr. Justice McCarthy 
Superior Court of Justice, Newmarket 
50 Eagle St., 
Newmarket, Ontario 
L3Y 6B1 

Dear Ms. Mountney: 

Re: Best v. Ranking et. al; Case Management; Update 

Slansky Law Professional Corp. 
1062 College St. 

E-mail: 

Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H 1A9 

phone: (416) 536-1220 
fax: (416) 536-8842 

I am writing to update to my letter dated November 14, 2014 regarding case management. 

Please have this letter put before Justice McCarthy prior to the case management 
teleconference next week, directly or via the trial coordinator. I write to you because this 
is what I was directed to do by the Regional Senior Justice. 

There are three sets of issues that require updating: 
• Deane default Judgment; 
• Barbados defendants; 
• leave to amend the Statement of Claim. 

Deane Default Judgement 

As mentioned in my November 14 letter, we are seeking default judgement against Mr. 
lain Deane, who has already been noted in default. The Motion Record makes it clear 
that further evidence will be filed on the motion. It is returnable before you tomorrow at 
the Case Management Conference to be spoken to. 

Barbados Defendants 

With respect to the Barbados defendants, they are jointly represented by Mr. Polley. He 
advised me that they intended to challenge jurisdiction. I proposed that we discuss this at 
the teleconference, on the assumption that a motion would have been filed. 
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My client agreed to extend time past the default date to allow these defendants to file a 
Defence or bring their motion. They refused to do either. 

I persuaded my client to give them a further extension of time to file their jurisdictional 
motion and proposed that the timing of hearing of their motion be determined by Justice 
McCarthy at the teleconference. They again refused and wished to discuss this at the 
teleconference without having filed anything. 

My position was and is that they have no standing to participate at the teleconference 
unless they filed a Notice of Intent to Defend/Statement of Defence or a jurisdictional 
motion. They refused to do either. Having advised them that they would be noted in 
default if they did not file something and having had nothing filed, they have been noted 
in default. Letters reflecting this history are attached. 

The defendants are all professionals, experienced and knowledgeable litigants advised by 
competent counsel, who have deliberately defaulted apparently for strategic reasons. 

It is my position that they have no right to participate in the teleconference unless, and 
then, only to the extent, that they wish to discuss the scheduling of a motion to set aside 
the noting in default. I do not expect that my client will consent to set aside the noting in 
default as we do not accept, inter alia, that they have any intention to defend. 

Consent to Amend or Service of Motion for Leave to Amend the Statement of Claim 

Two of three sets of police defendants (Peel Regional Police and OPP) took the position 
that we had sued non-entities or inappropriate parties. The proposed amendments seek to 
address this issue. Accordingly, the only real change to the Statement of Claim is to add 
the proper police parties. The Commissioner and former Commissioner (Lewis) of the 
OPP are proposed new parties. The Peel Regional Police Service Board and Chief of 
Police are new proposed parties. The Durham Regional Police Service Board and Chief 
and former Chief of Police (Ewles) are proposed new parties. After reviewing further 
evidence and further research, we determined that these new parties are proper parties to 
the lawsuit. 

A Motion Record for leave should be before you at the time of teleconference and has 
been served on the parties and proposed new parties, except for the former Commissioner 
of the OPP and the former Chief of Durham Police. These two persons have not been 
served because we did have not found their coordinates and did not want to include these 
details in the materials if we had them, out of concern for their safety and privacy. My 
client, as a former police officer, who is suing, in part of breaches of his privacy, we had 
hoped that the present Commissioner and Chief, or their counsel, would forward the draft 
Amended Statement of Claim. We will be seeking such agreement, guidance ofthe Court 
and/or orders in respect of service (substituted or ratification). We will be seeking the 
assistance of the Court in scheduling the motion for leave absent consent. 
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In light of the positions of the defendants, it was expected there to be consent. In fact, 
previous counsel for Peel RPS said that they would recommend consent to such an 
amendment. Present Counsel deny this and have not provided consent or accepted 
service. Previous Counsel, Blainey McMurtry said: 

... we have been retained to defend the interests of the Regional Municipality of 
Peel Police Services Board (the "Board"). We note that you have improperly 
named the Board as the "Peel Regional Police Service a.k.a.. Peel Regional 
Police". Pursuant to s. 50( 1) of the Police Services Act, the Board is liable for 
torts allegedly committed by its members in the course of their employment. At 
this time, I am prepared to recommend that the claim be amended to properly 
name the Board on consent. 

Present Counsel, Ms. LeDrew, said: 

In your letter, you improperly stated that counsel for the Peel Regional Police 
Service had provided their consent to amend. During their representation of the 
Peel Regional Police Service, Blaney McMurtry LLP had not provided you with 
their consent to amend but had indicated that the Peel Regional Police Services 
was not a suable entity. 

I confirm that you do not have our consent to amend the Statement of Claim and 
we will not be able to provide you with our position with respect to any proposed 
amendments to the Statement of Claim until we are in receipt of your entire draft 
Amended Statement of Claim ... 

Additionally, please be advised that we are not able to accept service on behalf of 
the Peel Regional Police Service Board or on behalf of the Peel Regional Police 
Service Chief of Police, Jennifer Evans. You are required to serve these parties 
personally. 

If Peel RPS is not a legal entity, one wonders who Ms. LeDrew is presently representing. 
Presumably, as Blainey McMurty admitted, they represent the Board. Yet, there has been 
no accepting or facilitation of service or consent forthcoming. There has only been a 
deafening silence. They have had the draft Statement of Claim since October 21 (almost 
two months). 

I look forward to discussing these issues in the teleconference. 

Yours truly, 

Paul Slansky 
cc. All defendants 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "C" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 

A Commissioner etc. 

, -:· Cnmmlssloner, etc., 
Pruv., .. : • ,.,.jG·,; ... _·mmentof 
Olllarlo, Mmistry olltle Attorney GeDiriL 
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From: Paul Slansky [mailto::eaul.slansky@l?_E?1:l_net._ca) 
Sent: Friday, January 16, 2015 12:58 PM 
To: 'Jennifer Gambin' 
Cc: 'Mark Polley' 
Subject: RE: Donald Best v. Ranking et al I Court File No. 
14-0815 

Enclosed is a letter sent by fax on Wednesday. 

From: Jennifer Gambin 
Sent: Thursday, January 15, 2015 4:08 PM 
To: :eaul.slansky@bellnet.ca 
Cc: Mark Polley 
Subject: Donald Best v. Ranking et al I Court File No. 14-
0815 

Dear Mr. Slansky: 

Please find attached correspondence of today's date on 
behalf of Mark 
Polley. 

Sincerely, 

h!:_!:e_: I j_p__o 11 ey fa i ai t h-barristers-
logo.:eng 

Jennifer Gambin 
T: 416.365.1600 
F: <tel:416.365.1601> 416.365.1601 

Polley Faith LLP 
The Victory Building 
80 Richmond St w 



Suite 1300 
Toronto MSH 2A4 

<!1ttp :_/_Lwww t_I:! ._c9m/> www. c;_ol!! 

The information in this email may be privileged, 
confidential and/or exempt 
from disclosure. By sending this e-mail, which is intended 
only for the 
named recipient(s), we waive no privilege over its 
contents. Unauthorized 
use, dissemination or copying is prohibited. If you have 
received this email 
in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone 
at +1 416 365 
1600 or by reply email and destroy all copies of it. 
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January 14, 2015 

Polley Faith LLP 
The Victory Building 
80 Richmond St. W. 
Suite 1300 
Toronto, ON 
M5H2A4 

Mr. Polley: 

BY FAX 

Slansky Law Professional Corp. 
1062 College St. 

Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H 1A9 

phone: (416)536-1220 
fax: (416) 536-8842 

E-mail: paul.slansky@bellnet.ca 

Re: Best v. Ranking, et. al. (PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean, 
Hatch, Atkinson, Kingsland Estates Ltd. and Cox) 

I am writing to you regarding the motion materials that you may be preparing as I write 
this letter, in respect of your motion to set aside your clients noting in default. 

Unless your materials establish a good answer to my concerns, it is my client's position 
that your clients do not meet the test to set aside a noting in default. The test is set out in 
Metro Toronto Condominium Corp. 706 v. Bardmore Develpments, [1991] 0.1. No. 717 
(C.A.) (reaffirmed in Nobosoft v. No Borders, [2007] 0.1. No. 2378 (C.A.) and in Flintoff 
v. von Anhalt, [2010] 0.1. No. 4963 (C.A.) (para 7 "non-exhaustive list")): 

18 ... Rule 19.03 provides that a noting in default "may be set aside by the 
court on such terms as are just", and rule 19.09 provides that a default 
judgment "may be set aside or varied by the court on such terms as are just". It 
seems clear that the language in both cases is intended to leave the matter within 
the discretion of the court ... rather than specific and detailed rules, it is the 
context and factual situation in which the discretion arises which should 
determine its application. Such factors as the behaviour of the plaintiff and 
of the defendant, the length of the defendant's delay, the reasons for the 
delay, and the complexity and value of the claim involved are all relevant 
factors to be taken into consideration. However, I consider that it would only be 
in extreme situations that a trial judge would exercise his discretion to require an 
affidavit as to the merits of the defence on a motion to set aside a noting in 
default. 
[emphasis added] 
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Older cases discussed in Bardmore also require that there be a an intent to defend in the 
relevant time period and the existence of a defence (see paras 11-18; albeit except in 
"extreme cases", not the strength of the defence) 

Accordingly, my position is that in applying to set aside a noting in default the Court 
must exercise its discretion and determine: 

Whether it is just to set aside the noting in default in light of the factual context. 

The Court should consider factors such as: 

(1) the behaviour ofthe plaintiff and ofthe defendant, 

(2) the length of the defendant's delay, 
(3) the reasons for the delay, 
(4) the complexity and value of the claim involved 

(5) the intent to defend in the relevant time period and 

(6) the existence of a defence (generally not the strength) 

It is expected that my client will dispute each of these factors on your motion. Your 
clients' default required that the motion to set aside noting in default be heard prior and 
decided before the motion materials could be served and filed on the motion to strike and 
jurisdictional motion. The delay in filing caused by the default has unjustly prejudiced 
my client. 

Your clients could have avoided this by filing the jurisdictional motion materials leaving 
Justice McCarthy to set a date for hearing. This is what ultimately occurred on December 
16, 2014. My client gave your clients several opportunities and time extensions to file 
your jurisdictional motion materials. Your clients have ignored these opportunities. Your 
clients advertently decided to default, apparently for strategic purposes. 

As I advised you in respect of the jurisdiction motion, I expect that your materials will 
address the factual considerations addressed above. In respect of the jurisdictional 
motion, I advised you that: 

I expect a jurisdictional motion, to be a proper motion based on affidavits from 
your clients, not an assistant or articling student. In light of the lack of merit to 
any opposition to jurisdiction, I expect that any basis advanced to challenge 
jurisdiction will be disputed. Failure to file proper supporting material will result 
in a motion to strike the affidavit(s) and/or to have the motion summarily 
dismissed. 

The same position applies to your materials in support ofthe motion to set aside noting in 
default. Your stated intention at the Case Management Conference was to merely file 
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correspondence. I expect evidence from your clients, not a pro forma affidavit with 
attached correspondence. 

Yours truly, 

Paul Slansky 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "D" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 

A Commissioner etc. 

JCerTy Ann Eclclteln, a Comniulolllr, ltc., 
Province ol Ontario, for 1hl Oovenlmllt of 
Olllda. ....,of1111M1111Ja..L 
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From: Paul Slansky 
Sent: Friday, January 16, 2015 1:00 PM 
To: 'Erin Pleet' 
Cc: Mark Polley 
Subject: RE: Best v. Ranking et al, Court File CV-14-0815 

Enclosed is a letter sent by fax on Wednesday. 

From: Erin Pleet [mailto:eEleet@wdbblaw.ca] 
Sent: Thursday, January 15, 2015 9:03 AM 
To: Paul Slansky 
Cc: ''Jennifer Hunter''; EWright@johnstonecowling.com; 
'Moten, Asad (MAG)'; aledrew@sblegal.ca; 
ngroot@investigationcounsel.com; Eveel@litigate.com; 

Subject: RE: Best v. Ranking et al, Court File CV-14-0815 

Counsel, 

I am re-sending my correspondence below, with Ms LeDrew's 
correct email address. 

Kind regards, 

Erin Pleet 

Erin Pleet 
Associate 
Wardle Daley Bernstein Bieber LLP 
416-351-2774 

From: Erin Pleet 
Sent: January 14, 2015 5:38 PM 
To: 'Paul Slansky' 



Cc: I 
1 Jennifer Hunter 1 1 

; com; 
1 Moten, As ad (MAG) I ; CQI!Ii 
ngroot@ pveel@ l_i tigat_e_. com; 

com 
Subject: RE: Best v. Ranking et al, Court File CV-14-0815 

Mr. Slansky, 

We have reviewed your draft Order and cannot provide our 
consent. 

We do not agree that the Order need reference that the 
Plaintiff consents because of the proposed amendment to the 
Statement of Claim, as this is not a condition of the 
Order. Further, underlining in the style of cause would 
ordinarily indicate an amendment to a pleading. Since 
these underlines are not in reference to an amendment, it 
is our understanding that the Court will not accept an 
Order with such underlining. The draft Order we provided 
to you sets out who the moving parties are in full. 

Kindly provide your consent to our draft Order (attached), 
failing which we will seek to schedule a case conference 
with Justice McCarthy for the purpose of settling the 
Order. 

Kind regards, 

Erin Fleet 

Wardle Daley Bernstein Bieber LLP 
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Erin Pleet 

ASSOCIATE 

t 416.351.2774 
f 416.351.9196 

2104 - 401 Bay Street, P.O. Box 21 - Toronto ON M5H 2Y4 
Canada 

This e-mail (including any attachments) is for the 
exclusive use of the intended recipient(s). The fact of 
this communication and the information contained herein may 
be privileged and confidential. Privilege and 
confidentiality are expressly claimed and are not waived. 
This e-mail (including any attachments) may not be 
disclosed, copied or used, in any manner or form 
whatsoever, by any person other than the intended 
recipient(s). Failure to comply with this prohibition may 
breach laws or infringe legal and equitable rights for 
which you may be liable. If you have received this e-mail 
in error, please remove it (and any attachments) entirely 
from your e-mail system and notify us immediately by return 
e-mail or by telephone. Thank you in advance for your 
cooperation. 

From: Paul Slansky [mail to: paul __ 
Sent: January 13, 2015 1:04 PM 
To: Erin Pleet 



Cc: ''Jennifer Hunter''; 
'Moten, As ad (MAG) ' ; aled.J:"eV?"@ 

_C_<?!ll; pveel@ litigate_. 

Subject: RE: Best v. Ranking et al, Court File CV-14-0815 

Enclosed is a letter addressing this consent order and my 
signed consent to an updated version of the order sent to 
you in October. 

It is also being sent by fax. 

From: Erin Fleet 
Sent: Friday, January 09, 2015 4:18 PM 
To: 'paul.slansky@bellnet.ca' 
Cc: ''Jennifer Hunter' (jhunter@lerners.ca)'; 
'pwright@johnstonecowling.com'; 'Moten, Asad (MAG)'; 
'aledrew@sblegal.com'; 'ngroot@investigationcounsel.com'; 
'pveel@litigate.com'; 'mpolley@polleyfaith.com' 
Subject: RE: Best v. Ranking et al, Court File CV-14-0815 

Mr. Slanksy, 

Further to our case conference with Justice McCarthy, 
please find attached a draft Order with respect to the 
setting aside of the noting in default of the defendants 
Gerald Lancaster Rex Ranking, Sebastien Jean Kwidzinski, 
Lorne Stephen Silver, Colin David Pendrith, Paul Barker 
Schabas, Andrew John Roman, Ma'anit Tzipora Zemel, Fasken 
Martineau Dumoulin LLP, Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP, 
Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP and Miller Thomson LLP, 
Ontario Provincial Police, Peel Regional Police Service 
a.k.a. Peel Regional Police, Durham Regional Police 
Service, Marty Kearns, Jeffery R. Vibert, George Dmytruk, 
and the Toronto Police Association. 
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If you could kindly provide your consent as to form and 
content, we will forward the Order to Justice McCarthy's 
attention. The moving Defendants have each provided their 
consent to this draft Order. 

Kind regards, 

Erin Pleet 

Erin Pleet 

Associate 

Wardle Daley Bernstein Bieber LLP 

416-351-2774 

From: Jennifer Hunter [mailto:jhunter@lerners.ca] 
Sent: Monday, December 29, 2014 10:01 AM 
To: 'Mountney, Tara Lynn (MAG)'; paul.slansky@bellnet.ca; 
Erin Pleet; pwright@johnstonecowling.com; Moten, Asad 
(MAG); 
ngroot@investigationcounsel.com; pveel@litigate.com; 
'mpolley@polleyfaith.com' 
Subject: RE: Best v. Ranking et al, Court File CV-14-0815 

Thank you Ms. Mountney for your email. 

Counsel, 

Attached is a letter that was circulated on December 17, 
2014 confirming the schedule that was agreed to during our 
call with Justice McCarthy, as well as other orders that 
were made. I would ask all counsel to confirm their 
approval. Please reply by email to me only. Once all 
counsel have approved, I will advise Ms. Mountney as 
requested and will copy everyone. 



Thank you, 

Jennifer 

Jennifer Hunter I Lerners LLP I Partner I phone 
416.601.2659 I direct fax 416.867.2417 I 
jhunter@lerners.ca I 130 Adelaide Street West, Suite 2400 -
Toronto - Ontario - M5H 3P5 

From: Mountney, Tara Lynn (MAG) 
[mail to: 
Sent: December 24, 2014 12:36 PM 
To: paul.slansky@bellnet.ca; epleet@wdblaw.ca; 
pwright@johnstonecowling.com; Moten, Asad (MAG); Jennifer 
Hunter; aledrew@sblegal.com; 
ngroot@investigationcounsel.com; pveel@litigate.com 
Cc: Mountney, Tara Lynn (MAG) 
Subject: FW: Best v. Ranking et al, Court File CV-14-0815 
Importance: High 

Good Afternoon Counsel, 

Please find attached correspondence requested by Justice 
J.R. McCarthy regarding the above noted matter requiring 
your attention. 

Kindly confirm receipt of same via email. 

Thank you. 
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Regards, 

Tara Lynn Mountney 

Tara Lynn Mountney 

SCJ Judicial Secretary to 

Justices Graham, Olah and McCarthy 

75 Mulcaster Street 

Barrie, Ontario L4M 3P2 

Tel (705) 725-6240 

Fax (705) 725-7268 

A T T E N T I 0 N 

This email may contain PRIVILEGED and CONFIDENTIAL 
INFORMATION only for use of the addressee(s) named above. 
If you are not the intended recipient of this email or the 
employee or agent responsible for delivering it to the 
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
dissemination or copying of this email and/or its 
attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received 
this email in error, please immediately notify us by 
telephone to arrange for the return or destruction of this 
document. Thank-you. 

-----Original Message-----
From: ONP3F00735232@ontario.ca 

Sent: Wednesday, December 24, 2014 12:25 PM 
To: Mountney, Tara Lynn (MAG) 
Subject: 

This E-mail was sent from "ONP3F00735232" (Aficio MP 5001). 



Scan Date: 12.24.2014 12:24:56 (-0500) 

Queries to: <mail to: QN_J:l3£'0 07 352 3? 
ONP3F00735232@ontario.ca 

WARNING: 
From time to time, our spam filters eliminate legitimate 
email from clients. If your email contains important 
instructions, please ensure that we acknowledge receipt of 
those instructions. 

This E-mail contains legally privileged and confidential 
information intended only for the individual or entity 
named in the message. If the reader of this message is not 
the intended recipient, or the agent responsible to deliver 
it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that 
any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this 
communication is prohibited. If this communication was 
received in error, please notify us by reply E-mail and 
delete the original message. 

Please consider the environment before printing this email. 
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January 14, 2015 BY FAX: 416-351-9196 

Peter Wardle and Erin Pleet 
Wardle Daley Berstein Bieber, LLP 
2104-401 Bay St., P.O. Box 21 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H2Y4 
Counsel for Ranking, et. al. ("Lawyers, et al.") 

Re: Best v. Ranking et. al.; PWCECF/Purolator/Other issues: 
Examinations/documents 

Dear Mr. Wardle and/or Ms. Pleet: 

PWCECF: 

Slansky Law Professional Corp. 
1062 College St. 

E-mail: 

Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H 1A9 

phone: (416)536-1220 
fax: (416) 536-8842 

Further to our previous communications a major issue that was not able to be addressed 
before McCarthy J was the issue of the allegedly fictitious client that Messrs. Ranking 
and Kwidzinski and Faskens claimed to represent. I am sure you have canvassed this 
issue not only with your own clients but also with Mr. Polley and/or his 's clients (your 
clients former clients). 

At this point I presume we can all agree that 'PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean 
Firm' ('PWCECF') never existed as a legal entity. Ifl am in error please advise. 

Absent agreement on this point, please be advised that I will wish to conduct and 
examination of Mr. Ranking focusing on his 'know your client' investigation at the outset 
of his representation of this entity in 2007, 2009 and thereafter. Once I receive your 
materials and I file mine, I will provide a Notice of Examination. 

I am of the view that this evidence is not privileged in any way. However, I am prepared 
to argue that issue if necessary. 

Please provide any documentation you have regarding Mr. Ranking's 'know your client' 
investigation as soon as possible. Please do not bother sending me partnership name 
change documents twice foisted upon my client as these are irrelevant. They show a 
name change of a different partnership in 2011 (not 2007-2010) and the partnership name 
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is changed to "PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean" not "PricewaterhouseCoopers 
East Caribbean Firm". 

In light of the Schedule set during the Case Management Teleconference, this issue will 
be argued on April 28. Since the examinations must be completed by May 15, I am 
asking that you ensure Mr. Ranking's availability within the period between April 30 and 
May 6. Time must be left for a motion in respect of objections and to comply with 
undertakings prior to May 15. 

Purolator 

In reviewing the notes and file documents it has come to my attention that the November 
2nd, 2009 motion records contains no endorsement from the Judge. I have had this 
confirmed through a review of the court file. Further, the November 6, 2009 letter that 
Mr. Ranking purportedly sent to Mr. Best (and later filed with the court) does not contain 
or list a copy of the Judge's written endorsement which would have been copied and 
handed to all counsel before they left the Courtroom on November 2nd, had it existed. 

A further troubling fact is that an affidavit that was filed with the Court and considered on 
December 2, 2009 that swears that the November 6, 2009 letter and package was 
couriered to the Plaintiff and/or Mr. Best does not contain a copy of the courier bill of 
lading. The affidavit states that the courier company that effected the delivery was 
Purolator and inquiries of that company have been unable to confirm that they ever 
received or delivered this package and, in fact, they were quite sure that they had not. 
Please immediately provide me with the purported November 6, 2009 Purolator courier 
bill of lading/packing slip referencing my client and tracking number which is routinely 
processed and preserved within the law firm. 

Other 

I expect that I will need to examine Mr. Ranking and others on other issues relevant to 
your abuse of process motion as well. I will advise you on who and in respect of what in 
letters and Notices in due course. However, it is likely that I will need to do so in respect 
of Messrs. Silver and Roman and that I will seek the Miller Thompson Deane file(s) on 
the portion of the Nelson Barbados file that dealt with contempt proceedings against my 
client. 

With respect to the Miller Thompson file on Deane, in light of the noting in default by 
Mr. Deane and Rule 19.02, the portions of the Statement of Claim that allege that Mr. 
Deane committed crimes is deemed to be admitted. Accordingly, there is a prima facie 
determination as a matter of law that Miller Thompson's client, Mr. Deane is not entitled 
to the protection of solicitor-client privilege. Since he is not permitted to rebut this prima 
facie determination, there can be no privilege in respect of this file. 

I ask that you obtain and provide this file as soon as possible. 

In light of the relevant considerations regarding abuse of process and issue estoppel, 
which involve issues of fact regarding what was adjudicated and the fairness of the 
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application of these doctrines, the file and the examination of Messrs. Silver and Roman 
will also be necessary. I ask that you also ensure their availability within the period 
between April 30 and May 6. Time must be left for a motion in respect of objections and 
to comply with undertakings prior to May 15. 

If these steps are not taken and examinations cannot be done by May 15, it may result in 
delay of the June 15 motions. I write this letter as a means to put you on notice to prevent 
any such delay. 

Yours truly, 

Paul Slansky 

cc Polley Fax: 416-365-1601 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "E" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 

A Commissioner etc. 

Kerry Ann Eckstem, a Commissioner, etc., 
Province of Onta1!o, for the Government ol 
ODto. Mllllstry ot 1he Attomly a..& 
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From: Jennifer Gambin 
Sent: Thursday, January 15, 2015 4:08 PM 
To: 
Cc: Mark Polley 
Subject: Donald Best v. Ranking et al I Court File No. 14-
0815 

Dear Mr. Slansky: 

Please find attached correspondence of today's date on 
behalf of Mark 
Polley. 

Sincerely, 

http://polleyfaith.com/images/polley-faith-barristers-
logo.png 

Jennifer Gambin 
T: 416.365.1600 
F: <tel:416.365.1601> 416.365.1601 

<mailto:jgambin@polleyfaith.com> jgambin@polleyfaith.com 

Polley Faith LLP 
The Victory Building 
80 Richmond St W 
Suite 1300 
Toronto M5H 2A4 

com/> www. polleyfai th 



The information in this email may be privileged, 
confidential and/or exempt 
from disclosure. By sending this e-mail, which is intended 
only for the 
named recipient(s), we waive no privilege over its 
contents. Unauthorized 
use, dissemination or copying is prohibited. If you have 
received this email 
in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone 
at +1 416 365 
1600 or by reply email and destroy all copies of it. 
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POLLEY FAITH LLP 

January 15, 2014 

Polley Faith LLP 
The Victory Building 
80 Richmond Street West 
Suite 1300 
Toronto ON M5H 2A4 
Tel: 416.365.1600 
Fax: 416.365.1601 
polleyfaith.com 

VIA EMAIL (paul.slansky@bellnet.ca) AND FACSIMILE (416) 536-8842 

Mr. Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 
1062 College Street, Lower Level 
Toronto, ON M6H 1A9 

Dear Mr. Slansky: 

Re: Donald Best v. Rankin< et al I Court File No. 14-0815 

Mark Polley 
Direct Tel: 416.365.1603 
mpolley@polleyfaith.com 

Assistant: Jennifer Gambin 
jgambin@polleyfaith.com 

Thank you for your letter dated January 14, 2015 regarding our motion materials for the motion to set 
aside the noting in default. 

We intend to file material for the motion which will meet the test to set aside a noting in default. 

As we work on materials for this motion, we urge you to reconsider your position of requiring a formal 
motion to be heard. With respect, we can see absolutely no merit to your position. In the context of an 
exchange of correspondence between counsel regarding the appropriate procedure and timing of steps 
in the litigation, noting our clients in default was unjustified. 

Forcing this unnecessary motion will, of course, cause everyone involved to incur unnecessary costs. As 
such, we ask you to reconsider your position and to consent to the notice of default being set aside. We 
intend to rely upon this letter, among other things, in support of full indemnity costs on the motion. 

Sincerely, 

POLLEY FAITH LLP 

Mark Polley 
MP/jg 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "F" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 

A Commissioner etc. 

Kerry Ann Eckstein. a Commlulonlr. *·· 
PnMnce of Ontario, for the Gov811111*1l al 
a.ID.IIIIIiiii'Y of the AtfDIMJ 8IIIIL 
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January 19, 2015 

Mark Polley 
Polley Faith LLP 
The Victory Building 
80 Richmond St. W. 
Suite 1300 
Toronto, ON 
M5H2A4 

Mr. Polley: 

BY FAX 

Slansky Law Professional Corp. 
l 062 College St. 

Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H 1A9 

phone: (416) 536-1220 
fax: (416) 536-8842 

E-mail: paul.slansky@bellnet.ca 

Re: Best v. Ranking, et. al. (PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean, 
Hatch, Atkinson, Kingsland Estates Ltd. and Cox) 

I am writing to you further to your letter dated January 15, 2015. 

In order to consider reconsidering our position our position, it would be important to 
know whether you intend to file affidavit material sworn by some of your clients on the 
jurisdiction motion. 

Please advise me of your intentions in this regard and my client and I will consider our 
position regarding the current motion. 

Yours truly, 

Paul Slansky 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "G" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 
OF Februar , 2015 

A Commissioner etc. 

Kerry Ann Eckstein, a Commissioner, etc., 
PnMnce of OntailiJ, for the Government or 
CJDID.IIIIIItry or 1111 AttoniiJ a..& 
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From: Jennifer Gambin [mailto:jgambin@polleyfaith.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, January 21, 2015 4:25 PM 
To: paul.slansky@bellnet.ca 
Cc: Mark Polley 
Subject: Donald Best v. Ranking et al 1 Court File No. 14-0815 

Dear Mr. Slansky: 

Please find attached correspondence of today's date on behalf of Mark 
Polley. 

Sincerely, 

http://polleyfaith.com/images/polley-faith-barristers-logo.png 
Jennifer Gambin 
T: 416.365.1600 
F: 416.365.1601 
jgambin@polleyfaith.com 
Polley Faith LLP 
The Victory Building 
80 Richmond St W 
Suite 1300 
Toronto M5H 2A4 
www.polleyfaith.com 

The information in this email may be privileged, confidential and/or 
exempt from disclosure. By sending this e-mail, which is intended only 
for the named recipient(s), we waive no privilege over its contents. 
Unauthorized use, dissemination or copying is prohibited. If you have 
received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately by 
telephone at +1 416 365 1600 or by reply email and destroy all copies 
of it. 



POLLEY FAITH LLP 

January 21, 2015 

Polley Faith LLP Mark Polley 
The Victory Building Direct Tel: 416.365.1603 
80 Richmond Street west mpolley@polleyfaith.com 
Suite 1300 
Toronto ON M5H 2A4 
Tel: 416.365.1600 
Fax: 416.365.1601 
polleyfaith.com 

Assistant: Jennifer Gambin 
jgambin @polleyfaith. com 

VIA EMAIL (paul.slansky@bellnet.ca) AND FACSIMILE (416) 536-8842 

Mr. Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 
1062 College Street, Lower Level 
Toronto, ON M6H 1A9 

Dear Mr. Slansky: 

Re: Donald Best v. Ranking et al I Court File No. 14-0815 

Thank you for your letter dated January 19, 2015. 

Once again, you should reconsider your position with respect to the motion to set aside the noting in 
default based on the merits of the motion that your client is forcing us to argue. 

With respect to the jurisdiction motion, we will file appropriate material to support our motion. 

Sincerely, 

POLLEY FAITH LLP 

MP/jg 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "H" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 

A Commissioner etc. 

Kerry Ann Eckstein, a Commissioner, etc., 
PnMnce of Ontario, tor the Government of 
Ollldo.IIAistry ollhe AttoriiiJ GlalriL 
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Not Reported in S.W.2d 
Not Reported in S.W.2d, 1999 WL 326303 (Tex.App.-Dallas) 

Only the Westlaw citation is currently available. 

NOTICE: NOT DESIGNATED FOR 
PUBLICATION. UNDER TX R RAP RULE 47.7, 

UNPUBLISHED OPINIONS HAVE NO 
PRECEDENTIAL VALUE BUT MAY BE CITED 

WITH THE NOT A TION "(not designated for 
publication)." 

Court of Appeals of Texas, Dallas. 
COOPERS & LYBRAND-BARBADOS, Marcus 

Hatch, and Coopers & Lybrand International, 
Appellants. 

v. 
TIG INSURANCE COMPANY, TIG Insurance 
Company of Michigan, Tig Specialty Insurance 
Company, and Tig Premier Insurance Company, 

Appellees. 
No. 05-98-01997-CV. 

May 25, 1999. 

On Appeal from the 134 th Judicial District Court, 
Dallas County, Texas, Trial Court Cause No. 97-
04065-G. 

Before KINKEADE, MALONEY, and JAMES, JJ. 

OPINION 

*1 Coopers & Lybrand-Barbados (Barbados), Marcus 
Hatch, and Coopers & Lybrand International 
(International) appeal the denial of their special 
appearances in a suit brought by TIG Insurance 
Company, et al. (TIG). In a single issue, appellants 
contend the trial court erred in denying their special 
appearances. We affirm the trial court's order denying 
Barbados's and Hatch's special appearances. We 
reverse the trial court's order denying International's 
special appearance. 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 

TIG is a group of insurance companies incorporated 
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in California or Michigan and whose national 
administrative headquarters are located in Irving, 
Texas. TIG arranged to reinsure part of its risks with 
a Barbados company, Commercial Acceptance 
Insurance Company. Under the agreement with TIG, 
Commercial Acceptance had to show a net worth of 
at least ten million dollars on audited financial 
statements before TIG was obligated to release its 
premium payments to Commercial Acceptance. 
Commercial Acceptance hired Coopers & Lybrand-
Barbados to perform the audit to show Commercial 
Acceptance's net worth as of December 31, 1994. 
Hatch was the partner with Barbados in charge of the 
audit. Barbados performed the audit with the 
assistance of the Sacramento and San Francisco 
offices of Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P. During the 
audit process, Hatch and others at Barbados kept TIG 
informed of the status of the audit through letters, 
faxes, telephone conversations, and E-mail. 

On May 31, 1995, Barbados issued a draft of the 
audit report showing Commercial Acceptance had a 
net worth of $6.75 million on December 31, 1994. 
Representatives of Commercial Acceptance, 
Barbados, and TIG held a conference call on June 7, 
1995 to discuss the draft audit report. TIG's 
representative expressed concern over the draft 
report, and the parties discussed factors that could 
alter the $6.75 million net worth. 

On June 26, 1995, Barbados issued a second draft of 
the audit report. This draft showed a net worth of 
only $1.05 million on December 31, 1994. This draft 
was not circulated to or discussed with TIG. 

On July 15, 1995, Barbados issued a third draft of the 
audit report showing a net worth of$10.76 million. In 
August 1995, Barbados completed the audit and 
reported that Commercial Acceptance had a net 
worth of $10.06 million. TIG then released its 
premium payments of $7.6 million to Commercial 
Acceptance. In October 1995, Barbados withdrew the 
audit report and told TIG it had under-reported 
Commercial Acceptance's liability for unearned 
premiums by more than ten million dollars. Instead of 
having a net worth of over ten million dollars, 
Commercial Acceptance's net worth on December 31, 
1994 was less than zero. Barbados issued a new audit 

© 2008 Thomson Reuters/West. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works. 
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report in March 1996 showing Commercial 
Acceptance had a negative net worth of nine million 
dollars on December 31, 1994. 

TIG brought suit in Texas state district court against 
Barbados, Hatch, International, and Coopers & 
Lybrand L.L.P. alleging that the defendants 
negligently prepared the audit, intentionally or 
negligently made misrepresentations to TIG, and 
committed fraud or constructive fraud by 
representing in its audit of Commercial Acceptance 
that the company had a net worth exceeding ten 
million dollars. TIG alleged it would not have paid 
the $7.6 million dollars in premiums to Commercial 
Acceptance if the defendants had properly audited 
Commercial Acceptance and not reported in August 
1995 that Commercial Acceptance had a net worth of 
more than ten million dollars on December 31, 1994. 

*2 Barbados, Hatch, and International filed special 
appearances, which the trial court denied. These 
defendants bring an interlocutory appeal from the 
denial of their special appearances. 
SeeTEX.CIV.PRAC. & REM.CODE ANN. § 
51.014(a)(7) (Vernon Supp.l999). 

SPECIAL APPEARANCES 

A Texas court may exercise jurisdiction over a 
nonresident defendant if (1) the Texas long-arm 
statute authorizes the exercise of jurisdiction and (2) 
the exercise of jurisdiction is consistent with federal 
guarantees of due process. SeeTEX.CIV.PRAC. & 
REM.CODE ANN. §§ 17.041-.045 (Vernon 1997); 
Schlobohm v. Schapiro. 7R4 S.W.2d 355, 356 
(Tex.l990); Temperature S)'s .. Inc. v. Bill Pepper, 
Inc .. 854 S.W.2d 669, 674 (Tex.App.-Dallas 1993. 
writ dism'd by agr.). The Texas long-arm statute 
authorizes the exercise of jurisdiction over a 
nonresident that does business in Texas. 
SeeTEX.ciV.PRAC. & REM.CODE ANN.§ 17.042 
(Vernon 1997); Guardian Ro)'al Exch. Assur., Ltd. v. 
English China Clavs, P.L.C., 815 S.W.2d 223, 226 
(Tex.l991 ). In addition to other acts that may 
constitute doing business, a nonresident does 
business in Texas if the nonresident: (I) contracts by 
mail or otherwise with a Texas resident and either 
party is to perform the contract in whole or in part in 
Texas; (2) commits a tort in whole or in part in 
Texas; or (3) recruits Texas residents, directly or 
through an intermediary located in Texas, for 
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employment inside or outside Texas. 
SeeTEX.CIV.PRAC. & REM.CODE ANN.§ 17.042 
(Vernon 1997). The broad language of the Texas 
long-arm statute has been interpreted to reach as far 
as the federal constitutional requirements of due 
process will permit. See Guardian Roral Etch.. 815 
S.W.2d at 226; Schlobohm, 784 S.W.2d at 357. 

Federal due process requirements mandate that the 
defendant must have purposefully established 
minimum contacts with Texas such that the 
nonresident could reasonably anticipate being sued in 
Texas. See N_gf.l_blfius. !i(!!Jd Assoc. v. Gibson, 89Z 

769, We determine whether 
(I) the nonresident defendant has purposefully 
established "minimum contacts" with Texas and, if 
so, (2) the exercise of jurisdiction comports with 
"notions of fair play and substantial justice." Burger 
King 9..Q!J2:Y., Rudzewicz, 471 U.S. 462, 475-76, 105 
S.Ct. 2174, 85 L.Ed.2d 528 (1985); see Guardian 
Rural Exch.. 815 S.W.2d at 226. 

A defendant's contacts with a forum can give rise to 
either general or specific jurisdiction. See CSR Ltd. 
v. Link, 925 S.W.2d 591, 595 (Tex.l996). General 
jurisdiction exists when a defendant's contacts are 
continuous and systematic, permitting the forum to 
exercise personal jurisdiction over the defendant even 
if the cause of action did not arise from or relate to 
activities conducted within the forum state. See 
id. General jurisdiction requires a showing that the 
defendant conducted substantial activities within the 
forum. See id.In contrast, specific jurisdiction is 
established if the defendant's alleged liability arises 
from or is related to its contacts within the forum. See 
id. 

Burden of Proof 

*3 The plaintiff has the initial burden of pleading 
facts sufficient to bring a nonresident defendant 
within the provisions of the Texas long-arm statute. 
See llotel Partners v. KPMG Peat Manvick 847 
S.W.2d 630, 633 (Tex.App.-Dallas 1993, writ 
denied). When a nonresident defendant challenges a 
trial court's exercise of personal jurisdiction through a 
special appearance, it carries the burden of negating 
all bases for personal jurisdiction. See Kawasaki 
Steel Corp. v. Middleton, 699 S. W .2d 199, 203 
(Tex.1985). 
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Standard of Review 

The exercise of personal jurisdiction requires the trial 
judge to resolve any factual disputes before applying 
the jurisdictional formula. See Hotel Partners v. 
Craig, No. 05-92-01625-CV, slip op. at 5 (Tex.App.-
Dallas Dec. 30, 1994, pet. denied). When, as here, the 
trial judge fails to make findings of fact and 
conclusions of law, we view the trial court's judgment 
as impliedly finding all the necessary facts to support 
its judgment. See Warford v. Stamper, 801 S.W.2d 
108, I 09 (Tex.l990). 

On appeal, the appropriate standard of review of the 
trial court's order granting or denying a special 
appearance is a de novo review, applying the 
supreme court's jurisdictional formula. See Craig, 
slip op. at 6. We apply a factual sufficiency of the 
evidence review to all of the evidence before the trial 
judge on the question of jurisdiction. See Craig, slip 
op. at 5; KPMG Peat Marwick 847 S.W.2d at 
§]l;see also Guardwn Roval Exch., 815 S.W.2d at 
231-32. Once all factual disputes are resolved or if 
the facts are undisputed, we examine de novo 
whether the facts negate all bases for personal 
jurisdiction. See Craig, slip op. at 6. 

COOPER & LYBRAND-BARBADOS AND 
MARCUS HATCH 

In a single issue, Barbados and Hatch assert the trial 
court abused its discretion in denying their special 
appearances. They argue the Texas courts cannot 
assert personal jurisdiction over them because the 
transactions underlying this lawsuit occurred in 
Barbados and California and not in Texas and 
because they have no substantial and continuous 
contacts with Texas. Barbados and Hatch had the 
burden of negating all possible bases of in personam 
jurisdiction. See Kmmsaki Steel Corp., 699 S.W.2d 
at 203. - --- -----

Viewing the evidence in the light favorable to the 
trial court's judgment, the record in this case contains 
evidence that Barbados and Hatch knew the audit 
would be used by TIG in Texas to determine whether 
to release premium payments to Commercial 
Acceptance. Copies of much of the correspondence 
between Hatch and Commercial Acceptance were 
directed to TIG. Barbados and Hatch also had so 
many telephone and E-mail communications with 
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TIG employees regarding the performance of the 
audit and the preliminary figures from the audit that 
Commercial Acceptance reminded Barbados and 
Hatch that it, not TIG, was their client. 

*4 Barbados and Hatch rely on a federal case, Young 
v. FDIC. 103 F.3d 1180 (4th Cir.), cert. denied, 522 
U 118 S.Ct. 329, 139 L.Ed.2d 255 (1997), in 
support of their argument. In that case, Young 
obtained a $550,000 letter of credit from a Bahamian 
insurance company, SAFIG. To assure Young that it 
had sufficient assets to back the letter of credit, 
SAFIG showed Young an audited financial statement 
prepared by Price Waterhouse-Bahamas stating 
SAFIG had twelve million dollars on deposit in a 
South Carolina bank. See id. at 1184.1n fact, SAFIG, 
did not have twelve million dollars on deposit in that 
bank. See id. at ll85.Price Waterhouse-Bahamas 
based its report regarding the twelve-million-dollar 
deposit on information on a form it received from the 
South Carolina bank. When SAFIG's letter of credit 
failed, Young sued Price Waterhouse-Bahamas in 
South Carolina. The Fourth Circuit held Price 
Waterhouse-Bahamas' connection with South 
Carolina, the receipt of a single form from the South 
Carolina bank, was too tenuous to permit the 
assertion of personal jurisdiction over the firm. See 
id. at 11 91. Young argued Price Waterhouse-

Bahamas should be amenable to suit anywhere in the 
country because it was foreseeable that its audited 
financial statements might be relied on anywhere in 
the world. See id. at 1192.The Fourth Circuit 
rejected this argument because " 'foreseeability' 
alone is not 'a sufficient benchmark for personal 
jurisdiction under the Due process Clause. "'!d. 
(quoting World-Wide Volkswagen Corp. v. Woodson, 
444 U.S. 286, 295 ( 1980)). 

Young is distinguishable from this case because 
Barbados's and Hatch's connections with Texas are 
not just a single document but are a series of 
communications with TIG. Also, it was not merely 
"foreseeable" to Barbados and Hatch that TIG would 
be relying on the audited financial statements; they 
knew TIG would rely on the audited financial 
statements to determine whether to pay premiums to 
Commercial Acceptance. 

Barbados and Hatch also rely on Trienveiler v. 
Croxton & Trench Holding Corp., 90 F.3d 1523 (10 
th Cir.\996). In that case, Trierweiler loaned money to 
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Croxton & Trench. See id. at 1530.The loan was 
backed by a guaranty from Dublin and by a security 
interest in GNMA bonds held by Dublin. Trierweiler 
insisted that Dublin send him an attorney's opinion 
letter stating that he could obtain an enforceable 
perfected security interest in the GNMA bonds under 
the terms of the security agreement. See id.Dublin, a 
Colorado company, hired an attorney in Colorado 
who drafted the requested letter which Dublin sent to 
Trierweiler. See id. at 153l.Relying on the letter's 
assurance that Trierweiler could obtain an 
enforceable perfected security interest in the bonds, 
Trierweiler advanced the money to Croxton. See id. 
at 1530-3l.Later, Croxton defaulted and Dublin 
refused to pay on its guaranty. See id. at 
153l.Trierweiler then learned Dublin did not own the 
bonds and he had no enforceable security interest in 
the bonds. See id. Trierweiler sued many defendants, 
including the Colorado attorney who drafted the 
opinion letter for Dublin. See id. at 1532.Trierweiler 
alleged the attorney negligently failed to confirm 
whether Dublin owned the bonds, failed to tell 
Trierweiler he had not confirmed Dublin's ownership 
of the bonds, and failed to tell Trierweiler he needed 
to confirm Dublin's ownership of the bonds. See id. at 
153l.The trial court held the Michigan court did not 
have specific jurisdiction over the attorney. See id. at 
1533.0n appeal, the Tenth Circuit agreed, stating the 
Colorado attorney could not foresee being haled into 
Michigan court for preparing an opinion letter for a 
Colorado company, Dublin, for the benefit of a 
Florida resident, Trierweiler, whose attorney would 
review the letter in Michigan. See id. at 1534. 

*5 The facts in this case distinguish it from 
Trierweiler.ln Trierweiler, no Michigan resident 
detrimentally relied on the letter. Here, the party 
relying on Barbados's and Hatch's audit, TIG, was a 
Texas-based company bringing suit in Texas for 
damages it suffered through its reliance in Texas on 
the audit. The connections with Texas in this case are 
much more direct than the tenuous connections with 
Michigan in Trierweiler. 

Barbados and Hatch also rely on CMMC v. Salinas. 
929 S.W.2d 435 (Tex.l996). In that case, a Texas 
winery ordered a winepress from KLR, a winery-
equipment retailer that did not have a place of 
business in Texas. See is!_,_ at 4}§_; Salii'JCJJ_l!.,.S:MAfC, 
903 S.W.2d 138, 141 (Tex.App.-Austm 1995), 
rev'd, 929 S.W.2d 435 (Tex.1996). KLR ordered the 
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winepress from CMMC, a French manufacturer. The 
winery negotiated its purchase of the press through 
KLR and had no direct communication with CMMC. 
CMMC's only knowledge that the press would be 
used in Texas was the shipping directions of F.O.B. 
Port of Houston. Salinas, a worker in the winery, was 
injured by the press and sued CMMC in Texas. The 
court of appeals held that CMMC's release of its 
winepress into the stream of commerce with 
knowledge of the intended destination is sufficient to 
subject it to personal jurisdiction. See CM.?ovf(;,__9].2_ 
S.W.2d at 437; Salinas. 903 S.W.2d at 145. The 
supreme court disagreed and held the "stream of 
commerce" theory did not provide the Texas courts 
personal jurisdiction over CMMC because there was 
no "regular and anticipated flow of products from 
manufacture to distribution to retail sale" by CMMC 
into Texas. C.MMC, 929 S.W.2d at 439 (quoting 
Asahi Meta/Indus. v. Supenor Court, 480 U.S. 102, 
117. I 07 _S.ct. 1 92 ( 1987)). 

CMMC is distinguishable because it relied on the 
rules for personal jurisdiction arising from goods 
placed in the stream of commerce. This case does not 
involve goods in the stream of commerce but the 
rendition of professional services. Barbados and 
Hatch do not explain how the performance and 
reporting of an audit are analogous to the sale of 
goods. They cite no cases showing that the concerns 
surrounding personal jurisdiction of manufacturers 
and sellers of goods in the stream of commerce are 
the same for providers of professional services. Even 
if the stream of commerce rule were applicable, we 
would still find CMMC distinguishable because 
CMMC's contacts with Texas were far weaker than 
Barbados's and Hatch's. CMMC's only contact with 
Texas was its knowledge that its product was being 
shipped to Texas for use in Texas. CMMC had no 
contact with the winery or Salinas, the injured 
worker. Barbados and Hatch, however, had so many 
communications with TIG in Texas concerning the 
audit that Commercial Acceptance reminded 
Barbados and Hatch that it, not TIG, was their client. 

*6 In analyzing minimum contacts, it is not the 
number, but rather the quality and nature of the 
nonresident's contacts with Texas that are important. 
See Rowland & Rowland, PC. v. Texas Emplovers 

_ _S.W....:2Q. (Tex.APP...:.:..Austi!! 
1998, no pet.); Memorial Hosp. Svs. v. Fzsher Ins. 
Agencv, l\35 S.W.2d 645, 649 (Tex.App.-Houston 
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[14th Dist.] 1992, no writ). In determining whether 
there is a substantial connection between the 
nonresident defendant and the forum state, 
foreseeability is a factor considered. See Memorial 
Hasp. Svs., 835 S.W.2d __ a_t_650. Where a defendant 
sends false information into a state, knowing it will 
be relied upon by the resident of the forum state, 
there is a foreseeable consequence of direct economic 
injury to the resident at its domicile. See id. Therefore, 
if the tort-feasor knows that the brunt of the injury 
will be felt by a particular resident in the forum, it 
must reasonably anticipate being haled into court 
there to answer for its actions. See id. 

In this case, the record supports a finding that 
Barbados and Hatch sent false information into 
Texas, knowing it would be relied upon by TIG in 
determining whether to release the $7.6 million 
premium payment to Commercial Acceptance. The 
record also supports a finding that Barbados and 
Hatch knew the brunt of the injury from their alleged 
misrepresentation and fraud would be felt in Texas 
by TIG from its loss of the $7.6 million premium 
payment. Considering these facts de novo, we hold 
the trial court did not err in determining Barbados 
and Hatch could reasonably anticipate being haled 
into a Texas court to answer for their actions and that 
Texas courts have specific jurisdiction over them. 

Having found the record supports a finding of 
specific jurisdiction, we must determine whether the 
assertion of jurisdiction in this case would offend 
traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice. 
See Guardian Roval Exch., 815 S.W.2d at 228. In 
making this determination, courts consider the 
following factors: 

I. The burden on the defendant; 

2. the interests of the forum state in adjudicating 
the dispute; 

3. the plaintiffs interest m obtaining convenient 
and effective relief; 

4. the interstate judicial system's interest in 
obtaining the most efficient resolution of 
controversies; and 

5. the shared interest of the several states m 

Page 5 

furthering fundamental social policies. 

See id. When the defendant is a resident of another 
nation, the court must also consider the procedural 
and substantive policies of other nations whose 
interests are affected by the assertion of jurisdiction 
by a state court, including the following factors: 

l. the unique burdens placed upon the defendant 
who must defend itself in a foreign legal system; 
and 

*7 2. the procedural and substantive polices of 
other nations whose interests are affected as well as 
the federal government's interest in its foreign 
relations policies. 

See id. at 228-29. 

ln the section of their brief arguing fair play and 
substantial justice, Barbados and Hatch do not argue 
the applicability of any of these factors but continue 
to assert their lack of minimum contacts with Texas. 
We have already determined the trial court did not err 
in determining Texas courts have specific jurisdiction 
over Barbados and Hatch. In the interest of justice, 
we will consider the Guardian factors. 

Hatch travels to Texas to do some marketing for 
Barbados in Texas; thus, Hatch's and Barbados's 
attendance at a trial in Texas for negligently or 
intentionally injuring a Texas-based company should 
not be overly burdensome, even for foreign 
defendants. Texas has a strong interest in 
adjudicating this dispute involving allegations that 
these defendants, through their negligence, 
misrepresentations, and fraud, caused millions of 
dollars in damages to a Texas-based company. Texas 
and the interstate judicial system share the same 
interest in the convenient and efficient resolution of 
this lawsuit in a single jurisdiction instead of 
piecemeal throughout the United States and the 
world. Texas and Barbados share the same interest of 
assuring the public that the audited financial 
statements used by companies in their jurisdictions 
are correct and that the accountants preparing those 
financial statements do not attempt to mislead or 
defraud the public relying on those financial 
statements. Finally, we know of no detrimental effect 
this lawsuit could have on the federal government's 
foreign policies. We conclude the trial court did not 
err in determining the Texas court's assertion of 

© 2008 Thomson Reuters/West. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works. 
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Not Reported in S.W.2d, 1999 WL 326303 (Tex.App.-Dallas) 

personal jurisdiction over Barbados and Hatch in this 
case would not offend traditional notions of fair play 
and substantial justice. 

We hold the trial court did not err in denying 
Barbados's and Hatch's special appearances. We 
resolve their issue against them. 

COOPERS & LYBRAND INTERNATIONAL 

In its sole issue, International questions whether the 
trial court erred in denying its special appearance. 
The record shows International is a non-profit 
limited-liability association formed as a "Verein" 
under the law of Switzerland. The members of 
International are accounting and related service 
organizations through the world practicing under the 
name "Coopers & Lybrand." International's purpose 
is to: 

Foster mutual support, cooperation and cohesion 
among the members with a view to their practices; 
give a common image to the members; identify 
business opportunities for the members and 
establish pnontles; Establish professional 
standards of work, behaviour and ethics for the 
performance of services and ensure compliance 
with such standards; Provide advice to the 
members on the conduct of their practice; Promote 
the national and international standing of the 
services of the members. 

*8 International is a distinct and separate legal entity 
from Barbados and Coopers & Lybrand, L.L.P. 
International has never conducted business in Texas. 
International was not involved in the audit of 
Commercial Acceptance and made none of the 
alleged misrepresentations. 

TIG argues International is subject to the jurisdiction 
of the Texas courts because it uses the "Coopers & 
Lybrand" name and promotes its use throughout the 
world, including in Texas. It appears TIG is 
attempting to argue that International may be liable to 
TIG under a theory of partnership by estoppel. 
However, even if the doctrine of partnership by 
estoppel were applicable, it is a theory of liability 
only, not a theory to confer jurisdiction by estoppel. 
See Howard v. Klvnveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler. 
977 F.Supp. 654, 662-63 (S.D.N.Y.1997), aff'd,No. 
98-9326 (2d Cir. Apr. 16, 1999); Estate o{Pinckard 
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v. La((mtant. 94 Ill.App.3d 34. 49 Ill.Dec. 346, 417 
N.E.2d 1360, 1367-68 (Ili.App.Ct.l980). 

Reviewing the sufficiency of the evidence, we 
conclude the evidence is insufficient to support the 
trial court's implied findings that International had 
sufficient minimum contacts to support the Texas 
court's exercise of personal jurisdiction over it. The 
record shows International successfully negated all 
bases for personal jurisdiction. We hold the trial court 
erred in denying International's special appearance. 
We resolve International's issue in its favor. 

We affirm the trial court's orders denying the special 
appearances of Marcus Hatch and Coopers & 
Lybrand-Barbados. We reverse the trial court's order 
denying the special appearance of Coopers & 
Lybrand International and direct the trial court to 
dismiss Coopers & Lybrand International from this 
cause for want of personal jurisdiction. 

Tex.App.-Dallas, 1999. 
Coopers & Lybrand--Barbados v. TIG Ins. Co. 
Not Reported in S.W.2d, 1999 WL 326303 
(Tex.App.-Dallas) 

END OF DOCUMENT 
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I, Donald Best, of the County of Simcoe, Ontario, MAKE OATH AND SAY AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Introduction of Plaintiff and Background 

2. I am the Plaintiff in this case. I am 60 years of age. I am Canadian born, in Ontario 

where I have always been resident. Although I was forced starting in late 2009 to 

spend over two years outside of Canada as a direct result of the actions of Eric lain 

Stewart Deane ('lain Deane') and his co-conspirators, I have never applied for or 

been granted residency or citizenship in any other country. My status between late 
2009 and late 2012 while travelling in other countries was that of a visitor. 

3. I am a former deep undercover police officer, Sergeant (Detective) with the Toronto 

Police and investigator of organized crime with about three decades of service in the 

police and private undercover law enforcement. This is relevant as the defendant 

lain Deane and his co-conspirators were well aware of my background and that I 

was a member of an 'at risk' profession who would therefore have real and 

understandable concerns for safety. As detailed herein, lain Deane and his co-

conspirators tailored their actions against me to do the maximum harm and long-

term damage having regard for my profession and my legitimate concerns for safety. 

4. I was a director and shareholder of Nelson Barbados Group Limited ("NBGL"). 

NBGL commenced a lawsuit in Ontario against Deane and others, who were 

represented by the lawyers and law firm defendants in the present action. 

Ultimately, Justice Shaughnessy stayed this proceeding on jurisdictional grounds. 
The present case does not seek to relitigate those issues, which were not appealed. 

Rather, the lawsuit seeks to sue some of those defendants and their lawyers, law 

firms, investigators and police regarding the abusive and tortious manner in which 

they conducted the civil contempt proceedings, and, in particular, the opposition to 

my application to set aside the contempt that commenced in late 2012 and 

continued into 2014. 
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5. lain Deane and his co-conspirators waged and continue to wage a long-term 

campaign of harassment, intimidation, violence and other criminal acts against 

myself, other plaintiffs, witnesses, lawyers and our family members who oppose lain 

Deane and his co-conspirators in various past and current legal actions ('The 

Campaign'). The Campaign is designed to deter myself and other persons from 

seeking justice through the courts, or being a witness or lawyer in opposition to lain 

Deane and his co-conspirators in high-stakes litigation involving assets worth 

hundreds of millions of US dollars. 

6. These harmful actions by lain Deane and his co-conspirators included recklessly and 

illegally distributing to members of the public and publishing on the internet, my 

Identity Information as defined by the Criminal Code. lain Deane and his co-

conspirators also published on the internet, exhortations to criminals I had arrested 

and investigated in the past to hunt my family and me down. The defendants 

published my driver's licence number, date of birth, address history since I was 17 

years old and my parents' address; all illegally obtained/distributed and from 

government, police, and Toronto Police Association records in about October of 

2009. 

7. The defendants published the names of two of my children on the same website 

where they urged criminals to hunt me down. They published my photo. Defendants 

and their supporters posted on the internet that I should be shot, and threatened to 

come to the house of one of my witnesses in Florida to slit their throat as they slept. 

Much more remains published on the internet to this day, although some writings 

have since been moderated. The ongoing publishing of identity information and 

exhortations to criminals continues to put me and others at risk of crimes including 

but not limited to physical attacks, fraud and identity theft I have been forced to live 

with this since 2009, as a direct result of the defendants' acts. The acts and the harm 

still continue to this day. 
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8. Subsequent to the defendants publishing my Identity Information in October of 

2009, lain Deane and his co-conspirators recklessly, maliciously and illegally 

distributed to the public, tens of thousands of digitized pages of privileged and 

confidential legal files containing all manner of Identity Information and other 

private information for me and others, including; full names, addresses, computer 

accounts and passwords, passport numbers and full passport copies, photos, dates 

of birth, personal medical reports, detailed bank account information, signature 

copies, and many legally privileged case tiles belonging to other clients of my 

company's previous lawyer when these clients had nothing to do with me 

whatsoever. This action was maliciously calculated to harm my witnesses, my 

former lawyer, me and members of our respective families and other persons; most 

of whom had nothing at all to do with the defendants or associated litigation. 

9. In October and November 2009, after lain Deane and his co-conspirators published 

my Identity Information on the internet and called for criminals to hunt me down, 

my family and I began to receive frightening anonymous phone calls. One of lain 

Deane's co-conspirators or supporters physically approached, intimidated and 

overtly threatened one of my children. On November 5, 2009 I was ambushed and 
physically beaten on the street. Later, our family automobile was shot up while 

parked at night near the family home. 

10. As will be detailed later, this was all in the context of other terrible things happening 

during the Campaign, including that one of my witnesses on the Caribbean island 

nation of Barbados was abducted at gunpoint in a home invasion, and beaten until 
he sustained serious head injuries. The circumstances of the event are such that the 

occurrence may have been a prelude to murder that was fortunately interrupted by 

the arrival of other family members. The police told my witness, and I verily believe, 

that one of the persons involved in the planning of this home invasion is associated 
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with at least two of the Barbados defendants in my current case: Kingsland Estates 

Limited and Richard Ivan Cox, co-conspirators of Mr. Deane. 

ll.On November 11, 2009 I was forced to leave Canada on an unplanned and 

emergency basis to protect my family and myself. We journeyed to New Zealand 

where I intended to leave my family with extended family for safety, so I could 

return to Canada and deal with the crisis. I now know that lain Deane and his co-

conspirators used a court order to learn my whereabouts; after which thugs again 

targeted me in New Zealand soon after our arrival. My family and I again were 

forced to leave, and sought safety in other countries while I attempted to deal with 

the situation. 

12. As further detailed herein, while this was going on in late 2009 and January 2010, 

lain Deane and his co-conspirators fabricated and placed provably false evidence 

before the Ontario Superior Court designed to precipitate a finding of civil contempt 

against me. was not made aware of these proceedings prior to their 

commencement. Once I became aware of them, I attempted to deal with the 

situation from abroad. Further materials were purportedly sent to me which I never 

received until after the finding of contempt On January 15, 2010 upon this false 
evidence I was convicted in absentia of Contempt of Court in a civil case costs 

hearing and sentenced to three months in jail. As remarked upon by His Honour 

Justice Shaughnessy, this was essentially a private prosecution with the lawyer 

defendants acting as the prosecutors at the behest of their clients. 

13. The defendants rushed the Contempt of Court procedure through the court in a few 

weeks over the Christmas season, notwithstanding that the lawyers and their clients 

knew that I was halfway around the world to protect my family, was unrepresented 

by counsel, not served of many crucial legal documents, not notified of the hearing 

and that their Campaign was the reason that I had left Canada and was seeking 
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safety for my family. The defendants also knew that they had fabricated false 

evidence against me and placed this before the court. 

14. While evidence to this effect was later presented to the Court on an application to 

set aside the finding of contempt, Justice Shaughnessy refused to consider this 

evidence and said that the mater should be brought to the attention of the Court of 

Appeal by way of fresh evidence application. Later, the Court of Appeal deferred to 

this refusal to consider the evidence on motions but never considered this evidence 

or decided the appeal on the merits. The appeal was dismissed because of my 

inability to pay costs. 

15. The defendants knew that one of the pieces of false evidence was that they had 

falsely told the court in writing and orally that I had informed them during a 

November 17, 2009 phone call that I had received a copy of a certain court order. In 

fact, I said exactly the opposite to them many times, but the defendant lawyers lied 

to the Court about this and about other 'evidence' used to convict me. The defendant 

lawyers did not know that I secretly made a voice recording of the November 17, 

2009 phone call that proves they deliberately lied to the court many times. 

16. When I returned to Canada to clear my name and appeal my conviction, defendants 

successfully used legal manoeuvres and obfuscation and my lack of legal 

representation to convince justice Shaughnessy to not consider strong evidence, 

including irrefutable voice recordings, that showed they had fabricated evidence 

and lied to the court to obtain my conviction and incarceration. Similarly, 

defendants refused to be cross-examined. They admittedly continued to oppose my 

efforts to set aside the contempt through manipulation and fraud, for admitted 

purposes which were clearly an abuse of process. 

17. The defendants also concealed from me and from the Superior Court, the Appeal 

Court and the Supreme Court of Canada that their 'expert witness' (defendant Van 
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Allen) was in fact a serving OPP Detective Sergeant, illegally working for the 

defendants 'on the side' in violation of various laws including, inter alia, the Police 
Services Act, the Private Security and Investigative Services Act and the Criminal Code. 
The Court of Appeal refused to admit this evidence on a motion in respect of the 

appeal, regarding costs and removal of counsel. However, the appeal itself and a 

final determination of whether this was admissible fresh evidence on that appeal 

was never considered. 

18. The defendants also lied to, and committed a fraud upon, the Superior Court, the 

Appeal Court and the Supreme Court of Canada in the matter of 

'PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm' ('PWCECF'), when they told these 

courts in writing and orally, under oath and as officers of the court, that PWCECF 

was a genuine registered business entity in Barbados. In fact, 'PWCECF' does not 

exist now and never has. The defendants fraudulently fabricated this non-entity for 

the purpose of avoiding liability in the Nelson Barbados Group Ltd v Cox lawsuit, 

and to commit a fraud upon the court in those proceedings and in the civil contempt 

proceedings against me. I was convicted of Contempt of Court and thrown into jail 

upon the request, in part, of lawyers, Mssrs. Ranking and Kwydzynski, purportedly 

representing a non-entity. These lawyers and other defendants knew this and 

participated in this fraud on the Court 

19. The defendants demanded that I be incarcerated in respect of a purported refusal to 

provide documents and to attend to be examined in respect of costs against me 

personally on the Nelson Barbados Group Limited action. There was no basis nor 

court order that allowed me to be held personally liable for costs in respect of NBGL. 

In any case, prior to my application to set aside the contempt, all of the civil costs on 

that action were settled in full. The costs in respect of the civil contempt 

proceedings were not included in this settlement. However, those costs orders were 

not costs in respect of which the documents and examination were sought This 

would have been impossible. The costs flowed from contempt proceedings to obtain 
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such documents and examinations. Accordingly, once the costs of the action were 

settled in full in 2010, there was no longer any need to obtain these documents or 

conduct this examination. The opposition to my application to set aside the civil 

contempt served no legitimate purpose since it was in furtherance of costs on the 

action that had been settled in full in 2010. The real reason to obtain these 

documents and to conduct this examination was to obtain information and/or a 

tactical advantage in respect of litigation in other jurisdictions. One of the lawyer 

defendants, Mr. Ranking, twice volunteered this during examinations on the record 

before special examiners and admitted it in open Court before Justice Feldman of 

the Court of Appeal. This was reflected in Justice Feldman's reasons on a motion, in 

which she found that the ground of appeal, that the opposition to the motion to set 

aside the contempt finding was an abuse of process, had merit. The appeal on this 

issue was never heard because the appeal was dismissed due to my inability to pay 

the costs orders. 

20.1n 2013 when I was unrepresented by counsel, I was incarcerated at the behest of 

defendants and spent my full sentence in solitary confinement, notwithstanding that 

the defendants knew they had fabricated evidence and lied to the court in writing 

and orally and abused process to convict me. The fact that I was to be imprisoned in 

torturous solitary confinement for the full term of my imprisonment was known to 

defendants prior to them demanding I be incarcerated after my return to Canada; 

yet they still demanded of the court that I be incarcerated. 

21.1ain Deane and the other defendants committed these acts for improper purposes, 

including inter alia, to obtain evidence for use in other litigations outside of Canada, 
to extort a settlement from me and from others in other litigations happening in 

other jurisdictions, and to deter others from seeking justice through the courts in 

matters concerning the Kingsland Estate. 
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22. As described more fully later, lain Deane and the Barbados defendants defaulted in 

this current civil case because, inter alia, they know that all of the above is true, and 

that they have no viable defence. Strategically they also they desire to deny the court 

the evidence, exhibits and knowledge they possess as they know this evidence will 

further incriminate them and other defendants, including the Canadian defendants 

who have not defaulted. 

2. PURPOSE OF AFFIDAVIT 

23. I swear this affidavit in support of a motion for an order: 

a. granting default judgement against the defendant ERIC JAIN STEWART 

DEANE; 

b. abridging the time for service ofthis motion: 

c. permitting the filing of a factum in support of the default judgment not to exceed 

50 pages. 

d. Further, a permanent injunction that the Defendant Deane, and any other person 

allowed to participate in this motion, may not directly or indirectly distribute 

or publish any personal infonnation of the Plaintiff, except to the extent 

ordered by the court and with such protective orders that can be made to 

provide such protection; 

e. an interim injunctive order that to seal, redact or otherwise protect (non-

publication) the private and confidential information filed with the court on 

this motion to ensure the safety and security of the plaintiff and others; 

f. Such further remedy as the Court feels is just and appropriate; 
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and for no improper purpose. 

3. CURRENT MOTION 

24. On July 18, 2014, my lawyer Paul Slansky filed on my behalf a Statement of Claim in 

the current case 'Best v Ranking' Court File No.14-0815 before the Superior Court of 

Justice, Central East Region, Barrie, Ontario: naming Eric lain Stewart Deane as a 

defendant, along with others. A copy of the notarized affidavit of Oliver David Moon 

September 22, 2014, is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" of this affidavit includes a 

copy of the Statement of Claim. 

25. On September 3, 2014, process server Oliver David Moon personally served the 

defendant lain Deane with the Statement of Claim and jury Notice at lain Deane's 

home at 6 Augustines Way, Haywards Heath, West Sussex, RH163JH, England. This 

is clear from paragraph 7 of the September 22, 2014 notarized affidavit of Oliver 

David Moon (Exhibit "A·, supra). 

26. After being personally served, not only did lain Deane fail to serve and file a 

Statement of Defence as required by the Rules of Civil Procedure, lain Deane never 

contacted my lawyer Paul Slansky or the Court by any means. 

27. On November 7, 2014, my lawyer Paul Slansky filed a Requisition for Default against 

the defendant lain Deane, on the grounds that he failed to file a defence to my Claim 

within the period required by the Rules of Practice. A copy of the Requisition for 

Default against lain Deane filed November 7, 2014 is attached hereto as Exhibit "B". 

28.1ain Deane's default Is deliberate and strategic, and Is done,lnteralla, in order 
to benefit other defendants. 
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29. For reasons listed below, I verily believe that defendant lain Deane's default and 

failure to file a defence to my Statement of Claim is deliberate and strategic, and that 

his decision to default came after extensive consideration, almost certainly in 

consultation with his lawyers and other defendants, as to the possible benefits, 

consequences and risks of this strategy to default. 

30. For reasons listed below, I verily believe that lain Deane would certainly lmow that 

under Ontario's Rules of Civil Procedure, by failing to respond to a Statement of 

Claim, he has admitted that the facts in the Statement of Claim are true, and he has 

given up the ability to be notified of, or participate in further court procedures. lain 

Deane would know that the Court could now issue a Default Judgement. 

31. For the following reasons, I verily believe that lain Deane's default is deliberate and 

strategic, and is done, inter alia, in order to benefit other defendants: 

a. lain Deane is a sophisticated and experienced litigator, who, according to his 

own sworn affidavit and other statements, has legal training and worked for 

seven years as an articled legal clerk in a Barbados law office. 

b. In addition to his knowledge and experience gained through his legal 

training, qualifications and previous duties and employment as a law clerk, 

lain Dean is well familiar with civil litigation court procedures and 

international court procedures as a result of his personal experience. Since 

1982, lain Deane has been executor of the Colin Deane Estate of Barbados, 

and since that time has been both plaintiff and defendant in extensive and 

well-funded litigations having to do with the Estate and associated entities 

where the total involved assets are valued in the hundreds of millions of US 

dollars. In fact, the total value of the subject assets at one time approached 

one billion US dollars. 
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c. For over three decades, lain Deane instructed lawyers in Barbados, the 

United Kingdom and Canada to do with ongoing estate and 'Kingsland' 

litigations in each of those countries, and in the Caribbean Court of Justice. He 

also testified, was cross-examined and swore to various affidavits. 1 cannot 

imagine a more experienced, knowledgeable and well-funded litigant who is 

not a lawyer himself. 

d. lain Deane was and still is personally impacted by the outcomes of the 

various ongoing litigations and therefore would naturally maintain a keen 

interest in any litigation involving himself. From 2007 through 2010, lain 

Deane was a defendant in the Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. v Cox civil case 

('Nelson Barbados case') in Ontario Superior Court, where Nelson Barbados 

was the plaintiff. He is intimately familiar with litigation in Canadian courts 

involving Nelson Barbados, his co-conspirators and myself, Donald Best 

e. Jain Deane is experienced in misusing legal systems to avoid accountability. 

As recently as 2013, lain Deane was the subject of decisions by the Caribbean 

Court of Justice and Barbados Court of Appeal concerning his failure to make 

any accounting to the beneficiaries of the multi-million dollar estate of Colin 

Deane during his 30+ years as executor and trustee. For over three decades 

lain Deane has refused to account for, gather and distribute assets to 

beneficiaries as required of a trustee and executor. He has treated the assets 

of the Estate as his personal property, and through well-financed 

manoeuvres in and out of the courts and other strategies as assisted by his 

co-conspirators, avoided his legal duties. This was possible in Barbados 

where it is generally acknowledged by members of the Bar that even 

relatively minor civil matters such as non-fatal traffic accidents and 

condominium disputes routinely take up to 15-20 years or more to be heard 

and decided. 
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f. To my current knowledge, lain Deane remains in default of the 2013 

Caribbean Court of Justice and Barbados Appeal Court rulings that he must 

properly account 

g. lain Deane holds UK, Barbados and Canadian citizenships and by his own 

evidence lived and worked in Canada a total of 18 years; from 1972 to 1982 

and again from 2001 to 2006. This further indicates his knowledge of 

Canadian laws and legal procedures. During at least some of this time he had 

access to and sent communications in his own name through the MiJler 

Thomson LLP computer network, as will be detailed later. I do not know if 

Jain Deane's association with Miller Thomson LLP was only as a client, or if 

he ever worked as a Miller Thomson LLP employee, law clerk or contractor. 

h. The harmful actions by lain Deane and his co-conspirators against me as 

detailed later in my affidavit are part of a long-running campaign of 

harassment, intimidation, violence and other criminal acts against myself, 

other plaintiffs, witnesses, lawyers and our family members who oppose and 

opposed lain Deane and his co-conspirators in various past and current legal 

actions ('The Campaign'). The Campaign is designed to deter myself and 

other persons from seeking justice through the courts, or being a witness or 

lawyer in opposition to lain Deane and his co-conspirators in high-stakes 

litigation involving assets worth hundreds of millions of US dollars. As 

detailed later in my affidavit, the internet portion of the Campaign started at 

least as early as 2003. 

i. Jain Deane is aware that he and his co-conspirators face strong evidence 

implicating them in the overall Campaign and other acts of wrongdoing. 

Some of this evidence has been previously delivered to lain Deane, his 

lawyers and co-conspirators during the Nelson Barbados case, and in other 

legal matters in Canada, Barbados and Florida. 
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j. lain Deane is aware that filing a Statement of Defence or otherwise 

answering my Statement of Claim would expose him to cross-examination 

and the production of evidence for the court that would further implicate 

him and his co-conspirators in the Campaign of harassment, intimidation, 

violence and other criminal acts. He knows that he and his co-defendants 

cannot possibly refute the evidence against them, and that he, along with 

other defendants from Barbados as well as the lawyer defendants have been 

prolific in using the Internet including the Barbados Underground Blog, in 

furtherance of their Campaign. 

k. lain Deane knows that he and his co-conspirators maliciously distributed to 

the public and published on the internet, privileged and private information 

and made threats against me and others who support me. lain Deane knows 

that the evidence against him and his co-conspirators includes irrefutable 

voice recordings, business records, internet records, court transcripts and 

legal records showing the commission of various criminal acts in support of 

the overall Campaign. This knowledge is strong motivation for lain Deane 

and other defendants to default, because they know that they have no viable 

defence, and they do not want to add evidence to the already strong case 

against them. 

1. As a result of statements made by defendant Richard Ivan Cox during the 

Nelson Barbados civil case, I verily believe that Cox, lain Deane and the other 

Barbados defendants are confident that a judgement from a Canadian court 
will never be able to be enforced in Barbados. This further indicates that a 

joint strategy is behind the defaults by lain Deane and other Barbados 

defendants. Further, this is consistent with what some of lain Deane's 

anonymous supporters on Barbados Underground Blog have said: that a 
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Barbados Court would be unlikely to enforce a judgement issued by a 

Canadian Court. 

m. lain Deane's default in my case greatly benefits all the other defendants from 

Canada and Barbados because it is likely that lain Deane has real evidence, 

exhibits, communications and knowledge of the misconduct and actions of 

the defendants who were his co-conspirators. Because of lain Deane's 

default, such evidence and knowledge will now be unavailable to me as 

plaintiff, to the court and to some other defendants who have chosen not to 

default. I verily believe that this limiting of damaging evidence is part of the 

motivation for the deliberate default strategy by lain Deane and his Barbados 

co-conspirators I co-defendants. 

n. On December 3, 2014, all the Barbados-based defendants named in my 

Statement of Claim were also noted in default after failing to file a Statement 

of Defence. These 'Barbados defendants' and co-conspirators with lain Deane 

are: KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED; RICHARD IVAN COX; MARCUS ANDREW 

HATCH; PHILIP ST. EVAL ATKINSON; PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST 

CARIBBEAN (FORMERLY 'PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS'). (EXHIBIT C: 

DEFAULT FOR BARBADOS DEFENDANTS). 

o. The joint default of all Barbados defendants and lain Deane shows a unity of 

purpose and a considered strategy amongst these parties. 

p. As is evident in the September 22, 2014 affidavit of professional process 

server Oliver David Moon, lain Deane attempted to evade service of my 

Statement of Claim and Jury Notice. Further, lain Deane's spouse assisted by 

lying to Mr. Moon about lain Deane's whereabouts. 
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32. For all of the above reasons, I verily beJieve that lain Deane's default in my civil case is 

deliberate, strategic and coordinated with other defendants, because it also greatly 

benefits all defendants as described. 

33. To counter the dellberate sabotage of evidence by lain Deane and the other defaulting 

defendants, I believe it will be important for the court to listen to the digital voice 

recordings and consider the other powerful evidence including court transcripts, 

business and internet records that prove that lain Deane and the other defendants and 

their lawyers acted jointly to mislead the courts, to imprison me upon false and 

fabricated evidence for illegal and improper purposes, and improperly attempted to use 

the Ontario courts for the purpose of obtaining evidence for use in other litigation in 

other jurisdictions. 

34. Further, J believe it is important for the court to listen to the digital voice recordings 

and consider the strong evidence proving that lain Deane and the other defendants are 

part of a long-running Campaign of harassment, intimidation, violence and other 

criminal acts against myself, other plaintiffs, witnesses, lawyers and our family 

members who oppose and opposed lain Deane and his co-conspirators in current and 

past legal actions. 

4. General Description of the Campaign and Harm 

35. The harmful actions by Deane and his co-conspirators against me as detailed herein 

and in other affidavits previously submitted to the courts are part of a long-running 

Campaign of harassment, intimidation, violence and other criminal acts against 

myself, other plaintiffs, witnesses, lawyers and our family members who oppose and 

opposed the defaulted defendants and their co-conspirators in current and past 

legal actions ('The Campaign'). 
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36. Although the Campaign was initially directed against others, and started many years 

before I became involved with the Nelson Barbados litigation, I became a target in 

2001 when I was the Director of NBGL, an Ontario corporation, that became a 

plaintiff against lain Deane and his co-conspirators. 

37. The Campaign consists of criminal acts using various means of delivery including. 

but not limited to, the internet, physical mischief, intimidation, violence and abuse 

of court procedures. The evidence shows that some of the acts against me and 

others occurred in Canada, while others happened in Barbados, the United Kingdom, 

Florida and in Asia. 

38. lain Deane and his co-conspirators conducted the Campaign in a public manner, and 

publicized the Campaign and individual acts in furtherance of the Campaign to 

ensure maximum impact upon victims and potential victims. The publication of 

Campaign misconduct or 'successes' against one victim was intended to deter other 

persons from seeking justice through the courts, or being a witness or lawyer in 

opposition to lain Deane and his co-conspirators. This is evident in anonymous 

postings on Barbados Underground website and other internet venues wherein 

defendants and their supporters publicly encourage acts of harassment, stalking and 

violence (including murder), as intimidation, punishment and deterrence against 

myself, my lawyers, my witnesses and our family members. 

39. The Campaign is a true conspiracy in law and fact, as each of the acts of harassment, 

threats, violence, criminal and other misconduct by individual defendants was and 

is in furtherance of the overall joint goals of the Campaign and the participants. 

There is strong evidence showing cooperation, communication, coordination and 

joint actions amongst defendants in the implementation of various acts during the 

Campaign. 
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40. For instance, as one illustration of the coordination and joint actions of lain Deane 

and all the Barbados and lawyer defendants, plus some police defendants, in 

relation to the anonymous publication of harassing and threatening 

communications on Barbados Underground website ('BU'), evidence shows that: 

a. Since 2008 lain Deane and other defendants were and still are in 2014 

heavily involved with anonymously publishing harassing and threatening 

communications against me and others on Barbados Underground website 

('BU'). 

b. The lawyer defendants and their clients knew of my background as an 

undercover investigator of organized crime with almost three decades of 

service in the police and in private undercover law enforcement. They knew 

that I was a member of an 'at risk' profession where it is usual for persons to 

use unlisted phone numbers and mailbox addresses to protect themselves, 

their home and their family members. 

c. According to defendant lain Deane, Miller Thomson LLP lawyer Andrew 

Roman provided lain Deane, his client, with court documents relating to me 

and others. On january 28, 2009, Roman suggested in writing to lain Deane 

that Deane should publish the documents on the anonymous website BU. At 

the time, both Roman and Deane were well aware that BU was an Internet 

website with a long history of publishing harassment and threats against 

persons opposing lain Deane in litigation. Further, it was previously stated 

on BU on December 8, 2008 that Nelson Barbados court documents 

published on BU were published with the permission of person(s) in 

authority amongst the Campaign co-conspirators. 

d. In other words, defendant Miller Thomson lawyer Andrew Roman, and other 

controlling minds directed that some of the Campaign acts were to be done 

through Barbados Underground and on the Internet in furtherance of the 
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Campaign. This and other evidence detailed herein causes me to believe that 

the Campaign, at least in part, was planned, managed and coordinated by the 

defendant lawyers and law offices in collaboration with their clients and 

others. 

e. In October of 2009 defendants Miller Thomson LLP, Gerald Ranking, 

Sebastien Kwldzinski, Jim Van Allen, Behavioural Science Solutions Group 

Inc. and Tamara jean Williamson recklessly and illegally distributed to the 

public my Identity Information as defined in the Criminal Code; including my 

driver's licence number, date of birth, full name, address history since I was 

17 years old, my parents' address and my medical records as held by the 

Ontario Ministry of Transport. This and other information about my family 

and me was published anonymously on October 30, 2009 on Barbados 

Underground website, along with calls for rogue police officers and criminals 

I had previously investigated to hunt me down. As well, the article exhorted 

readers, any disaffected family members and anyone who had information 

about me to send the information to Cassels Brock and lawyer Lome Silver, 

and provided Mr. Silver's email address and other contact information. 

f. Immediately after the publication of the October 30, 2009 BU article I 

received harassing and frightening phone calls in the middle of the night One 

of my children was approached by a person who showed my child the BU 

article about me, and asked if I was the child's father. My child was frightened 

and intimidated and answered that I was no relation to them. The co-

conspirator or supporter of lain Deane threatened that my child had "better 

not be" related to me. 

g. On the morning of November 5, 2009 I was ambushed and physically 

assaulted in an obviously targeted warning directed specifically at me. I 

detailed this in my sworn affidavit of April 18, 2012, as filed in the Ontario 
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Superior Court. I believe this and the other attacks on my child, my family 

and me were all part of the same Campaign as was the publication of my 

identity information and threats against me in the October 30, 2009 BU 

article. 

h. I knew from the content of the October 30, 2009 BU article that rogue police 

personnel had illegally accessed and distributed confidential police 

information about me, and that at least some of that information had been 

published on the internet, along with exhortations for criminals to hunt me 

down. I knew there were one or more police insiders illegally providing 

confidential information about me, and perhaps about my family members. 

However, I did not obtain sufficient information to come to any conclusions 

about who did what until2014. 

i. What I discovered in 2014, and did not know until that time was that one of 

these insiders was the defendant james Qim) Arthur Van Allen, who was in 

2009 and 2010 a serving Ontario Provincial Police Detective Sergeant 

actually in charge of the OPP's Criminal Profiling and Threats Assessment 

Unit Faskens, Ranking and Kwidzinski illegally hired Van Allen 'on the side' 

to work against me as an unlicensed private investigator. Van Allen's and the 

lawyers' actions in this regard were in violation of various laws including, 

inter alia, the Police Services Act. the Private Security and Investigative 

Services Act and the Criminal Code. Initially, I was told in 2013 by the 

Ontario Provincial Police Professional Standards Unit that Van Allen was 

retired from the OPP at the time he acted as a private investigator and swore 

his October 21, 2009 affidavit that was used to convict me. This was later 

discovered by me to be a lie by the Ontario Provincial Police. The history of 

the discoveries regarding Van Allen is set out in the February 11, 2014 sworn 

affidavit of Toronto lawyer Che Claire, which was a part of the February 14, 
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2014 Motion Record as filed with the Appeal Court of Ontario. This Che Claire 

affidavit includes two invoices from Jim Van Allen to Gerald Ranking. 

j. The Che Claire affidavit and February 14, 2014 Appeal Court Motion Record 

provide extensive details on the role played by Van Allen and some other 

police defendants in the Campaign, and with other documents explains how 

lain Deane, his lawyer Andrew Roman and other defendants, used Van 

Allen's criminal activities and fabricated and false evidence to improperly 

convict and imprison me for Contempt of Court. 

k. During a November 17, 2009 phone call with defendants Silver, Ranking, 

Kwidzinski and other lawyers, Lorne Silver lied to me when he stated that he 

didn't know who had hired the private investigator who distributed my 

Identity Information. During the phone call I accused Mr. Silver of having a 

part in the criminal acts against my family and me. My accusation was later 

borne out to be true. 

I. During the November 17, 2009 phone call in desperation and fear I explained 

that my Identity Information and my confidential police employment records 

had been obtained by a private investigator and published on the internet, 

along with death threats, and that I and my family were now at risk of 

identity theft. Mr. Silver's reply was to state that he didn't care and wouldn't 

help me even if he could. Mr. Silver said this to intimidate me and also my 

family members. The defendant lawyers present with Mr. Silver overheard 

this and eventually lied to and deceived the court about what was said during 

the conversation. 

m. When I wrote to the lawyers and the court on December 1, 2009 and 

complained about what was said to me in the telephone call, and that the 

lawyers lied to the court about the call, the defendants Ranking, Silver, 

Kwidzinski, Roman, Zemel and Schabas lied to the court directly and I or by 
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their silence. At the time they lied to the court. they did not know that 1 had 

secretly recorded my telephone call with the lawyers, which irrefutably 

proves the lawyers deliberately lied to and deceived Justice Shaughnessy. 

n. Defendant CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL LLP ('Cassels') as part of the 

Campaign, set aside a portion of its Toronto-based computer network 

servers to recklessly distribute to the public, unredacted documents having 

to do with litigation involving Kingsland. Cassels then anonymously posted 

the URL (Internet address) on Barbados Underground website on an internet 

post containing overt threats and harassment of witnesses. Cassels invited 

the general public to download the documents as part of the Campaign. 

o. Also as part of the Campaign, co-conspirator 'PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP' 

of 3109 W. Dr. M. L. King Jr. Blvd, Tampa, Florida USA set aside a portion of 

its computer network servers to recklessly distribute to the public, 

unredacted documents having to do with litigation involving Kingsland. 

'PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP' then anonymously posted the URL (Internet 

address) on Barbados Underground website on an internet post containing 

overt threats and harassment of witnesses, and invited the general public to 

download the documents as part of the Campaign. 

41. Request for Directions in Filing of Evidence and Supplementary Affidavit 

42.1n support of the motion for default judgement, I will be filing in due course a major 

Supplementary Affidavit, which of necessity will be voluminous and supported with 

many exhibits. For reasons of convenience and efficiency for the Court and all 
parties, and also to ensure the safety and security of myself, my family and others, I 

am respectfully asking the Court for directions in filing my supplementary affidavit, 

exhibits and other documents in this case. 

43.Complexity and Volume of Evidence 
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44. It is respectfully submitted that the documents are too voluminous to be filed in paper 

format, and it would facilitate submissions and argument if the Plaintiff is permitted to 

file copies of all supporting evidence in electronic format (native, pdf, MP3 etc) on a 

USB memory stick or DVD computer disk for ease of presentation and access by the 

court. 

45. I now list a few examples of the necessity for this use of electronic formats during my 

civil case: 

a. During the Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. v Cox civil action wherein I was 

convicted of Contempt of Court, the defendants filed with the court tens of 

thousands of documents amounting to about one hundred thousand pages, more or 

less. The majority of these were filed with the court in electronic format on 

DVDs, with only a few selected documents being reproduced on paper. These 

documents are vital exhibits in my current case and motion, and in their current 

electronic form are searchable for ease of reference. If delivered in paper format, 

searching the documents for specific evidence and issues will effectively be 

impossible. 

b. During my current case and in support of the current motion, I will be filing as 

exhibits many hundreds of web pages that were captured in electronic fonn to 

begin with. Similarly if delivered to the court in electronic form these exhibits 

will be instantly searchable electronically and greatly enhance the efficiency of 

the court process. 

c. During my current case and in support of the current motion, I will also be filing 

exhibits containing over one hundred and fifty thousand logged website visits, 

including communications from the defendants and others, having to do with this 

case. For instance, part of this evidence shows that some defendants 

communicated with witnesses in their own names, and then later sent anonymous 
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threatening and harassing communications from the same law office or with the 

same computer but from a different location. 

d. All this evidence has been originally collected in electronic fonn and so will be 
searchable electronically and greatly enhance the efficiency of the court process. 

46.Security, Safety and Confidentiality 

4 7. As described below and in other sections of my affidavit, there are serious and well-

founded concerns that the evidence to be filed in this case not be misused or 

otherwise threaten the safety and security of myself or others. Many of the exhibits I 

will use to support my affidavits and my case contain Identity Information as 

defined in the Criminal Code and other confidential and private information. 

48.1t is respectfully requested that the Court declare a protocol and issue an order to 

seal, redact or otherwise protect the private and confidential information filed with 

the court to ensure the safety and security of the plaintiff and others. 

49. This is unfortunately necessary as in previous litigation involving Nelson Barbados 

Group Ltd., a company of which I was director, the defendants distrtbuted to the 

general public tens of thousands of pages of privileged, confidential and private 

documents, and/or information gained from the documents, and publicly posted the 

documents andfor information from the documents on the internet, often prior to 

the documents being filed with the court. 

50. Tens of thousands of pages of these documents and information came from the legal 

files of Nelson Barbados previous lawyer, while other documents or information 

were illegally obtained from government, police and police association records. 

51. These documents contain extensive Identity Information as defined in the Criminal 

Code for my witnesses, my lawyer, myself, our family members and for other legal 
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clients not even remotely associated with me or the litigation in question. As one 

example of the outrageous abuse; the defendant lawyers and their defendant clients 

even obtained, distributed to the general public and posted on the internet, medical 

records and end of life instructions to hospital staff for an elderly and dying family 

member who had nothing at all to do with me or this case. 

52. As a result of the defendants' actions, the safety and security of many persons was 

destroyed. The information is still in the hands of the general public, and much of it 

continues to be published on the internet to this very day, where the infonnation is 

still regularly used to attempt identity theft and other crimes against my family 

members, myself and others. 

Sworn before me at the City of Barrie ) 

In the County of Simcoe 

This 15th day of December, 2014 

A Commissioner, etc. 

) 

) 

) Donald Best 
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THIS IS EXIUBIT "A" 
REFERRED TO 

IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 
Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 
15th DAY 

OF December, 2014 

A Commissioner etc. 



EXHIBIT A 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 

I, Oliver David Moon, professional process server, make oath and say as follows: 

On Saturday, August 23, 2014 at about 7:45pm, I attended It the home address of Defendant Eric 
lain Stewart Deane at 6 Augustines Way, Haywards Heath, West Sussex, RH163JH, England. 
The door was answered by a male person who verbally identified himself as Mr. Jeremy Deane. 

Jeremy Deane informed me that Eric lain Stewart Deane was currently out of the United 
Kingdom, visiting Canada, and would not be returning home until October 20, 2014. Jeremy 
Deane told me that he was unaware of a contact address or telephone number for the Defendant 
Deane. 

On Wednesday, September 3, 2014 I again attended at the Deane residence at 7:15am, and 
knocked on the door for several minutes. As previously, Mr. Jeremy Deane answered the front 
door. 

I informed Mr. Deane that I was aware that he was the married partner of Eric lain Stewart 
Deane, and that he had misled me on my previous visit as to the defendant Deane's travels and 
his (Jen:my Deane's) purported inability to contact lhe defendant. 

Jeremy Deane told me that dte defendant Eric lain Stewart Deane was in bed but was not willing 
to come down at such an early time. Jeremy Deane then closed the door. r canied on knocking 
but did not receive any further response. 

Less than an hour later on September 3, 2014 at about 8:05am, I re-attended at the Deane 
residence and this time the door was opened by Eric lain SteWirt Deane, who confirmed his 
identity to me. I then personally served Eric Eain Stewart Deane with the Statement of Claim and 
Jury Notice, copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibits A and B respectively. 

Further, I attach hereto as Exhibit C a true copy of the Title to the Deane residence at 6 
Augustines Way, Haywards Heath, West Sussex, RH163JH, England, as obtained online from 
the Land Registry, showing that the Registered owner of the propeny is the defendant Eric lain 
Stewart Deane. I make this affidavit for no improper purpose. 

) 

) 

Noel 0 Chapman 
Notary Public 
England and Wales 

Oliver David Moon 
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This is Exhibit 'A' 

to the Affidavit of Oliver David Moon 

sworn September 

Noel 0 Chapman 
Notary Public 
England and Wales 
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EXHIBIT A 

Court File No./ 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSnCE 

(CENTRAL EAST REGION: BARRIE) 

DONALD BEST 
Plaintiff 

GERALD LANCASTER REX RANKING; SEBASTIEN JEAN KWIDZINSKJ: 
LORN£ STEPflEN SILVER; COLIN DAVID PF.NDRITH; 

PAUL BARKER SCHAUAS; JOHN ROMAN; MA'r\NIT TZIPORA ZEMEL; 
FASKEN DUMOULIN LLP; CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWF.LL LLP; 

BLAKE, CASSELS & GRAYDON LLP; MILLER THOMSON LLP: 
KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED; RICHARD IV AN COX: 

ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE; 
MARCliS ANDREW HATCH; PIDLIP ST. EVAL ATKINSON; 

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN (FORMERL V 
'PRICEW ATERHOUSEC'OOPF.RS'); 
ONTARIO PROVINCIAL POLICE; 

PEEL REGIONAL POLICE SER\1CE Llul. PEEL POLICE; 
DURHAM REGIONAL POLICE SERVICE; 
MARTY KEARNS: .JEFFERY R. \'IBF.RT; 

GEORGE DMVTIUIK; LAlTRlE RVSHBROOK; 
JAMES {JIM) ARTHUR VAN A LLF.N; 

BEHAVIOL!R.4L SCIENCE SOLlfTIONS GROllP INC.; 
TAMARA JEAN WILLIAMSON; 

INVESTIGATIVE SOLUTIONS NETWORK ISC.: 
TORONTO POLICE ASSOCIATION; 

JAl\E DOE Nt; JANE DOE Nl; JANE DOE Nl; JANE DOE H4; JANE DO£ H5 
JOHS DOE 1111; JOHN DOE N2: JOHN DOE NJ: JOHN OOE #U; JOHN DOE 115 

Defendants 

(Court seal) 

STATEMENT OF CLAIM 
TO mE DEFENDANTS 

1 
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A LEGAL PROCEEDING HAS BEEN COMMENCED AGAINST YOU by the Plaintiff. 
The claim made tglinst you is set out in the following pages. 

IF YOU WISH TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, you or an Ontario lawyer actig for you 
must a Slatemcnt of defence in Form ISA prescribed by the Rules of Civil Piocedure, 
serve 1t on the Plaintiffs lawyer or. where the Plaintiff docs not have a it on 1he 
Plaintiff, and file it, with proof of service in this court offroc. Wl1lUN TWENlY DAYS after 
this statement of claim is served on you, if you are served in Ontario. 

If 1ou are served in another province or territory of Canada or in the United States of 
Amenca. the for serving aiK:I filing your statement of defence is forty days. If you are 
served ouCsidC Caoada &Dd the United Slates of America. the period is sixty days. 

Instead of aerving and filing a of defence, and file a notice of intent 
to defend in Form 18B prescri'bed the Rules of Civil F un:. This will onl:itle you to ten 
more days within which co serve and file your statement of defence. 

IF YOU FAIL TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING, JUDGMENT MAY BE GIVEN 
AGAINST YOU IN YOUR ABSENCE AND WITHOUT FUR'IliER NOTICE TO YOU. IF 
YO WISH TO DEFEND THIS PROCEEDING BUT ARE UNABLE TO PAY LEGAL FEES, 
LEO AID MAY BE AVAILABLE TO YOU BY A LEGAL AID 

lssued

TO: Gerald LID<:uter Rex Rlaking 
Bmister and Solicitor 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
333 Bay St. 
Suite 2<400 
Toronto, ON 
M5H2T6 
Tel: (416) 865-4419 
Fax: (416) 364-7813 

AND TO: Sebastien Jean Kwiclzinski 
Barrister and Solicitor 
Fasken Mmtincau DuMoulin LLP 
333 Bay St. 
Suite 2400 
Toronto, ON 
MSH2T6 
Tel: (416) 868-3431 
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AND TO: Lome Stephen Silver 
Banister and Solicitor 
Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP 
Suite 2100, Scotia Plaza 
40 King St. West 
Toronto, ON 
MSH3C2 
Tel: (416) 869-5490 
Fax: (416) 640-3018 

AND TO: Colin David Pendrith 
Barrister and Solicitor 
Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP 
Suite 21 00, Scotia Plaza 
40 King St. West 
Toronto, ON 
MSH3C2 
Tel: (416) 860-6765 
Fax: (647) 259-7987 

AND TO: Paul Barker Schabas 
Banister and Solicitor 
Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP 
199 Bay Street 
Suite 4000, Commerce Court West 
Toronto ON M5L IA9 
Tel: (416) 863-4274 
Fax: (416) 863-2653 

AND TO: Andrew John Roman 
Barrister and Solicitor 

AND TO: 

Andrew John Roman Professional Corporation 
900-333 Bay Street 
Toronto, ON M5H 2T4 
Tel: (416) 848-0203 x2234 
Fax: (416) 850-5316 

Ma'anit Tzipora Zemel 
MTZ Law Professional Corporation 
39 Clovelly Ave 
Toronto, Ontario 
M6C IY2 
Tel: (416) 937-9321 
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AND TO: Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
333 Bay Street, Suite 2400 
Bay Adelaide Centre, Box 20 
Toronto, ON MSH 2T6 
Tel: (416) 366-8381 
Fax: (416) 364-7813 

AND TO: Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP 
Suite 2100, Scotia Plaza 
40 King Street West 
Toronto, ON 
MSH3C2 
Tel: (416) 869-5300 
Fax: (416) 360-8877 

AND TO: Blake, Cassels & Graydon LLP 
199 Bay Street 
Suite 4000, Commerce Court West 
Toronto ON MSL 1A9 
Canada 
Tel: (416) 863-2400 
Fax: (416) 863-2653 

AND TO: Miller Thomson LLP 
Scotia Plaza 
40 King Street West, Suite 5800 
Toronto, ON 
MSH3S1 
Tel: (416) 595-8500 
Fax: (416) 595-8695 

AND TO: Kingsland Estates Limited 
c/o Richard Ivan Cox 
No. 29 Atlantic Shores, 
Enterprise, 
Christ Church, 
Barbados, West Indies 

AND TO: Richard Ivan Cox 
No. 29 Atlantic Shores, 
Enterprise, 
Christ Church, 
Barbados, West Indies 
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AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

Eric lain Stewart Deane 
6 Augustines Way, 
Haywards Heath, 
West Sussex 
Rl-1163111, England 

Marcus Andrew Hatch 
'West Shore Lodge' 
Greenidge Drive 
Paynes Bay, St. James, 

West Indies 

Philip St. Eval Atkinson 
'Random' 
Waterford, St. Michael 
Barbados, West Indies 

PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean 
(Fonnerly 'PricewaterhouseCoopers', prior to JW1e 23, 2011) 
The Financial Services Centre 
Bishop's Court Hill 
St. Michael 
BB 14004 
Barbados, West Indies 
Tel: (246) 626-6700 
Faxes: (246) 436-1275 and (246) 429-3747 

Ontario Provincial Police 
General Headquarters 
Lincoln M. Alexander Building 
777 Memorial A venue 
Orillia, ON L3V 7V3 
Tel: (705) 329-6111 

Peel Regional Police Service a.k.a. Peel Regional Police 
General Headquarters 
7750 Hurontario Street, 
Brampton, ON, L6V 3W6 
Tel: (905) 453-3311 
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AND TO: Durham Regional Police Service 
General Headquarters 
605 Rossland Rd. E, 
Whitby, ON, LIN OB8 
Tel: (905) 579-1520 

AND TO: Marty Keams 
Ontario Provincial Police 
General Headquarters 
Lincoln M. Alexander Building 
777 Memorial A venue 
Orillia, ON L3V 7V3 
Tel: (705) 329-6111 

AND TO: Jeffery R. Vibert 
Ontario Provincial Police 
General Headquarters 
Lincoln M. Alexander Building 
777 Memorial Avenue 
Orillia, ON L3V 7V3 
Tel: (705) 329-6111 

AND TO: George Dmytruk 
Central East Division 
Durham Regional Police Service 
77 Centre St. N. 
Oshawa, ON LIG 4B7 
Tel: (905) 579-1520 

AND TO: Laurie Rushbrook 
Durham Regional Police Service 
General Headquarters 
605 Rossland Rd. E, 
Whitby, ON, LIN 088 
Tel: (905) 579- I 520 

AND TO: James (Jim) Arthur Van Allen 
6450 199 Street 
Suite 15 
Langley, British Columbia 
V2Y2Xl 
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AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

Behavioural Science Solutions Group Inc. 
26 Jordon Crescent 
Orillia, Ontario 
L3V8A9 
Tel: (604) 626-9572 
Fax: (604) 371-1649 

Tamara Jean Williamson 
Probation and Parole Services, 
Cottage C, 
700 Memorial A venue, 
2nd floor, 
Orillia, Ontario LJV 6HI 
Tel: (705) 329-60 I 0 

Investigative Solutions Network Inc. 
I 099 Kingston Road, Suite 23 7 
Pickering, Ontario Ll V 1 B5 
Tel: (905) 421-0046 
Fax: (905) 421-0048 

Toronto Police Association 
200-2075 Kennedy Rd 
Toronto, ON MIT 3V3 
Tel: (416) 491-4301 
Fax: (416) 494-4948 

AND TO: John Doe #I, John Doe #2, John Doe #3, John Doe #4, John Doe #5, and Jane 
Doe #I, Jane Doe #2, Jane Doe #3, Jane Doe #4, Jane Doe #5 

CLAIM 

(I) CLAIM: REMEDIES 

I. The Plaintiff claims damages in the amount of $20,000,000 and other relief as follows: 

(A) For General Compensatory damages in the amount of $6,300,000 

(B) For aggravated damages in the amount of $3,150,000 

(C) For punitive/Exemplary Damages in the amount of $9,500,000 
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(D) IN RESPECT OF COSTS orders and fees: 

(1) Special damages (in the alternative in respect 

of a category of general damages) in respect of costs 

orders made against the Plaintiff and fees paid to counsel 

for the Plaintiff in respect of contempt proceedings 

($650,000); 

(2) Damages reflecting unjust enrichment of defendants 

in legal fees purportedly or actually paid to lawyers $1,000,000 

(3) For a mandatory Order that ANY OR ALL OF the Defendants or any of them are 

prohibited from taking any actions to collect any cost Orders presently outstanding 

against the Plaintiff until the final resolution of this action including any appeals. 

(4) For a mandatory Order that, in the event that any other Court has or will require 

the Plaintiff to pay costs, they shall be set off against the damages and costs to be 

awarded in this action after trial. 

(5) For an Order that any and all costs Orders to be paid by the Plaintiff to any of the 

Defendants shall be stayed until the disposition of this action and that such costs shall be 

deducted from the award of damages and costs that the Plaintiff seeks to recover in this 

action. 

(E) For such INTERLOCUTORY AND/OR FINAL injunctions and other orders as are 

appropriate to protect the safety and security of the Plaintiff including but not limited to: 

8 

69 



(I) an injunction that the Defendants may not directly or indirectly question or 

present evidence regarding the personal information of the Plaintiff, except to the extent 

ordered by the court or required by law in these proceedings and with such protective 

orders that can be made to provide such protection; and 

(2) The Plaintiff resides in Simcoe County. For reasons of safety and security, which 

are discussed below, he wishes that his residence information not be disclosed. 

(F) The Plaintiff seeks a tracing and accounting of the funds that were paid to: 

(1) the Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP law finn ('Faskens') and-Gerald Lancaster 

Rex Ranking ('Ranking') allegedly for the account of the fictional entity/business called 

PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Finn or any individuals instructing counsel; 

(2) Lome Stephen Silver ('Silver'), Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP ('Cassels') 

regarding Kingsland Estates Limited ('KEL') or any of its principals. 

(G) For injunctive relief that will require the Defendants to take all necessary actions to de-

identify or otherwise effect the removal of all defamatory, private, threatening, and untrue 

information, Identity Information and documentation relating to the Plaintiff from the internet. 

And where reasonable, to retrieve from clients and members of the public such information that 

was illegally/improperly distributed, and to account to the court for each distribution and 

retrieval or attempted retrieval. 

(H) Full indemnity costs. 
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(U) THE LIABILITY OF THE DEFENDANTS 

A. TERMINOLOGY AND NATURE OF LIABILITY: 

2. The following defendants and groups of defendants are jointly and severally liable: 

(A) "The Lawyers" refers to one or more of Gerald Lancaster Rex Ranking 

('Ranking'), Sebastien Jean Kwidzinski ('Kwidzinski'), Lome Stephen Silver ('Silver'), 

Colin David Pendrith ('Pendrith'), Paul Barker Schabas ('Schabas'), Andrew John 

Roman ('Roman'), Ma'anit Tzipora Zemel ('Zemel'), who are all licensed by the Law 

Society of Upper Canada to practice law in Ontario. 

(B) "The Law Firms" are one or more of the partnerships that the Lawyers worked for, as 

partners or employees and who are responsible and liable for everything that the Lawyers 

did or did not do as described in this document. They are Fasken Martineau DuMoulin 

LLP ('Faskens'), Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP ('Cassels'), Blake, Cassels & Graydon 

LLP ('Blakes'), Miller Thomson LLP ('Miller'). These law firms knew, were willfully 

blind, reckless and/or negligent in permitting and encouraging the Lawyen; to commit the 

tortious conduct described herein. 

(C) "The clients" refers to the clients of the lawyers and law firms, including 

Kingsland Estates Limited ('KEL'), Eric lain Stewart Deane ('Deane'), Richard Ivan Cox 

('Cox'), Marcus Andrew Hatch ('Hatch'), Philip St Eva! Atkinson ('Atkinson') and, in 

the manner and extent descnbed below, PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean 

("PWCEC") and Jane Doe #I and John Doe #1. Ranking, Kwidzinski and Faskens 

claimed to represent PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm ("PWCECF"). This 

entity does not and never has existed. Yet the pleadings and documents filed clearly and 
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repeatedly declared that the full legal name of their client was PWCECF, not PWCEC or 

any other entity using "PricewaterhouseCoopers" as a part of its name. This PWCECF 

defendant was added to the original lawsuit brought by Nelson Barbados Group Ltd 

based on the false representation by Gerald Ranking that this was the proper name of the 

their client, the relevant auditor. These lawyers and firm fraudulently claimed to represent 

this non-entity and in the face of accusations to that effect, refused to provide proof to 

contradict clear evidence that PWCECF did not and does not exist. Instead, they 

repeatedly bluffed, misled and lied to the Superior Court, the Court of Appeal for Ontario 

and the Supreme Court of Canada, insisting that PWCECF did and does exist. They went 

so far as to twice present documents in the course of examinations showing a name 

change of a partnership to PWCEC as of June 2011, long after the fraud had begun, while 

falsely asserting that they were presenting partnership documents of their client, 

PWCECF, even though the documents clearly referred to PWCEC. PWCEC is included 

as a defendant on the basis that Messrs. Ranking and Kwidzinski and Faskens insisted 

that this was their client and because this is, as of 2011, a legal entity. However, it is 

unclear whether PWCEC was ever their client. 

(D) "The police" refers to Regional Police Forces, Durham Regional Police Service 

("DRPS") and Peel Regional Police Service ("PRPS") and the following specific persons 

employed by them: George Dmytruk (DRPS); Laurie Rushbrook (DRPS); and the 

Provincial Police, the Ontario Provincial Police ("O.P.P.") and the following specific 

persons: Marty Kearns (OPP); Jeffery R. Vibert (OPP); James (Jim) Arthur Van Allen 

('Van Allen') (pre-retirement). Police officers John Doe #2 and John Doe #3 and Jane 

Doe #2 and Jane Doe #3, as yet unknown were also involved. 
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(E) The "Van Allen Defendants" refers to Van Allen (pre and post-retirement), 

Tamara Jean Williamson ('Williamson'), Behavioural Science Solutions Group Inc. 

('BSSG') and Investigative Solutions Network Inc.('ISN'). 

(F) The "Toronto Police Association" ("TPA") refers to the incorporated Toronto 

Police Association and any individuals dealing with the Plaintiffs case who provided 

infonnation to Van Allen or others in respect of the Plaintiff, the identities not yet known 

(Jane Doe #4 and John Doc #4). 

(G) The tenn "defendants" refers to all of the defendants in the style of cause, 

including those whose identities and/or culpable involvement are not yet known, (John 

Doe #S and Jane Doe #S). 

3. The defendants knew, were willfully blind, reckless and/or negligent in perpetrating the 

tortious conduct against the Plaintiff described herein. The natural persons had such 

knowledge and intent Corporate persons had such knowledge and intent through their 

directing minds. Based, inter alia, on the bad faith and lack of factual and/or legal 

authority, the Plaintiff seeks the piecing of the corporate veil in respect of these 

corporations. 

4. The defendants knew (in fact or constructively), intended, (in fact or constructively), 

were reckless and/or foresaw, as would any reasonable person, that their actions would 

significantly cause real hann, damage and/or endanger the Plaintiff, physically, 

emotionally, economically and in respect of his reputation. 

S. The defendants acted flagrantly, outrageously, in bad faith, maliciously, fraudulently, 

contrary to their fiduciary duty and/or dishonestly. 
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6. The defendants targeted the Plaintiff knowing that their actions would directly and 

indirectly cause him substantial harm in breach of their well-known and generally 

recognized legal, fiduciary and/or ethical duties and the legal, fiduciary and/or ethical 

duties of others. They negligently failed to act in accordance with their legal and ethical 

duties and thereby failed to act in accordance with the applicable common law and 

statutory rules and standards of care. They acted in such a way as to create an 

unreasonable risk of substantial harm. 

7. The defendants acted in their private capacity and in their official capacities as 

prosecutors, investigators, peace officers, probation and parole officers and/or labour 

officials pursuant to statute and common law authority and as officers of the Court. 

8. The defendants conspired to do so collectively in pursuit of an agreement, between one or 

more of them and others, with the predominant purpose of banning the Plaintiff and/or 

knowing that their acts were aimed at the Plaintiff and knowing or constructively 

knowing that their acts would injure the Plaintiff, using lawful and unlawful means, 

which caused compensable damage to the Plaintiff. 

B. CAUSES OF ACTION 

9. The defendants are liable on the following bases are all jointly severally liable on the 

following general causes of action: 
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(1) IN RESPECT OF CIVIL CONTEMPT PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE 

PLAINTIFF: 

(a) Abuse of Process (Common law and/or s. 7 of the Canadian Charter of 

Rights and Freedoms (the"Charter')) 

(b) Negligent Investigation (Common law and ss.7 and 9 of the Charter) 

(c) False Imprisonment (Common law and ss.7 and 9 of the Charter) 

(d) Intentional and/or Negligent Infliction of Harm and/or Mental 

Suffering 

(e) Misfeasance and/or Malfeasance of Public Office and/or Abuse of 

Authority 

(f) Malicious Prosecution 

(g) Conspiracy to Injure the Plaintiff 

(l) IN RESPECT OF INFRINGEMENT OF PRIVACY OF THE PLAINTIFF 

(in the course of an action by Nelson Barbados Group Ltd ("NBGL"), which 

continued during civil contempt proceedings against the Plaintifl): 

(a) Breach of Common Law Privacy Rights (intrusion on secrecy) 

(b) Breach ofss. 7 and/or 8 of the Charter 

(c) Misfeasance and/or Malfeasance and/or Nonfeasance of Public 

Office/Abuse of Authority 
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(d) Abuse of Process (common law and/or s.7 of the charter) 

(e) Intentional or Reckless Endangerment (by the infliction of harm 

and/or mental suffering) and/or NegUgent Endangerment 

(f) Negligent Investigation (common law and ss.7 and 9 of the charter) 

(g) Negligent Regulation/Performance of Statutory Duty (common law 

and/or s. 7 of the charter) 

(h) Breach of Fiduciary Duty/Negligence in Respect of Fiduciary duty 

(i) Conspiracy to Injure and/or Conspiracy to do Unlawful Act and/or 

Causing Loss by Unlawful Means 

(3) IN RESPECT OF EVIDENCE GATHERING BY JAMES VAN ALLEN 

AND TIIE POLICE 

(a) Misfeasance and/or Malfeasance and/or Nonfeasance of Public: 

Office/Abuse of Authority 

(b) Abuse of Process (common law and/or s.7 of the charter) 

(c:) Negligent Regulation/Performance of Statutory Duty (common law 

and/or ss. 7 and/or 8 of the charter) 

(d) Negligent Investigation (common law and ss.7 and 8 offhe charter) 

(e) Invasion of Privacy (Intrusion on Secrecy) 
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(f) Conspiracy to Injure and/or Conspincy to do Unlawful Ad and/or 

Causing Loss by Unlawful Means 

(4) IN RESPECT OF FRAUD ON THE COURT IN CIVIL CONTEMPT 

PROCEEDINGS RE PRICEWA TERHOUSECOOPERS EAST 

CARIBBEAN FIRM ("PWCECF") 

(a) Abuse of Process (common law and/or s. 7 of the charter) 

(b) Breach of Fiduciary Duty to the Court 

(c) Misfeasance and/or Malfeasance of Public Office/ Abuse of Authority 

(d) Conspiracy to Injure and/or Conspiracy to do Unlawful Ad and/or 

Causing Loss by Unlawful Means 

C. GROUPINGS OF DEFENDANTS REGARDING LIABILITY 

l 0. The following defendants are primarily jointly and severally liable in respect of the 

following causes of action, without limiting the generality of the foregoing: 
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(1) FASKENS DEFENDANTS: 

11. Ranking, and Kwidzinski are lawyers in Toronto. Their law fmn is Faskens. Their 

purported client, PWCECF, does not exist. However, PWCEC was later pwportedly created 

and/or identified as the client and individuals instructed counsel at Faskens. Hatch and Atkinson 

are accountants who work in Barbados and other locations. The partnership PWCEC may have 

been a client of the Faskens Defendants. These defendants, along with others named as John 

Doe Defendants (John Doe #1 and Jane Doe #1), concocted a non-existent entity to carry out the 

activities set out in this claim: 'PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Finn' (PWCECF) is a 

fictitious name used by them and other more persons who are known to some or all of the other 

Defendants. They are all jointly and severally liable for all damages and costs and other relief in 

respect of all causes of action. 

(2) CASSELS DEFENDANTS 

12. Silver and Pendrith are lawyers in Toronto. Their law finn is Cassels. Their client is 

KEL and Cox. They are jointly and severally liable for all damages and costs and other relief in 

respect of all causes of action. 

(3) BLAKES DEFENDANTS 

13. Schabas is a lawyer in Toronto. His law firm is Blakes. They are jointly and severally 

liable for all damages and costs and other relief primarily in respect of causes of action as 

described in paragraph 9, groupings (1), (2) and (3). 
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(4) MILLER DEFENDANTS 

14. Roman and Zemel are lawyers in Toronto. Their law firm is or was Miller. Their client is 

Eric lain Stewart Deane. They are jointly and severally liable for all damages and costs and 

other relief primarily in respect of causes of action as described in paragraph 9, groupings (1), (2) 

and (3). 

(5) REGIONAL POLICE DEFENDANTS 

15. The DRPS and PRPS are Police Services constituted according to the Police Services Act, 

R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15. George Dmytruk and Laurie Rushbrook were police officers employed by 

or on behalf of the DRPS. John Doe #2 and Jane Doe #2 were police officers employed by or on 

behalf of the DRPS and/or the PRPS. These persons spoke on behalf of their police service and 

conducted illegal and unnecessary investigations of the Plaintiff and also provided the fruits of 

these investigations to the lawyers, law firms and clients, primarily, but not exclusively the 

Faskens and Cassels Defendants, through Van Allen and the Van Allen Defendants. They also 

conspired with these defendants to i'!jure the Plaintiff and/or to cover up for their own and the 

Van Allen defendants' unlawful activities. They are jointly and severally liable for all damages 

and costs and other relief primarily in respect of causes of action as described in paragraph 9, 

groupings (1), (2) and (3). 

(6) PROVINCIAL POLICE DEFENDANTS 

16. The OPP is a Police Force constituted according to the Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, 

c. P-15. Marty Kearns, Jeffery R. Vibert, James (Jim) Arthur Van Allen, John Doe #3 and Jane 

Doe 13 were police officers employed by or on behalf of the OPP, spoke on behalf of their 

respective police services and conducted illegal and unnecessary investigations of the Plaintiff 
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over and above and/or in violation of their normal duties and responsibilities and also provided 

the fruits of these investigations to the lawyers, law fums and clients, primarily, but not 

exclusively the Faskens and Cassels Defendants, through Van Allen and the Van Allen 

Defendants. They also conspired with these defendants to injure the Plaintiff and/or to cover up 

for their own and the Van Allen defendants' unlawful activities. They are jointly and severally 

liable for all damages and costs and other relief primarily in respect of causes of action as 

described in paragraph 9, groupings (1), (2) and (3). Marty Keams, Jeffery R. Vibert, James 

(Jim) Arthur Van Allen, John Doe #3 and Jane Doe #3 are personally responsible for their 

actions pleaded herein. 

(7) VAN ALLEN DEFENDANTS 

17. James Van Allen was an OPP police officer. He was at the same time purportedly and 

unlawfully acting as a private investigator for the defendants. His investigation used police 

resources directly or indirectly, with the knowing or negligent cooperation of the police (DRPS, 

PRPS and OPP) and the TPA. Van Allen and/or the police conducted an unlawful secret 

investigation of the Plaintiff premised on his conviction for civil contempt before this conviction 

had occurred. This investigation was then reflected in a misleading affidavit filed by the Faskens 

defendants on behalf of the non-existent PWCECF. The Van Allen defendants also recklessly 

and illegally distributed to the public, the Plaintiffs Identity Infonnation and other private 

information. Van Allen did so in a personal capacity and as an officer and director of his 

company. Behavioural Science Solutions Group Inc., Van Allen's and Williamson's company (as 

Directors and/or Shareholders) and Van Allen's then girlfriend or common law spouse, Tamara 

Jean Williamson are also liable for Van Allen's action carried out in his personal and/or 

corporate capacities. Investigative Solutions Network Inc. acted with knowledge of Van Allen's 
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status as a serving police officer and assisted him in respect of his tortious conduct. They are 

jointly and severally liable for all damages and costs and other relief primarily in respect of 

causes of action as described in paragraph 9, groupings (1), (2) and (3). 

(8) TORONTO POLICE ASSOCIATION DEFENDANTS 

18. The Defendant Police Association is an incorporated entity which represents active and 

retired police officers and others which are its members. The TPA and Jane Doe #4 and John 

Doe #4 provided confidential information regarding the Plaintiff, a former police officer, whose 

identity and location, if revealed would place his life and safety in danger as a former undercover 

officer. It indeed bad this effect They are jointly and severally liable for all damages and costs 

and other relief primarily in respect of causes of action as described in paragraph 9, groupings 

(1), (2) and (3). 

(9) OTHER DEFENDANTS 

19. The reference to the Defendants as "defendants" or 'they' herein refers to all persons or 

groups of the Defendants who are known among themselves but not to the Plaintiff and 

conspirators, known or unknown. They include John Doe #5 and Jane Doe #5. Particulars will 

be provided following full discovery. 
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Ill. PARTICULARS OF THE CLAIM 

A. CHRONOLOGY AND LIABILITY 

20. The Plaintiff had been an officer of Nelson Barbados Group Ltd ("NBGL"). NBGL 

commenced action in the Superior Court by Statement of Claim against Ontario and Barbados 

Defendants. Some of the Defendants brought a motion to contest jurisdiction, which was granted 

and the action was stayed by Justice Shaughnessy of the Superior Court of Justice ("SCJ") in 

2008. The merits of the action were never adjudicated. The only issue remaining issue was costs. 

21. When the issue of costs was being considered, the Plaintiff was deprived of counsel and 

compelled to act as unrepresented litigant. 

22. Costs submissions were to proceed on November 2, 2009 and the Plaintiff understood 

that costs were going to be assessed that day against NBGL which stood ready to pay them. The 

Plaintiff indicated, on behalf of NBGL, that he would not be attending but leave the issue in the 

hands of the Court. 

23. Prior to November 2, 2009 the Plaintiff was not aware that costs were being sought 

against him personally. There was never advanced a theory to justify this position and it was 

never adjudicated inter partes. There was no legitimate or lawful basis to seek costs against the 

Plaintiff Best. This was pursued for an improper and collateral purpose(s), to wit, an excuse to 

seck discovery of the Plaintiff, a means to intimidate the Plaintiff and/or a means to deter the 

commencement or continuation of litigation by other parties based on the same general 

circumstances in other jurisdictions. This ulterior or collateral purpose was repeatedly admitted 

to the SCJ and the OCA in the course of costs and contempt proceedings in respect of costs. 
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24. The lawyers, law finns and clients used an affidavit of Van Allen, described as a private 

investigator to demonstrate that the Plaintiff could not be served with process, and/or that the 

Plaintitrs actions and motivations were improper and/or suspect. This was known by the Van 

Allen defendants and the lawyers, law fums and clients to be false and/or misleading. This was 

successfully used to allow for purported service by mail, which was largely ineffective due to the 

improper actions of the defendants, including (but not limited to) an intentional campaign to 

endanger the Plaintiff, forcing him to leave the countJy with his family for his and their safety, 

and placing false information and evidence before the court All of this resulted in the Plaintiff 

not getting timely notice of court motions or orders, resulting in contempt orders and costs orders 

against him. 

25. In fact, Van Allen was a serving police officer for the OPP at the time of his investigation 

of the Plaintiff and the swearing of his affidavit. He was not legally allowed to act as a private 

investigator and his actions in doing so were illegal and void. The Defendants colluded and 

conspired to cover this up and that his actions were in violation of the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 

1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Private Security and 

Investigative Services Act, S.O. 2005 c.34; Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 

Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31 and OPP policies. Van Allen's investigations of the Plaintiff and 

creation and swearing of his affidavit took place through his contract with Van Allen and/or his 

company and Faskens. Van Allen and the Lawyers and Law Finns, in particular but not 

exclusively the Faskens defendants, prepared the affidavits and redacted invoices to conceal the 

unlawful use of police services, resources and searches by Van Allen under the instructions and 

misinformation provided by other defendants. This information was used to secure substituted 

service orders, in the investigation of the Plaintiff for contempt and to secure an improper 
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conviction for contempt. The information contained in an affidavit of Van Allen was later relied 

upon by Justice Shaughnessy in finding the Plaintiff guilty of contempt. 

26. During the costs process against NBGL, the Defendant lawyers, law flmls and clients 

brought a motion for the production of documents and examination of the Plaintiff, the President 

and director of NBGL, and for substituted service on the Plaintiff by mail in relation to costs 

against NBGL. The materials were not served on NBGL or the Plaintiff before it was returnable 

on November 2. Using the Van Allen affidavit, the clients, lawyers and law finns were able to 

convince Justice Shaughnessy on this ex parte application to validate service by mail and 

courier. In Van Allen's affidavit, Justice Shaugnessy was falsely led to believe that the Plaintiff 

was evading service, and/or that his motivations and actions were improper. Although no 

endorsement was made, the Court indicated a willingness to grant the order subject to the 

determination of the tcnns by the parties in attendance on November 2, 2009. The order was not 

created and signed until November 12, 2009, even though it required the Plaintiff to produce 

certain documents on November 10, 2009: two days before the order came into existence. 

27. There was no legitimate or lawful basis to seek the discovery of the Plaintiff in respect of 

costs. This was pursued for an improper and collateral purpose(s), to wit, as a means to 

intimidate the Plaintiff and/or a means to deter the commencement or continuation of litigation 

by persons and entities other than the Plaintiff, based on the same general circumstances, in other 

jurisdictions. This ulterior or collateral purpose was repeatedly admitted to the SCJ and the OCA 

in the course of costs and contempt proceedings in respect of costs. 

28. A draft order which allegedly required document production on November 10 and 

examination in Toronto (Victory Verbatim) on November 17, 2009, was purportedly sent by 
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courier on November 6, 2009 to the Plaintiff at the address indicated in the order for substituted 

service. In fact, the material was never sent by mail, courier or otherwise and as the Plaintiff 

later advised the Court and the parties, be did not receive the materials or any order, but first 

learned of the order when he called the trial coordinator to find out was ordered in respect of 

costs, on November 16,2009. 

29. On November 17, 2009, the Plaintiff called Victory Verbatim Reporting and spoke to the 

lawyers, primarily Ranking and Silver. The Plaintiff bad asked that the conversation take place 

on the record (recorded by the Special Examiner's office). The lawyers refused The Plaintiff 

indicated that he did not have the materials purportedly sent on November 6, 2009 and, in 

particular, he did not have the November 2 order. He did not have a copy of it He indicated that 

he just found out about the order and the examination the day before. He indicated that he could 

not attend that day or the next. The Plaintiff asked to be examined by telephone. He agreed to 

answer questions. The lawyers refused to conduct the examination by telephone. They 

threatened contempt proceedings. 

30. During the November 17, 2009 call to Victory Verbatim the Plaintiffrefused to tell the 

lawyers where he was at the time. He indicated that be would not say where he was because he 

was concerned about his safety and the safety of his family. In fact, the Plaintiff had fled Canada 

with his family due to the illegal actions of the defendants, and was in the Western Pacific at the 

time. The Plaintiff alleged that persons, including Mr. Silver or members of his firm, bad 

released confidential information including Identity Information about him (date ofbirth, drivers 

license information, addresses and employment records) that was put on the internet that had led 

to identity theft, death threats and intimidation of him. The Plaintiff is a former police officer 

and an undercover operator against, inter alia, organized crime and violent criminals. The 
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Plaintiff asked questions about what Mr. Silver or his farm had done to allow this confidential 

information to be released onto the internet. Mr. Silver's response was a denial of responsibility 

and statements to the effect that he did not care and would not help the Plaintiff even if he could. 

31. The dissemination and publishing of confidential information received by Van Allen and 

through proceedings on the earlier action did in fact take place. This caused the Plaintiff actual 

physical harm. He was assaulted. It caused actual damage to property and economic loss, in 

that, inter alia, he and his family were forced to flee Canada, the family car was shot up, gang 

members subsequently tracked him down in New Zealand and forced the Plaintiff and his family 

to flee that country. The Plaintiff suffered significant, visible and provable injury and long 

lasting mental suffering. 

32. The lawyers, law firms and clients knew about this dissemination and publishing of 

confidential infonnation and, in fact, were actively involved in the dissemination and 

publication. They did so knowing and intending that would likely endanger the life of the 

Plaintiff and the life and/or safety of his family. They conspired with Van Allen and the police 

to injure him in this manner. Even after the Plaintiff begged them to stop distributing to the 

public his and his family members' private information including Identity Information, the 

lawyers, law fiiDlS and clients distributed and published even more of this confidential 

information, which they continue to do to this day. The lawyers, law firms, clients and police 

later conspired to cover up this unlawful activity and the unlawful nature of Van Allen's 

"private" investigation services while be was a police officer. They did so flagrantly and 

outrageously. They did so knowing that this was unlawful and criminal. They did so 

intentionally for the improper and collateral purposes of encouraging the Plaintiff to leave 

Canada or as a means to pressure him and others in respect of litigation and potential litigation in 
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other jurisdictions. As officers of the Court, the lawyen and law fmns were acting in an official 

state capacity. Van Allen. as a serving police officer and the police were state agents. 

33. The Toronto Police Association ('TPA') owed a fiduciary duty to the Plaintiff and the 

other defendants knew of this fiduciary duty and the dishonest breach of trust which is explicitly 

described in Van Allen's affidavit. They assisted in the breach of the fiduciary duty by 

employing Van Allen to conduct this investigation and by distributing, publishing and 

disseminating the confidential information. Ranking and the other defendants knew or were 

willfully blind to the fact of the breach of fiduciary duty by TPA and Van Allen. 

34. It was known by the defendants that the distribution, dissemination or publishing of 

private and confidential information, including Identity Infonnation as defmed in the Criminal 

Code, described above would likely cause physical hann and/or significant mental suffering and 

trauma to the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff repeatedly requested that steps be taken by defendants to 

remedy this situation. The defendants had a legal duty to remedy the situation. The defendants to 

this day have failed to take any remedial action. 

35. This investigation and its distribution, dissemination and publishing were also negligent 

contrary to standard of care owed to the Plaintiff by the lawyen, the law firms in respect of the 

investigation and Van Allen, the Van Allen defendants, the police and TP A and other defendants 

in respect of the improper dissemination and publishing of the confidential infonnation. 

36. After the November 17, 2009 telephone call, that day, Messn. Silver and Ranking, on 

behalf of the clients and/or instructing agents, created a record by making a "Statement for the 

Record" at Victory Verbatim, in the presence of some other memben of the law firms. In this 

Statement for the Record, they indicated, inter alia, that the Plaintiff had admitted to having 
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received a copy of the Court Order dated November 2, 2009. Mr. Ranking stated that the 

Plaintiff had admitted that he had received the order prior to November 16, 2009 and that was 

why he had called the trial coordinator and that the Plaintiff had refused to answer questions. 

These statements by Messrs. Ranking and Silver were knowingly and deliberately grossly stating 

the opposite of the truth. These lies were uttered to enable the lawyers, law finns, and clients to 

conspire to pursue and pursue contempt proceedings against the Plaintiff, which they later did, 

using these lies to perpetrate a fraud on the court. They persisted in this position even when this 

was initially disputed by other counsel, Ms. Rubin, who was present for some of the 

conversation. 

37. On November 18, 2009, a package containing, inter alia, a letter, the order dated 

November 2, 2009, a Notice of Examination requiring examination on November 25, 2009 and 

the Statement for the Record, was sent by mail to the Plaintiff. 

38. In a December 1, 2009 letter to Mr. Ranking, copied to all lawyers, and in a letter on the 

same date to the Court, including the letter to Mr. Ranking, the Plaintiff indicated that he 

received the material referred in the previous paragraph on November 24, 2009. The letters 

indicated that be was outside of Canada at the time and alleged that that the "Statement for the 

Record" was false and that Messrs. Ranking and Silver knew that it was false. It was alleged 

that, inter alia, that: 

I. the Plaintiff denied having admitted on November 17, 2009 to having received the 

November 6 materials, including the draft order; 

2. he had not received these materials; 
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3. the Plaintiff denied having admitted on November 17, 2009 to knowledge of the 

order prior to being told by the trial coordinator on November 16, 2009; 

4. he did not know of the order prior to being told by the trial coordinator on 

November 16, 2009; 

5. he had safety concerns as a result of the actions of the Defendant lawyers, law 

finns and clients and some of their counsel, including Mr. Silver and his firm. 

39. The Plaintiff was not able to and did not attend in Toronto for examination on November 

25,2009. 

40. A motion returnable December 2, 2009, seeking the same relief as the November 2 order 

(except for examination before Justice Shaughnessy) and a contempt order was purportedly 

served on the by mail Plaintiff, on short service. 

41. In court on December 2, 2009, Messrs. Ranking and Silver disputed the truth of the 

December 1, 2009 letters of the Plaintiff. They called it defamation. They asserted the truth of 

their Statement for the Record. They falsely insisted that the Plaintiff had knowledge of the 

order prior to November 16, 2009. They also falsely asserted that the Plaintiff only disputed 

receipt of the signed order. They falsely asserted that there was no dispute that the Plaintiff had 

received the draft order prior to November 16, 2009. They relied on the pwported service by 

courier on or after November 6, 2009, the November 16 letter (taken out of context, ignoring the 

fact that knowledge prior to November 16 was specifically denied) and the supposed admissions 

of the Plaintiff during the November 17, 2009 conversation (as falsely reflected in the Statement 

for the Record). 
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42. The Court accepted the facts as submitted by counsel on December 2, 2009, because they 

were proffered as facts under the express and implied assurances that the facts were true and 

reliable in accordance with the ethical obligations of the lawyers, as Officers of the Court. to tell 

the truth and to not mislead the Court. The Court rejected the contrary assertions by the Plaintiff 

in the December I, 2009 letters because they were not under oath and did not come from an 

Officer of the Court. The lawyers, in lying and/or misleading the Court abused their office as 

Officers of the Court and abused process. Other lawyers, in remaining silent in the face of 

knowledge that statements were false and/or misleading also abused their office as Officers of 

the Court and abused process. 

43. An order was issued on December 2, 2009 requiring the production of documents on 

January 8, 2010 and examination before Justice on January 151
\ 2010. Failure to comply would 

result in a contempt hearing that day if the Plaintiff did not appear. 

44. The December 2, 2009 order was sent to the Plaintiff by mail. The Plaintiff had no 

knowledge of any requirement to provide documents or attend to be examined in January 2010. 

He had no knowledge of any application to find him in contempt on January 15, 2010. The 

Plaintiff did not receive the December 2, 2009 order until June 2010. 

45. There was no personal service of any order prior to any obligation arising and no 

evidence of knowledge of such an obligation until, in respect of November 17 and 25, 2009, the 

day prior to the obligation arising and otherwise, no knowledge of any obligation until after the 

deadline. The Supreme Court of Canada, in Bhatnager, [1990] S.C.J. No. 62 has made it clear 

that service that is not personal service may, in some circumstances be adequate for the conduct 
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of civil litigation, but is legally inadequate to found civil contempt. Personal service or 

knowledge is a precondition for a finding of civil contempt. 

46. The lawyers misled Shaughnessy, J. with respect to the facts and law regarding the 

adequacy of service, knowledge and notice. Contrary to the law they falsely urged the Court to 

act upoQ substituted service. They falsely asserted prior knowledge of the November 2, 2009 

order in the "Statement for the Record". They relied upon misleading and/or false evidence 

and/or opinions in the Van Allen affidavit suggesting that the Plaintiff was attempting to evade 

service. They unreasonably asserted that notice the day before (when the person claimed to be 

outside of the country) was adequate (in respect of November 17 and November 25, 2009). The 

contempt order made on January 15, 2010 was a product of the misleading of the Court by the 

lawyers, law ftrms and clients and the Van Allen defendants, with the police and the TPA. 

47. The Plaintiff did not attend on January 15, 2010. 

48. On January 15, 2010 (as reflected in Reasons on January 25, 2010), the Court found the 

Plaintiff in contempt of court (civilly) for failure to comply with the November 2, 2009 order 

(production and examination), the Notice of Examination for November 25, 2009 and the 

December 2, 2009 order (production and examination). Based on: 

I. the orders for substituted service; 

2. the November 16, 2009 letter (taken out of context; without mentioning denial of prior 

knowledge); 

3. the November call (taken out of context: without mentioning denial of knowledge prior to 

November 16, 2009); 

4. the Statement for the Record; 
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S. The affidavit of Van Allen; and 

6. the submissions of Messrs. Silver and Ranking that the Statement for the Record was true 

and the December I, 2009 letters of the Plaintiff were false, 

the Court found that the Plaintiff had "notice". Based on the denials by the lawyers as Officers 

of the Court and the lack of sworn evidence, there was no consideration of safety issues. The 

Court found that the Plaintiff had not complied with the orders in that he did not produce the 

documents and did not attend for examination. Based on the lie in the Statement for the Record, 

the Court was misled into implicitly finding that the alleged offer to be examined on November 

17 did not happen or was not compliance with the November 2, 2009 order. The Court ordered 

that the Plaintiff be jailed for 3 months, imposed a fine in the amount of $7,500 and ordered costs 

in the favour of four sets of the clients (represented by Faskens, Cassels, Miller and Stilceman 

Elliot LLP) in the aggregate sum of approximately $80,000. 

49. In fact, had the true facts been known to the Court, there were no reasonable grounds to 

allege contempt, let alone constitute proof beyond a reasonable doubt. The prosecution initiated 

against the Plaintiff by the lawyers, law firms and clients should have been (and hopefully will 

be) concluded favourably for the Plaintiff. Even if it is not, the Plaintiff asserts that where this 

did not occur as a result of fraud by the lawyers, law firms and clients, precluding an appeal on 

the merits for administrative reasons, malicious prosecution and false imprisonment should still 

be available. There was no honest belief in guilt and there was a further improper purpose of 

seeking to pressure discovery and otherwise pressure the termination of litigation in other 

jurisdictions involving other persons and entities, not the Plaintiff or NBGL. 
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SO. The actions, and inactions in the face of duties to act, of the lawyers, law fums, clients 

and other defendants resulted in the contempt order and resulting warrant of committal. The 

execution of the warrant resulted in the wrongful imprisonment of the Plaintiff in May 20 13 after 

he returned to Canada to challenge the contempt finding, until bail pending appeal was granted in 

June 2013. The Plaintiff was again wrongfully imprisoned in April 2014 when his appeal was 

dismissed for procedural reasons (inability to pay costs) triggered by continuation of the 

intentional abuse of process and lying to the Court of Appeal on and before February 27, 2014. 

51. In June 2010, costs of the NBGL action were settled in full. Thereafter, the only 

outstanding issue or costs order was the contempt and costs order of January 15, 2010. The 

production and examination of the Plaintiff in furtherance of costs on the action served no useful 

or legitimate purpose after this point in time. In fact, the lawyers, law firms and defendants had 

earlier access to the NBGL legal files that satisfied any legitimate purpose they might have had 

to examine the Plaintiff. The issues were moot. Justice Feldman later found abuse of process, 

based on this fact, to be an arguable ground of appeal. This and other viable grounds of appeal 

were never argued due to the order flowing from the February 27,2014 decision of the Court of 

Appeal to dismiss the appeal as a result of the Plaintiffs inability to pay costs. 

52. Before and after the June 2010 settlement, to which the Plaintiff was not a party, private 

and confidential information, including Identity Information as defmed in the Criminal Code, 

about the Plaintiff was received by the defendants, including through the discovery process 

related to the NBGL action. Prior to use and filing in Court and contrary to the implied 

undertaking rule, some of this confidential information was published on the internet. This was 

done by and/or knowingly assisted by the clients, lawyers and law firms. The settlement 

included the public filing of an affidavit by Zagar which contained much of this private and 
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confidential information regarding the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff did not consent to this public 

filing. In light of the earlier stay of the action and the settlement of the costs, this filing served 

no legitimate purpose. The predominant purpose of the conspiring defendants in filing was to 

harm the Plaintiff. It was known by the defendants that the dissemination or publishing of 

private and confidential information described herein would likely cause physical harm or death 

and/or significant mental suffering and trauma to the Plaintiff, as weD as other banns including 

but not limited to economic and career harm. The Plaintiff has repeatedly requested that steps be 

taken by defendants to remedy this situation. The defendants had a legal duty to remedy the 

situation. The defendants to this day have failed to take any remedial action. 

53. In 2012, an application was brought by the Plaintiff to set aside or vary the January 15, 

2010 contempt order on a number of grounds. including the fact that the Plaintiff did not have 

timely knowledge of the November 2, 2009 order or the Notice of Examination and that he did 

not receive the December 2 materials or order or know of the January 15, 2010 hearing until June 

2010. The evidence demonstrates that delay between January 15, 2010 and the application in 

August, 2012 was not the fault of the Plaintiff. Initially, a stay of the warrant was sought and 

granted to allow the Plaintiff to return to Canada to chaUenge the contempt order. 

54. The Plaintiff in his affidavits asserted that Messrs. Ranking and Silver were material 

witnesses and had conflicts of interest. He asserted that they should not be acting on the 

application. They did not recuse themselves and the Superior Court of Justice ("SCJ") never 

dealt with this issue. 
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55. Messrs. Ranking and Silver and their firms and other defendants opposed the application 

in the Superior Court of Justice. Pendrith assisted them during the appeal process and provided 

evidence that was misleading. 

56. Ultimately, the Plaintiff was forced to be self-represented because he could not find a 

lawyer who would represent him. The Plaintiff repeatedly sought time to retain new counsel. He 

approached over 70 different lawyers. However, civil lawyers claimed that their lack of criminal 

law knowledge rendered them unsuitable and the criminal lawyers claimed the converse. The 

reality was that nobody wanted to get involved in a case in which it was alleged and proved that 

Messrs. Silver and Ranking and their firms had obstructed justice by lying to the Court, and 

where the Plaintiff possessed credible and strong evidence including his voice recordings of the 

November 1 7, 2009 phone conversation with the lawyers. The Plaintiff was able to have some 

funds to hire a lawyer by borrowing from friends. The Faskens and Cassels defendants opposed 

the Plaintiff's requests for more time to fmd counsel. 

57. Unbeknownst to Messrs Ranking and Silver, the Plaintiff bad audio-recorded the 

November 17, 2009 phone conversation with them. The evidence on the application included an 

authenticated transcript of this audio recording and the recording itself. This recording 

demonstrates that the "Statement for the Record" relied upon the defendants and used by Justice 

Shaughnessy was false insofar as it indicated that the Plaintiff 'admitted' during the November 

17, 2009 conversation to having the November order and had knowledge of the order before 

November 16, 2009. The recording supports the truth of the Plaintiff's December 1, 2009 

letters. This meant that: 

1. the Statement for the Record filed before Justice Shaughnessy contained lies that: 
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(a) the Plaintiff had admitted to having received the November order; 

(b) the Plaintiff had admitted to knowledge of the order before November 16, 2009; 

(c) the Plaintiff had refused to answer questions over the phone; 

2. the submissions of Messrs. Silver and Ranking to the Court on December 2, 2009, 

that the Statement for the Record was true and the December 1 letters were false, were 

false submissions. In other words, they lied to the Court in asserting the truth of the 

Statement for the Record; 

3. The assertion on December 2, 2009, that the Plaintiff had only contested receipt 

of the signed order, but had admitted to receipt of the draft order, was a lie. 

58. In addition, the affidavit evidence filed by Plaintiff was presented regarding the failure to 

receive the materials at all or in time, the safety concerns of the Plaintiff for himself and his 

family and his willingness to answer the questions addressed in the order dated November 2, 

2009. 

59. The Plaintiff answered questions regarding these affidavits and in relation to the 

November 2, 2009 and December 2, 2009 orders on January II and 23, 2013. During this 

examination, the Plaintiff made it clear that be was willing to answer all questions addressed by 

the November 2, 2009 order. He asked that any other questions that remained be asked. He 

indicated a willingness to make himself available for this purpose. The Faskens and Cassels 

defendants refused to indicate what other questions, if any, remained unanswered. 

60. On January 25, 2013, the Plaintiff provided a memory stick, with some 100,000 

documents on it, to the Faskens and Cassels defendants. 
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61. On March 14, 2013 the Plaintiff produced a document (119 pages long plus attachments) 

called "Answers to Undertakings, Under Advisements, Refusals" ("March 14 Answers") 

stemming from the January 11 and 23, 2013 examinations. In addition to answering questions in 

relation to the affidavits, the examinations addressed the issues for examination covered in the 

November 2, 2009 order. That order required examination regarding: 

a. Unanswered Questions in relation to the examination of an affiant, John Knox, on 

November 4, 2008; 

b. unanswered questions from examination of the Plaintiff on March 20, 2009; 

c. unanswered questions directed to be answered on April 8, 2009; 

d. Questions relating to the Plaintiffs involvement with the Plaintiff corporation 

NBGL; his relationship to the matters pleaded in the lawsuit and his non-

privileged association with his former counsel, William McKenzie and his law 

firm; and 

e. questions in relation to shares in KEL, to which the lawsuit was related. 

62. Many of these kinds questions were asked and answered on January 11, and 23, 2013. In 

relation to the January 11, 2013 examination, in the March 14 Answers, the Plaintiff answered 

questions that covered items (d) (Under Advisement questions number 4-6, 7-9, 17-19, 27-31, 

34-35, 38-39, 44-45, 48-49, Sl-52, 62) and (e) (Under Advisement questions numbers 13-15) 

above. In relation to the January 23, 2013 examination there were questions that were answered 

in the March 14 Answers in relation to items (d) (Undertaking question 12), (b) (Under 

Advisement questions 1-16) and (a) (Knox Questions 1-18). Accordingly, in January and March 
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2013, many, if not all, of the questions ordered to be answered on November 2, 2009 were asked 

and answered to the best of the Plaintiffs ability. 

63. After receipt of the factum of the Faskens and Cassels defendants, in which it was 

asserted that questions had not been answered, the Plaintiff sent a letter dated April 22, 2013, 

asking that the Faskens and Cassels defendants identify what questions remained unanswered. In 

a letter dated April 26, 2013, Mr. Ranking refused to identify what further questions remained 

unanswered. 

64. Notwithstanding the Plaintiffs offer to be further examined, between January 25 and 

April30, 2013, the Faskens and Cassels defendants never moved to ask further questions on the 

issues identified in the November 2, 2009 and December 2, 2009 orders or regarding these 

documents or any other issues addressed by the November 2 and December 2 orders. 

65. Notwithstanding evidence of good faith and bona fide efforts to find counsel, Ranking 

and Silver falsely asserted urgency and opposed the Plaintiffs requests for additional time to 

obtain counsel. In light of the subsequent discovery of a lawyer (Slansky) to conduct the appeal, 

in May 2013, additional time would have made a difference. As a direct result of actions by 

Faskens and Cassels defendants the Plaintiff was forced to proceed without the assistance of 

counsel. No pressing reasons or urgency were expressed to justify this decision. 

66. At the outset of the hearing on April 30, 2013, the Plaintiff sought an adjournment to 

obtain counsel. This was opposed and refused. The Plaintiff was unrepresented at the hearing. 

67. Near the outset of the hearing the Plaintiff presented infonnation that he had discovered 

the day before in the fonn of an affidavit In the affidavit, he indicated that he had been told by a 

Durham Regional Police officer, defendant Rushbrook, that the police and Court police had been 
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asked to conduct an investigation of the Plaintiff prior to January IS, 2010 in anticipation of the 

conviction of the Plaintiff on that day. That investigation had happened approximately one 

month prior to Janwuy IS, 2010. The Faskens and Cassels defendants falsely denied any 

knowledge of this investigation. The hearing proceeded without any opportunity to gather 

further information regarding this investigation which was, prima facie an abuse of process. 

68. The Plaintiff asked to present evidence in relation to his safety and security to explain 

why it would have been very difficult for him to come to Toronto or Whitby in 2009 or 2010. 

The Faskens and Cassels defendants falsely denied the legitimacy of this evidence and misled the 

Court into refusing to allow this issue to be explored or to allow the Plaintiff to present this 

evidence. Evidence of security concerns arising in November 2009 were addressed in the 

Plaintiffs affidavits and in his submissions to the Court. The Court failed to address this 

because the Court was mistakenly led to believe that such matters had already been addressed by 

the Court. In fact, the only safety and security concerns dealt with by the Court were those of the 

Plaintifrs former counsel, McKenzie in the February 8, 2008 judgment of the Court. The 

Faskens and Cassels defendants misled Justice Shaughnessy into mistakenly believing that this 

issue had already been brought to his attention and had been dismissed it. 

69. Faskcns and Cassels defendants having misled the Court regarding the November 17, 

2009 conversation, on April30, 2013 and previously, caused the Court to decline to listen to the 

recording. 

70. The Plaintiff asked that the Court deal with the fact that Messrs. Ranking and Silver were 

material witnesses and asked that the Court order that the Plaintiff be allowed to examine them. 

Messrs. Ranking and Silver refused to be examined, and this did not take place. 
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71. The Plaintiff asked that the audio recordings of the January 11 and 23, 2013 

examinations be produced and played to the Court because it would demonstrate the abusive 

conduct of Messrs Ranking and Silver during the examination. Based on the denials of 

misconduct by Messrs. Ranking and Silver, this did not take place. 

72. The Plaintiff alleged other misconduct by counsel and asked the Court to stay the 

contempt order as an abuse of process, citing the recent decision in R. v. Salmon, 2013 ONCA 

203. Based on the misrepresentations of Messrs Ranking and Silver, this was not considered or 

was considered without regard to any of the evidence filed by the Plaintiff. Based on these 

misrepresentations, Justice Shaughnessy ruled that any allegations of misconduct by counsel was 

a matter for the Court of Appeal on a fresh evidence application. 

73. During the hearing on April 30, 2013, the Plaintiff was offered the opportunity to 

continue the stay and answer questions as a part of a draft order that also required him to accept a 

costs order that was disputed by the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff repeated more than once that he was 

not prepared to agree to such a draft order but that he was willing to cooperate with the Court 

and answer questions. The Faskens and Cassels defendants did not seek to take the Plaintiff up 

on this offer by questioning him before Justice Shaughessy on April30 or May 3, 2013. 

74. On April 30, 2013, the Faskens and Cassels defendants agreed that, subject to further 

exploration in examinations that they refused to conduct, they were prepared to accept that a 

memory stick provided on January 25, 2013 containing approximately 100,000 docwnents 

fulfilled the November 2, 2009 and December 2, 2009 orders to produce docwnents. Yet, they 

still pursued contempt on this basis. 
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75. The Court accepted the Faskens and Cassels defendants false submission that no new 

evidence had been presented on the application. The Court agreed and said that there was no 

new evidence since January 15, 2010. This was false. Since January 15, 2010 there was the 

following new evidence: 

a) There was evidence of the settlement of costs on the action, rendering the 

November 2 and December 2, 2009 orders moot; 

b) new and conclusive proof that the Plaintiff stated on November 17, 2009 that he 

did NOT receive the November 2 order prior to November 17, 2009 and that he 

did not know of the order until the day before contrary to the Victory Verbatim 

'Statement for the Record' created by Ranking and Silver and relied upon by the 

Court on December 2, 2009 and January 15, 2010; 

c) that the Plaintiff was in the Western Pacific on November 16 when he received 

knowledge of the Nov. 17 examination and materials (but not the materials 

themselves); 

d) there was evidence (recording and affidavit under oath) pursuant to 16.07 of the 

Rules of Civil Procedure that established that the documents did not come to his 

attention or only came to his attention at a later time; 

e) There was proof of a legitimate offer to comply with the order by telephone on 

November 17, 2009 which had been falsely disputed in the Statement for the 

Record; 

f) there was evidence that the documents ordered had been provided by memory 

stick on January 25, 2013 and that, subject to further answers to questions that 

may cast doubt upon the completeness of the documentation, the Faskens and 
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Cassels defendants accepted on April 30, 2013 that this constituted compliance 

with the November 2 and December 2, 2009 orders; 

g) there was evidence that the lawyers, law firms and defendants had received full 

access to and copies of tens of thousands pages of privileged docwnents from the 

NBGL law finn's files in 2010, which constituted substantial or complete 

compliance with the November 2 and December 2, 2009 orders; 

h) there was evidence of the answers of questions addressed in the November 2, 

2009 and December 2, 2009 orders in the examination of the Plaintiff in January 

2013 and the March 20103 written Answers. There were offers to be examined 

further; 

i) there was sworn evidence regarding the safety and security concerns of the 

Plaintiff. 

Based on the misrepresentations by the Faskens and Cassels defendants, Justice Shaughnessy 

ruled that any allegations of misconduct by counsel was a matter for the Court of Appeal on a 

fresh evidence application. 

76. In dismissing the application to set aside the fmding of contempt, on the issue of 

knowledge, based on the misrepresentations by the Faskens and Cassels defendants, Justice 

Shaughnessy ruled that any allegations of misconduct by counsel was a matter for the Court of 

Appeal on a fresh evidence application. Accordingly, the Court was left to rely on: 

a) the misleading affidavit of Van Allen 

b) the false purported compliance with orders for substituted service; 

c) the November 16, 2009 letter (taken out of context by the Faskens and Cassels 

defendants, without mentioning denial of prior knowledge); 
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d) the November call (taken out of context the Faskens and Cassels defendants, 

without mentioning denial of knowledge prior to November 16, 2009); 

e) the false Statement for the Record; 

f) the false submissions of Messrs. Silver and Ranking that the Statement for the 

Record was true and the December 1, 2009 letters of the Plaintiff were false; and 

g) the false assertion by Mr. Ranking that the Plaintiff was only disputing receipt of 

the signed order, but that there was no dispute about receipt of the draft order. 

Accordingly, the dismissal of the motion to set aside the fmding of contempt was a direct result 

of the recent actions of the Faskens and Cassels defendants and the earlier actions of all 

defendants. 

77. Based on the misrepresentations by the defendants, the Court failed to conduct a trial of 

any disputed factual issues on viva voce evidence. 

78. The Plaintiff, as a self-represented litigant did not raise and the Faskens and Cassels 

defendants did not raise the fact that the purpose of the orders upon which the contempt order 

was made was now moot. Faskens and Cassels defendants had an obligation to alert the Court to 

this fact. Accordingly, the Court did not deal with this issue. 

79. The Faskens and Cassels defendants continued to assert non-compliance with the orders 

notwithstanding their knowledge that there had been compliance. As a result of them misleading 

the Court, aside from the offer to now examine on condition that the Plaintiff accept a contested 

costs order ($80,000), no opportunity to purge was offered to the Plaintiff. 

80. The Court was misled into refusing to decide whether the PWCECF was a legal entity. 

The Faskens and Cassels defendants made the misleading submission to the Court that since 
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PWCECF was the entity that NBGL had sued, the Plaintiff could not complain that it did not 

exist. This ignored the fact that NBGL had originally sued another non-entity, 

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Barbados), based upon earlier affidavit evidence by Atkinson, but Mr. 

Ranking and Hatch had advised NBGL and the Court that this was the incoiTCCt name and had 

asserted that the correct name was PWCECF. As a result of this misleading submission, none of 

the evidence proving the non-existence of PWCECF was considered. 

81. Notwithstanding the later suggestion by Faskens and Cassels defendants, the contempt 

order on January 15, 20 I 0 did not include the failure to pay costs as a part of the contempt. This 

was appropriate since to do otherwise would to be to tum our correctional system into a debtor's 

prison. The May 3, 2013 order did not pwport to be a new contempt order. Rather, the May 3 

order dismissed the Plaintiffs application to set aside the contempt order and removed the stay of 

the warrant of committal thereby allowing the January 15, 2010 order to take effect. However, 

the May 3, 2013 order was tied to the costs of the January 15, 2010 contempt order by requiring 

payment of costs as a condition precedent to purging contempt. 

82. The May 3, 2013 warrant of committal specifies that there is to be "no remission" on the 

period of incarceration. The January 2010 order did not specify that remission did not apply to 

the order of imprisonment. There is no mention of remission in the May 3, 2013 order, 

endorsement or reasons. No mention of remission was made during the hearing on April 30 and 

May 3, 2013. There was no opportunity for the Plaintiff to address this issue, which he 

discovered only after arriving at jail on May 3, 2013. Since the May 3, 2013 decision did not 

result in a new contempt order, there was no jurisdiction to vary the January 15, 2010 order. 

This "no remission" term was inserted maliciously in the warrant by the Faskens and Cassels 
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defendants and adopted by the Judge who relied on Senior Counsel to be candid and forthright in 

their dealings with the Court, which they were not. 

83. The manner of the investigation and prosecution of the Plaintiff in respect of and/or for 

purposes of obtaining substituted service orders, contempt proceedings and to harm the Plaintiff 

caused harm to the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff was significantly banned physically, emotionally, 

mentally, economically and with respect to his reputation. 

84. This harm was caused by the manner of the investigation and prosecution including hann 

from the abusive and otherwise tortious manner of his prosecution described in this Statement of 

Claim, including, inter alia, improper motivations, misrepresentations and lies to the Courts, 

improper use of police resources, improper violations respecting private information and 

improper sheltering from liability (re non-entity Respondent, PWCECF) and cover up in respect 

of these actions. 

85. This harm results from. inter alia, the need for him to bring an application to set aside the 

contempt order, the appeal therefrom, the damage to his him in respect to his safety, physical and 

mental health and reputation, arrest, prosecution and incarceration in May 20 13 and again in 

April2014. This harm has been cumulative and continues to this day. 

44 

105 



B. FURTHER PARTICULARS REGARDING EACH CAUSE OF ACTION 

(1) CONTEMPT: 

(a) Abuse of process (common law and s. 7 of the Charter): 

86. There are several instances of abuse of process in respect of the contempt proceedings 

initiated against the Plaintiff: 

(i) seeking costs against the Plaintiff re NBGL suit as ruse to get discovery and to 

pressure discontinuance re other jurisdictions; 

(ii) seeking discovery against the Plaintiff as means to obtain advantage in litigation 

in other jurisdictions; 

(iii) seeking contempt against the Plaintiff: ulterior motive re pressure to discontinue 

and punish for exposing professional misconduct; 

(iv) contempt by defendants (implied undertaking rule/failure to correct); 

(v) lies and misleading court re receipt of docwnents; 

87. The defendants initiated and/or assisted in costs proceedings, discovery proceedings in 

respect of costs and contempt proceedings against the Plaintiff. This was done for an improper 

and collateral purpose, to wit, inter alia, to gain an advantage in or prevent the continuation of 

litigation in other jurisdictions by other persons and entities, not the Plaintiff or NBGL. This was 

a common law abuse of process. The defendants commenced the proceedings to this end by 

proceeding ex parte, unlawfully gathering facts regarding the Plaintiff, dissemination and 
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publishing of private facts, including by violating the implied undertaking rule, presenting 

misleading facts regarding the Plaintiff and outright lying to secure a fmding of contempt in the 

face of real issues of timely notice. 

88. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law ftnns and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law fmns were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. They were parties to the 

prosecution. The liberty and security of the person interests of the Plaintiff were at stake from 

the possibility of a finding of contempt, a criminal or quasi-criminal proceeding. In proceeding 

for improper purposes and the use of misleading, unlawfully obtained and knowingly false 

evidence the lawyers and law finns breached their Barrister's Oath and the actions of the 

defendants violated principles of fundamental justice (contrary to s. 7 of the Charter). These 

actions damaged the Plaintiff by finding him in contempt, ruining his professional reputation and 

life and imprisoning him. There are no public policy reasons to deny remedies including 

damages. 

(b) Negligent investigation 

89. The investigation by the defendants directly and through agents, including the Van Allen 

defendants, the police and the TPA caused false and misleading facts to be presented in the 

motions for substituted service, examination motions and contempt application, which led to the 

prosecution and incarceration of the Plaintiff which caused him significant harm. 

90. The investigation by the defendants directly and through agents, including the Van Allen 

defendants, the police and the TPA allowed the improper access to information by a serving 
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police officer and the other defendants that otherwise could not have been lawfully obtained and 

otherwise led to the discovery and dissemination and publishing of such information which 

caused the Plaintiff significant harm. 

91. The lawyers and the law finns, acting on behalf of their clients, had recognized legal and 

ethical duties to the public and the Court to ensure that their actions and the actions of their 

agents did not cause foreseeable harm to the Plaintiff. The harm described above was reasonably 

foreseeable. The hann was directly a result of the breach of their duties in choosing their agents 

and in the instructions given or that should have been given. The legislative scheme created a 

private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of 

that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were targets of such 

investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 

92. The actions of the lawyers, law finns and clients described in this Statement of Claim 

violation constitute a breach of the standard of care in respect of the ethical duties of lawyers, as 

set out in Rules of Professional Conduct. 

93. The actions of the lawyers, law firms and clients described in this Statement of Claim 

violation was a breach of the standard of care in respect of the legal duties in respect of retaining 

and instruction private investigators and the use of the fruits of such investigations. 

94. In respect of retaining a private investigator, the standard of care is informed largely by 

the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-

15.; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, S.O. 2005 c.34; Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31 and OPP policies, all of which preclude a serving 

police officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator. 
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95. In respect of instruction private investigators and the use to be made of the fruits of the 

investigation, the standard of care is infonned largely by the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-

46, as amended; The Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C., C-5 

("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31; The Highway Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as 

amended; Ministry of Transportation policies and Standard Contracts; The Personal Health 

Information Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-3, Schedule A; The Municipal Freedom of Information 

and Protection of Privacy A.ct, R.S.O. 1990 c. M-56. 

96. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and the other defendants had a duty to 

investigate lawfully. It was reasonably foreseeable that the use of Van Allen's status as a police 

officer would enable him to access infonnation that would otherwise be unavailable to him. The 

legislative scheme created a private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the 

harm from the violation of that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who 

were targets of such investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 

97. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and the other defendants had a duty to 

investigate lawfully. It was reasonably foreseeable that the filing, dissemination or publication 

of private infonnation of the Plaintiff would cause significant harm to the Plaintiff. The 

legislative scheme created a private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the 

hann from the violation of that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who 

were targets of such investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 
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98. The actions of the Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and the other defendants 

described in this Statement of Claim constitute a breach of the standard of care in respect of who 

can act as a private investigators and the use of the fruits of such investigations. 

99. The Van Allen defendants, the police, the TPA and the other defendants were complicit 

in Van Allen illegally acting as a private investigator. The private investigation by Van Allen, as 

a serving police officer, was unlawful contrary to the legislative scheme (the Criminal Code, 

R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act; Private Security and Investigative 

Services Act, etc.) which preclude a serving police officer acting or being hired as a private 

investigator. This largely informs the standard of care. 

100. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA knew or were negligent in failing to 

ensure that the fruits of the investigation of the Plaintiff not be publicly disclosed. To allow such 

disclosure would violate the standard of care, which is largely informed by the Criminal Code, 

R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; The Personal Information Protection and Electronic 

Documents Act, S.C., C-5 ("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom 

of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31; The Highway Traffic Act, 

R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as amended; Ministry of Transportation policies and Standard Contracts; The 

Personal Health Infonnation Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-3, Schedule A; The Municipal 

Freedom of Infonnation and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. M-56. 

(e) False imprisonment 

101. The Plaintiff was imprisoned for 63 days as a result of the finding of contempt, the 

dismissal of the motion to set aside the contempt and the administrative dismissal of the appeal 
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as a result of the inability to pay costs. He was jailed in solitary confinement because he is a 

fonner police officer. 

I 02. The Plaintiff was falsely arrested and detained by the police for a half day while on bail 

pending appeal. 

I 03. The Plaintiff did not agree to be arrested, detained or incarcerated. 

I 04. The defendants caused the Plaintiff to be arrested, detained or incarcerated by 

commencing contempt proceedings against him and/or by pursuing contempt proceedings in an 

abusive or misleading manner and by assisting in the investigation leading to the contempt order 

and warrant of committal and also by mistakenly arresting him due to their failures to use proper 

administrative procedures respecting arrest warrants and bail records. 

I 05. There were not reasonable and probable grounds to believe that the Plaintiff was in 

contempt or that he had violated his bail. 

I 06. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law farms and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law farms were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. They were parties to the 

prosecution. The liberty and security of the person interests of the Plaintiff were at stake from 

the possibility of a ftnding of contempt, a criminal or quasi-criminal proceeding. In proceeding 

for improper purposes and the use of misleading, unlawfully obtained and knowingly false 

evidence the lawyers and law flCIIls breached their Barrister's Oath and the actions of the 

defendants violated principles of fundamental justice (contrary to s. 7 of the Charter). Since 

there were no reasonable and probable grounds to believe that the Plaintiff was in contempt or 
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that he had violated his bail, his arrest, detention and incarceration were arbitrary (contrary to s. 

9 of the Charter). These actions damaged the Plaintiff by finding him in contempt, ruining his 

professional reputation and life and imprisoning him. There are no public policy reasons to deny 

remedies including damages. 

(d) Intentional and/or Negligent Infliction of Harm and/or Mental Suffering 

107. For the reasons otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, the actions of the 

defendants in respect of the conduct of contempt proceedings were flagrant and outrageous. 

They were calculated to harm the Plaintiff (intentional or willfully blind) or reckless regarding 

hann. These actions caused actual, visible and provable injury (physical and mental harm and 

suffering). 

108. In the alternative in respect of any defendant who did not intend harm as set out in the 

previous paragraph, such defendants were negligent in causing compensable actual, visible and 

provable injury (physical and mental harm and suffering). 

I 09. The actions and/or inactions of the defendants, directly and through agents, including but 

not limited to the Van Allen defendants, the police and the TP A caused false and misleading 

facts to be presented in the motions for substituted service, examination motions and contempt 

application, which led to the prosecution and incarceration of the Plaintiff which caused him 

significant hann. 

II 0. The actions and/or inactions of the defendants, directly and through agents, including but 

not limited to the Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA allowed the improper access to 

information as a serving police officer that he otherwise could not have lawfully obtained and 
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otherwise led to the discovery and dissemination and publishing of such information which 

caused him significant harm. 

Ill. The lawyers and the law firms, acting on behalf of their clients, had recognized legal and 

ethical duties to the public and the Court to ensure that their actions and the actions of their 

agents did not cause foreseeable harm to the Plaintiff. The harm described above was reasonably 

foreseeable. The harm was directly a result of the breach of their duties in choosing its agents 

and in the instructions given or that should have been given. The legislative scheme created a 

private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of 

that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were targets of such 

investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 

112. The actions of the lawyers, law firms and clients described in this Statement of Claim 

constitute a breach of the standard of care in respect of the ethical duties of lawyers, as set out in 

Rules of Professional Conduct. 

113. The actions of the lawyers, law firms and clients described in this Statement of Claim 

violation was a breach of the standard of care in respect of the legal duties in respect of retaining 

and instruction private investigators and the use of the fruits of such investigations. 

114. In respect of retaining a private investigator, the standard of care is informed largely by 

the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-

IS.; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, S.O. 2005 c.34; Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31 and OPP policies, all of which preclude a serving 

police officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator. 
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115. In respect of instruction private investigators and the use to be made of the fruits of the 

investigation, the standard of care is informed largely by the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-

46, as amended; The Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C., C-5 

("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31; The Highway Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as 

amended; Ministry of Transportation policies and Standard Contracts; The Personal Health 

Information Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-3, Schedule A; The Municipal Freedom of Information 

and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. M-56. 

116. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TP A had a duty to investigate lawfully. It 

was reasonably foreseeable that the use of Van Allen's status as a police officer would enable 

him to access information that would otherwise be unavailable to him. The legislative scheme 

created a private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the 

violation of that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were targets of 

such investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 

117. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA had a duty to investigate lawfully. It 

was reasonably foreseeable that the filing, dissemination or publication of private information of 

the Plaintiff would cause significant harm to the Plaintiff. The legislative scheme created a 

private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of 

that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were targets of such 

investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 
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118. The actions of the Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and the other defendants 

described in this Statement of Claim constitute a breach of the standard of care in respect of who 

can act as a private investigators and the use of the fruits of such investigations. 

119. The Van Allen defendants, the police, the TPA and the other defendants were complicit 

in Van Allen illegally acting as a private investigator. The private investigation by Van Allen, as 

a serving police officer, was unlawful contrary to the legislative scheme referred to above (the 

Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act; Private Security and 

Investigative Services Act, etc.) which preclude a serving police officer acting as or being hired 

as a private investigator. This largely infonns the standard of care. 

120. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and the other defendants knew or were 

negligent in failing to ensure that the fruits of the investigation of the Plaintiff not be publicly 

disclosed. To allow such disclosure would violate the standard of care, which is largely 

infonned by the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; The Personal Information 

Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C., C-5 ("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, 

R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-

31; The Highway Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as amended; Ministry of Transportation 

policies and Standard Contracts; The Personal Health Information Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-

3, Schedule A; The Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 

1990 c. M-56. 

(e) Misfeasance of public office/Abuse of Authority 

121. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law finns and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law rmns were 
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acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TP A, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. 

122. For the reasons otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, the actions of the 

defendants in respect of the contempt proceedings were performed in bad faith and were 

deliberately unlawful or outside the scope of their authority in the exercise of the public 

functions of (a) a prosecutor or Officer of the Court; (b) a peace officer; (c) a labour official of 

the TPA; and (d) a probation and parole officer. They were aware that their conduct was 

unlawful and that it would likely injure the Plaintiff. These actions caused actual, visible and 

provable injury (physical and mental harm and suffering). 

(f) Malicious Prosecution 

123. The defendant lawyers, law fums and clients initiated criminal or quasi criminal 

proceedings against the Plaintiff, to wit, an application to have him found in civil contempt. 

124. The Proceedings are not complete. The Plaintiff is awaiting a response from the Supreme 

Court of Canada on an application for leave to appeal the dismissal of his appeal, found to be 

arguable, due to the inability to pay costs orders in the Court of Appeal. If leave is granted and 

the appeal succeeds, the civil contempt fmding should be set aside. 

125. In the alternative, it will be argued that where a conviction was obtained by fraud or fresh 

evidence exists, and where an appeal was unavailable due to lack of financial resources, the lack 

of a favourable result should not be a bar to sue for malicious prosecution. 
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126. There were not reasonable and probable grounds to believe that the Plaintiff was in 

contempt or that he had violated his bail. 

127. For the reasons otherwise descnbed in this Statement of Claim, the prosecution of the 

Plaintiff by the lawyers, law finns and clients, assisted by the other defendants, was performed 

maliciously and/or exercised for an improper purpose. The defendants did not have an honest 

belief that the Plaintiff was guilty. This was done for an improper and collateral purpose, to wit, 

inter alia, to gain an advantage in or prevent the continuation of litigation in other jurisdictions. 

(g) Conspiracy to injure 

128. As detailed otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, two or more of the 

defendants made an agreement the predominant purpose of which was to injure the Plaintiff 

through lawful and/or unlawful means. As detailed otherwise described in this Statement of 

Claim, the defendants acted in furtherance of this agreement. These actions caused actual, 

visible and provable harm to the Plaintiff: injury (physical and mental harm and suffering), 

incarceration, damage to reputation, loss of future income and loss of time and money required 

to litigate these issues and the costs orders made against him. 

56 

117 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 



(2) PRIVACY 

(a) Invasion of privacy /intrusion on 

129. The defendants invaded the Plaintiffs privacy and intruded on his secrecy by accessing, 

disseminating and publishing his private and confidential information. They did so by: 

(i) discovering private information and then distributing it, including by publishing 

it and/or by other means, without its filing in Court contrary to the implied 

undertaking rule; 

(ii) filing such material in an affidavit sworn by Zagar after the settlement of the case 

for the improper purpose of damaging the plaintiff and for no legitimate purpose; 

(iii) accessing private information in the possession of Government for limited 

regulatory purposes and including the information to prepare affidavits and filing 

the information; 

(iv) disseminating the information referred to in (i)-(iii) and other private information 

on the internet and by other means. 

130. These acts were done directly and/or indirectly by the defendants. They were done 

intentionally, maliciously and/or recklessly. The accessing, filing and dissemination/publishing 

of this private information intruded upon the informational seclusion of the plaintiff and/or his 

private affairs and/or concerns. 

131. These invasions would be highly offensive to a reasonable person because, inter alia, the 

accessing and publishing served no useful and/or proper purpose; it was known by the 

defendants that as a former undercover police officer and undercover private investigator, the 
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Plaintiff had many enemies who would want to kill or harm him or otherwise seek revenge, some 

of whom were involved in organized crime; the dissemination and publishing took place in such 

a way as to encourage hann to the Plaintiff; to the extent any of the information was relevant, the 

details, including addresses, driver's license infonnation, etc. need not have been included or 

could easily have been edited or redacted. There was and is a great risk of identity theft from the 

release of the information. The release of the information in fact resulted in criminal activity 

being directed at the Plaintiff, directly and through his family, to wit, criminal harassment, 

assault; death threats; identity theft and other criminal activities. This was the intent. It caused 

the Plaintiff to flee Canada. Similar criminal acts were inflicted by some of the defendants 

during the litigation of the NBGL case leading up to these events. The timing was such as cause 

the Plaintiff to flee around the time of the attempts to attack the Plaintiff in Cowt (through direct 

costs applications; discovery; and contempt). The timing was intentional to facilitate this attack 

on the Plaintiff using the legal system for ulterior motives. Further, the Plaintiff raised concerns 

about this issue several times and was mocked and dismissed and was told by Mr. Silver on 

November 17, 2009 (recorded) that he would not help the Plaintiff if he could. The defendants 

had and have a duty to correct the situation and have failed to do so to this day. In fact, the 

defendants continue to distribute and publish the Plaintiff's private information, including his 

Identity Information as defined in the Criminal Code. 

132. The following legislation reinforces the fact that this would be seen to be highly offensive 

to a reasonable person: Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; The Personal 

Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C., C-5 ("PIPEDA"); The Police 

Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, 

R.S.O. l990 c. F-31; The Highway Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as amended; Ministry of 
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Transportation policies and Standard Contracts; The Personal Health Information Protection 

Act, S.O. 2004, C-3, Schedule A; The Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of 

Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. M-56. 

(b) ss. 7 and/or 8 of the Charter (re Gov. actors/agents) 

133. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law fiJllls and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law flrms were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. In accessing, disseminating and 

publishing the Plaintiffs private and confidential information as described in the previous section 

(W. B. l. (a)}, the defendants invaded the Plaintiffs reasonable expectation of privacy in his 

personal electronic {or other) information {seeR. v. Spencer, [2014] S.C.J. No. 43). In particular, 

the sec has just made it clear that personal information given to the police for one purpose 

cannot be used in for a different purpose or in a different case (R. v. Quesne/le, [2014] S.C.J. No. 

46). 

134. The use of such infonnation for a purpose different than it was originally obtained 

constitutes a new seizure or a conversion of a lawful seizure into an unreasonable one seizure 

and publishing of this infonnation (see Colarusso (SCC); Dyment (SCC) and Quesne/le (SCC)). 

Accordingly, the misuse and dissemination constituted a search and seizure. 

135. The search and seizure was not lawful according to the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. 

C-46, as amended; The Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C., C-

5 ("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom of Information and 
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Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31; The Highway Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as 

amended; Ministry of Transportation policies and Standard Contracts; The Personal Health 

Information Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-3, Schedule A; The Municipal Freedom of Information 

and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. M-56. 

136. As detailed in this Statement of Claim, the seizure by conversion for another purpose 

and its dissemination significantly damaged the Plaintiff, physically, emotionally, mentally, 

economically and with respect to the plaintiffs reputation. It also contributed to the Plaintiff 

being found in contempt. There are no public policy reasons to deny remedies including 

damages. 

(c) Misfeasance of Public Office/Abuse of Authority/ 

137. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law firms and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law fums were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. 

138. For the reasons otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, the actions of the 

defendants invading the privacy of the Plaintiff were performed in bad faith and were 

deliberately unlawful or outside the scope of their authority in the exercise of the public 

functions of (a) a prosecutor or Officer of the Court; (b) a peace officer; (c) a labour official of 

the TPA; and (d) a probation and parole officer. They were aware that their conduct was 

unlawful and that it would likely injure the Plaintiff. These actions caused actual, visible and 

provable injury (physical and mental harm and suffering). 
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(d) Abuse of process (common law and s. 7 of the Charter) 

139. The defendants initiated and/or assisted in costs proceedings, discovery proceedings in 

respect of costs and contempt proceedings against the Plaintiff. This was done for an improper 

and collateral pwpose, to wit, inter alia, to gain an advantage in or prevent the continuation of 

litigation in other jurisdictions. This was a common law abuse of process. The defendants 

abused process by unlawfully gathering facts regarding the Plaintiff and by dissemination and 

publishing of private facts, including by violating the implied undertaking rule. 

140. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law fums and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law fmns were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. They were parties to the 

prosecution. The liberty and security of the person interests of the Plaintiff were at stake from 

the possibility of a finding of contempt, a criminal or quasi-criminal proceeding. By unlawfully 

accessing and disseminating private information, the defendants violated principles of 

fundamental justice (contrary to s. 7 of the Charter). These actions damaged the Plaintiff by 

finding him in contempt, ruining his professional reputation and life and imprisoning him. There 

are no public policy reasons to deny remedies including damages. 
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(e) Intentional or Reckless Endangerment (Infliction of Harm/Mental 

suffering)/NegUgent Endangerment 

141. For the reasons otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, the actions of the 

defendants in accessing, filing and disseminating the private information were flagrant and 

outrageous. They were calculated to harm the Plaintiff (intentional or willfully blind) or reckless 

regarding harm. These actions caused actual, visible and provable injury (physical and mental 

harm and suffering). In addition to intending and causing harm (physical and mental suffering), 

defendants intended or were reckless in seeking to endanger the Plaintiffs life by releasing his 

private information. 

142. In the alternative in respect of any defendant who did not intend to harm or endanger as 

set out in the previous paragraph, such defendants were negligent in causing compensable actual, 

visible and provable injury (physical and mental harm and suffering). 

143. The actions and/or inactions of the defendants, directly and through agents, including the 

Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA allowed improper access to information that 

otherwise could not have lawfully obtained and led to the discovery and dissemination and 

publishing of confidential information which caused the Plaintiff significant harm. 

144. The lawyers and the law ftrms, acting on behalf of their clients, had recognized legal and 

ethical duties to the public and the Court to ensure that their actions and the actions of their 

agents did not cause foreseeable harm to the Plaintiff. The harm described above was reasonably 

foreseeable. The harm was directly a result of the breach of their duties in choosing its agents 

and in the instructions given or that should have been given. The legislative scheme created a 

private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of 
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that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were targets of such 

investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)}. 

145. The actions of the lawyers, law firms and clients described in this Statement of Claim 

violation was a breach of the standard of care in respect of the legal duties in respect of retaining 

and instruction private investigators and the use of the fruits of such investigations. 

146. In respect of retaining a private investigator, the standard of care is informed largely by 

the the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-

15.; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, S.O. 2005 c.34; Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31 and OPP policies, which preclude a serving 

police officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator. 

147. In respect of instruction private investigators and the use to be made of the fruits of the 

investigation, the standard of care is informed largely by the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-

46, as amended; The Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C., C-5 

("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31; The Highway Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as 

amended; Ministry of Transportation policies and Standard Contracts; The Personal Health 

Information Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-3, Schedule A; The Municipal Freedom of Information 

and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. M-56. 

148. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA had a duty to investigate lawfully. It 

was reasonably foreseeable that the use of Van Allen's status as a police officer would enable 

him to access infonnation that would otherwise be unavailable to him and other defendants. The 

legislative scheme created a private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the 
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hann from the violation of that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who 

were targets of such investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 

149. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA had a duty to investigate lawfully. It 

was reasonably foreseeable that the filing, dissemination or publication of private information of 

the Plaintiff would cause significant hann to the Plaintiff. The legislative scheme created a 

private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of 

that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were targets of such 

investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 

150. The actions of the Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA described in this 

Statement of Claim constitute a breach of the standard of care in respect of who can act as a 

private investigators and the use of the fruits of such investigations. 

151. The Van Allen defendants, the police, the TPA and the other defendants were complicit 

in Van Allen illegally acting as a private investigator. The private investigation by Van Allen, as 

a serving police officer, was unlawful contrary to the legislative scheme referred to above (the 

Criminal Code, RS.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act; Private Security and 

Investigative Services Act, etc.) which preclude a serving police officer acting as or being hired 

as a private investigator. This largely informs the standard of care. 

152. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA knew or were negligent in failing to 

ensure that the fruits of the investigation of the Plaintiff would not be publicly disclosed To 

allow such disclosure would violate the standard of care, which is largely informed by the 

Criminal Code, RS.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; The Persona/Information Protection and 

Electronic Documents Act, S.C., C-5 ("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-
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15.; Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31; The Highway 

Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as amended; Ministry of Transportation policies and Standard 

Contracts; The Personal Health Information Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-3, Schedule A; The 

Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. M-56. 

(f) Negligent Iavestigadoo re Privacy 

153. The investigation by the defendants directly and through agents, including the Van Allen 

defendants, the police and the TP A allowed the improper access to information by a serving 

police officer that otherwise could not have lawfully obtained and otherwise led to the discovery 

and dissemination and publishing of such information which caused the Plaintiff significant 

harm. 

154. The lawyers and the law fums, acting on behalf of their clients, had recognized legal and 

ethical duties to the public and the Court to ensure that their actions and the actions of their 

agents did not cause foreseeable harm to the Plaintiff. The harm described above was reasonably 

foreseeable. The harm was directly a result of the breach of their duties in choosing its agents 

and in the instructions given or that should have been given. The legislative scheme created a 

private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of 

that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were targets of such 

investigations (see Hill (SCq and Taylor (OCA)). 

155. The actions of the lawyers, law £inns and clients and other defendants described in this 

Statement of Claim violation was a breach of the standard of care in respect of the legal duties in 

respect of retaining and instruction private investigators and the use of the fruits of such 

investigations. 
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156. In respect of retaining a private investigator, the standard of care is infonned largely by 

the Criminal Code, RS.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act, RS.O. 1990, c. P-

15.; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, S.O. 2005 c.34; Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31 and OPP policies which preclude a serving police 

officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator. 

157. In respect of instruction private investigators and the use to be made of the fruits of the 

investigation, the standard of care is infonned largely by the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-

46, as amended; The Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C., C-5 

("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31; The Highway Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as 

amended; Ministry of Transportation policies and Standard Contracts; The Personal Health 

Information Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-3, Schedule A; The Municipal Freedom of Information 

and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. M-56. 

158. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA had a duty to investigate lawfully. It 

was reasonably foreseeable that the use of Van Allen's status as a police officer would enable 

him to access infonnation that would otherwise be unavailable to him or the other defendants. 

The legislative scheme created a private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that 

the hann from the violation of that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons 

who were targets of such investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 

159. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA had a duty to investigate lawfully. It 

was reasonably foreseeable that the filing, dissemination or publication of private infonnation of 

the Plaintiff would cause significant hann to the Plaintiff. The legislative scheme created a 
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private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of 

that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were targets of such 

investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 

160. The actions of the Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and other defendants as 

described in this Statement of Claim constitute a breach of the standard of care in respect of who 

can act as a private investigators and the use of the fruits of such investigations. 

161. The Van Allen defendants, the police, the TPA and the other defendants were complicit 

in Van Allen illegally acting as a private investigator. The private investigation by Van Allen, as 

a serving police officer, was unlawful contrary to the legislative scheme referred to above (the 

Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act; Private Security and 

Investigative Services Act, etc.) which as a serving police officer acting or being hired as a 

private investigator. This largely infonns the standard of care. 

162. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and the other defendants knew or were 

negligent in failing to ensure that the fruits of the investigation of the Plaintiff not be publicly 

disclosed. To allow such disclosure would violate the standard of care, which is largely 

informed by the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; The Persona/Information 

Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C., C-5 ("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, 

R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-

31; The Highway Traffic Act, RS.O. 1990, cH-8, as amended; Ministry of Transportation 

policies and Standard Contracts; The Personal Health Information Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-

3, Schedule A; The Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 

1990 c. M-56. 
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(g) Negligence re Regulation and/or Negligent performance of Statutory duty 

and/or s. 7 of tbe Cbarter 

163. The actions and/or inactions of the defendants, directly and through agents, including the 

Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA allowed the improper access to infonnation as a 

serving police officer that he otherwise could not have lawfully obtained and otherwise led to the 

discovery and dissemination and publishing of such information which caused him significant 

harm. 

164. The lawyers and the law firms, acting on behalf of their clients, had recognized legal and 

ethical duties to the public and the Court to ensure that their actions and the actions of their 

agents did not cause foreseeable harm to the Plaintiff. The bann described above was reasonably 

foreseeable. The harm was directly a result of the breach of their duties in choosing its agents 

and in the instructions given or that should have been given. 

165. The legislative scheme in respect of whether a serving police officer can act as a private 

investigator is set out in the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services 

Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, S.O. 2005 c.34; 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31 and OPP policies 

which preclude a serving police officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator. This 

scheme created a private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from 

the violation of that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were 

targets of such investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 
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166. The legislative scheme in respect of privacy is set out in the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, 

c. C-46, as amended; The Personal Information Protection and Electronic Documents Act, S.C., 

C-5 ("PIPEDA"); The Police Services Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Freedom of Information and 

Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31; The Highway Traffic Act, R.S.O. 1990, cH-8, as 

amended; Ministry of Transportation policies and Standard Contracts; The Personal Health 

Information Protection Act, S.O. 2004, C-3, Schedule A; The Municipal Freedom of Information 

and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. M-56. This scheme created a private duty of care. 

The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of that scheme would be 

the proximate cause of damage to persons whose private information was improperly accessed 

and disseminated. This is especially so when the facts of the case involve such accessing and 

dissemination in the context of the Plaintiff being targeted in investigations (see Hill (SCC) and 

Taylor (OCA)). 

167. The actions of the lawyers, law firms and clients and other defendants described in this 

Statement of Claim violation was a breach of the standard of care in respect of the legal duties in 

respect of retaining and instruction private investigators and the use of the fruits of such 

investigations. 

168. In respect of retaining a private investigator, the standard of care is informed largely by 

the legislative scheme referred to above (the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; 

Police Services Act; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, etc.) which preclude a 

serving police officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator. 
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169. In respect of invasion of privacy, the standard of care is informed largely by the 

legislative scheme referred to above (Criminal Code; PIPEDA; etc.) which seeks to preclude 

access to and dissemination of private information. 

170. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and other defendants had a duty to 

investigate lawfully. It was reasonably foreseeable that the use of Van Allen's status as a police 

officer would enable him to access information that would otherwise be unavailable to him and 

other defendants. The legislative scheme referred to above (the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. 

C-46, as amended; Police Services Act; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, etc.) 

which preclude a serving police officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator created a 

private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of 

that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were targets of such 

investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 

171. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and other defendants had a duty to 

investigate lawfully. It was reasonably foreseeable that the filing, dissemination or publication 

of private information of the Plaintiff would cause significant harm to the Plaintiff. The 

legislative scheme referred to above (Criminal Code; PIPEDA; etc.) which seeks to preclude 

access to and dissemination of private infonnation created a private duty of care. The legislative 

scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of that scheme would be the proximate 

cause of damage to persons who were targets of such investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor 

(OCA)). 
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172. The actions of the Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and other defendants 

described in this Statement of Claim constitute a breach of the standard of care in respect of who 

can act as a private investigators and the violation of privacy rights. 

173. The Van Allen defendants, the police, the TPA and the other defendants were complicit 

in Van Allen illegally acting as a private investigator. The private investigation by Van Allen, as 

a serving police officer, was unlawful contrary to the legislative: scheme referred to above (the 

Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act; Private Security and 

Investigative Services Act, etc.} which preclude a serving police officer acting or being hired as a 

private investigator. 

174. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA and the other defendants knew or were 

negligent in failing to protect the Plaintitrs statutory privacy rights ensure that the fruits of the 

investigation of the Plaintiff not be publicly disclosed. To allow such disclosure would violate 

the standard of care, which is largely informed by the legislative scheme referred to above 

(Criminal Code; PIPEDA; etc.) which seeks to preclude access to and dissemination of private 

information. 

175. The OPP was also negligent in failing to create a regulatory and/or record keeping and/or 

compliance scheme to ensure that secondary employment by OPP police officers, like Van 

Allen, was being conducted in accordance with the: law. 

176. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law farms and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law firms were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. They were parties to the 
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prosecution. The liberty and security of the person interests of the Plaintiff were at stake from 

the possibility of a finding of contempt, a criminal or quasi-criminal proceeding. By unlawfully 

accessing and disseminating private information, the defendants violated principles of 

fundamental justice (contrary to s. 7 of the Charter). These actions damaged the Plaintiff by 

finding him in contempt, ruining his professional reputation and life and imprisoning him. There 

are no public policy reasons to deny remedies including damages. 

(b) Breach of fiduciary duty/NegUgence In Respect of Fiduciary duty 

177. The TP A had a fiduciary duty towards the Plaintiff as a member or former member of 

that Association. Like any labour organization, the TP A has a fiduciary duty to protect the 

private information of its members. By voluntarily releasing that information to Van Allen, the 

TPA breached that fiduciary duty. This was done dishonestly or fraudulently. The TPA and its 

administrators knew that they could not release such information except through court order or 

warrant or with the permission of the Plaintiff; none of which they possessed. 

178. The lawyers, law firms and clients who saw and used information from TPA in Van 

Allen's affidavit, although not parties to the fiduciary relationship, were aware of the fiduciary 

duty, the dishonest or fraudulent breach of that duty and by retaining and instructing Van Allen 

and using and filing that information, assisted in the breach. 

179. The Van Allen defendants also knew of the fiduciary duty and knew of and were parties 

to the dishonest or fraudulent breach of that duty. 

180. The police knew or willfully blind to the existence of the fiduciary duty, the dishonest or 

fraudulent breach of that duty and, by assisting Van Allen, assisted in the breach. 
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(i) Conspiracy to Injure/Conspiracy to do Unlawful Act/ Causing Loss by unlawful 

means 

181. As detailed otherwise in this Statement of Claim, two or more of the defendants made an 

agreement the predominant purpose of which was to injure the Plaintiff through lawful and/or 

unlawful means. As detailed otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, the defendants 

acted in furtherance of this agreement. These actions caused actual, visible and provable harm to 

the Plaintiff: injury (physical and mental harm and suffering) and endangerment though the 

release of private information. 

182. As detailed otherwise in this Statement of Claim, two or more of the defendants made an 

agreement to act unlawfully knowing that their acts were aimed at the Plaintiff and knowing or 

constructively knowing that their acts would injure the Plaintiff. The unlawful means was the 

violation of the Plaintiff's common law, Charter and Statutory privacy rights, as described above. 

As detailed otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, the defendants acted in furtherance 

of this agreement. These actions caused actual, visible and provable harm to the Plaintiff: injury 

(physical and mental harm and suffering) and endangerment though the release of private 

information. 

183. One or more of the defendants also caused loss to the Plaintiff by unlawful means 

through a third party, to wit, the violation of the Plaintiffs couunon law, Charter and Statutory 

privacy rights, as described above. The lawyers, law firms and clients caused loss to the Plaintiff 

through the unlawful acts of Van Allen and the police. The Van Allen defendants, other than 

Van Allen himself, and the police caused loss to the Plaintiff through the unlawful acts of Van 
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Allen. All of the Van Allen defendants caused loss to the Plaintiff through the unlawful acts of 

the police. The TPA caused loss to the Plaintiff through the unlawful acts of Van Allen and visa 

versa. 

(3) PRIVATE INVESTIGATION 

(a) Misfeasance and/or Nonfeasance of Public Office/ Abuse of Authority 

184. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law firms and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law fmns were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. 

185. For the reasons otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, the actions of the 

defendants in retaining, instructing and assisting Van Allen in acting as a private investigator 

when he was a serving police officer were perfonned in bad faith and were deliberately unlawful 

or outside the scope of their authority in the exercise of the public functions of(a) a prosecutor or 

Officer of the Court; (b) a peace officer; (c) a labour official of the TPA; and (d) a probation and 

parole officer. They were aware that their conduct was unlawful and that it would likely injure 

the Plaintiff. These actions caused actual, visible and provable injury (physical and mental harm 

and suffering). 
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(b) Abuse of Process (mislead Court) common law and/or ss. 7 and 8 of the Charter 

186. The defendants initiated and/or assisted in costs proceedings, discovery proceedings in 

respect of costs and contempt proceedings against the Plaintiff. This was done for an improper 

and collateral purpose, to wit, inter alia, to gain an advantage in or prevent the initiation or 

continuation of litigation in other jurisdictions. This was a common law abuse of process. The 

defendants abused process by unlawfully gathering facts regarding the Plaintiff and by 

dissemination and publishing of private facts and misleading the Court regarding the background 

of Van Allen. Van Allen was presented as an experienced and neutral private investigator. Had 

the Court known that he was acting unlawfully as a private investigator while also serving as a 

police officer and thereby obtaining information he should not have been able to access this 

would likely have affected the Court's acceptance of this evidence. 

187. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law firms and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law ftrms were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. They were parties to the 

prosecution. The liberty and security of the person interests of the Plaintiff were at stake from 

the possibility of a fmding of contempt, a criminal or quasi-criminal proceeding. By unlawfully 

accessing and private information and presenting that information before the Court, the 

defendants violated principles of fundamental justice (contrary to s. 7 of the Charter). By 

unlawfully acting as a private investigator, when Van Allen was a serving police officer, the 

gathering of information was an unlawful (see Colarusso (SCC)) seizure and therefore 

unreasonable contrary to section 8 of the Charter. These actions damaged the Plaintiff by 
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finding him in contempt, ruining his professional reputation and life and imprisoning him. There 

arc no public policy reasons to deny remedies including damages. 

(c) Negligent Regulation/NegUgeat Performance of Statutory duty and/or ss. 7 and/or 

8 of the Charter 

188. The actions and/or inactions of the defendants, directly and through agents, including the 

Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA allowed the improper access to information as a 

serving police officer that he otherwise could not have lawfully obtained. 

189. The lawyers and the law fmns, acting on behalf of their clients, had recognized legal and 

ethical duties to the public and the Court to ensure that their actions and the actions of their 

agents did not cause foreseeable harm to the Plaintiff. The harm described above was reasonably 

foreseeable. The harm was directly a result of the breach of their duties in choosing their agents. 

190. The legislative scheme in respect of whether a serving police officer can act as a private 

investigator is set out in the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services 

Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, S.O. 2005 c.34; 

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31 and OPP policies 

which preclude a serving police officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator. This 

scheme created a private duty of care. The legislative scheme contemplated that the hann from 

the violation of that scheme would be the proximate cause of damage to persons who were 

targets of such investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor (OCA)). 
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191. The actions of the lawyers, law fmns and clients described in this Statement of Claim 

violation was a breach of the standard of care in respect of the legal duties in respect of retaining 

private investigators. 

192. In respect of retaining a private investigator, the standard of care is informed largc:ly by 

the legislative scheme referred to above (the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; 

Police Services Act; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, etc.) which preclude a 

serving police officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator. 

193. The Van Allen defendants, the police and the TPA had a duty to investigate lawfully. It 

was reasonably foreseeable that the use of Van Allen's status as a police officer would enable 

him to access information that would otherwise be unavailable to him. The legislative scheme 

referred to above (the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act; 

Private Security and Investigative Services Act, etc.) which preclude a serving police officer 

acting as or being hired as a private investigator created a private duty of care. The legislative 

scheme contemplated that the harm from the violation of that scheme would be the proximate 

cause of damage to persons who were targets of such investigations (see Hill (SCC) and Taylor 

(OCA)). 

194. The actions of the Van Allen defendants, the police and the TP A described in this 

Statement of Claim constitute a breach of the standard of care in respect of who can act as a 

private investigators. 

195. The Van Allen defendants, the police, the TPA and the other defendants were complicit 

in Van Allen illegally acting as a private investigator. The private investigation by Van Allen, as 

a serving police officer, was unlawful contrary to the legislative scheme referred to above (the 
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Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act; Private Security and 

Investigative Services Act, etc.) which preclude a police officer acting or being hired as a 

private investigator. 

196. The OPP was also negligent in failing to create a regulatory and/or record keeping and/or 

compliance scheme to ensure that secondary employment by OPP police officers, like Van 

Allen, was being conducted in accordance with the law. 

197. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law ftrms and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law fums were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfllling public functions. They were parties to the 

prosecution. The liberty and security of the person interests of the Plaintiff were at stake from 

the possibility of a fmding of contempt, a criminal or quasi-criminal proceeding. By unlawfully 

using a serving police officer as a private investigator, the independence of the police services is 

fundamental compromised and increased access to private information is made available 

contrary to the public function of the police. These violations of the police process violated 

principles of fundamental justice (contrary to s. 7 of the Charter). The unlawful gathering of 

private information by a public official is unlawful and a violation of s. 8 of the Charter. These 

actions damaged the Plaintiff by finding him in contempt, ruining his professional reputation and 

life and imprisoning him. There are no public policy reasons to deny remedies including 

damages. 
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(d) Negligent Investigation and/or s. 7 of the Charter 

198. The Plaintiff suspected that something was not right in respect of the gathering of 

information through Van Allen and the police in this case. The plaintiff made inquiries of the 

police. In April 2013, he learned that there had been secret police investigation by at least the 

DRPS in contemplation of him being convicted at his hearing on January 15, 2010. He also 

initially learned in late 2013 (and later confmned in 2014) that Van Allen was a serving police 

officer when he swore his affidavit as a private investigator in October, 2009. 

199. When the secret investigation came to light, Detective Rushbrook revealed that she could 

not or would not reveal who conducted it and at whose behest, except that an unnamed Durham 

Police Court Officer was one of the persons involved. It was brought to the attention of the SCJ 

and the Faskens and Cassels defendants in Court and on the record on April 30, 2013. Messrs. 

Ranking and Silver denied knowledge of it. 

200. As prosecutors, this was a serious allegation, based on reliable information from the 

DRPS itself that warranted investigation. The failure of the Faskens and Cassels defendants to 

request time to investigate this situation was negligent. As prosecutors and Officers of the Court 

in a criminal or quasi-criminal case of a self-represented person, it was foreseeable that this 

secret investigation could impact on the issues being litigated on April 30, 2013. They owed a 

duty to stop and cause an inquiry or investigation to be conducted. The failure to do so breached 

the standard of care expected of prosecutors. 

201. The secret investigation itself, that was premised on the Plaintiff being convicted, before 

he had been found guilty, was itself a negligent investigation. If the court itself was involved 
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(not Justice Shaughnessy who denied knowledge of it, but court administration), this suggested a 

possible institutional bias. If initiated by the lawyers, law firms and/or clients, this suggested 

that the police were involved in the civil contempt proceeding, which would be extraordinary 

and suggested bias or corruption by the police. If initiated by Van Allen defendants, this 

suggested further abuse of power by a serving police officer as a private investigator on behalf of 

private interests. One way or the other, this secret investigation was illegal and corrupt. The fact 

that a police and Court police investigation is premised on a person being found guilty before he 

is found guilty is offensive. The fact that it is being done in secret suggests that there is 

something to hide. Such an investigation is inherently negligent. As is clear from Hill (SCC) 

and Taylor (OCA), the duty of care in relation to criminal investigations inherently create a duty 

of care because of the targeting of the suspect The DRPS owed a duty to the Plaintiff having 

targeted him. The conduct of a secret investigation with a presumption of conviction creates an 

unreasonable risk of substantial hann and does not meet the standard of care. This is similar to R. 

v. Beaudry, [2007] S.C.J. No. 5. 

202. In late 2012 the Plaintiff still believed that Van Allen was at the time of his October, 

2009 affidavit, a civilian, a retired OPP police officer operating as private investigator, who had 

improperly accessed confidential police information about the Plaintiff through Van Allen's 

friends still serving with the police. The Plaintiff therefore requested that the professional 

standards units of the OPP and the DRPS investigate the 'secret police investigation' to 

determine inter alia which serving police personnel had in 2009 supplied 'retired' Van Allen 

with confidential police information. 

203. During their investigations in January through April, 2013, the OPP and Kearns and 

Vibert and the DRPS and Dmytruk and Rushbrook discovered that at the time Van Allen swore 
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his October 2009 affidavit and investigated the Plaintiff, Van Allen was in fact a serving police 

officer, a Detective Sergeant with the OPP, and remained so until he retired in about October of 

2010. The OPP and Keams and Vibert and the DRPS and Dmytruk and Rushbrook also knew 

that as a serving police officer acting as a private investigator, Van Allen had broken various 

laws including the Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act; 

Private Security and Investigative Services Act, and other laws and regulations. 

204. The OPP, Keams, Vibert, the DRPS, Dmytruk and Rushbrook had copies of Van Allen's 

October 2009 affidavit, his invoices to Ranking and Faskens, and other court documents and 

information regarding the Plaintiff's January IS, 2010 conviction in abstentia for Contempt of 

Court. They knew that the Plaintiff was facing 3 months in jail, and was in hearings before 

Justice Shaughnessy in January through May, 2013. They knew that Van Allen's affidavit was 

illegal and deceptive, and that the court had used the Van Allen evidence to convict the Plaintiff. 

They knew that neither the court nor the Plaintiff was aware that Van Allen had been a serving 

police officer at the time he investigated the Plaintiff and swore the affidavit. They knew that the 

court had been deceived. 

205. The OPP, Kearns, Vibert, the DRPS, Dmytruk and Rushbrook knew that as a serving 

police officer Van Allen had illegally perfonned an investigation of the Plaintiff, for the corrupt 

purpose of benefiting one side's private interests in a civil case costs hearing. They knew that 

Van Allen had done this for money and employment. 

206. They knew or should have known that the truth about Van Allen was vital evidence to the 

Court in considering a just outcome in the Plaintiff's contempt of court hearing. They knew, or 

should have known that had the Court been aware of the truth about Van Allen, his deceptive 
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affidavit and improper secret police investigation of the Plaintiff, that the Court might not have 

convicted the Plaintiff in 2010, and might set him free in 2013. The police deliberately withheld 

this important evidence from both the Plaintiff and the Court. 

207. The Plaintiff was lied to by the OPP and specifically, Keams and Vibert and the DRPS, 

specifically Dmytruk and Rushbrook. The police falsely told the Plaintiff that Van Allen had 

retired in 2008, instead of the truth that he retired in October 2010. Instead of investigating Van 

Allen, who committed criminal and quasi-criminal offences while a serving Detective Sergeant 

with the Ontario Provincial Police, the police covered it up. This was a negligent investigation. 

This is similar toR. v. Beaudry, [2007] S.C.J. No.5. 

208. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law finns and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law fums were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. They were parties to the 

prosecution. The liberty and security of the person interests of the Plaintiff were at stake from 

the possibility of a finding of contempt, a criminal or quasi-criminal proceeding. 

209. By failing to investigate the secret investigation, the police acted negligently. This is 

similar toR. v. Beaudry, [2007] S.C.J. No.5. These actions damaged the Plaintiff by contributing 

to finding him in contempt, ruining his professional reputation and life and imprisoning him. 

There are no public policy reasons to deny remedies including damages. 

210. By failing to investigate the Van Allen issue when it was brought to their attention by the 

Plaintiff, the police acted negligently. This is similar to R. v. Beaudry, {2007] S.C.J. No. 5. 

These actions damaged the Plaintiff by contributing to finding him in contempt, ruining his 
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professional reputation and life and imprisoning him. There are no public policy reasons to deny 

remedies including damages. 

(e) lnvasJon of privacy (Jntruslon on secrecy) 

211. The defendants invaded the Plaintiff's privacy and intruded on his secrecy by accessing, 

.disseminating, filing and publishing his private and confidential information. They did so by 

unlawfully utilizing a serving police officer, who had greater access to information, as a private 

investigator. 

212. These acts were done directly and/or indirectly by the defendants. They were done 

intentionally and/or recklessly. The use of a serving police officer to access otherwise 

inaccessible private information intruded upon the informational seclusion of the plaintiff and/or 

his private affairs and/or concerns. 

213. These invasions would be highly offensive to a reasonable person because, inter alia, the 

accessing and publishing served no useful purpose; it was known by the defendants that as a 

former undercover police officer and undercover private investigator, the Plaintiff bad many 

enemies who would want to kill or harm him or otherwise seek revenge, some of whom were 

involved in organized crime; the dissemination and publishing took place in such a way as to 

encourage harm to the Plaintiff; to the extent any of the information was relevant, the details, 

including addresses, driver's license information, etc. need not have been included or could 

easily have been edited or redacted. There was and is a great risk of identity theft from the 

release of the information, and that risk continues to this day. The release of the information in 

fact resulted in criminal activity being directed at the Plaintiff, directly and through his family, to 
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wit, criminal harassment, assault; death threats and other criminal activities. This was the intent 

It caused the Plaintiff to flee Canada. Similar criminal acts were inflicted by some of the 

defendants during the litigation of the NBGL case leading up to these events. The timing was 

such as cause the Plaintiff to flee around the time of the attempts to attack the Plaintiff in Court 

(through direct costs applications; discovery; and contempt). The timing was intentional to 

facilitate this attack on the Plaintiff using the legal system for ulterior motives. Further, the 

Plaintiff raised concerns about this issue several times and was mocked and dismissed and was 

told by Mr. Silver on November 17, 2009 (recorded) that he would not help the Plaintiff if he 

could. The defendants had and have a duty to correct the situation and have failed to do so to 

this day. 

214. The following legislation which precludes a serving police officer from acting as a 

private investigator reinforces the fact that this would be seen to be highly offensive to a 

reasonable person: Criminal Code, R.S.C, 1985, c. C-46, as amended; Police Services Act, 

R.S.O. 1990, c. P-15.; Private Security and Investigative Services Act, S.O. 2005 c.34; Freedom 

of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. F-31 and OPP policies which 

preclude a serving police officer acting as or being hired as a private investigator. 

(f) Conspiracy to do unlawful act (cover up re Van Allen) 

215. As detailed otherwise in this Statement of Claim, two or more of the defendants made an 

agreement to act unlawfully knowing that their acts were aimed at the Plaintiff and knowing or 

constructively knowing that their acts would injure the Plaintiff. The unlawful means was the 
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violation of the Plaintiffs common law, Charter and Statutory privacy rights, as described 

above. As detailed otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, the defendants acted in 

furtherance of this agreement. These actions caused actual, visible and provable harm to the 

Plaintiff: injury (physical and mental harm and suffering) and endangerment though the release 

of private information. 

216. Further, as detailed in respect of Negligent Investigation, when this was brought to the 

attention of the OPP and the DRPS, the police failed to investigate the criminal or quasi-criminal 

acts of Van Allen and lied to the Plaintiff. The Plaintiff was lied to by the OPP and specifically, 

Keams and Vibert and the DRPS, specifically Dmytruk and Rushbrook about Van Allen. 

(4) FRAUD ON COURT RE PWCECF 

(a) Abuse of Process (Common law and s. 7 of tbe Charter) 

217. The continued active representation of a client that does not exist and the false assertion 

to the Court that the client does exist is the perpetration of a fraud on the Court. This is contempt 

of court. Contempt of court is a form of abuse of process. The improper and collateral purpose 

was to hide the true identity of the auditor and to prevent costs being ordered against his real 

client. By representing a non-entity, a costs order against that "entity" could never be effective. 

It also raises a real concern about where funds payable to the 'client' were going. It also allowed 

for the Faskens defendants to act with the need for constraints of acting in accordance with 

instruction. The Plaintiff was harmed by the unrestrained conduct of the Faskens defendants, in 
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particular Ranking, who could and did act abusively in respect of contempt proceedings (see 

Causes of Actions, III., B., 1.) 

218. PWCECF was put forward by the Faskens defendants as the auditor of KEL in respect of 

the NBGL case. KEL bad to know the true identity of the auditor. Their lawyers and law firms 

must have known as well. light of the close and interactive manner in which the Cassels 

defendants worked on the NBGL case and the contempt proceedings, it is reasonable to infer 

knowledge by the Cassels defendants. 

219. As prosecutors, the lawyers, the law fmns and the clients were exercising a public 

function pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law fmns were 

acting as officers of the Court. They were state actors. The TPA, police and Van Allen 

defendants were government actors fulfilling public functions. They were parties to the 

prosecution. The liberty and security of the person interests of the Plaintiff were at stake from 

the possibility of a finding of contempt, a criminal or quasi-criminal proceeding. 1n proceeding 

on behalf of a client that did not exist and thereby perpetrating a fraud on the Court, the violated 

principles of fundamental justice (contrary to s. 7 of the Charter). These actions damaged the 

Plaintiff by finding him in contempt, ruining his professional reputation and life and imprisoning 

him. There are no public policy reasons to deny remedies including damages. 

(b) Breach of fiduciary Duty to the Court 

220. Ranking, Silver, Kwydzinski, Pendrith and their law fmns, Cassels and Faskens owed a 

fiduciary duty to the SCJ, as Officers of the Court, to not lie to the Court. This duty was 

breached by asserting that PWCECF existed. This was dishonest and fraudulent. This breach 
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damaged the Plaintiff by freeing Ranking and Kydzinski and Faskens from the constraints of 

adverse costs consequence and the need for instructions from clients. This facilitated his abusive 

conduct of the contempt proceedings. 

221. The Cassels defendants bad their own fiduciary duty to report on the fraud by Ranking, 

Kwydzinski and Faskens. In the alternative, the Cassels defendants were aware of the fiduciary 

duty, its breach and the dishonesty and/or fraud. By acquiescing in this lie they assisted it and 

are liable. 

(c) Misfeasance ofPubUc Office/Abuse of Authority 

222. As prosecutors, the Faskens and Cassels defendants were exercising a public function 

pursuant to statutory and common law authority and the lawyers and law firms were acting as 

officers of the Court. They were state actors. 

223. The actions of the the Faskens and Cassels defendants lying to the Court about PWCECF 

was in bad faith and was deliberately unlawful or outside the scope of their authority in the 

exercise of the public functions of a prosecutor and/or an Officer of the Court. They were aware 

that their conduct was unlawful and that it would likely injure the Plaintiff. These actions caused 

actual, visible and provable il\iury (physical and mental harm and suffering) as a result of the 

contempt proceedings. 
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224. Two or more of the Faskens and/or Cassels defendants made an agreement to act 

unlawfully knowing that their acts were aimed at the Plaintiff and knowing or constructively 

knowing that their acts would injure the Plaintiff. The unlawful means was the lie to the Court 

about PWCECF existing. As detailed otherwise described in this Statement of Claim, these 

defendants acted in furtherance of this agreement These actions caused actual, visible and 

provable harm to the Plaintiff: injury (physical and mental hann and suffering) and 

endangerment though the contempt proceedings. 

IV. SERVICE OUTSIDE OF ONTARIO PER 17.02 (G)(H)(O); 

225. Kingsland Estates Limited is a company operating in Barbados. As one of the main 

prosecutors in respect of contempt, KEL is a necessary or proper party. Therefore, 

pursuant to Rule 17.02(o) leave is not required for service on this person. 

226. Richard Ivan Cox resides in Barbados. As one of the directing mind of the main 

prosecutors in respect of contempt, Cox is a necessary or proper party. Therefore, 

pursuant to Rule 17.02(o) leave is not required for service on this person. 

227. Eric lain Stewart Deane resides in the United Kingdom. As one of the directing minds of 

one of prosecutors in respect of contempt, Deane is a necessary or proper party. 

Therefore, pursuant to Rule 17 .02( o) leave is not required for service on this person. 
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228. Marcus Andrew Hatch resides in Barbados. Since PWCECF was supposed to be one the 

main prosecutors in respect of contempt, but it does not exist, Hatch, one of the auditors 

is a necessary or proper party. Therefore, pursuant to Rule 17 .02( o) leave is not required 

for service on this person. 

229. Philip St. Eva! Atkinson resides in Barbados. Since PWCECF was supposed to be one 

the main prosecutors in respect of contempt, but it docs not exist, Atkinson, one of the 

auditors is a necessary or proper party. Therefore, pursuant to Rule l7.02(o) leave is not 

required for service on this person. 

230. PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean (formerly 'PricewaterhouseCoopers') is a 

partnership operating in Barbados. Since PWCECF was supposed to be one the main 

prosecutors in respect of contempt, but it does not exist, PWCEC, asserted to be the client 

by counsel for "PWCECF", is a necessary or proper party. Therefore, pursuant to Rule 

17 .02(o) leave is not required for service on this person. 

231. James Arthur Van Allen resides in British Columbia. Van Allen resided and worked in 

Ontario at the time and is one of the central defendants in the case. He is a necessary or 

proper party. Therefore, pursuant to Rule 17.02(o) leave is not required for service on 

this person. 

232. The torts arc all torts committed in Ontario. Therefore, pursuant to Rule 17.02(g) leave is 

not required for service on these persons. 
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233. The damage was for was sustained in Ontario. Therefore, pursuant to Rule 17.02(h) 

leave is not required for service on these persons. 

234. Such further grounds and/or claims as may become apparent from discovery or 

otherwise. 

July 18, 2014 

Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 

1062 College Street, Lower Level 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H 1A9 

Tel: (416) 536-1220; 
Fax (416) 536-8842 

LSUC #259981 

Counsel for the Plaintiff 
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JURY NOTICE 
(Form 47A) 

TilE Plaintiff REQUIRES that this action 

JULY 23.2014 
Paul SlansKy 

Barrister and Solici 
1062 College Street. wer Level 

Toronto. Ontario 
M6H IA9 

Tel: (416) Fax (416) 536-8842 
LSUC #259981 

Counsel for the PlainlitT 
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TO: Gerald Lancaster Rex Ranking 
Barrister and Solicitor 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin llP 
333 Bay St. 
Suite 2400 
Toronto, ON 
M5H2T6 
Tel: (416) 865-441Q 
Fa:"<: l416} 364-7813 

AND TO: Sebastien Jean Kwidzinski 
Barrister and Solicitor 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LlP 
333 Ray St. 
Suite 2400 
Toronto. ON 
M5H2T6 
Tel: (416) 868-3431 
Fax: (416) 364-7813 

AND TO: Lome Stephen Silver 
Banister and Solicitor 
Cassels Brock & Blackwt:llllP 
Suite 2100, Scotia Plaza 
40 King St. West 
Toronto. ON 
MSH3C2 
Tel; (416) 869-5490 
Fax: (416)640-3018 

AND TO: Colin D:svid Pendrith 
Barrister and Solicitor 
Cassels Brock & Blackvo."CIILLP 
Suite 21 00. Scotia Plaza 
40 King SL. West 
Toronto. ON 
MSH3C2 
Tel: (416) 860-6765 

AND TO: Paul Barker Schabas 
Barrister and Solicitor 
Blake. Cassels & Graydon LLP 
199 Bay Street 
Suite 4000. Comnterce Court West 
Toronto ON MSL 1 AQ 
Tel: (416) 863-4274 
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I AND TO: Andrew John Roman 
Barrister and Solicitor 
Andre" John Roman Professional Corporation 

I 900-333 Bay Street 
Toronto. ON MSH 2T4 
Tel: (416) 848-0203 x2234 

I Fax: (416)850-5316 

AND TO: Ma 'anit Tzipora Zemel 

I MTZ Law Professional Corporation 
39 CloveJly Ave 
Toronto. Ontario 
M6C IY2 

I Tel: (416) 937-93:!1 

AND TO: fa!lken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 

I 333 Hay Street. Suite 2400 
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I Tel: (416) 366-8381 
Fax:(416)364-7813 

AND TO: Cassels Brock & Blackweiii.LP 

I Suite 2100. Scotia Plaza 
40 King Street West 
Toronto. ON 

I MSH 3C2 
Tel: {416) 869-5300 
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199 Bay Street 
Suite 4000. Coun West 

I Toronto ON MSL 1 A9 
Canada 
Tel: (416) 863-2400 

I Fax: (416) 863-2653 

AND TO: Miller Thomson Ll.P 
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ANI> TO: Esustes Limited 
clo Richanl Ivan ('ox: 
t-.:o. 29 Atlantic Shores. 
Ent.:rprise. 
l'hrist Church. 
Uarbltdos.. West Indies 

AND TO: Richo.rd Ivan Cox 
No. :!9 Atlantic Shores. 
Enterprise. 
Christ ('hurch. 
Barbados. West Indies 

AND TO: Eric lain Stewart Deane 
6 Augu.o;tincs Way. 
Haywards Uclllh. 
West Sussex 
Rl·l163lll. England 

ANI> 10: Man:us Andrtw Hatch 
·west Shore l.odgc· 
Greenidge Dri'c 
Pa\ ncs Ba\·. St. James. . . 
Barbados. \\'est Indies 

At\0 TO: Philip St. J:vaJ Atkinson 
·kandom· 
WatertOrd. St. 
Barbados. West Indies 

ANO TO: l>ricewatcrhou.o;cC'oopers Ea.-.t Caribbean 
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Bishop's Court Hill 
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rei: (.246) 6::!6-6700 
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t\Nll ·1 0: Ontario Prtl\'incial Policx 
<kneral Headquarters 
Lincoln Alexander Building 
777 Memorial A\·enuc 
Orillia. ON LJV 7V3 
Tel: (70S) 3::!9-6111 
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AND TO: Peel Regional Police Service a.k.a. Peel Regional Police 
General Headquarters 
7750 Hurontario Street. 
Brompton. ON. L6V 3W6 
Tel: (905) 453-3311 

AND TO: Durham Regional Police Service 
General Headquar&ers 
605 Rossland Rd. E. 
Whitby. ON. I. IN 088 
Tel: (Q05) 579-1520 

AND TO: Marty Kearns 
Ontario Pro\'incial Police 
General Headquarters 
Lincoln M. Alexander Building. 
777 Memorial A venU4: 
Orillia. ON L3V 7V3 
Tel: (705) 329-6111 

AND TO: JdTel')' R. Vibert 
Ontario Provincial l'o1ice 
General Headquarters 
Lincoln M. Alexander Buildins 
717 Memorial Avenue 
Orillin, ON UV 7V3 
Tel: (705) 329-6111 

AND TO: George Dmymak 
Central East Division 
Durham Rrgional Police Smice 
11 Centre St. K 
Oshawa. ON LIG 487 
Tel: {905) 579- I 520 

AND TO: Lauric Rushbrook 
Durham Rcgiooal Police Service 
Gcneralllcadquarters 
605 Rossland Rd. E. 
Whitby. ON. L1 N 088 
Tel: (905) 579-1510 

AND TO: James (Jim) Arthur Van Allen 
6450 199 Street 
Suite 15 
Langley. British Columbia 
V2Y2X1 

203 

158 



204 

AND 1"0: Behavioural Scic:ncc: Solutions Group Inc. 
26 Jordon Crescent 
Orillia. Onwio 
l.3V 8A9 
Tel: (604) 626-9572 
Fax: (604) 371-1649 

AND TO: Tamara Jean Witliamson 
Probation and Parole Services. 
Cottage C. 
700 Memorial Avenue. 
2nd floor. 
Orillia. Ontario IJV 6HI 
Tel: (705) 329-6010 

AND TO: Investigative Solutions Network Inc. 
1099 Kingston Road. Suite 237 
Pickering. Ontario L 1 V I B5 
Tel: 
Fax: (905) 421-0048 

AND TO: Torontll Police 
200-2075 Kennedy Rd 
Toronto. ON MtT 3V3 
Tel: (416) 491-4301 
Fax:(416)494-4948 

AND TO: John Doe #1. John Doe #2. John Doe #3. John Doe #4. John Doe #5, and Jane Doe #J. 
Jane Doe #2. Jane Doe #3, Jane Doe #4, Jane Doe #5 
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Title number WSX23999 
This is a copy of the register of the title number set out immediately below, showing 
the entries in the register on 21 AUG 2014 at 05:18:08. This copy does not take account 
of any application made after that time even if still pending in the Land Registry when 
this copy was issued. 
This copy is not an 'Official Copy' of the register. An official copy of the register 
is admissible in evidence in a court to the same extent as the original. A person is 
entitled to be indemnified by the registrar if he or she suffers loss by reason of a 
mistake in an official copy. If you want to obtain an official copy, the Land Registry 
web site explains how to do this. 

A: Property Register 
This register describes the land and estate comprised in 
the title. 
WEST SUSSEX : MID SUSSEX 
1 (02.12.1975) The Freehold land shown edged with red on the plan of the 

above Title filed at the Registry and being 6 Augustines Way, Haywards 
Heath (RH16 3JH) . 

2 The land has the benefit of the rights granted by but is subject to the 
rights reserved by the Transfer dated 30 May 1978 referred to in the 
Charges Register. 

B: Proprietorship Register 
This register specifies the class of title and 
identifies the owner. It contains any entries that 
affect the right of disposal. 
Title absolute 
1 (10.01.2007) PROPRIETOR: ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE of 6 Augustines Way, 

Haywards Heath, West Sussex RH16 3JH. 

2 (10.01.2007) The price stated to have been paid on 13 December 2006 was 
£215,000. 

C: Charges Register 
This register contains any charges and other matters 
that affect the land. 
1 A Transfer of the land in this title dated 30 May 1978 made between (1) 

Unit construction southern Limited and (2) Richard Antony James Dexter 
and Chandralakha Ramjeet contains restrictive covenants. 

NOTE: Original tiled. 

End of register 
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I REQUIRE you to note the Defendant Eric fain Stewart Deane in default in thts action on the grounds 
that he has tailed to file a defence to the Claim within the: period n:quired by the: Rules of Practice. 

.,..._. Novembers. 2014 

1 

Bamster and Solicitor 
1062 eotleae Street. Lower level 
Taranto, Dntlrlo M6H lA9 

Tel: ('16) 536-1220; 
fllt(416)536-8142 
LSUC 1259911 
Counsel for the Plaintiff 
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Donald Best (Plaiotift) v. Gerald Ranldngeul. (Defc:ndants) Coun File No. 14-011 S 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICF. 

tCENTRAL EAST REGION) 

PROCEEOrNG COMMENCED lN BARR1E 

ReQUISITION FOR DEFAULT 

Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 

l 062 Co liege Slreet.. Lower l..c:vcl 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H lAQ 

Tel: (416) 536-1220 
Fox ( •16) S36-AR42 

LSUC 11259981 

Counsel for the Plaintiff 
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THIS IS EXHmiT "C" I 
REFERRED TO 

IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF I Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS I 15th DAY 
OF December, 2014 

I 
A Commissioner etc. I 
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EXHIBIT C 

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 
(CENTRAL EAST REGION: BARRIE) 

DONALD BEST 

• and-

C.urt File No. l"-ftl5 

Plaintiff 

GERALD LANCASTER REX RANI\I'<j(i; SF.BASTit:N Jlo:A!'ol 
STEPHEI'Ii SILVER; COLII'Ii DAVID PENDRITH; 

PAUL BARKER SCHABAS; 4:'11DR•:w JOHIIo RO\t41'1i; :\'14'AI'IiiT TZIPORA ZEM.:L; 
FASKEN MARTINEAU LLP; CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL LLP; 

BLAKE, CASSELS II: GRA \'DOl\ I.I.P; \tii.I.ER TIIOMSO:\ LLP; 
KINGSLASD ESTATES LIMITED: RICHARD IV:\S ("OX; 

ERIC lAIN STEWART DEA:'IiE; 
!\tARCliS AS DREW HATCH: PHILIP ST. EV:\L ATKISSOI'Ii: 

PRJCEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN Cf0R\1ERL \" 'PRICEWATERHOl"SECOOPERS'); 
ONTARIO PROVINCIAL POI.ICI!.; 

PEEL REGIOSAL POLICE SERVICE Lli.a. PEEL REGIOSAL POLICE; 
Dt:RIIA \1 Rli.GIONAL POLICE SER\"ICE; 
MARTY KEARSS: JEFFERY R. VI BERT; 

GEORGE D\t\'TRliK: I.Al"RIE Rt:SIIBROOK: 
JAMES (JIM) ARTHt:R VA:'II 

BEII4VIOURAI. SCIENCI!. SOLl:TIONS GROliP 1111(".: 
TAM4RA JE4S 

INVESTIGATIVE SOLt:TIOIIiS NETWORK INC.; 
TORONTO POLIC.: ASSOCIA 

JASE DOE IU; JANE DOE t%; JANE DOE tl; JA:'IIE DOE t4; JANE DOE ,5 
JOHN DOli. tl; JOH:\ DOE 12; JOH:\ om: lfl; DOJ: jj4; JOH:'II DOE t!lo 

Defendlnts 
REQUISITION FOR DEFAULT 

TOniE LOCAL REGISTRAR AT BARRIE, ONTARIO: 

I REQUIRE YOU TO NOTE THE DEFENDANTS PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPF.RS EAST CARIBBEAN 

(FORMERL V 'PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS'), MARCUS ANDREW HATCH, PHILIP ST. EVAL ATKINSON, 

KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED and RICHARD IVAN COX in default in this action on the grounds lhal they h1ve failed 

to file 1 defence to the Claim within the period required by the Rules of Practice. 

Dated: December 3, 2014 

1 

PauiS'-nlky 
Blrrialar and SoliCitor 
1062 College snet a-r1eve1 
Toronto, Ontario MSH 1A9 

Tel: (416) 538-1220 

LSUC 1259981 
Counsel for the Plaintiff 
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Doaald Beat (l'laintill) v. Ga8k1 Rulda. et.al. (Defcndaat&) CoW1 F.De No. 14-0115 

SUPERIOR.COUR.T OP JUmCS 

(CENTRAL EAST REOION) 

PROCEEDING COMMENCED IN BARR1E 

REQUISITION FOil DEFAULT 

Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 

1062 Coltece Street. Lower 
Toronto, Onwio 

M6H lA9 

Tel: (416) 536-1220 
Fox (416) Sl6-llo42 

l.SUC #1259911 

Coun.cl 10.. the Plaintiff 
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Donald Best (Plaintitl) v. Gerald Ranking et.al. (Defendants) Court File No. 14-0815 
-· --··- ·-

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

(CENTRAL EAST REGION) 

PROCEEDING COMMENCED IN BARRIE 

AFFIDAVIT OF DONALD BEST 

Paul Slansky 
Barrister and Solicitor 

1062 College Street. Lower Lc\'cl 
Toronto, Ontario 

M6H IA9 

Tel: (416) 536-1220 
Fax (416) 536-8842 

LSUC #259981 

Counsel tor the Plaintiff 

-&; 
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Donald Jksl (I'Jaintitfl "· RankinJ (.1.al. Court Fik No. 14-081 
. - ··--. -

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUST!CE 

(CEN1RAL 

11'7 

Mo·nor.J 

Pau! 
ew ri .. t.cr ar.d s()lt •. :!nl 

I Col!c:;c Stn·c:t, l.nw..:r t·l 
"!"Mr"lfltll, Orttario 

Mt>ll l A9 

Tel: t4161536-J22tl 
Fax HJ(,) 53(dHH2 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "J" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 
OF February, 015 

A Commissioner etc. 

Kerry A11n Eckateln, • C,..l'lllllielleF, etc., 
ot Ontario, for tile Govermlent ol 

Oltldo. Mlnlslry ollbl Attonley Gall. 
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Court File No.: 07-0141 

BETWEEN: 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

-and-

Plaintiff 

RICHARD IV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASll.. KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE ll..MA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GL YNE BANNISTER, GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PHll..IP GREAVES 

a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVll..LE & CO., COTILE, CATFORD & CO., 
KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEW ART DEANE, 

ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 
DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 

EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 
OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 
BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 

GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 
CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 

THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATIORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHll..IP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEAL m CONSTRUCTION', INC. 

AMENDED NOTICE OF MOTION 
(Motion Returnable November 2, 3 and 4, 2009) 

Defendants 
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The defendant, PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Finn, and all other 

similarly situated defendants who were served with a Notice of Discontinuance on March 23, 

2009, as listed in Schedule "A" hereto, and all other defendants (collectively the "Defendants") 

will make a motion to the Honourable Mr. Justice Shaughnessy on Monday. November 2. 

Tuesday. November 3, and Wednesday. November 4, 2009 at 10:00 a.m., or as soon after that 

time as the motion can be heard, at the Courthouse in Whitby, Ontario. 

PROPOSED METHOD OF HEARING: the motion is to be heard orally. 

THE MOTION IS FOR an order: 

1. awarding costs of this action to the Defendants on a full indemnity scale, or in the 

alternative, on a substantial indemnity scale (as set forth in the Bills of Costs to be delivered) 

fixed, and payable forthwith by the plaintiff, the plaintiff's officer Donald Best, K. William 

McKenzie ("Mr. McKenzie") and Mr. McKenzie's law finn, Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, 

Anderson & Duncan LLP, on a joint and several basis; 

2. in furtherance of the relief sought in paragraph 1 above, an order setting aside the 

two cost orders listed below, and supplementing those orders by awarding costs to the 

Defendants on full indemnity scale. The orders to be set aside, and supplemented, are: 

(a) the order of Justice Shaughnessy dated April 16, 2008 dealing with the costs of 

the various motions (principally the issue of security) on January 14, 15, 17 and 

18, 2008 which awarded costs to the defendants on a partial indemnity scale; 

(b) the order of Justice Howden dated August 8, 2008 dealing with the costs of the 

plaintiffs appeal of Justice Shaughnessy's rulings on the motions heard on 
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Janwuy 14. 15 and 17 which awarded costs to the responding parties rcmresented 

by Cassels. Brock & Blackwell on a partial indemnity scale; and 

(c) the order of Justice Ferguson dated May 5, 2009 dealing with the costs of the 

plaintiff's motion for leave to appeal (the order of Justice Shaughnessy dated 

December 3, 2008) which awarded costs to the defendants on a substantial 

indemnity scale; 

in addition, and also in furtherance of the relief sought in paragraph 1 above, an 

order awarding costs to the Defendants of the following motions, attendances or conference calls 

for which costs have not yet been awarded by this Honourable Court: 

(a) the order dated December 3, 2007 dealing with the timing for the delivery of Peter 

Simmons' affidavit, Dr. Sharon Smith's expert report and the delivery of the 

defendants' materials to respond to plaintiff's motion regarding alleged 
threats/security concerns; 

(b) the order dated April 4, 2008 dealing with the plaintiff's motion for clarification, 

reconsideration or review of certain issues in the reasons of the Honoilrable 

Justice Shaughnessy dated February 8, 2008; 

(c) the costs thrown away for the defendants having to prepare motions to secure 

payment of the cost awards of Justice Shaughnessy (issued pursuant to Justice 
Shaughnessy's cost award dated April16, 2008; 

(d) the order dated August 7, 2008 dealing with Mr. McKenzie's issues regarding the 

calculation ofGST on the defendants' bills of costs; 

(e) the order dated October 24, 2008 dealing with the motion by 

PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm, and other defendants, for 

directions regarding the cross-examinations in Barbados; 

(f) the order dated December 3, 2008 dealing with the plaintiff's motion seeking the 

release of the videotapes of the cross-examinations held in Barbados (from 
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October 27, 2008 to November 1, 2008) and the release of the videotapes of the 

cross-examinations held in Toronto (on November 3 and 4, 2008); 

(g) the attendance and the subsequent order dated December 8, 2008 dealing with Mr. 
McKenzie's request to adjourn all jurisdiction motions and the adjournment 

thereof; and 

(h) the order dated_ January 5, 2009 (following a conference call on that date) dealing 

with Mr. McKenzie's request to view the videotapes and to set a date for hearing 

of the jurisdiction motions. 

an order validating service of all motion materials (relating to the within motion) 

upon Donald Best and providing that service of all such materials was effective ten ( 1 0) days 

after such materials were served upon Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. by virtue of having been 

delivered to the law firm of Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, Anderson & Duncan LLP; 

5. an order for substituted service of any and all further materials (including 

motions, court orders and notices of examination) upon Donald Best and providing that service 

of all such materials will be effective ten (10) days after mailing same to Donald Best c/o the 

address at 427 Princess Street. Suite 200, Kingston, Ontario; 

6. an order compelling Donald Best to appear at an examination (on a date to be 

fixed by this Honourable Court) at Victory Verbatim in Toronto, Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay 

Street, Suite 900. Toronto. Ontario MSK 1H6 at his own expense. to answer: 

(a) all questions refused or taken under advisement at the cross-examination of 1 ohn 

Knox held on November 4, 2008 and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 
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all questions refused or taken under advisement at the Rule 39.03 examination of 

Donald Best held on March 20. 2009 and all questions reasonably arising 

therefrom; 

(c) all questions which Justice Shaughnessy directed be answered on April 8. 2009 

and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

(d) all questions relating to his appointment. and subsequent duties/responsibilities as 

an officer of Nelson Barbados ("Nelson Barbados"); his relationship. if any, to the 

matters pleaded in the within action (and the related actions in Barbados), and his 

association and/or relationship with K. William McKenzie and/or the law firm of 

Crawford, McKenzie, McLean. Anderson & Duncan LLP; and 

(e) all questions concerning the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited ("Kingsland;'), 

including without limiting the generality of the foregoing. the security over and 

ownership rights held by Nelson Barbados in the common shares of Kingsland 

and all guestions reasonably arising therefrom. 

with respect to the examination referred to in paragraph 7 above. an order 

compelling Donald Best to deliver to Gerald L.R. Ranking. or in the alternative. to the Registrar 

of this Honourable Court. at least two (2) weeks prior to the examination. all documents by 

which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an ownership interest in the shares of 

Kingsland. all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John Knox). the minute 

book, directors' shareholders' register. banking documents (including bank account 

opening documents, operating agreements and bank statements). and all books of account, 

ledgers and financial statements from the date of incorporation· of Nelson Barbados through to 

the present; 

8. an order awarding costs of this motion to the Defendants on a full indemnity 

scale, or in the alternative, on a substantial indemnity scale, fixed, and payable forthwith by the 
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plaintiff, the plaintiffs officer Donald Best, Mr. McKenzie and Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, 

Anderson & Duncan LLP, on a joint and several basis; 

9. an order that Justice Shaughnessy remained seized of this action and pennitting 

counsel to bring such further motions to, or seek such further directions from, His Honour. as 

may be necessary; and 

10. such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just. 

THE GROUNDS FOR THE MOTION ARE: 

1. having discontinued the action, the Defendants are prima facie entitled to the 

costs of this action; 

2. in this case, the usual order of partial indemnity costs is neither fair nor 

appropriate. All of the Defendants were forced to incur extraordinary legal fees to respond to 

unmeritorious claims and obstructionist tactics of the plaintiff and Mr. McKenzie. Throughout, 

and by reason of the fact that Mr. McKenzie and his firm asserted a claim that was devoid of 

merit, and thereafter took steps to intentionally complicate, delay and thwart the timely and 

efficient hearing of the jurisdiction motions brought by certain of the defendants, the Defendants 

seek costs on a full indemnity, or in the alternative substantial indemnity, scale for.the following 

reasons: 

(a) Mr. McKenzie and his finn commenced and pursued an action in the Ontario 

Superior Court of Justice for the improper purpose of, amongst other things, re-

litigating issues uniquely connected to Barbados and which were, or continue to 

be, the subject of civil proceedings in that country. Mr. McKenzie knew, from the 

outset, that the action had no real or substantial c9nnection with Ontario; 
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the action, brought by a shell corporation registered to Mr. McKenzie's law firm, 

was devoid of merit and was brought against numerous parties (including high 

profile individuals) such as the former Prime Minister and Chief Justice of 

Barbados to embarrass individual defendants, the country of Barbados and its 

judicial system; 

(c) having commenced the action for an improper purpose, in a jurisdiction which 

had no connection to the parties or the matters in issue, Mr. McKenzie carefully 

set out to litigate the case in a fashion that would embarrass the defendants, run-

up costs and delay the timely adjudication of the jurisdiction motions. Without 

being exhaustive, the Moving Defendants rely upon: 

(i) the fact that the amended statement of claim makes bald allegations of 
conspiracy, without any factual foundation, and does not plead a 
sustainable cause of action; 

(ii) the fact that the amended statement of claim fails to plead evidence, or 
justify any connection, between the failed acquisition of the Kingsland 
shares and a real connection with Ontario; 

(iii) the fact that Mr. McKenzie and his finn commenced the action in the 
name of one entity (Nelson Barbados Investments Inc.) which he then 
discontinued and re-asserted through a different entity (Nelson Barbados 
Group Ltd.), without amending the pleading to explain how the "new" 
plaintiff actually acquired "security'' in the shares ofKingsland; 

(iv) Mr. McKenzie's decision not to tender evidence from the plaintiff's only 
officer, Donald Best, and his decision only to file evidence from John 
Knox; 

(v) Mr. McKenzie's steadfast, and on-going, refusal to answer any questions 
or disclose information with respect to the plaintiff, whether in response to 
questions from the defence, or this Honourable Court, through Justice 
Shaughnessy on April 7 and 8, 2009; 

(vi) Mr. McKenzie's inflammatory, and often offensive, allegations to the 
effect that the Barbados Justice system was inadequate or even corrupt - -
allegations which Mr. McKenzie continued to pursue even after they had 
clearly been refuted by the current Chief Justice, Sir David Simmons; 

(vii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to sue 25 "John Does" and to subsequently add 
IS more defendants to the action in August, 2007; 

'-
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(viii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to rely upon the surreptitious tape recording of 
two telephone calls (between Stuart Heaslet and Peter Simmons) to secure 
allegedly incriminating evidence of"serious and specific threats"; 

(ix) Mr. McKenzie's decision not to disclose the tape recordings in a timely 
fashion, but rather, to use the evidence for purely strategic reasons, 
whether to secure cross-examinations in Ontario or in a feigned attempt to 
suggest that Barbados was simply too dangerous or too corrupt for the 
adjudication of the matters in Barbados; 

(x) Mr. McKenzie's refusal to respond to the reasonable requests of the 
defence for particulars of the alleged ''threats" and his decision not to 
candidly disclose information, notwithstanding the seriousness of the 
allegations; 

(xi) Mr. McKenzie's decision to retain "experts" supposedly skilled in ''threat 
analysis" and to deliver voluminous motion materials to obtain an order 
requiring the cross-examinations to be held in Ontario and requiring the 
defendants to post $500,000 to cover security costs for Mr. McKenzie and 
his legal team; 

(xii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to persist with allegations of continuing security 
concerns even though Mr. McKenzie knew that such allegations were 
baseless and utterly unfounded; 

(xiii) Mr. McKenzie's repeated efforts to secure and/or introduce irrelevant 
evidence into the proceeding including the transcript evidence of Nitin 
Amersey, the data and electronically stored information (and other 
evidence) of Cable & Wireless (as described in Mr. McKenzie's letter 
dated January 2, 2008), and the numerous postings on the Keltruth blog 
and other websites; 

(xiv) Mr. McKenzie's persistent refusal to answer reasonable questions of the 
defence (whether on matters of scheduling, the place of cross-
examinations, the order of cross-examinations, etc.) necessitating 
numerous motions for directions; 

(xv) Mr. McKenzie's decision to conduct the cross-examinations of the 
Barbadian witnesses contrary to the integrity and fairness of the process 
by, amongst other things, examining upon topics that were completely 
irrelevant, examining upon incomplete and/or redacted documents, and 
improperly marking exhibits, presumably for the Keltruth blog; 

(xvi) Mr. McKenzie's decision not to properly prepare John Knox to be cross-
examined by, amongst other things, not ensuring that all relevant 
documents were brought to his cross-examination; 
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(xvii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to carefully orchestrate the documents produced 
by John Knox (all of which Mr. Knox admitted originated from Mr. 
McKenzie) on a memory stick containing some 4,000 documents and Mr. 
McKenzie's subsequent refusal to identify the documents upon which he 
intended to rely, contrary to his undertaking to do so; 

(xviii) Mr. McKenzie's repeated, and intentional, refusal to permit Mr. Knox to 
answer any questions with respect to the plaintiff, its business, records, 
and related documents; 

(xix) Mr. McKenzie's utter lack of professionalism by walking out of the 
examining room on November 4, 2008, even though defence counsel were 
still on the record; 

(xx) Mr. McKenzie's claims as to the critical importance of the videotapes of 
all the cross-examinations, notwithstanding the fact that Mr. McKenzie 
attended all cross-examinations (with his articling student, Marc Lemieux, 
who took notes) and where Mr. McKenzie himself admitted that the 
transcripts were recorded by Victory Verbatim, a court reporting service, 
who Mr. McKenzie described as ''professional and reliable"' 

(xxi) Mr. McKenzie's failure to view the videotapes in a timely manner, or at 
all, after having claimed the alleged importance of the videotapes in his 
factum and in his submissions to both Justice Shaughnessy and to Justice 
Ferguson; 

(xxii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to repeatedly seek leave to appeal this Court's 
decisions; 

(xxiii) overall, Mr. McKenzie's lack of common courtesy, respect and civility to 
defence and to witnesses throughout; 

(xxiv) Mr. McKenzie's decision to ap,peal the order of Justice Shaughnessy dated 
May 4. 2009 and his subsequent failure to take steps to perfect the appeal; 
and 

(xxv) the fact that the ap,peal of Justice Shaughnessy's order dated May 4. 2009 
was dismissed by the Court of Appeal for delay on October 8. 2009 such 
that. all Defendants are now entitled to recover their costs. 

the Defendants therefore require the highest scale of costs to compensate them for 

the hundreds of thousands of dollars of legal fees thrown away. The order must extend to Mr. 

McKenzie personally, and to his law firm, Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, Anderson & Duncan 

LLP, so as to sanction the improper conduct and to ensure the costs are in fact paid. 
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4. the Defendants are entitled to set aside the cost awards referred to in paragraph 2 

(page 2 above) and to have those costs awards supplemented by orders granting costs on a full 

indemnity scale on the basis that Justice Shaughnessy, Howden and Ferguson would have 

granted costs on that scale had they known the facts arising after the orders were made, as set 

forth in the affidavit of Lawrence Hansen sworn JWle 18, 2009 and Ivo Entchev sworn June 3, 

2009; 

5. further, and for the same reasons, the Defendants are also entitled to costs of the 

motions, attendances and conference calls enumerated in paragraph 3 (page 3 above) on a full 

indemnity, or in the alternative, substantial indemnity scale; 

6. Rules 1.04, 23.05, 37, 57.01, 57.03, 57.07 and 59.06(2) of the Rules of Civil 

Procedure; 

7. Rule 4.01 of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Law Society of Upper 

Canada, and the conunentaries thereWlder; 

8. section 131 of the Courts of Justice Act; and 

9. such further and other grounds as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court 

permit. 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE will be used at the 

hearing of the motion: 

(a) the affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette sworn December 8, 2008; 

(b) the affidavit of Lawrence Hansen sworn JW1e 18, 2009; 
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(c) the affidavit oflvo Entchev sworn June 3, 2009; 

(d) the Joint Compendium; 

(e) the affidavit of Jim Van Allen sworn October 21. 2009; 

(f) the affidavit of Sebastien Kwidzinski, sworn October 27. 2009; 

(g) if necessary, or as required, the numerous motion records, affidavits, factums and 

other materials filed by the plaintiff in the course of this action; and 

(h) such further and other material as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court 

may permit. 

October 27. 2009 FASKEN MARTINEAU DuMOULIN LLP 

TO: 

Barristers and Solicitors 
Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
66 Wellington Street West 
P.O. Box20 
Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto, Ontario M5K 1N6 

Gerald L.R. Ranking [LSUC #23855J] 
Tel: 416-865-4419 
Fax: 416-364-7813 

Solicitors for the Defendant, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm 

Prepared for, and on behalf of, all Defendants 

SACK GOLDBLATT MITCHELL LLP 
Barristers and Solicitors 
20 Dundas Street West 
Suite 1100 
Toronto. Ontario 
M5G2G8 

Sean Dewart 
Tel: 416-979-6970 
Fax: 416-591-7333 

Solicitors for the K. William McKenzie 
and Crawford. McKenzie. McLean, Anderson & Duncan LLP 
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AND TO: 

AND TO: 

GOODMANS LLP 
250 Y onge Street, Suite 2400 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5B2M6 

David D. Conklin 
Tel: 416-979-2211 
Fax: 416-979-1234 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 

- 12-

Commonwealth Construction Canada Ltd. and Commonwealth Construction Inc . 

BLAKE, CASSELS & GRAYDON LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Box 25, Commerce Court West 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5L1A9 

Paul Schabas [LSUC #26355A] 
Tel: 416-863-4274 
Fax: 416-863-2653 

Ryder Gilliland [LSUC #45662C] 
Tel: 416-863-5849 
Fax: 416-863-2653 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
David Simmons, Peter Simmons, Philip Greaves, David Shorey, 
David C. Shorey and Company, David Carmichael Shorey 
and S.B.G. Development Corporation 
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CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL LLP 
Lawyers 
2100 Scotia Plaza 
40 King Street West 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H3C2 

Lorne S. Silver [LSUC #24238L] 
Tel: 416-869-5490 
Fax: 416-640-3018 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Richard Ivan Cox, Gerard Cox, Alan Cox, Gittens Clyde Turney, 
R.G. Manderville & Co., Keble Worrell Ltd., Lionel Nurse, 
Owen Seymour Arthur, Mark Cummins, Kingsland Estates Limited, 
Classic Investments Limited, The Barbados Agricultural Credit Trust, 
Attorney General of Barbados, the Country of Barbados, Elneth Kentish, 
Malcolm Deane, Eric Ashby Bentham Deane, Owen Basil Keith Deane, 
Estate ofVivian Gordon Lee Deane, David Thompson, Owen Gordon Finlay Deane, 
Life of Barbados Holdings, Life of Barbados Limited and Leonard Nurse 
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AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

TEAM RESOLUTION 
480 University A venue 
Suite 1600 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5G 1V6 

David Bristow 
Tel: 416-597-3395 
Fax: 416-597-3370 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
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Philip Vernon Nicholls and Cottle, Catford & Co. 

DEVRY, SMITH & FRANK LLP 
100 Barber Greene Road 
Suite 100 
Toronto, Ontario 
M3C 3E9 

Lawrence Hansen 
Tel: 416-449-1400 
Fax: 416-449-7071 

Solicitors for the Defendant, Glyne Bannister 

STIKEMAN ELLIOTT LLP 
5300 Commerce Court West 
199 Bay Street 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5L 1B9 

Adrian Lang 
Tel: 416-869-5500 
Fax: 416-947-0866 

Solicitor for the Defendant, 
First Caribbean International Bank 

MILLER THOMSON LLP 
40 King Street West 
Suite 5800, P.O. Box 1011 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H3S1 

Andrew Roman 
Tel: 416-595-8604 
Fax: 416-595-8695 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Eric lain Stewart Deane and the Estate of Colin Ian Estwick Deane 
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Court File No.: 07-0141 

BETWEEN: 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

-and-

Plaintiff 

RICHARD IV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETB KENTISH, 
GL YNE BANNISTER, GLYNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES 

a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTTLE, CATFORD & CO., 
KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE, 

ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 
DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 

EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 
OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 

BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 
GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 

CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION', INC • 

FURTHER AMENDED NOTICE OF MOTION 

Defendants 

<Motion returnable Monday. November 2. 2009 or as otherwise determined 
by the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy) 
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The defendant, PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm, and all other 

similarly situated defendants who were served with a Notice of Discontinuance on March 23 
' 

2009, as listed in Schedule "A" hereto, and all other defendants (collectively the "Defendants") 

will make a motion to the Honourable Mr. Justice Shaughnessy on Monday. Noyerober 2. 2009. 

at 10:00 a.m., or as soon after that time as the motion can be heard, at the Courthouse in Whitby, 

Ontario. 

PROPOSED METHOD OF HEARING: the motion is to be heard orally. 

THE MOTION IS FOR an order: 

1. awarding costs of this action to the Defendants on a full indemnity scale, or in the 

alternative, on a substantial indemnity scale set forth in the Bills of Costs to be delivered) 

fixed, and payable forthwith by the plaintiff, the plaintiff's officer Donald Best, K. William 

McKenzie ("Mr. McKenzie") and Mr. McKenzie's law firm, Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, 

Anderson & Duncan LLP, on a joint and several basis; 

2. in furtherance of the relief sought in paragraph 1 above, an order setting aside the 

two cost orders listed below, and supplementing those orders by awarding costs to the 

Defendants on full indemnity scale. The orders to be set aside, and supplemented, are: 

(a) the order of Justice Shaughnessy dated April 16, 2008 dealing with the costs of 

the various motions (principally the issue of security) on January 14, 15, 17 and 

18, 2008 which awarded costs to the defendants on a partial indemnity scale; 

(b) the order of Justice Howden dated August 8. 2008 dealing with the costs of the 

plaintiff's appeal of Justice Shaughnessy's rulings on the motions heard on 
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January 14. 15 and 17 which awarded costs to the responding parties represented 

by Cassels, Brock & Blackwell on a partial indemnity scale; and 

(c) the order of Justice Ferguson dated May 5, 2009 dealing with the costs of the 

plaintiffs motion for leave to appeal (the order of Justice Shaughnessy dated 

December 3, 2008) which awarded costs to the defendants on a substantial 

indemnity scale; 

in addition, and also in furtherance ·of the relief sought in paragraph 1 above, an 

order awarding costs to the Defendants of the following motions, attendances or conference calls 

for which costs have not yet been awardeq by this Honourable Court: 

(a) the order dated December 3, 2007 dealing with the timing for the delivery of Peter 

Simmons' affidavit, Dr. Sharon Smith's expert report and the delivery of the 

defendants' materials to respond to plaintiff's motion regarding alleged 

threats/security concerns; 

(b) the order dated April 4, 2008 dealing with the plaintiff's motion for clarification, 

reconsideration or review of certain issues in the reasons of the Honourable 

Justice Shaughnessy dated February 8, 2008; 

(c) the costs thrown away for the defendants having to prepare motions to secure 

payment of the cost awards of Justice Shaughnessy (issued pursuant to Justice 

Shaughnessy's cost award dated April 16, 2008; 

(d) the order dated August 7, 2008 dealing with Mr. McKenzie's issues regarding the 

calculation of GST on the defendants' bills of costs; 

(e) the order dated October 24, 2008 dealing with the motion by 

PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm, and other defendants, for 

directions regarding the cross-examinations in Barbados; 

(f) the order dated December 3, 2008 dealing with the plaintiff's motion seeking the 

release of the videotapes of the cross-examinations held in Barbados (from 
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October 27, 2008 to November 1, 2008) and the release of the videotapes of the 

cross-examinations held in Toronto (on November 3 and 4, 2008); 

(g) the attendance and the subsequent order dated December 8, 2008 dealing with Mr. 

McKenzie's request to adjourn all jurisdiction motions and the adjournment 

thereof; 

(h) the order dated January 5, 2009 (following a conference call on that date) dealing 

with Mr. McKenzie's request to view the videotapes and to set a date for hearing 

of the jurisdiction motions; and 

(i) the co§ts thrown away for the defendants having to orepare for the October 28. 

2009 examination of Mr. McKenzie. and the subseauent oreparations of the 

Furtber Amended Notice of Motion, suPPlementary affidavit material and factum 

to address the blanket refusal of Mr. McKenzie to answer any questions relating 

to Mr. Donald Best and Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. (''Nelson Barbados"). 

an order validating service of all motion materials (relating to the within motion) 

upon Donald Best and providing that service of all such materials was effective ten (1 0) days 

after such materials were served upon Nelson Barbados by virtue of having been delivered to the 

law firm of Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, Anderson & Duncan LLP; 

5. an order for substituted service of any and all further materials (including 

motions, court orders and notices of examination) upon Donald Best and providing that service 

of all such materials will be effective ten (1 0) days after mailing same to Donald Best c/o the 

address at 427 Princess Street, Suite 200, Kingston, Ontario; 

6. an order compelling Donald Best to appear at an examination (on a date to be 

fixed by this Honourable Court) at Victory Verbatim in Toronto, Ernst & Young Tower. 222 Bay 

Street. Suite 900, Toronto, Ontario M5K 1H6 at his own expense, to answer: 



7. 
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(a) all questions refused or taken under advisement at the cross-examination of John 

Knox held on November 4, 2008 and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

all questions refused or taken under advisement at the Rule 39.03 examination of 

Donald Best held on March 20. 2009 and all questions reasonably arising 
therefrom; 

(c) all questions which Justice Shaughnessy directed be answered on April 8. 2009 

and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

(d) all questions relating to his appointment, and subsequent duties/responsibilities as 

an officer of Nelson Barbados; his relationship, if any, to the matters pleaded in 

the within action (and the related actions in Barbados), and his association and/or 

relationship with K. William McKenzie and/or the law firm of Crawford. 

McKenzie, McLean, Anderson & Duncan LLP; 

(e) all questions concerning the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited ("Kingsland"), 

including without limiting the generality of the foregoing. the security over and 

ownership rights held by Nelson Barbados in the common shares of Kingsland 

and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; and 

with respect to the examination referred to in paragraph 6, above, an order 

compelling Donald Best to deliver to Gerald L.R. Ranking, or in the alternative, to the Registrar 

of this Honourable Court. at least two (2) weeks prior to the examination, all documents by 

which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an ownership interest in the shares of 

Kingsland. all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John Knox). the minute 

book. directors' shareholders' register, banking documents (including bank account 

opening documents. operating agreements and bank statements), and all books of account, 

ledgers and financial statements from the date of incorporation of Nelson Barbados through to 

the present; 

239 



- 6-

8. an order compelling Mr. McKenzie to attend to be cross-examined upon his 

affidavit sworn October 2. 2009 (the "Affidavit") Con a date to be fixed by this Honowable 

Court) at Victory Verbatim in Toronto. Ernst & Young Tower. 222 Bay Street. Suite 900. 

Toronto. Ontario M5K 1H6 at his own expense. to: 

(a) answer a}l questions that are related to matters in the Affidavit. including 

questions relating to the subject areas identified in Mr· Ranking's letter dated 

October 27. 2009. all of which were refused by a blanket refusal by Mr. 

-- (b) 

McKeuzie. including questions relating to: 

(i) the aPPointment of Mr. Best as the director ofNelson Barbados: 

(ii) the status of Mr. Best with respect to Nelson Barbados and Mr. Be§t's 
association with all of the matters in issue in the action. including. but not 
limited to. the security and/or ownershiP Which Nelson Barbados hag. or 
allegedly has. in the shares of Nelson Barbados: 

(iii) any and all details of the reaSOn for the incornoration Of Nelson Barbados: 

(iv) anY and all details of the security over and ownership rights held by 
Nelson Barbados in the cowman shares of Kingsland and all questions 
reasonably arising therefrom: 

(v) the renns of Mr. McKenzie's retainer. or his firm's retainer. with Nelson 
Barbados: 

(vi) any and all details of the rendering of professional accounts. by Mr. 
McKenzie or his finn. to Nelson Barbados: and 

(vii) anY and all details regarding the individual who retained and paid Mr. 
McKeuzie and/or his firm with respect to this action: 

oroduce within 5 business davs of this motion all books. contracts. letters. 

statemems. records and copies of same of Nelson Barbados in the custody. 

possession or power of Mr. McKenzie or his firm. including: 

(i) the incorooration documents for Nelson Barbados. minute book. directors' 
register. shareholders' register. banking documents Cinciuding bank 
account opening documems. OPerating agreemepts and bank statements): 
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(ii) all books of account }edgers and finapcial statements of Nelson Barb 
from the date of incorooration 1hrough to the wesent: 

(iii) all documents by which Nelson Barbados allege4ly acauired security or an 
owuership interest in the shares of K.ingslapd: 

(iv) all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John Knox); 

(v) the retainer agreement between Nelson Barbados and Mr. McKenzie 
and/or his firm: and 

(vi) all professional accounts for services provided by Mr. McKenzie with 
resnect to the action. 

in the alternative. an order striking paragraphs 6. 7. 8. 9. 16. 17. 20. and 152 from 

the affidavit of Mr. McKenzie. sworn October 2. 2008: 

10. an order requiring The UPS Store Canada. a non-party to this motion. to deliver to 

the defendants copies of the original contract for 'rentaUuse. and anY billing records that exist 

fi:om the date the mail box was onened until mesent for the following mail boxes at the 

following The l(SP Store Canada locations: 

'f 

11. 

(a) Box 200. at 427 Princess Street Kingston. Ontario: 

(b) Box 1225. at 250 The East Mall. Toronto Ontario. Store 122 <C}ovgdale MaiD; 

and 

(c) Box 1715. at 250 The East Mall. Toronto. Ontario. Store 122: 

the order for production by The UPS Store Canada will not come into effect until 

10 davs after the date the order is mailed to Mr· Best and Nelson Barbados. thereby woviding 

sufficient time for Mr. Best and Nelson Barbados or a duly authorized represematiye to bring a 

motion before the Superior Court objecting to the production of the above noted non-party 

documents. 
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12. an order awarding costs of this motion to the Defendants on a full indemnitY 

scale, or in the alternative, on a substantial indemnity scale, fixed, and payable forthwith by the 

plaintiff, the plaintiff's officer Donald Best, Mr. McKenzie and Crawford, McKenzie, McLeatt, 

Anderson & Duncan LLP, on a joint and several basis; 

13. an order that Justice Shaughnessy remained seized of this action and permitting 

counsel to bring such further motions to, or seek such further directions from, His Honour, as 

may be necessary; and 

14. such further and other relief as this Honourable Court may deem just. 

THE GROUNDS FOR THE MOTION ARE: 

15. having discontinued the action, the' Defendants are prima facie entitled to the 

costs of this action; 

16. m this case, the usual order of partial indemnity costs is neither fair nor 

appropriate. All of the Defendants were forced to incur extraordinary legal fees to respond to 

unmeritorious claims and obstructionist tactics of the plaintiff and Mr. McKenzie. Throughout, 

and by reason of the fact that Mr. McKenzie and his firm asserted a claim that was devoid of 

merit, and thereafter took steps to intentionally complicate, delay and thwart the timely and 

efficient hearing of the jurisdiction motions brought by certain of the defendants, the Defendants 

seek costs on a full indemnity, or in the alternative substantial indemnity, scale for the following 

reasons: 

(a) Mr. McKenzie and his firm commenced and pursued an action in the Ontario 

Superior Court of Justice for the improper purpose of, amongst other things, re-

litigating issues uniquely connected to Barbados and which were, or continue to 
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be, the subject of civil proceedings in that country. Mr. McKenzie knew, from the 

outset, that the action had no real or substantial connection with Ontario· , 

the action, brought by a shell corporation registered to Mr. McKenzie's law finn, 

was devoid of merit and was brought against numerous parties (including high 

profile individuals) such as the former Prime Minister and Chief Justice of 

Barbados to embarrass individual defendants, the country of Barbados and its 

judicial system; 

having commenced the action for an improper purpose, in a jurisdiction which 

had no connection to the parties or the matters in issue, Mr. McKenzie carefully 

set out to litigate the case in a fashion that would embarrass the defendants, run-

up costs and delay the timely adjudication of the jurisdiction motions. Without 

being exhaustive, the Moving Defendants rely upon: 

(i) the fact that the amended statement of claim makes bald allegations of 
conspiracy, without any factual foundation, and does not plead a 
sustainable cause of action; 

(ii) the fact that the amended statement of claim fails to plead evidence, or 
justify any connection, between the failed acquisition of the Kingsland 
shares and a real connection with Ontario; 

(iii) the fact that Mr. McKenzie and his finn commenced the action in the 
of one entity (Nelson Barbados Investments Inc.) which he then 

discontinued and re-asserted through a different entity (Nelson Barbados 
Group Ltd.), without amending the pleading to explain how the "new" 
plaintiff actually acquired "security'' in the shares of Kingsland; 

(iv) Mr. McKenzie's decision not to tender evidence from the plaintiff's only 
officer, Donald Best, and his decision only to file evidence from John 
Knox; 

(v) Mr. McKenzie's steadfast, and on-going, refusal to answer any questions 
or disclose information with respect to the plaintiff, whether in response to 
questions from the defence, or this Honourable Court, through Justice 
Shaughnessy on April 7 and 8, 2009; 

(vi) Mr. McKenzie's inflammatory, and often offensive, allegations to the 
effect that the Barbados Justice system was inadequate or even corrupt - -
allegations which Mr. McKenzie continued to pursue even after they had 
clearly been refuted by the current Chief Justice, Sir David Simmons; 
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(vii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to sue 25 "John Does" and to subsequently add 
15 more defendants to the action in August, 2007; 

(viii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to rely upon the surreptitious tape recording of 
two telephone calls (between Stuart Heaslet and Peter Simmons) to secure 
allegedly incriminating evidence of"serious and specific threats"; 

(ix) Mr. McKenzie's decision not to disclose the tape recordings in a timely 
fashion, but rather, to use the evidence for purely strategic reasons, 
whether to secure cross-examinations in Ontario or in a feigned attempt to 
suggest that Barbados was simply too dangerous or too corrupt for the 
adjudication of the matters in Barbados; 

(x) Mr. McKenzie's refusal to respond to the reasonable requests of the 
defence for particulars of the alleged ''threats" and his decision not to 
candidly disclose information, notwithstanding the seriousness of the 
allegations; 

(xi) Mr. McKenzie's decision to retain "experts" supposedly skilled in ''threat 
analysis" and to deliver voluminous motion materials to obtain an order 
requiring the cross-examinations to be held in Ontario and requiring the 
defendants to post $500,000 to cover security costs for Mr. McKenzie and 
his legal team; 

(xii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to persist with allegations of continuing security 
concerns even though Mr. McKenzie knew that such allegations were 
baseless and utterly unfounded; 

(xiii) Mr. McKenzie's repeated efforts to secure and/or introduce irrelevant 
evidence into the proceeding including the transcript evidence of Nitin 
Amersey, the data and electronically stored information (and other 
evidence) of Cable & Wireless (as described in Mr. McKenzie's letter 
dated January 2, 2008), and the numerous postings on the Keltruth blog 
and other websites; 

(xiv) Mr. McKenzie's persistent refusal to answer reasonable questions of the 
defence (whether on matters of scheduling, the place of cross-
examinations, the order of cross-examinations, etc.) necessitating 
numerous motions for directions; 

(xv) Mr. McKenzie's decision to conduct the cross-examinations of the 
Barbadian witnesses contrary to the integrity and fairness of the process 
by, amongst other things, examining upon topics that were completely 
irrelevant, examining upon incomplete and/or redacted documents, and 
improperly marking exhibits, presumably for the Keltruth blog; 
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McKenzie personally, and to his law firm, Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, Anderson & Duncan 

LLP, so as to sanction the improper conduct and to ensure the costs are in fact paid. 

18. the Defendants are entitled to set aside the cost awards referred to in paragraph 2 

{page 2 above) and to have those costs awards supplemented by orders granting costs on a full 

indemnity scale on the basis that Justice Shaughnessy, Howden and Ferguson would have 

granted costs on that scale had they known the facts arising after the orders were made, as set 

forth in the affidavit of Lawrence Hansen sworn June 18, 2009 and Ivo Entchev sworn June 3, 

2009; 

19. further, and for the same reasons, the Defendants are also entitled to costs of the 

motions, attendances and conference calls enumerated in paragraph 3 {page 3 above) on a full 

indemnity, or in the alternative, substantial indemnity scale; 

20. the defendants sought to cross-examine Mr. McKeuzie on the Affidavit. which 

was filed in sunnort of the within motion. The deferuiants were candid and forthright. Mr. 

Ranking informed Mr. McKenzie's counsel Cby letter dated October 27. 2009). inter alia that the 

defence intended to ask questions relating to: 

(a) the appointment ofMr.J3est as the director ofNelson Barbados: 

(b) the statu§ of Mr. Best with respect to Nelson Barbados and Mr. Best's association 

with all of the matters in issue in the action,. including. but not limited to. the 

security apdlor owuership Which Nelson Barbasios has. or allegedly has. in the 

shares ofNelson Barbados: 

(c) any and all details of the reason for the incornoration ofNelson Barbados: 
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the tenns of Mr. McKenzie's retainer. or his finn's retaing. with Nelson 

Barbados: 

(e) any and all cietails of the rendering of professional accounts. by Mr. McKenzie or 
his finn. to Nelson Barbados; and 

(f) anY and all details regarding the indivigual who retained and paid Mr.· McK.enzie . 
andlor his finn with respect to this action: 

the defendants infonned Mr· McKenzie's coWlsel (by letter dated October 27. 

2009. and by Notice of Examination). inter aliq. that they roouired production of docuroents. 

including: 

22. 

(a) all incomoration documents for Nelson Barbados. including minute books. 

directors' register. shareholders' register. banking documents (including bank 

account opening documents· ooerating agreements and bank statements): 

(b) all books of account. ledgers and financial statements of Nelson Barbados from 
the date of incomoration through to the present: 

(c) all documents by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acauifed security or an 

ownership interest in the shares of Kingsland: 

(d) all truSt documents (referred to in the crOSS-examination of John Knox); 

(e) the retainer agreement between Nelson Barbados and Mr. McKenzie apd/or his 

fipp: and 

(f) all professional accounts for services provided by Mr. McKenzie with respect to 

the action. 

Mr. McKenzie. through his coWlSeL provided the defendants with a ''blanket 

refusal" to answer any question relating to the issues identified in paragraph 8a. abOve. or to 
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28. the defendants have reouested that The yps Store Canada voluntarily produce the 

documents that are sought on this motion: 

29. the docwnents are relevant to a material issue in the action: 

30. it would be unfair to require the defendants to proceed to the hearing of this 

motion without haying obtained copies of the aboye noted documents: 

31. Rules 1.04, 23.05, 37, 39, 57.01, 57.03, 57.07 and 59.06(2) of the 

Rules of Civil Procedure; 

32. Rule 4.01 of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Law Society of Upper 

Canada, and the commentaries thereunder; 

33. 

34. 

permit. 

section 131 of the Courts of Justice Act; and 

such further and other grounds as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE will be used at the 

hearing of the motion: 

(a) the affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette sworn December 8, 2008; 

(b) the affidavit of Lawrence Hansen sworn June 18, 2009; 

(c) the affidavit of lvo Entchev sworn June 3, 2009; 

(d) the Joint Compendium; 

(e) the affidavit of Jim Van Allen sworn October 21. 2009; 



- 16-

(f) the affidavit of Sebastien Kwidzinski, sworn October 27, 2009; 

(g) the affidavit of Sebastien Kwidzinski. sworn October 29. 2009; 

(h) if necessary, or as required, the numerous motion records, affidavits, factums and 

other materials filed by the plaintiff in the course of this action; and 

(i) such further and other material as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court 

may permit. 

October 29. 2009 FASKEN MARTINEAU DuMOULIN LLP 
Barristers and Solicitors 
Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
66 Wellington Street West 
P.O. Box 20 
Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto, Ontario M5K 1N6 

Gerald L.R. Ranking [LSUC #23855J] 
Tel: 416-865-4419 
Fax: 416-364-7813 

Solicitors for the Defendant, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm 

Prepared for, and on behalf of, all Defendants 

TO: SACK GOLDBLATT MITCHELL LLP 
Barristers and Solicitors 
20 Dundas Street West 
Suite 1100 
Toronto. Ontario 
M5G2G8 

Sean Dewart 
Tel: 416-979-6970 
Fax: 416-591-7333 

Solicitors for the K. William McKenzie 
and Crawford. McKenzie, McLean. Anderson & Duncan LLP 
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AND TO: 

GOODMANS LLP 
250 Y onge Street, Suite 2400 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5B2M6 

David D. Conklin 
Tel: 416-979-2211 
Fax: 416-979-1234 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
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Commonwealth Construction Canada Ltd. and Commonwealth Construction Inc. 

BLAKE, CASSELS & GRAYDON LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Box 25, Commerce Court West 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5L 1A9 

Paul Schabas [LSUC #26355A] 
Tel: 416-863-4274 
Fax: 416-863-2653 

Ryder Gilliland [LSUC #45662C] 
Tel: 416-863-5849 
Fax: 416-863-2653 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
David Simmons, Peter Simmons, Philip Greaves, David Shorey, 
David C. Shorey and Company, David Carmichael Shorey 
and S.B.G. Development Corporation 
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AND TO: 

- 18 -

CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL LLP 
Lawyers 
2100 Scotia Plaza 
40 King Street West 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H3C2 

Lorne S. Silver [LSUC #24238L] 
Tel: 416-869-5490 
Fax: 416-640-3018 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Richard Ivan Cox, Gerard Cox, Alan Cox, Gittens Clyde Turney, 
R.G. Manderville & Co., Keble Worrell Ltd., Lionel Nurse, 
Owen Seymour Arthur, Mark Cummins, Kingsland Estates Limited, 
Classic Investments Limited, The Barbados Agricultural Credit Trust, 
Attorney General of Barbados, the Country of Barbados, Elneth Kentish, 
Malcolm Deane, Eric Ashby Bentham Deane, Owen Basil Keith Deane, 
Estate of Vivian Gordon Lee Deane, David Thompson, Owen Gordon Finlay Deane, 
Life ofBarbados Holdings, Life of Barbados Limited and Leonard Nurse 
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AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

TEAM RESOLUTION 
480 University A venue 
Suite 1600 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5G 1V6 

David Bristow 
Tel: 416-597-3395 
Fax: 416-597-3370 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 

- 19-

Philip Vernon Nicholls and Cottle, Catford & Co. 

DEVRY, SMITH & FRANK LLP 
100 Barber Greene Road 
Suite 100 
Toronto, Ontario 
M3C 3E9 

Lawrence Hansen 
Tel: 416-449-1400 
Fax: 416-449-7071 

Solicitors for the Defendant, Glyne Bannister 

STIKEMAN ELLIOTT LLP 
5300 Commerce Court West 
199 Bay Street 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5L 1B9 

Adrian Lang 
Tel: 416-869-5500 
Fax: 416-947-0866 

Solicitor for the Defendant, 
First Caribbean International Bank 

MILLER THOMSON LLP 
40 King Street West 
Suite 5800, P.O. Box 1011 
Toronto, Ontario 
MSH 3S1 

Andrew Roman 
Tel: 416-595-8604 
Fax: 416-595-8695 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Eric lain Stewart Deane and the Estate of Colin Ian Estwick Deane 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "K" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 
OF February, 015 

A Commissioner etc. 

Kerry Ann Eckstelll, a ClllftlftlasloMr. Ill., 
Province of OntaJio, for the Govemmlnl ol 
Ollado.llnistry of the AtiDmey ....... . 
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BETWEEN: 

F 1 L E D JUN 0 8 2Dtn 

Court File No. 07-0141 
ONTARIO 

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 
Plaintiff 

RICHARD IVAN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON 
NICHOLLS, ERIC ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, GLYNE 
BANNISTER, GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GRAVES, a.k.a. PHILP 

GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, R. G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTTLE, 
CATFORD & CO., KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE, 
ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE. LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, 

MALCOLM DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, EDWARD BAYLEY. 
FRANCIS OEHER, DAVID SHOREY, OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK 
CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN 
ASSOCIATES LIMITED, GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES 

LIMITED, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORN BROOK INTERNATIONAL 

INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, THE BARBADOS 
AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX ARTISTS MANAGEMENT 

LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY 
LTD., FIRST CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD •• 

PRICE WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL OF 
BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25, PHILIP 
GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANE, DAVID THOMPSON, 
EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., 
GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC 
INVESTMENTS LIMITED and LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE 

OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID 
CARMICHAEL SHOREY, PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST 
CARIBBEAN FIRM, VECO CORPORATION. COMMONWEALTH 

CONSTRUCTION CANADA L TO. AND COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, 
INC. 

Defendants 

MINUTES OF SETTLEMENT 
(Executed June 7, 2010) 
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BETWEEN 

PriceWaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Finn ("PwC'') 

-and· 

Richard Ivan Cox. Gerard Cox. Alan Cox, Gittens Clyde Turney, R.G. 
Mandeville & Co., Keble Worrell ltd., Lionel Nurse, Owen Seymour Arthur, 
Mark Cummins, Kingsland Estates limited, Classic Investments Limited, 

The Barbados Agricultural Credit Attorney General of Barbados, the 
Country of Barbados, Elneth Kentish, Malcolm Deane, Eric Ashby Bentham 
Daane (also known as "Errie Deane" and "Eric Deane"), Owen Basil Keith 
Deane (also known as "Keith Deane"), Estate of Vivian Gordon Lee Deane, 
David Thompson, OWen Gordon Finlay Deane, life of Barbados Holdings, 

Life of Barbados Limited and Leonard Nurse (collectively, the "Cox 
Defendants") 

-and-

K. William McKenzie ("McKenzie") 

-and-

Crawford, Mclean, Anderson & Duncan LLP ("Crawford") 

-and-

Peter Allard ("Allard") 

WHEREAS defendants in this Action brought a motion seeking costs of 
this Action from all respondents named in paragraph 1 of the Further Further 
Amended Notice of Motion dated April 22, 2010 (attached hereto as Schedule A), 
returnable June 7-11, 2010 (the "Costs Motion"); 

AND WHEREAS McKenzie, Crawford and Allard (all three, collectivety, 
the "Respondent Group"), and PwC and the Cox Defendants, desire to resolve all 
matters pertaining to the Costs Motion (McKenzie, Crawford, Allard, PwC and the 
Cox Defendants, individually, "Party", collectively, the "Parties"); 

AND WHEREAS the Parties are represented by the following counsel in 
respect of the Costs Motion, which counsel are authorized to execute these 
Minutes of Settlement on behalf of their clients: 

McKenzie: 
Crawford: 
Allard: 
PwC: 
Cox Defendants: 

Kramer Henderson Sidlofsky LLP 
Blaney McMurtry LLP 
Paliare Roland Rosenberg Rothstein LLP rPaliare Roland") 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP ("Faskens") 
Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP ("Cassels"} 
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NOW THEREFORE the Parties agree as follows: 

1 . The Respondent Group will pay the following amounts in respect of costs 
(fees, disbursements and GST) of the Action, including of the Costs 
Motion, within 30 days, by certified cheque or bank draft: 

a. To PwC, the amount of $927,981.50, payable to Fasken Martineau 
DuMoulin LLP, in trust 

b. To the Cox Defendants, the amount of $775,000, payable to 
Cassels BrocK & Blackwell LLP, in trust. 

2. Paliare Roland confirms that Allard's portion of the above amounts is in 
Paliare Roland's trust account as of the signing of these Minutes of 
Settlement. 

3. PwC and the Cox Defendants confirm that payment of the above amounts 
satisfies all claims for costs in respect of the Action, against all 
respondents listed in paragraph 1 of the Further Further Amended Notice 
of Motion dated April 22, 2010, including of the Costs Motion, except that 
PwC and the Cox Defendants do not release Mr. Donald Best (and shall 
be at liberty to pursue him) for the costs (respectively of $50,632.90 and 
$13.230.00) and contempt reflected in the order made by Justice 
Shaughnessy dated January 15, 2010 (attached hereto as Schedule B). 

4. Faskens and Cassels confirm that they do not currently have instructions 
to pursue Donald Best for the costs and contempt reflected in the order 
made by Justice Shaughnessy dated January 15, 2010, and do not 
currently expect to obtain such instructions in the immediate future, but 
such instructions may be forthcoming in the future depending on the 
circumstances. 

5. Allard agrees not to fund any proceedings or claims against and/or 
involving PwC, its partners or related entities (collectively "PwC") in any 
jurisdiction other than the state of Florida concerning or related to 
Kingsland Estates Ltd. If any proceedings or claims funded by Allard 
proceed in Florida against and/or involving PwC, Allard and PwC hereby 
agree, as a matter of contract. that the losing party shall indemnify and 
pay the reasonable attorney fees and disbursements of the prevailing 
party (to be agreed upon, or failing agreement. to be determined by the 
judge in Florida, following submissions by counsel for the parties). For 
greater certainty, the scale of costs that should be applied shall be akin to 
an Ontario award of costs on a substantial indemnity scale. 
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6. Notwithstanding paragraph 5 above, Allard and the Responding Group 
acknowledge that nothing in this agreement constitutes attornment, and 
that PwC expressly contests the jurisdiction of the state of Florida for the 
adjudication of any matters concerning or related to Kingsland Estates 
Ltd. 

7. The documentation produced in consequence of the cross examinations 
and answers to undertakings in the Costs Motion, and any further 
documentation to be obtained. if any, in consequence of subparagraph 
7(b ), below, will be filed by Cassels or treated as filed by Cassels with the 
court. Cassels will ensure that the Responding Group is provided with a 
copy of all such documents. In addition: 

a. The original legal files maintained by McKenzie or at his direction. 
as inspected by Faskens and Cassels on and following May 13, 
2010, will be preserved and maintained by Crawford in their current 
state and access will not be given to any Party without prior notice 
to the other Parties; 

b. Subject to paragraph 7{a), above. the Parties will be entitled to 
access for the purpose of comparing the discs attached to Jessica 
Zagar's affidavit (and thus to be filed with the court) and to request 
additional copies as and if required; 

c. In the event that fonnal proof of the authenticity of the records is 
required (for example, in respect of proceedings in Florida), a 
member of Crawford will in providing same; and 

d. Any reasonable costs (time and disbursements) incurred by 
Crawford with regard to its obligations under this paragraph 7 will 
be borne by the Party so requesting Crawford's 

8. McKenzie will not be involved, either directly or indirectly, in prosecuting, 
or advising Allard or anyone else, with respect to potential claims against 
PwC. However nothing herein shall prevent Mr. McKenzie from appearing 
as a witness in any subsequent proceeding in the event he is subpoenaed 
or served with other similar court process for such purpose. 

9. Allard confirms he has not given any party to the Action other than PwC 
an assurance not to fund litigation against it. 

10. The settlement between the Parties. these Minutes of Settlement. and its 
terms, are not confidential. However, PwC and the Cox Defendants agree 
they will not take active steps to publicize this settlement. these Minutes of 
Settlement and its terms in such a manner that would impugn Crawford or 
its partners. 
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11 . This agreement may be signed in counterparts and by fax or emaiL 

ALL OF WHICH IS AGREED TO THIS 7TH DAY OF JUNE, 2010. 

PriceWaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm 
by: Fasken Martrri9a'U DuMoulin LLP 

1 The Cox Defendants 
by: Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP 

K. William McKenzie 
by: Kramer Henderson Sidlofsky LLP 

Crawford, McLean, Anderson & Duncan LLP 
by: Blaney LLP 

Peter Allard 
by: Paliare Roland Rosenberg Rothstein LLP 
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11. This agreement may be signed In counterparts and by fax or email. 

ALL OF WHICH IS AGREED TO THIS 7TH DAY OF JUNE, 2010. 

PriceWaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Arm 
by: Fasken Martineau DuMouUn LLP 

The Cox Defendants 
by: Cassels Brock & Blackwell LLP 

K. WHiiam McKenzie 
by: Kramer Henderson Sidlofsky LLP 

Peter Allard 
by: Paiare Roland Rosenberg Rothstein LLP 
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SCHEDL'LE "A" 

Court File No.: 07-0141 

BETWEEN: 

ONTARJO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

-and-

Plamtiff 

RICHARD IVAN COX, GERARD COX, COX, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASimY BENTHAM DEANE, O'WEN BASIL KEITII DEANE, 

MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GLYNE GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PIDLIP GREAVES 

a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE Tl.!'RNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVU.LE &. CO., CO'ITLE, CATFORD & CO., 
KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEW ART DF..ANE, 

EST ATE OF COLI!'l DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 
DEA.l'li"E, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 

EDWARD BAYLEY. FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 
OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 

BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 
GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 

CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL CONSULT ANTS INC., THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AI'ID COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEA."'i INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAl, 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHn.IP GREA YES, ESTATE OF VlVlA.N GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BA \"'LEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) DlC., 

OWEN GORDON .FlNLA Y DEANE, CLASSIC Th"'"\t"'ESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERBOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM. 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMOI"WEA.L Til CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION', INC. 

FURTHER f1JRTHER AMENDED NOTICE OF MOTION 
(Motion returnable Monday. June 7.8,9.10.11. 2010) 

Defendants 

The defendant, PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm, and all other 
similarly situated defendants who were served with a Notice of Discontinuance on March 23, 
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2009, as listed in Schedule "A" hereto, and all other defendants (collectively the "Defendants") 
will make a motion to the Honourable Mr. Justice Shaughnessy on Monday. Jype 7. 201Q. at 
10:00 a.m., or as soon after that time as the motion can be heard, at the Courthouse at l5Q Bgnd 
Street Ill Qsb.iWA. Ontario. 

PROPOSED METHOD OF HEARING: the motion is to be heard orally. 

THE MOTION IS FOR an order: 

1. awarding costs of this action to the Defendants on a full indemnity scale, or in the 

alternative, on a substantial indemnity scale (as set forth in the Bills of Costs, and to be 

delivered) fixed, and payable forthwith by the plaintiff, the plaintiff's officer Donald Best, 

K. William McKenzie ("Mr. McKenzie") and Mr. McKenzie's appNentlv fonner law fmn, 

Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, Anderson & Duncan LLP (UQW myned Crawfon1 • .M.£1&i!,n_. 

fco!lectivclv. the "Kno.x famjl.:{}on a joint and several basis; 

2. in furtherance of the relief sought in paragraph I above, an order setting aside the 

cost orders iil>1ed below, and supplementing those orders by awarding costs to the Defendants on 

full indemnity scale. The orders to he set aside, and supplemented, are: 

(a) the order of Justice Shaughnessy dated April 16, 2008 dealing with the costs of 

the various motions (principally the issue of security) on January l 4. 15, 17 and 

18. 2008 which awarded costs to the defendants on a partial indemnity scale; 

(b) the order of Justice Howden dated August 8. 2008 dealing with the costs of the 

plamtiff's appeal of Justice Shaughnessy's rulings on the motions heard on 

January 14 .. 15 and 1 7 which awardeq _ _gosts to the responding parties rnpresented 

by Cassels, Brock & Blackwell on a partial indemnity scale; 



3. 

- 3-

{c) the order of Justice Ferguson dated May S, 2009 dealing with the costs of the 

plaintiff's motion for leave to appeal (the order of Justice Shaughnessy dated 

December 3, 2008) which awarded costs to the Defendants on a substantial 

indemnity scale; and 

(d) !be ordg ofJustice Shaughnessy dated Ianuan:J5. 2010 dgliog with the 

the motion to find Donald Best in fd.lntemot 

in addition, and also in furtherance of tbe relief sought in paragraph 1 above. an 

order awarding costs to the Defendants of the following motions, attendances or conference calls 

for which costs have not yet been awarded by this Honourable Court: 

(a) the order dated December 3, 2007 dealing with the timing for the delivery of Peter 

Simmons' affidavit, Dr. Sharon Smith's expert report and the delivery of the 

defendants' materials to respond to plaintiffs motion regarding alleged 

threats/security concerns; 

(b) the order dated April 4, 2008 dealing with the plaintiffs motion for clarification, 

reconsideration or review of certain issues in the reasons of the Honourable 

Justice Shaughnessy dated February 8, 2008; 

! c) the costs thrown away for the defendants havmg to prepare motions to secure 

payment of the cost awards of Justice Shaughnessy (issued pursuant to Justice 

Shaughnessy's cost award dated April 16, 2008); 

(d) the order dated August 7, 2008 dealing with Mr. McKenzie's issues regarding the 

calculation ofGST on the Defendants' bills of costs; 

(e) the order dated October 24, 2008 dealing wah the motion by 

PricewaterbouseCoopers East Caribbean Finn, and other defendants, for 

direc!ions regarding the cross-examinations in Barbados; 

(f) the order dated December 3, 2008 dealmg with the plaintiff's motion seeking the 

release of the videotapes of the cross-examinations held in Barbados {from 
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October 27, 2008 to November 1, 2008) and the release of the videotapes of the 

cross-examinations held in Toronto (on November 3 and 4, 2008); 

(g) the attendance and the subsequent order dated December 8, 2008 dealing with Mr. 

McKenzie's request to adjourn all jurisdiction motions and the adjournment 

thereof; 

(h) the order dated January 5, 2009 (following a conference call on that date) dealing 

with Mr. McKenzie's request to view the videotapes and to set a date for hearing 

of the jurisdiction motions; 

(i) tb' cost§ thrown &t:; the haying to prepare for the October 28. 
2009 examination of Mt McKenzie. apd the subseauent preparations of the 

further Amended Notice of Motion. sunn!emeutarv affidavit material and fActum 
to address the blanket refusal of Mrr McKenzie to answer any questions relating 
w Mr. Dgnald Best aqd Nelsgn Bar.b,Qdo§ y[QUQ Ltd. ("Nelson Barb;dos'?: 

(j) the orcier dated 2, 2010 dealjua mtb the production ofdocwnents Allsi 
gf Dgn\\ld and Mr. McKepzje for cross-examination; 

(k) tlu; CQSts of orepiJtin& for. and mending at w2fion on February 22. 23, 

and 24. 2010. and the aubsegumLPm21laUQns ceouired as a result of tb.e 

(1) 

Respondent's delay of this Proceeding: and 

the order dated Aoril 1 L.iOl 0 deaJing with the nroduction of inswance 

and furtb;r answers to undenak,igg§i 

an order awarding costs of this motion to the Defendants, including all costs 

on a full indemnity scale, or in the alternative, on a substantial 

indemnity scale, fixed, and payable forthwith by the plaintiff, the plaintiffs officer Donald Best, 

Mr. McKenzie, Crawford McLean. Mr. Allard and tl)e Knox Famj,h: on a joint and several basis; 
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5. an order that Justice Shaughnessy remained seized of this action and permitting 

counsel to bring such further motions to, or seek such further directions from. His Honour. as 

mav be necessary; 

6. lf.necessary. an order validating srojce ao<Ul?Pd&ing the time for seryice: and 

7. such further and other relief as this Honourable Coun may deem just. 

THE GROUNDS FOR THE MOTION ARE: 

1. having discontinued the action. the Defendants are prima facie entitled to the 

costs of this 

2. in this case, the usual order of partial indemnity costs is nt.-ither fair nor 

appropriate. All of the Defendants were forced to incur extraordinary legal fees to respond to 

unmeritorious claims and obstructionist tactics of the plaintiff and Mr. McKenzie. Thoughout, 

and by reason of the fact that Mr. McKenzie and his finn asserted a claim that was devoid of 

merit. and thereafter took steps to intentionally complicate, delay and thwart the timely and 

efficient hearing of the jurisdiction motions brought by certain of the defendants, the Defendants 

seek costs on a full indemnity. or in the alternative substantial indemnity, scale for the follov.ring 

reasons: 

(a) Mr. McKenzie and his firm commenced and pursued an action in the Ontario 

Superior Court of Justice for the 1mproper purpose of, amongst other things, re-
litigating issues uniquely connected to Barbados and which were, or continue to 
be, the subject of civil proceedings in that country. Mr. McKenzie knew, from the 

outset, that the action had no real or substantial connection with 
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(b) the action, brought by a shell corporation registered to Mr. McKenzie's law finn, 

was devoid of merit and was brought against numerous parties (including high 

profile individuals) such as the former Prime Minister and Chief Justice of 

Barbados to embarrass individual defendants, the country of Barbados and its 

judicial system; 

(c) having commenced the action for an improper purpose, in a jmisdiction which 

had no connection to the parties or the matters in issue, Mr. McKenzie carefully 
set out to litigate the case in a fashion that would embarrass the defendants, run-

up costs and delay the timely adjudication of the jurisdiction motions. Without 

being exhaustive, the Moving Defendants rely upon: 

(i) the fact that the amended statement of claim makes bald allegations of 
conspiracy, without any factual foundation, and does not plead a 
sustainable cause of adion; 

(ii) the fact that the amended statement of clatm fails to plead evidence, or 
justify any connection, between the failed acquisition of the Kingsland 
shares and a real connection with Ontario; 

(iii) the fact that Mr. McKenzie and his finn commenced the action in the 
name of one entity (Nelson Barbados Investments Inc.) which he then 
discontinued and re-asserted through a different entity (Nelson Barbados 
Group Ltd.), without amending the pleading to explain bow the "new" 
plaintiff actually acquired "security" in the shares of Kingsland; 

(iv) Mr. McKenzie's decision not to tender evidence from the plaintiff's only 
officer, Donald Best, and his decision only to file evidence from John 
Knox: 

(v) Mr. McKenzie's steadfast, and on-going, refusal to answer any questions 
or disclose infonnation with respect to the plaintiff, whether in response to 
questions from the defence, or this Honourable Court, through Justice 
Shaughnessy on April 7 and 8, 2009; 

(vi) Mr. McKenzie's inflammatory, and often offensive, allegations to the 
effect that the Barbados Justice system was inadequate or even corrupt-
aUegations which Mr. McKenzie continued to pursue even after they had 
clearly been refuted by the current Chief Justice, Sir David Simmons; 

(vii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to sue 25 "John Does" and to subsequently add 
15 more defendants to the action in August, 2007; 
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(viii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to rely upon the surreptitious tape recording of 
two telephone calls (between Stuart Heaslet and Peter Simmons) to secure 
allegedly incriminating evidence of "serious and specific threats"; 

(lx) Mr. McKenzie's decision not to disclose the tape recordings in a timely 
fashion, but rather, to use the evidence for purely strategic reasons, 
whether to secure cross-examinations in Ontario or in a feigned attempt to 
suggest that Barbados was simply too dangerous or too corrupt for the 
adjudication of the matters in Barbados; 

(x) Mr. McKenzie's refusal to respond to the reasonable requests of the 
defence for particulars of the alleged "threats" and his decision not to 
candidly disclose information, notwithstanding the seriousness of the 
allegations: 

(xi) Mr. McKenzie's decision to retain "experts" supposedly skilled in "threat 
analysis" and to deliver voluminous motion materials to obtam an order 
requiring the cross-examinations to be held in Ontario and requiring the 
defendants to post $500,000 to cover security costs for Mr. McKellZle and 
his legal team; 

(xii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to persist with allegations of continuing secunty 
concerns even though Mr. McKenzie knew that such allegations were 
baseless and utterly unfounded; 

(xiii) Mr. McKenzie's repeated efforts to secure and/or introduce irrelevant 
evidence into the proceeding including the transcript evidence of Nitin 
Amersey, the data and electronically stored information (and other 
evidence) of Cable & Wireless (as described in Mr. McKenzie's letter 
dated January 2, 2008), and the numerous postings on the Keltruth blog 
and other 

(xiv) Mr. McKenzie's persistent refusal to answer reasonable questions of the 
defence (whether on matters of scheduling, the place of cross-
examinations, the order of cross-examinations, etc.) necessitating 
numerous motions for 

(xv) Mr. McKenzie's decision to conduct the cross-examinations of the 
Barbadian witnesses contrary to the integrity and fairness of the process 
by, amongst other things, examining upon topics that were completely 
irrelevant. examining upon incomplete and/or redacted documents, and 
improperly marking exhibits, presumably for the Keltruth 

(xvi) Mr. McKenzie's decision not to properly prepare John Knox to be cross-
examined by. amongst other things, not ensuring that all relevant 
documents were brought to his cross-examination; 
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.g. 

(xvii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to carefully orchestrate the documents produced 
by John Knox (all of which Mr. Knox admitted originated from Mr. 
McKenzie) on a memory stick containing some 4,000 documents and Mr. 
McKenzie's subsequent refusal to identify the documents upon which he 
intended to rely, contrary to his undertaking to do so; 

(xviii) Mr. McKenzie's repeated, and intentional, refusal to pennit Mr. Knox to 
answer any questions with respect to the plaintiff, its business, records, 
and related documents; 

(xix) Mr. McKenzie's utter lack of professionalism by walking out of the 
examining room on November 4, 2008. even though defence counsel were 
still on the record; 

{xx) Mr. McKenzie's claims as to the critical importance of the videotapes of 
all the cross-examinations, notwithstanding the fact that Mr. McKenzie 
attended all cross-examinations (with his articling student, Marc Lemieux, 
who took notes) and where Mr. McKenzie himself admitted that the 
transcripts were recorded by Victory Verbatim, a court reporting service, 
who Mr. McKenzie described as "professional and reliable"' 

txxi) Mr. McKenzie's failure to view the videotapes in a timely manner, or at 
all, after having claimed the alleged importance of the videotapes in his 
factum and in his submissions to both Justice Shaughnessy and to Justice 
Ferguson; 

(xxii) Mr. McKenzie's decision to repeatedly seek leave to appeal this Court's 
decisions; 

txxiii) overall, Mr. McKenzie's lack of common courtesy, respect and civility to 
defence and to v.itnesses throughout; 

(x.xw) Mr. McKenzie's decision to appeal the order of Justice Shaughnessy dated 
May 4, 2009 and his subseguent failure to take steps to perfect the appeal; 
and 

(xxv) the fact that the appeal of Justice Shaughnessy's order dated May 4, 2009 
was dismissed by the Court of Appeal for delay on October 8. 2009 such 
that. all Defendants are now entitled to recover their costs. 

{d) leadjng up H2 Mr. McK;nzi;, Cw:ford J:®Lean, 
the plaintiff apd Dopald Best cgntinu2Q in tb2ir course of egregious condu£t. 

WHhQM111.dug the DeferuJanlS.Jelv op the followw&: 
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(i) Qqnlijjl fWl w,MjQYndjp of tw;o orders of ibis Honourable 
CQurt. and to this dans pas to attend to purge his contetppt Wlll 
attend for 

(ii) Mr. McKenzi&initially refused to <mR¥.M for cros§-ex.amination o.n his 
affidavit sworn October 2. 2009. and refused 12 produce relevant 
dQCYIDSU§, including insurance oolicies setting out the_ extent of his 

(iii) crQss-exllllliniltkm on february 3 and B • .lQU1.Mr. McKewj; 
Was clearly evasive. It now cl;ar that Mr. McKenzie ljed rek!eatedly 
during his cross:examination: 

(iv) thereafter. Mt McKenzie failed to deliver anSWers to his undertakings in a 
timely manner· only delivering crvntic answers on the evx of tbx cost§ 
hearjng: 

(v) sJesoite being seryed wjth the Notice of Motion dated July 15. 20Q2 
<seeking CQSts against the firm) og July 23. 2009. Crawford McLean did 

of Mr. McKenzie. thereby unneceswilv increasing the at: this 
motjon: !Ild 

(vi) after the costs motjon <which commenced on February 22. 20JDl was 
adiournesi. the Defensiants were given. for the first that 
implicate Mr. AJlard and the Knox Familv; 

it is pow clear that Mr. Allani and/or the K.oox Family funde<J this action. The 

rely sm tbx following: 

{a) II§ ear}y as September 2005. Mr. Allard a client of Cm•ford McLean. The 

to Mr. Allard js referenced as,:'Knox & Kingsland 

(b) Crawford McLean's Client Ledgers. which begin in Seotemhq 2005. clear}y 

sbow that Mr. Allard was fundiui all of the nreliminarv wQrk 
McKenzie arul others) Prior tQ the commencement of this actio.llftorn as .wlx..as 
September 20Q,5.; 

{c) the Knox Family jnlO an agreement wheceby they pledged shares jn 
Kingsland Estates Limited to fund litigation related to Kingsland Estate Limited; 

269 
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(d) tb£. ,Waintiff corporation CNelson Bamados Group Ud> wu simply a nomiJlil 

plaintiff put forward by Mr. Mci(epzjc. McLean. Mr. A}lard and the 

Knox Fmn,ily for the pwposes of this action. Rguald Best and the o1aintiff 

comoration do om httve any real interestinJlK; action. Mr. Allard and the Knox 

familY are the trne nlaintiff action. @g are the partis; who stood to trulY 
benefit from and j\[e responsj]2Je f9t action; 

<,;mwford McLean. used tbe oiaintiff corooration as a .. maw man" to shield 

from liability fqr cosg;: 

(f) Mr. Allard !Yl!J tbe Knox Family con4uctQd the action. and instructed Mr· 
McKenzie and, 

(g) Mr. Allard Fwnily. with the k®wled&e of Mr. McKenzie and 
Crawford McLean, imoroperJy maintain;d this action fm their own benefit with 

inteptiQD of sharing the anticipated profit§: ADd 

(h) Mr. AJIAITJ a:gd the Family are proQer parties tg tQe costs 

motion. 

the Defendants therefore require the highest scale of costs to compensate them for 

the hundreds of thousands of dollars of legal fees thrown away. The order must extend to ML 

McKenzie Personally. to his law i;jnn. Crawfqrd McLean. to Donald Best. LQ Mt AJlml WlQ iQ 

the Famjly. to sanction the aboye noted part)es' egregious conduct apd abuse ofthjs court 

and 2f thev are s;ollectjvelY..m-cUrullyidually resnomible for 

5. the Defendants are entitled to set aside the cost awards referred to in paragraph 2 

(page 2 above} and to have those costs awards supplemented by orders granting costs on a full 

indemruty scale on the basis that Justice Shaughnessy, Howden and Ferguson would have 
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granted costs on that scale had they known the facts arising after the orders were made, as set 

forth in the affidavit of Hansen sworn June 18, 2009, lvo Entcbev sworn June 3, 2009, 

and Jessica Duncan, sworn Aoril 22. 20 l 0; 

6. further, and for the same reasons, the Defendants are also entitled to costS of the 

motions, attendances and conference calis enumerated in paragraph 3 (page 3 above) on a full 

indemnity, or in the alternative, substantial indemnity scale; 

7. Rules 1.04, 3.02, 11. 23.05, lQJ,Q, 37, 39, 57.01, 57.03, 

57.07, .i2 and 59.06(2) of the Rules of Civil Procedure; 

8. Rule 4.01 of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Law Society of Upper 

Canada, and the commentanes thereunder; 

9. section 131 of the Courts of Justice Act; and 

10. such further and other grounds as counsel may advise and this Honourable Cowt 

penn it. 

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE will be used at the 
hearing of the motion: 

(a) the affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette sworn December 8, 2008; 

(b) the affidavit of Lawrence Hansen sworn June 18, 2009: 

(c) the affidavit of lvo Entcbev sworn June 3. 2009; 

ld) the Joint Compendium; 

(e) the affidavit of Jim Van Allen sworn October 21. 2009; 

(f) the affidavit of Sebastien K widzinski. sworn October 27, 2009; 

271 



272 

- 12-

(h) the qffidavit ofl£§§igJ)upcan, sworn April22. 2010: 

(i) if necessary, or as required, the numerous motion records, affidavits, factums and 

other materials filed by the plaintiff in the course of this action; and 

(j) such further and other material as counsel may advise and this Honourable Court 

maypennit. 
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SCHEDULE"B" 

Court File No.: 07-0141 

THE HONOURABLE 

MR. JUSTICE SHAUGHNESSY 

BETWEEN: 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COu'RT OF JUSTICE 

FRIDAY, THE !5111 DAY 

OF JA.."'JUARY. 2010 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 
Plaintiff 

RICHARD JV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE lLMA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GL YNE BANNISTER, GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES 

a.k..a. PHILP GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTTLE, CA TFORD & CO., 

KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE, 
EST ATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 

DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 
EDWARD BAYLEY, fi'RANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 

OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CL'MMINS, GRAHAM BRO'"''N, 
BRlAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 

GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLA.. 'ill ESTATES LIMITED, 
CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LL\f.ITED, 

INTERNATIONAL CONSULT AA'TS INC., THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
THE BARBADOS AGRJCUL TITRAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTER"'ATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTOR.l\ffiY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOSt .and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF Vl\'lA.lloi GORDON LEE DEANS. 

DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BRO\\-'N & ASSOCIATES L m .. GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FISLA Y DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDL'<GS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CAR.WCRAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORA'nON, COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEAL Til CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendants 
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ORDER 

THIS MOTION made by the defendants, PricewatcrhouseCoopers East Caribbean firm 

(''PwC"), and the other defendants. for, among other things, an order finding Donald Best (":\1r. 

Best") to be in contempt of thts Honourable Court, and an order reqmring K. William McKenzie 

("Mr. McKenzie") to produce relevant documents, was heard th1s day in \Vhitby. Ontario. 

ON READING tht: Motion Record dated Nowrnber 27,2009, the affidaVIt of the 

Richard D. Butler sworn November 27, 2009, the Supplemental Motwn Record dated December 

14. 2009, the Supplemenlal Affidavit of R1chard D. Butler sworn December 14, 2009, the 

Factum of the defendants dated December 22, 2009, and the Brief of Authorities of the 

defendants dated December 12. 2009, and upon heanng the submisswns of counseL 

1. THIS COURT DECLARES that Best 1s in contempt of this Honourable 

Court by reason of his failure to attend to he exarr1ined on Tuesday. November 17, 2009 and 

Wednesday, November 25, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. at Victory Verbatim m Toronto, in breach of 

paragraph 3 of the November 2, 2009 order of the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy (the 

"November 2, 2009 Order''). 

2. THIS COURT ruRTHER DECLARES that Mr. Best 1s in contempt of th1s 

Honourable Court by reason of his failure to produce documents i'lt least one ( 1) week ;mor to his 

examination on November 17, 2009, in breach of paragraph 4 of the November 2. 2009 Order. 

3. THIS COURT F1JRTHER DECLARES that Mr. Best :s in contempt of this 

Honourable Court by reason of his failure ro attend to be examined before the Honourable 

Justice Shaughnessy and produce all docmncnts referred to i!l paragraph 4 of the November 2. 

2009 Order on Friday, January 15,2010 at the Cour:.house m Whttby, m breach ofparag:aph 3 of 
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the December 2, 2009 order of the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy (the "December 2, 2009 

Order" I. 

4. THIS COURT ORDERS that a warrant be issued for the arrest and comrrrittal of 

Mr. Best in the form attached hereto as "A", and Best be committed to 

provincial correctional instituticm for a period of '3 

5. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Mr. Best pay a fine in the amount of 

or other privilege between Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. ("Nelson Barbados") and Mr. Best 

(collectively, the "Clients'') and Mr. McKenzie. Crawford, McKenzie, McLean. Anderson & 

Duncan LLP ("Crawford McKenzie"), and any member or employee of Crawford McKenzie 

(collectively, the "Lawyers'"), and notwithstanding any duties of confidentiality owed by the 

Lawyers to the Clients under the Rules of Professional Conduct or otherwise, the Lawyers shall 
11-<... ft:1/-:=.,. ... flj ,'v(.,..,.,,R,\t\f 

produce to the moving parties copies gg9ks1 ]etters, statements, recotd&<ae4 

.-ople£ of of Nelson Barbados m the possession, power or control of Mr. McKenzie and 
0,.) b I{ :f.4-l'lu..My .J 7 .1.tJtO 

Crawford scvell (?}day! efthis 

(a.) the incorporation documents for Nelson Barbados. minute books, directors' 

reglster, shareholders' register, bankmg documents {including bank account 

opening documents. operating agreements and bank statements), non-pnvileged 

corresp0ndence. notes, memoranda and other busmess documents and ernails 

from the date of incorporation through to the present; 
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(b) a11 books of account, ledgers and financial statements of Nelson Barbados from 

the date of incorporation through to the present; 

(c) all documents by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an 

ownership interest in the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited (''Kingsland") from 

the date of incorporation through to the present; 

(d) alJ trust documents; 

(e) the retainer agreement between Nelson Barbados and Mr. McKenzie and/or 

Crawford McKenz1e; and 

(t) 

w1th respect to the action. .. . ' . , . . ,-,..;t 
.. • - ·-...... ::;; ·• • ..... .::. ,, <e... •"" H.. t1, •. v·- \ 1--:"-. n· 

all professional accounts for serY!ce provided by Mr. McKenzte and/or hts finn, t· 
. i"' ,, "1 ;:.-t 

t-t' ,_-;- t·-.1 •• ••• ..:;;...._ c. h..,. __ - -r • ._ ..... , - • · 1 
j-0 c: .. v•·'>fi:.'Y'';> Cr\ \\.,.c_ •. t'::f' h·> 

\,.,: .1 ..... . h. , .. 1:; "" •• t--" .... " . ' . 
THIS COURT FURTHER DECLARES that the documents reterred to m : tc,, ( __ \ 

paragraph 6 above are not the subject of litigation privilege or sohcnor-c!ient privilege. '-:.!.. I... 

b, ,.. -::._. 

THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that m the event that Mr. McKenzie and 

Crawford McKenzie had, but no longer have, the documentation referred to in paragraph 6 

above, Mr. McKenzie and Crawford McKenzie shall identify, with particulars, the date each 

document was prepared, the name of the individual who prepared the document. and they shall 

produce the last electronic version of the document in their possession, power and control, and 

they shall provide the names of individual(s) or person(sJ to whom each document was provided, 

the date the document was provtded to each individual/person, the reason why the possession, 

power and control over each document was lost, and the present location of each document. Mr. 
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O'"' oft Clrlb(l 
McKenzie and Crawford McKenzie shall pro\ide this infonnation Vf"ioorirhnevelf (9; eiays ef"ttris-

,z.. ..... THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that the costs of this motion be paid by 

Mr. Best personally, on a substantial indemnity basis . .u.tt"'*',J 1 0 lllt-Y S 11-J I.... I.. I' vJ 

1CJ 11A. F 'JlJto 
( v. ,..., s I L. v t.t '-' .... f tl. Q YJ l6. tJ1I 

'c. r1 R e l..li.lv u I' r;rt ro 
(bJ 1, Ms. Ct'-rlfl/iS .... .,.,... Y 

I 'S vv. crt> 
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Court File No 07-0141 

BETWEEN: 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

·and· 

Plamtiff 

RICHARD TV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHTIJP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEffH DEANE, 

'MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, DA VTD SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISB, 
Gl,YNE BANNISTER, GL YNE B. BANNlSTER, PHILIP GREAVES 

a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, GIITENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTTLE, CA TFORD & CO., 

KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE, 
ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 

DEA."lE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 
EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER. DAVID SHOREY. 

0\\'EN SEYMOUR ARTHl.JR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 
BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCV\ TES LIMITED, 

GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 
CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL Ll'oJC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES J-25 
PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VfV1AN GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID THOMPSON, EDML'"ND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBJ GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF B.o\RB.WOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CAR.l'ttiCHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRl\1, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMON"VEALTH CONSTRUCTION 
C.-\ .. t'iADA LTD and COMJ\.10NWEAL TR CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

WARRANT OF COMMITTAL 
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TO ALL POLICE OFFICERS ln Ontario 

Al'iD TO THE OFFICERS OF provincial correctional institutions in Ontario 

WHEREAS I have found that Donald Best is in contempt of this court and have ordered 
imprisonment as punishment for the contempt, 

YOU ARE ORDERED TO ARREST Donald Best and deliver him to a provincial 
correctional institution, to be detained there for a period of 

Justice Shaughnessy 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "L" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 

A Commissioner etc. 

" .. rry Ann Eckstein, a Commlsslontf, etc., 
Province of Ontario. for the Government of 
Olllldo. UIAIItry of tba 6llwiL 
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B E T W E E N: 

Court File No. 141-07 

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LIMITED 

- and -

RICHARD IVAN COX, et al. 
(as listed in Schedule A) 

M 0 T I 0 N 

Plaintiff 

Defendants 

BEFORE THE HONOURABLE JUSTICE J. B. SHAUGHNESSY 
on December 2, 2009 at Whitby, Ontario 

APPEARANCES: 

H. Rubin Counsel for the Plaintiff 

L. Silver Counsel for the Defendants 
A. Roman Counsel for the Defendants 
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THE COURT: Right. The matter of Nelson 
Barbados. Mr. Ranking, I think the message got 
out here that I received your material, I took 
it home yesterday, read it, and then I was 
greeted with this batch of material this 
morning. It apparently came from Mr. Best. 
Fortunately the trial coordinator got a version 
as well, because mine just seems to come off the 
press in any order, where her copy was in an 
ordered form so that I read all of the materials 
- I shouldn't say - I read the letters, 
correspondence and the transcript as sent by Mr. 
Best, but I did not - other than give a cursory 
glance, at all of the web material, the Barbados 
underground, I gave it a cursory view, I don't 
think it merits a close review by me other than 
it - I suppose it's corroborative of the letter 
of Mr. Best in terms of what his concerns are. 
Having said that I take it Mr. Best is not here 
and he's not represented by anyone? 
MR. RANKING: That's correct, Your Honour. 
Although Ms. Rubin is here, she's confronted me 
this morning but she's not acting, neither is 
her firm, acting for Mr. Best. 
THE COURT: I'm sorry, Ms. Rubin? 
MR. RANKING: Is here, but she has confirmed to 
me this morning that neither she nor her firm 
are acting for Mr. Best. 
THE COURT: Just so I get things, I'm getting 
old, so you're from Mr. Duart's firm? 
MS. RUBIN: Correct. 
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THE COURT: Got it. Well, I guess when I 
received your material yesterday I thought, 
well, this isn't anything terribly different 
than what I do see from day-to-day and week-to-
week, and then I get this other batch of 
material today and I understand you fished out 
with the trial coordinator - sorry, with the 
court clerk the amended notice of motion and 
reply motion record of the defendant's for some 
reason, I did not see to go through that, I 
thought if there's a reason you'll send me 
there. 
MR. RANKING: Yes. 
THE COURT: And before I forget, just before I 
forget, we're moving. As you know we're leaving 
this courthouse and we should be moving about, 
oh you can get the exact date, but I'm just 
going to say ball parking around the 20th of 
February. I have segregated - if you go back 
into the boardroom and I'm going to invite you 
to go back into the boardroom, I segregated what 
I think are the cost measures as well as those 
tapes and recordings from the Barbados of the 
examinations. I've segregated them. I'm at a 
point though where I got a nice shiny new office 
and I don't have a boardroom anymore that is 
adjacent to my chambers. I looked at it Friday. 
So, I think a lot of those boxes, which I will -
I believe should be sent back, I'm going to let 
you look at them before you leave today, I want 
to send them back to Barrie. It looks like 
about three cases of materials has to go with me 
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to the new courthouse, but I'm getting into the 
position where we've got to start thinking about 
where files are going to rest, and as I say, I 
don't have this - the luxury of this extensive 
boardroom where I could - I've sort of stacked 
boxes for some time. So, before you leave 
today, please, take a look at that and I'll 
mention it to the registrar and she can point 
out to you what I think should be sent back to 
Barrie. All right. So, with no Mr. Best here 
and it's now twenty minutes to eleven, what are 
we going to do today? I'm anticipating you're 
going to ask to arrange an appointment for a 
motion for contempt. 
MR. RANKING: Your Honour, I have prepared a 
draft order which I've shared, obviously, with 
all counsel and although counsel for Mr. 
McKenzie did not represent Mr. Best, she has no 
difficulty with the terms of this order. Let me 
just take you through it in terms of what I am 
endeavoring to accomplish today. 
THE COURT: And just before I forget, we do see 
contempt, frankly, more often than I'd like up 
here particularly because we do family cases, 
but on contempt there has to be proof of 
personal service. 
MR. RANKING: Yes, I understand and what I'd 
like to do, and in some respects I actually had 
planned to spend about half an hour going 
through the history of this matter before 
speaking to the order, but I think that given 
the fact that Mr. Best isn't here and I would 
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like to give you a roadmap of the order that I 
am seeking and then perhaps with your indulgence 
I'll go back and give you history as to why I 
think this order is appropriate. 
THE COURT: I think that's an appropriate way to 
approach this. 
MR. RANKING: But let me say a couple of things; 
first of all, I'm not seeking contempt today and 
there was short service of these materials, 
because we actually asked Mister - as you will 
hear Mr. Best did not attend on the 17th of 
November. We then, Mr. Silver and I, wanted to 
try to avoid a contempt motion and we therefore 
wrote to him and asked him to come back on the 
25th of November and Mr. Best then failed to 
attend on the 25th. By reason of having given 
him the second indulgence we were pressed to be 
able to get out this contempt motion in time. 
So, what I propose to do is this; I would like 
to have an order validating service of the 
motion that is before you, and then permitting 
us to serve the contempt motion by means of an 
alternative to personal service at the Kingston 
address, and the reason for that, Your Honour, 
is that - I'm going to take you through, which 
is very important, and that's why I do need to 
take you through the history, is despite 
extensive work and significant funds that have 
been expended by our firm and our client, we 
can't find Mr. Best and it's one of those 
invidious, and I don't use that word lightly, 
situations where Mr. Best at his will can write 
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to counsel, can make frankly defamatory remarks 
about Mr. Silver and I to the court without any 
affidavit evidence, and yet hide away somewhere 
and yet then expect us to jump over hoops and 
bring motions and keep coming back and bothering 
this court and your valuable time, which is 
indeed, as I say in my respectful submission, 
invidious. So, I think that when I've gone 
through the record of the attempts that we've 
made and the efforts at Mr. Best to avoid 
detection and most importantly, and I say this 
with the greatest of respect to the whole 
administration of justice, the fact that we know 
Mr. Best to be aware of the fact of what's going 
on in this court and his letter of November 16th 

is very telling. The fact that we know by 
reason of that fact that by going by way of 
substitute service he does get notice that this 
is one of those rare cases where an order for 
substitute service of the contempt motion is, 
indeed, appropriate. So, we will be seeking 
that and I will dare say that if the court 
doesn't exercise it's discretion to permit 
substituted service that we really have reached 
a situation where Mr. Best, though obfuscation 

and delay has, in fact, achieved the ends which 
he intends which are a hundred and eighty 
degrees opposite to the ends of justice. So, 
that deals with the backdrop for the order for 
substituted service. 

Now, the next part of the order and you'll have 
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seen this from the notice of motion is that I am 
not asking Your Honour to give us a date for the 
contempt motion as the next date. Rather, and 
again because of the very peculiar, if I could 
call it that, circumstances of this case I'm 
asking for an order that Mr. Best appear in this 
court before you to answer all proper questions 
which I or Mr. Silver would put to him and this 
is set forth in paragraph 3 of the order, Your 
Honour, and if he shows up - and so what I've 
done is I've set this forth in terms of these 
are all the standard questions that we've asked 
and tried to have answered on any number of 
occasions previously, but what I'm essentially 
endeavouring to do is to have you order today 
that Mr. Best attend here on a date convenient 
to Your Honour to answer questions, and I 
shouldn't think that our questions will take 
more than - even with objections, should Mr. 
Best see fit to retain counsel, it wouldn't take 
more than an hour. Either the questions are 
relevant or they're not relevant. Either 
they're privileged or they're not privileged. 
By coming back to this court Mr. Best can purge 
his contempt, he can answer the questions and we 
can move on with it. The benefit of that is 
that it moves matters forward in an expeditious 
manner. It allows rulings to be made. It 
allows you to make an assessment of credibility 
and we can get on with it. Any option other 
than that, in my respectful submission, just 
puts us back to the position that we were 
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already in where Mr. Best has demonstrated he 
doesn't want to attend, but what we then do is I 
then have fashioned the order to say that if Mr. 
Best doesn't attend and he will now have notice, 
assuming this order were to go in the form that 
I've provided, or in essentially the same form, 
that I have attached a Schedule A, a warrant, 
for his committal. So that we've had the 
failure to attend on the November 17th, we then 
have an order validating service of this motion 
record. This motion, if successful, would then 
afford an order that could be served by an 
alternate to personal service requiring him to 
come back on a date convenient to Your Honour 
and if attends then I can say without a doubt 
the contempt motion will not proceed. Mr. Best 
can answer the questions, we can get the 
evidence, we can have production of the books 
and records and we can move on. If he fails to 
attend it's at that point in time that a warrant 
should issue and what I say is the elegance of 
this process is that Mr. Best knows four-square 
by reason of this order that a warrant will 
issue on whatever date this court might 
determine to be appropriate for the return of 
the motion. 
MR. SILVER: If he doesn't attend. 
MR. RANKING: If he doesn't attend, yeah. So, 
that is how I fashioned it and I've obviously 
spoken to my co-counsel and Ms. Rubin and Ms. 
Rubin's concern, as she's expressed it to me, is 
as long as there is sufficient time between 
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today and the date of any attendance that she 
has no difficulty with it. 
MS. RUBIN: Sorry. If - Your Honour, if I may 
make one quick submission at the end of Mr. 
Rankings submissions ... 
MR. RANKING: All right. 
MS. RUBIN: ... I'll express my concern. 
THE COURT: Yes. 
MS. RUBIN: Thank you. 
MR. RANKING: So, that's the overview of the 
order, Your Honour. So, with that by way of the 
overview if I could go back and deal with the 
facts and why I respectfully submit that the 
order I've just taken you through is indeed the 
appropriate order. 
THE COURT: I believe this is an appropriate 
time for me just to raise a point that you or 
Mr. Silver want to argue. I have some 
difficulty with paragraph 4. I think that what 
should happen is that a hearing then takes place 
with respect to the issue of contempt. In other 
words, there has to be a specific finding and 
the fallback position, if that hearing is 
convened, it's not- there's no representation 
by Mr. Best, then the court may be in a position 
to issue a warrant, but I mean, to issue a 
person's warrant for arrest almost as a 
fallback, I don't feel comfortable with. What I 
would be comfortable with is if he fails to 
attend at the hearing of the contempt motion and 
after the hearing has been conducted then this 
court will be in a position to entertain a 
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warrant for arrest of Donald Best in the form -
if you even want to attach Schedule A, that's 
fine, but I want to - for the purposes of an 
appellant review to indicate clearly that a 
hearing was conducted, because the very fact 
that he may potentially be in contempt, there's 
got to be a finding, and based on the finding 
then there's certain ramifications that take 
place. 
MR. RANKING: The way - and I hear Your Honour, 
the way in which we fashioned it was intended 
that the warrant would be - would not require 
him to go to jail. I mean, he may have to be 
held in custody, but we were intending the 
warrant to require him to come give his evidence 
in court. My- the end .... 
THE COURT: Well, he's going to be arrested and 
then he's going to be brought before the court 
and then - hopefully on an expedited manner, and 
then at that time the court will determine 
whether his incarceration has to continue. I 
must also tell you that in the contempt process 
generally what has happened is they're brought 
before a justice of the peace and effectively 
there's a determination whether they should then 
be released on their own recognizance or 
released on a recognizance, et cetera, et 
cetera. I don't want to get into all the 
technical details, I'm just thinking I wanted 
the appearance of justice to be seen in this 
case, notwithstanding what may be the heartaches 
of the various defendants and their counsel in 
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relation to this matter. I still want the 
process to appear to be fair to Mr. Best in all 
respects. 
MR. RANKING: I appreciate that, and take no 
issue with it. So just - so that I understand, 
you would prefer to see paragraph 4 drafted that 
there would be - if he fails to attend there 
would then be a contempt motion that would ...• 
THE COURT: There will be a contempt hearing. 
MR. RANKING: A contempt hearing. 
THE COURT: And the court after .. . 
MR. RANKING: After the- submit ... . 
THE COURT: ... may- the court may after hearing 
the issue ... 
MR. RANKING: Right. Yes. 
THE COURT: ... issue a warrant for the arrest. 
I mean, I almost don't like the nomenclature 
that I'm- it's a foregone conclusion I'm going 
to order his arrest. 
MR. RANKING: Right. 
THE COURT: If I had my druthers, to be quite 
candid with you, I'd prefer that the court will 
conduct a contempt hearing, period, and the 
pieces fall where they May. 
MR. RANKING: And in what- just .... 
THE COURT: You - and don't attach Schedule A, 
but you can send Schedule A onto Mr. Best. It 
seems to me that he has at least an address that 
he's getting- he says he's getting information, 
or letters forwarded to wherever his present 
location is. Of which - I don't know what to 
make, if any, of that because none of it's in an 
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affidavit form, so if Mr. Best was here and the 
record will reflect that without it being in an 
affidavit form I don't see the - how I can 
possibly deal with anything that he says in this 
- in his correspondence, quite frankly, and I'm 
less than pleased, and I'm sure the court staff 
is, just to have our fax machine cluttered with 
blog entries. 
MR. RANKING: Okay. 
THE COURT: I mean, I've expressed my view about 
blogs before several times in the course of 
these proceedings and frankly everyone - well, 
some individuals seem to think they're all about 
truth and they- they're the strangest things 
that I've ever seen. I mean, there's comments 
by people called and the only Pat 
I know is my wife, Pat, and apart from that I'm 
really interested in the rest of the blogs. I'm 
speaking to the converted, but I think I should 
state again and again, these are nonsensical 
items to be sending to the court, and it must be 
over 60 pages of material was sent, not happy 
about it, but he's not here. But I've expressed 
on the record about - my views on the blogs. Go 
ahead. 
MR. RANKING: Your Honour, I haven't conferred 
with my co-counsel, but I - we will re-fashion 
the order. 
THE COURT: I think it would be better. 
MR. RANKING: Yes. 
THE COURT: The fact - I don't even - I frankly 
don't even like the Schedule A, I just tell you 
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why because you can send it to him as to what 
you're seeking, whether I'm going to grant it 
remains to be seen after a contempt hearing. 
MR. RANKING: All right. Can I - can we deal 
with the form of the order after I had a chance 
to confer with my co-counsel ... 
THE COURT: Sure. Sure. 
MR. RANKING: ... and go back and just deal with, 
really, the history of the matter and I think it 
is important to go through the history, but I 
think before I do that I hope that the court 
clerk put before you the November 2nd, 3rd, and 
4th? 

THE COURT: Yes. 
MR. RANKING: And the other one that you'll 
need, Your Honour, just so that you have it 
before you is, as well, the motion record for 
today, and the December 2nd. Those are the two 
motion records I'll be referring to. 
THE COURT: Got it. 
MR. RANKING: But - and again, so this is 
without a doubt, and Your Honour has lived this 
case as long as we have, but you probably don't 
needs this, but I'm going to provide it to you 
to say ... 
THE COURT: No, I think it's important. I think 
it's important. 
MR. RANKING: ... why I also think that Mr. Best 
is so important, all right? Because I don't 
want you to think that we're off on a frolic, 
we're not, and the defence think that the 
evidence that we may get from Mr. Best will be 
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exceedingly relevant and both in terms of the 
documents and his oral evidence, and the reason 
is as we see it Mr. Best can either go down one 
of two paths depending on his evidence. The 
first path is that this entire action was a 
sham. We know as a matter of fact that Nelson 
Barbados was incorporated by Mr. McKenzie's 
firm. We know that it's one of the few 
connections to Ontario, and we suspect that it's 
a company without assets. What we don't know, 
and we also know that despite repeated attempts 
we have been stymied at every turn when seeking 
to obtain information with respect to Nelson 
Barbados, its business, and the nature of its 
operations, books and records, anything and 
anything. And if, in fact, it is a sham that 
thing goes directly to one of the paragraphs in 
the statement of claim wherein it was pleaded 
that Nelson Barbados acquired an interest in the 
shares of Kingsland and we have reason to 
believe that shares in Kingsland actually do 
have value. So, either this was a sham and it 
was merely set up for the purposes of the 
litigation, or on the other hand, depending on 
what the books and records disclose, and the 
evidence of Mr. Best, we may in fact find 
security and information with respect to the 
shares. And we may then be able to determine 
the whereabouts of the shares, how they are held 
and make inquiries with respect to those shares 
on the basis that, in fact, they have value and 
they will be shares which can be attached and 
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which will stand as security for the payment of 
any cost award this court may make. Now as 
between the two of those our concern, not 
lightly held, but our concern is that Nelson 
Barbados is a sham and we reach that view not 
only based on the refusals, whether at the 
cross-examination of John Knox on the 4th of 
November, whether at the examination of Mr. Best 
by Andrew Roman, but perhaps most importantly 
based on the fact that Mr. McKenzie was unable 
to answer the questions of Your Honour when you 
were fair to a fault and you asked him not once, 
but at least twice if not three times to either 
bring the documents that would answer these 
questions or to have Mr. Best file an affidavit, 
and as Your Honour will well recall neither was 
provided. I will go through, momentarily, the 
difficulties we have then found, or encountered 
trying to find Mr. Best, but I also pause to 
observe the legitimacy of this action when one 
recalls and I will do - the cost motion to be 
heard in February, I will do - I'm going to 
treat this case like a fraudulent conveyance 
case, and I'm going to have the badges of fraud 
articulated on a chronology for Your Honour. 
But when I look at Mr. Best I kept asking myself 
why wasn't he put forward as the affiant? He's 
the sole officer and director of Nelson Barbados 
and yet we have John Knox who was put forward, 
and at best we can determine Mr. Knox having no 
basis at all as an officer or director of Nelson 
Barbados, and someone who, when Mr. Silver asked 
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the question on a cross-examination, Mr. 
McKenzie refused to say whether or not Mr. 
Knox's questions, or his answers, would bind the 
company. Highly, highly suspicious. In any 
event, the concerns that we have - and just to 
really deal with it, is we're seeking costs 
against Mr. McKenzie personally under Rule 
57.07, but the investigation that we have of Mr. 
Best and Mr. McKenzie's participation, if any, 

with respect to asserting the claim as he did, 
depending on the facts Your Honour may well 
expose him to a cost award completely aside from 
the provisions of Rule 57. So, that is why, in 
our respectful submission, Mr. Best is an 
integral part of the scenario that is currently 
unfolding. 

With that by way of a brief introduction, if I 
could then turn you to the amended notice of 
motion and reply motion record of the defence 
and I'm going to ask you to turn to Tab 3 which 
is the affidavit of one of our students, 
Sebastien Kwidzinski, and I have not taken you 
through any of this material, and I'm not going 
to take you through all of it, Your Honour, but 
I do need to take you through some of it to 
demonstrate some of the difficulties that we've 
encountered and the steps that we've taken, 
which is in fact, got us here today. I don't 
know that you need to reference it in 
particular, but I did ask Mr. Kwidzinski, for 
the purposes of convenience more than anything 
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else, to set forth at the bottom of page -
sorry, the top of page 3 in paragraphs 5 through 
13 the various attempts that we have made both 
personally and then through the court to obtain 
information. So, that is just a helpful 
summary. I think Your Honour is aware of that, 
I'm not taking you through it, but that is where 
we were attempting to obtain information. In 
addition though, I would ask you - and this is 
just by way of example and it's more to 
exemplify, and I speak to Ms. Rubin about this 
earlier in terms of the frustration that counsel 
for the defence, but to exemplify how that 
frustration arises. If I could ask you to turn 
to Tab C; Tab B are all the questions refused. 
You're aware of those. You may not have had 
brought to your attention the examination that 
Mr. Roman conducted when Mr. Best, in fact, 
appeared and that appears under Tab C, and you 
will see at the top of page 2 under that tab .... 
THE COURT: Just one second here. What - I'm 
sorry, what page are you at now? 
MR. RANKING: Tab c. 
THE COURT: Yeah, I got that. 
MR. RANKING: Page 2. 

THE COURT: Page 2. 
MR. RANKING: And it's just to direct your 
attention to the fact that this is an 
examination of Donald Best at the top of the 
page ... 
THE COURT: Yes. 
MR. RANKING: . .. taken on March the 20th I 2009. 
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THE COURT: Yes. 
MR. RANKING: So, this is where Mr. Best, in 
fact, attended in Barrie and if you then turn to 
page 5 you'll then see the difficulties that Mr. 
Roman faces with the very first question. In 
Question 1, "Just for the record could you state 
your full name and address, please?" And then 
Mr. McKenzie doesn't even allow Mr. Best to 
answer that. "His name's Don Best, we all know 
that." "Do that in two parts." "Full name?" 
"Don Best." "Do you go by Don or Donald?" "Don 
Best." "Okay, and your address?" Answer, "Now 
sir" - sorry, "Sir, your client Ian Deane is the 
B-W-W-R person." "That's not my question." 
"Threatened the stock, threatened the 
witnesses." "You're not giving me your address, 
sir." "Let him finish his answer." What 
happened here was Mr. Best was coming to give a 
speech and if we turn to the beginning of the 
middle of next page, he says he can't possibly 
give him the address, he can't. And it goes on. 
The entire examination, Your Honour .... 
THE COURT: I mean, I had a look at this before, 
I guess in preparation on the last occasion when 
I thought I was going to hear this. It looked 
familiar and then I see my markings in the 
materials, but go ahead. Yes. 
MR. RANKING: All to say impossible to get 
information with respect to Mr. Best, and so, 
that is where - we examine him, or Mr. Roman 
examined him and I haven't taken you to the 
earlier cross-examinations of John Knox where 
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Mr. Silver and I have tried to obtain that 
information, you're aware of that. I then write 
to Mr. McKenzie, my letter appears - one of my 
letters appears under Tab B where I'm basically 
saying, you know, "Could you please confirm that 
all my materials are being served on Mr. Best, 
and in the alternative please give me Mr. Best's 
contact details including address, fax, email", 
and the response I obtained is under Tab E where 
Mr. McKenzie simply says, "I note that normal 
practices is to send documents to the director 
of a company at his listed mailing address and 
you've apparently failed to do so. I take it 
that you're not intending to reach the director 
of the corporation, but rather to frame things 
as if they make me responsible for your failure 
and require me to do things which I'm not 
required to do." And then, Your Honour, my 
letter - my response goes back saying, "Please 
give me the details", and that is also under Tab 
E. If I then go back to Mr. Kwidzinski's 
affidavit I've now reached the point where we do 
not know where he is and as a consequence I ask 
Mr. Kwidzinski to begin taking steps to try to 
locate him, and Mr. Kwidzinski is not terribly 
successful and you will see that at the end of 
the day we have to retain a private 
investigator, and the affidavit of the private 
investigator appears under Tab 4, which is the 
very last tab of the brief. I'm going to ask 
you to turn that up. This is the affidavit of 
Jim Van Allen and he sets out his background and 
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experience at paragraphs 2 through 5, but I can 
- let the court know this is an experienced 
private investigator and paragraph 5 indicates 
that he's a graduate of FBI National Academy 
program in Quantico. He is a presenter at the U 
of T, the Laurentian University, Trent 
University. He is a very experienced private 
investigator, and he indicates at paragraph 6 
that he was contacted by me and I wanted to 
locate Mr. Best so that he could be served with 
a summons to witness for the purposes of having 
his evidence available for use at the cost 
motion. Now at this time we were hopeful that 
the cost motion would proceed in November. Mr. 
Savinski (ph) [sic], Kwidzinski, I should say, 
provided some information dealing with the 
addresses we had been able to locate, and also 
the motor vehicle search which we had been able 
to locate and I'll come back to that, but what 
Mr. Van Allen then says in paragraph 9 is that, 
"Internet searches did not disclose any 
information." In paragraph 10, "Even though Mr. 
Van Allen was able to determine date of birth, 
driver's licence, unable to do anything else." 
Importantly at paragraph 13 through 15 he states 
that in his experience in conducting, 
supervising and assisting many hundreds of 
investigations it is his believe that Donald 
Best is intentionally and deliberately 
concealing and obscuring his current residence 
address, and he then says that he believes that 
Best has deliberately used false addresses to 
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prevent him from being located by conventional 
methods. And concludes, and this is somebody 
with considerable experience, "that few people 
demonstrate the strenuous efforts over a number 
of years to create and convey false address 
history as reflected by the repeated use of 
false address, and/or post office box numbers 
used by Donald Best." He's among very few 
individuals to go to this length to conceal his 
address, and I just pause to observe that that 
very same comment has been confirmed in the 
letters to the court. We see a post office box, 
we do not see a fax number, email, phone number, 
nothing. So, those are the steps that we took, 
and we then get to the stage where we can't find 
him, we can't serve him with a summons, so we 
then say, "All right. What's happening with 
respect to Nelson Barbados generally?" And 
that's where we get to the order of Justice 
Eberhard, and Justice Eberhard issues her order 
and that order indicates that service should be 
made at 427 Princess Street, Suite 200, 
Kingston, Ontario. And for your bench brief, 
Your Honour, that appears under Tab N, as in 
Nancy, of the bigger brief and you'll see 
paragraph 2 of that order. Now, I also pause to 
make this statement and perhaps again it's 
stating the obvious, one should have thought, 
and again this will be another badge of fraud, 
Your Honour, one should have thought that 
someone responding to requests of the defence 
for costs in excess of well over a million 
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dollars would have appointed counsel. We're 
seeking- this supposedly is Mr. Best's company, 
Nelson Barbados, and we're seeking costs against 
Nelson Barbados and he's on notice costs against 
him, but rather than appointing new counsel, he 
doesn't do that. He, again, does not come 
forward and Mr. McKenzie is required to get an 
order removing his firm as the solicitors of 
record and for the first time we see this 
address in Kingston. Now, when I got that 
address what I did was I went back to Mr. 
Kwidzinski and I said, "Would you please find 
out what's going on?" And my student sets forth 
what he did in paragraph 21. He indicates that 
shortly after his discussion with me I asked Mr. 
Andrius Pulutz (ph) an acquaintance of mine in 
Kingston - I'm sorry, Your Honour, I'm at 
paragraph 21 of Mr. Kwidzinski's affidavit under 
Tab 3. 
THE COURT: Yes. 
MR. RANKING: And what he says is he asked his 
friend to go to 427 Princess Street to determine 
if Nelson Barbados was, in fact, operating from 
Suite 200, and he's informed by his friend and 
believed that he went there on September the 26th 

and made the following observations; that the 
building is a UPS store and attached as Exhibit 
0 is a copy of a photograph that was taken, and 
if you just turn up Exhibit 0 it's a picture of 
a UPS store. There is no business that is 
operated from that store and, in fact, when he 
made inquiries all of the so called suites are, 
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in fact, just post office boxes. So, let me 
pause there and then take you to- I'll come 
back to this motion record momentarily, but to 
finish the chronology dealing with the UPS post 
office boxes if I could ask you to pick up the 
December 2nd motion record, because what we then 
determine is what I suggest and respectfully 
submit to be incredible, and the reason I say 
that is that Mr. Butler, an associate at our 
firm, I then asked, "Okay, would you please" -
and you'll recall that Mr. Butler filed an 
affidavit because we sought production of the 
non-parties and you ordered such production. He 
goes through that at the beginning of his 
affidavit, to say that he got in touch with the 
UPS stores and served the orders, but I ask you 
to turn to paragraph 6 on page 13 of the record, 
and I'm going to read to you paragraph 6 and 7. 
He states, "On November 12th Mr. Butler received 
a fax from Darren which included documents 
relating to Box 200 of the UPS store. The 
customer's name for that box is Nelson Barbados 
Group L-T-D. I called and spoke to Darren 
immediately after receiving a facsimile, Darren 
confirmed that the owner of the Toronto UPS 
store, Dave Delizer (ph) was responsible for 
activating Box 200 at the Kingston UPS store on 
September 3rd. So - and I'm going to take you to 
the documents momentarily, Your Honour, but what 
happens here is there's inordinate delay on the 
part of Nelson Barbados to appoint counsel and 
finally Mr. McKenzie has to move for an order 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 



r 
r ,r 
r 
r 
r 
r 

I r 
r 
r 
r 
r 
r 
r 
r 
r 
r 
r 
r 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

23. 
Nelson Barbados Group Limited v. Richard Ivan Cox, et al. 

AG 0087 (rev. 07-01) 

removing his firm as solicitor of record, and I 
find it more than coincidental that the order is 
issued by Justice Eberhard on September 15th only 
two weeks after the very post office box had 
been opened on September 3rd. One of the 
questions I'd be asking of Mr. Best is, "Mr. 
Best, why did you open a post office box?" And, 
"Why was it opened on September 3rd?" And, "Why 
was it opened in Kingston?" And, "Who was it 
you were trying to avoid?" But it gets better, 
if we learned in paragraph 7; Darren also 
confirmed that pursuant to the instructions 
provided at the time, Box 200 of the Kingston 
UPS store was activated, the Kingston UPS store 
automatically forwards all mail received at 
Kingston UPS to the Toronto UPS and bills the 
credit card number provided in the file. A 
complete ruse. Just so that I don't pass over 
it, I also go back to the last sentence of 
paragraph 6 to confirm that it was Dave Delizer 
(ph), the owner of the Toronto UPS store that, 
in fact, opened the Kingston UPS box. Not even 
Mr. Best himself. If I then turn to the top of 
page 4 you'll see that information as attached 
as Exhibit B, and if I could just take you there 
momentarily, that's the information we received 
and I just want to highlight a number of things 
for your brief, Your Honour, the cover page from 
Darren to Mr. Butler obviously comes from the 
top left hand corner of the Princess Street 
address in Kingston, but if you look to the top 
of page 42, the mailbox service agreement, you 
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will see just beside the numbering of the page 
at the very top beside Number 42 you'll see 
Suite 200, which is clearly the box, or the 
contract for the box, for which substituted 
service that was provided in Justice Eberhard's 
order. But if I then ask you to drop to the 
bottom of the page you will see the customer's 
initials are You'll see type there, and 
again that is confirmatory of what Mr. Butler 
was told, that is was Dave Delizer (ph), and 
that's in paragraph 6 of Mr. Butler's affidavit 
and the address for service is - for Nelson 
Barbados is on the right hand side. And then if 
you turn the page, again you see at 43 dropping 
just about a quarter of the way down the page, 
the customer, again Nelson Barbados Group, and 
the signature Dave Delizer (ph) and there the 
date is September 3rd, 2009, and I note in 
passing that if you look at the middle of the 
page the UPS store, in fact, has a telephone 
number and, in fact, does have an email, but 
none of that information was apparently used by 
Mr. Best, or provided for the purpose of Justice 
Eberhard being able to serve by way of an email 
address to the UPS store. And then I also 
observe in passing the last paragraph above the 
two virtual boxes which indicate two forms of 
identification are required, one of which must 
be a photo ID, and clearly because Mr. Best had 
Mr. Delizer (ph) from the Toronto office open 
the box, there is no information with respect to 
Mr. Best. He had no identification provided 
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whatsoever. And then really the same 
information is provided on the following page, 
that just deals with the courier address. 
You'll see again, Dave Delizer (ph), in this 
case it's September 2nd as opposed to September 
3rd for the Nelson Barbados Group and there's a 
credit card number to the left, which provides 
some credit card for the purposes of billing. 
And the final point is to take your attention, 
Your Honour, to the- page 45 where it's been-
and that is titled the mail forwarding 
worksheet, and you will see the suite number 
which is 200, which is confirmatory of the 
mailbox we're talking about. The customer name, 
Nelson Barbados Group Limited, and the 
forwarding address is 1225-250 The East Mall. 
So that what happens here is anything that goes 
to Kingston is immediately re-directed to the 
UPS store at - it turns out to be Cloverdale 
Mall, and if you go back to paragraph 9, Your 
Honour. 
THE COURT: Of whose? 
MR. RANKING: Of Mr. Kwidzinski's -excuse me, 
Mr. Butler's affidavit at page 14 of the motion 
record. We're here talking about the Toronto 
UPS store, Mr. Butler got in touch with Mr. 
Delizer (ph) and he confirmed that he activated 
the mailbox at the Kingston UPS store at the 
request of the registered owner customer for Box 
1225. 
THE COURT: To what paragraph are you referring 
to? 
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MR. RANKING: Paragraph 9, Your Honour. 
THE COURT: 9. 
MR. RANKING: And then just to finish off the 
chronology to tie Box 1225 back to Mr. Best to 
show the intricate, or elaborate, scheme that 
he's put together, if you look to paragraph 12 
Mr. Butler then contacted Mr. Delizer (ph) who 
sent him an email which attached the documents 
regarding the 1225 at the Toronto UPS store. 
Although the documents contained - excuse me, 
although the information contained in the 
document states the box number is 225, Mr. 
Delizer (ph) confirmed to me by phone that 
there's no box 1225. The box was activated by 
Donald Best on behalf of the Nelson Barbados 
Group - excuse me, Nelson Barbados Group 
Limited, I apologize, Your Honour. This is a 
second company, which is Mr. Best's company 
which does not have the word uBarbados" in it in 
2007. In that email- and I'm going to ask you 
just to - again for your bench brief to circle, 
or to note, the similarity in names between the 
Nelson Group, that is Mr. Best's company that 
opened this mailbox in 2007, and·the Nelson 
Barbados Group, we're going to come back to 
that, but that is then under Exhibit G and Your 
Honour if you turn up Exhibit G the emails 
appear at a pages 63 and 64, but the actual 
agreement itself appears at page 65 through 67, 
and you'll see that at the top of page 65 
there's the suite number, 225, and on page 66 
you will see that there is a signature under 
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which the name, uoonald Best", has been printed. 
MALE VOICE: He doesn't sign it himself. 
MR. RANKING: Right, and you will note that even 
that document was not signed by Mr. Best, it was 
signed per T-N-G-L-T-D. 
FEMALE VOICE: That's in 1997. 
MR. RANKING: Right. That's in 1997, and I 
think that .... 
THE COURT: You're saying the signature 
there's initials and then there's per 
UT-N-G-L-T-0"? 
MR. RANKING: Yes. 
THE COURT: And do we know what that means? 
MR. RANKING: I can only surmise - if you turn 
the next page you'll see under other authorized 
names under this agreement there's the Nelson 
Group Limited. So, I'm assuming that it's the 
Nelson Group is the full name for T-N-G-L-T-0, 
but that's my assumption and Ms. Rubin points 
out correctly that this box was opened in 1997 
and as a consequence, I think, that Mr. Butler's 
statement in paragraph 12 of his affidavit that 
it was opened in 2007 is likely inaccurate. So, 
just to summarize then .... 
THE COURT: Has anyone ever searched the Nelson 
Group? 
MR. RANKING: Yes. 
THE COURT: And what did that turn up? 
MR. RANKING: It's Mr. Best's company. 
THE COURT: All right. 
MR. RANKING: And I can take you to that, Your 
Honour. Let me just finish the .... 
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THE COURT: Yeah, go ahead. 
MR. RANKING: The point that's been made is -
and I know it's not lost on you is two weeks 
before Justice Eberhard has to make an order 
removing Mr. McKenzie's firm there is a post 
office box opened by someone other than Mr. 
Best, but clearly on his direction, because it 
came from Dave Delizer (ph) who was the 
individual at Toronto who had opened the 
Cloverdale Mall post office box. It's opened 
and all the mail that goes there is immediately 
re-directed back to Cloverdale Mall, and I pause 
to make this observation; Mr. Best clearly 
doesn't know, hasn't come to court, to see all 
the materials, but he's complaining and goes on 
at great length at how he hasn't received 
materials, and I have affidavits of service for 
everything that was served. And he hasn't 
received the materials in a timely manner, 
because they go to Kingston and then they go 
from Kingston back to Toronto, and he's not in 
Kingston to pick them up. And it's for that 
very reason, Your Honour, that you will see when 
I get to the actual service of some of the other 
materials, that I began mailing information 
directed at Cloverdale, even though that wasn't 
required by the terms of the order, I started 
mailing it to him at Cloverdale. It may not -
let me just see if I can find - I have searched, 
and I can tell you as an officer of the court, 
Your Honour, that the Nelson Group is a company 
of Mr. Best's, yes. 
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THE COURT: I take it from you. If you tell me 
that, I'm satisfied. 
MR. RANKING: It - I found it. It appears under 
Tab P, as in Peter, in the larger volume, Your 
Honour, and it's worth turning it up, because 
again this confirms the .... 
THE COURT: The East Mall address. 
MR. RANKING: Beg your pardon? 
THE COURT: It has as the registered office an 
address, 122, dash ... 
MR. RANKING: Correct. 
THE COURT: ... 250 The East Mall. 
MR. RANKING: Correct, and if you look to the 
second page you'll see that here we have his 
middle name for the first time, Donald Robert 
Best. That previously had not been provided. 
And I think that the - to be fair to Mister -
date of incorporation was 1993. 
THE COURT: What is that address on Dunlop 
Street in Barrie? Is that a residential 
address? 
MR. RANKING: Which address are you looking 
to .... 
THE COURT: I'm looking at the corporation 
profile report under "P", page 2, the 
administrator Donald Robert Best, the address 
113 Dunlop Street, Barrie, Ontario, Suite 1928. 
MR. RANKING: That address we searched and if 
you turn to Mr. Kwidzinski's affidavit at 
paragraph 36, Your Honour ... 
THE COURT: Yes. 
MR. RANKING: ... Mr. Kwidzinski goes through the 
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- first of all he identifies the Nelson Group 
Limited ... 
THE COURT: Right. 
MR. RANKING: ... then he talks about the 
addresses at 113 and 122-250 The East Mall, and 
he states in paragraph 37 he conducted web 
searches of 113, he placed a call to the number 
provided for the business and based on his 
inquiries determined that the salon business 
did, in fact, operate from that address, but 
there was no other active business carried on 
from the premises. The individual further 
stated that their landlord resided in the 
upstairs apartment, and the upstairs apartment 
was also used - also used the address of 113. 
We weren't able to find any current information 
that that address was related to Mr. Best ... 
THE COURT: All right. 
MR. RANKING: ... and again, paragraph 38 just 
deals with the Cloverdale Mall address for the 
UPS post office box in Toronto. 
THE COURT: Right. 
MR. RANKING: The only - the other po.int that I 
did want to just take you to before I turn to 
the association between Mr. Best and Mr. 
McKenzie is at page 14, paragraph 40, of Mr. 
Kwidzinski's affidavit. We deal with the motor 
vehicle search, and again not to state the 
obvious, but the reason we're going through all 
of this, Your Honour, is to demonstrate the 
lengths to which we've taken to try to find 
addresses where we might be able to serve this 
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individual, and so, what would customarily 
disclose Mr. Best is we did the search and it 
revealed the address of 122-250 The East Mall, 
apartment 1225, and if you turn that up at 
Exhibit S, which is the search, you can see 
again Don Best and the only address we have for 
him was at the East Mall. We were able to 
determine, however, from that search his date of 
birth and his driver's licence number, and I 
pause to observe Mr. Best seems to be all 
perturbed by the fact that this information -
and I have no idea, Your Honour, how the 
information got posted on whatever blog it's 
posted on, but this is information that our 
clerks were able to find. So, I'm not exactly 
sure why he is raising such a concern with 
respect to that matter, which, as I say, had no 
idea how it was posted, but that then concludes 
what Mr. Kwidzinski was able to locate and it 
was a consequence of when hit a brick wall, and 
I took you to it earlier, that we retained Mr. 

Van Allen and then Mr. Van Allen was not able to 
find Mr. Best either. Now, the only other thing 
I want to do before putting down this motion 
record is again - and this goes back to factors, 
and it's only a factor, but it's something which 
I think is important, and that is the 
association between Mr. McKenzie and Mr. Best, 
and that association is set forth at paragraphs 
22 through 35 and I'd like to take you through 
those paragraphs and this is simply information, 
Your Honour, that Mr. Kwidzinski was able to 
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obtain by doing various searches electronically 
on cases that had been reported. You'll see 
that Mister - starting at paragraph 22 on page 
8, Mr. Kwidzinski was able to determine that the 
association between Mr. Best and Mr. McKenzie 
dates back some 13 years, and he then sets out 
his legal research and he goes from the earliest 
case to the most recent, and if I could just 
highlight a few points as we go through; in the 
ExpressVu case v. Norsat International and I've 
tried to highlight and bold this for Your 
Honour. 
THE COURT: Right. 
MR. RANKING: Mr. Best was one of the affiants 
on behalf of the plaintiffs in that case and Mr. 
McKenzie represented the plaintiffs in that 
case. In WIC, paragraph 26, Mr. McKenzie sought 
to introduce fresh evidence in the appeal and 
part of the fresh evidence was evidence of Mr. 
Best. A different case at the top of page 10, 
but one for Bell ExpressVu involved in appeal at 
the Supreme Court of Canada. Again Mr. McKenzie 
was counsel and he presented affidavit evidence 
of Mr. Best and cited him in his factum. And I 
have no doubt that Mr. Best was doing some work, 
whether investigative work dealing with piracy 
and satellite dishes and things of that nature, 
but what this goes to is an association. Now, 
this is where I pause when I go to Kudelski 
(ph), because here we see Mr. McKenzie 
represented the plaintiff as well as Mr. Best, 
and the Nelson Group Limited, and interestingly 
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this was a case where the defendants were able 
to make out a case for substituted service on 
Mr. Best and the Nelson Group. So, something 
with which Mr. Best has had, certainly, some 
association of substituted service and knowledge 
of not being too easy to find, and at paragraph 
29, defendants could not locate Mr. Best." 
And surprisingly I look at paragraph 29; when 
Mr. McKenzie, not unlike the questions that Your 
Honour asked him with respect to produce 
the documents", the court states at paragraph 
26, McKenzie when asked by me whether he 
knew Mr. Best was, indicated he believed that 
Mr. Best was now in Thailand." And then 
paragraph 30 we talk about the corporate 
profile. There is another case where Mr. 
McKenzie was counsel, this is in paragraph 31 
the Kudelski (ph) case reference to Mr. Best, 
sought an order striking out - or staying an 
amended third party notice. The bottom of page 
33 in the Kam-T Speed (ph) case, the bottom of 
the page, Mr. McKenzie represented the plaintiff 
again and Mr. Best was involved in an accounting 
investigation on behalf of the plaintiff. And 
finally in the Love and News DataCom case (ph) 
and appeal and Mr. McKenzie acted as a 
representative to third parties which included 
Donald Best and the Nelson Group, and I said 
based on what we've been able to determine in 
paragraph 35 Mr. Best was an investigator hired 
by the defendants, Bell ExpressVu, and used 
DataCom regarding some Anton Piller orders. So 
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again, information which I say is not 
coincidental and then we find well after much of 
this litigation and the association between 
these individuals that Mr. Best finds himself as 
an officer, and is a sole officer of Nelson 
Barbados Group, which is the plaintiff as you 
well know, Your Honour, in this action. 

So, we then come- that's the history, Your 
Honour, but again, I trust that my submissions 
have given more colour, or flavour, to why it is 
we say finding Mr. Best is important and I then 
turn to the contempt motion and what I propose 
to do is to go through the first series of 
paragraphs and exhibits until we get to my 
November 18th letter and then we did it all 
again, and I'm not going to take your time to go 
through the difficulties we had on the 25th, 

other than to state the obvious that he did not 
attend. So first off for the purposes of this 
motion, Mr. Butler's affidavit appears under Tab 
2 and is sworn November 27th, and the operative 
order is your order dated November 2nd, which 
appears under Tab A and I refer Your Honour to 
paragraph 3. And paragraph 3 is where you 
ordered Mr. Best to attend on November the 17th, 
paragraph 3 are the questions he's to answer and 
paragraph 4 are the documents he was required to 
deliver which he did not do. 

If I then jump over the next tabs deal with the 
UPS store that I've dealt with, Your Honour, and 
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if I turn to Tab H, this is the letter that I 
wrote following our attendance before you a 
month ago to Mr. Best, and I indicate that he's 
required to attend. You'll see in the- I 
indicate in the second full paragraph our 
attendance before Your Honour on November 2nd and 
I then state in the third paragraph that you 
ordered Mr. Best to attend on November 17th. The 
order - and this is important, the order became 
valid and enforceable on November 200 , 2009. I 
make that observation because in the letter that 
we've got today Mr. Best seems to be under a 
misapprehension with respect to the legal effect 
of your order. So, I told him that and then I 
said, "You must attend the examination. You 
must also bring with you the documents." I 

enclosed a draft order and as Your Honour had 
requested I also sent him the various 
transcripts and cross-examinations. That is my 
letter of November the 6th. The notice of 
examination then - is attached as Exhibit I and 
just so there's no issue my assistants' 
affidavit of service appears under Exhibit J. 

What we then get, and this is in my .... 
THE COURT: Am I wrong in reading the materials, 
was there not some confusion that there was a 
reference to January 17th is the day of the 
examination? I carne across that this morning. 
I wish I'd made a note. There was a typo in 
something. 
MR. RANKING: At the second .... 
MR. SILVER: Mr. Best's letter apparently at the 
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second page. 
THE COURT: He makes reference to it, but I also 
saw it, I thought, in your materials. That 
there was reference to January 17th, I think it 
was clearly a typographical error, but .... 
MR. SILVER: I'm not aware of that reference, 
but I am aware of this .... 
MR. RANKING: Which page? 
MR. SILVER: In his letter at the bottom of page 
2 he says "January's evidence", which I think is 
just a typo. 
MR. RANKING: Your Honour, I'm not aware of it 
but if I find it I'll obviously let you know. 
Ms. Rubin has found it, Your Honour, and you're 
absolutely right, there is a- it's- my 
November 18th letter at Tab N. So, after the 
fact- if you turn to Tab N, as in Nancy ... 
THE COURT: Got it. 
MR. RANKING: ... and I- even Mr. Best I don't 
think could have been mistaken from that. 
THE COURT: He appeared January 17th to be 
examined, yeah. 
MR. RANKING: Right. 
THE COURT: Yeah, okay. 
MR. RANKING: Right. 
THE COURT: I think he also copied that letter, 
I think, and put it into his materials and I 
think that's maybe where I saw it. 
MR. RANKING: Okay. All right. 
THE COURT: I'm sorry, I interrupted you. Go 
ahead. 
MR. RANKING: No, no. That's fine, and I was 
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not aware of that error. I appreciate you 
bringing it to my attention. Thankfully, and I 
say this quite genuinely, thankfully it was not 
dealing with the attendance for the 17th of 
November. Importantly I now take you to Tab K, 
because in Tab K - this is the letter we get 
from Mr. Best following his discussion with Ms. 
Traviss, and the important issue, or the 
important aspect of this letter, and the reason 
why I rely upon it for the purposes of 
substituted service, is this demonstrates quite 
clearly that despite the fact that Mr. Best is 
decrying the fact that he is not getting 
materials in a timely manner, he is clearly 
getting notice. And Mr. Silver simply makes the 
point that when we attended at Victory Verbatim, 
when we attended at Victory Verbatim we did not 
have this letter. So, I got this - and in my 
subsequent letter Mr. Best confirms that fact, 
but he clearly is aware when you read the first 
paragraph at the top of page 80, which is page 2 
of his letter that .... 
THE COURT: Page 2. 
MR. RANKING: This is very relevant, in my 
respectful submission, because he says that Ms. 
Traviss read that portion that service is four 
days after the documents were served on Nelson 
Barbados when mailed to Kingston. He then says 
you then read a part to the effect that in 
future all service to Donald Best was valid only 
four days after the documents are mailed to 
Kingston. So, Mr. Best knows the terms of the 
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order and let me also make this observation with 

respect to his concern about the order, the 

draft order was sent to him to the extent there 

was an issue. The signed - when he was to be 

examined I had not sent the signed order to him 

and the reason for that was the delay that took 

to get everybody's approval as to form and 

content, and I in fact was intending to give him 

the fine order when you showed up. So, I don't 

want there to be any suggestion that I provided 

- I didn't provide him with a signed order, and 

I want Your Honour to know that, but the reason 
for that because, as I say, there was delay 
getting approvals to form and content and 

rearranging it and finally getting it done, and 
then I don't think - you know - so, to the 

extent that Mr. Best says he didn't have a copy 
of the order, that's not fair, I gave a draft 
copy of the order, as I've indicated, but he did 
not have a copy of the signed order. But then 

he says irrespective of the fact that he did not 

have a copy of the signed order Ms. Traviss, in 
the third paragraph, said, "that the judge 
ordered me to appear tomorrow, Tuesday, the 

So, there is no doubt in anyone's mind 

that he knew he had to attend, and then there 

goes on in terms of, "the judge says I am to be 
questioned by lawyers tomorrow, 17th, I will make 
myself available", and that appears at the last 
phrase of the fifth full paragraph. And then if 
you turn the page - and notably Ms. Traviss 
invites Mr. Best to call me, and I never 
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received a call from Mr. Best other than when I 
walked into the reception of Victory Verbatim. 
And then the last paragraph on page 81, Your 
Honour, "Once again I want to emphasize that I 
will make myself available for questioning by 
lawyers tomorrow, Tuesday, November 17th." Now, 
Mr. Best did not make himself available. We 
attended. Everybody in this courtroom were 
there. Mr. Silver - I took the call initially 
in reception - have you read the statement that 
I put on the record, Your Honour, under Tab L? 
THE COURT: Yes. 
MR. RANKING: Okay. 
THE COURT: The transcript. 
MR. RANKING: Yes. 
THE COURT: Yes. I'm just wondering is this a 
good point to just give the staff a short break 
here? 
MR. RANKING: Absolutely. Thank you, Your 
Honour. 

R E C E S S 

R E S U M I N G: 
THE COURT: Yes, Mr. Ranking? 
MR. RANKING: Thank you, Your Honour. I'm very 
nearly complete. I'd just would like to thank 
you for your indulgence, and that we took a 
little longer than we expected, but I can let 
you know what we're doing and then finish my 
submissions and if either counsel have other 
comments, of course, but over the break I think 
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we have taken into consideration the concerns 
which you expressed concerning the form of your 
-the draft order that we handed up ... 
THE COURT: Great. 
MR. RANKING: ... and I have with Mr. Silver re-
drafted it and - oh, and my colleagues are 
phoning my secretary now to have the order re-
typed, so I'm hoping to have that faxed to Ms. 
Traviss in the next five to ten minutes. 
THE COURT: Good. 
MR. RANKING: So, we can then pass up to you. 
I've not yet had an opportunity to review the 
wording with Ms. Rubin, but we've talked to her 
about it in theory and I think that we may be 
there. 
THE COURT: Great. Wonderful. 
MR. RANKING: So, that's just where we are on 
that. So, it may be that after you heard our 
submissions if my colleagues aren't back in 
courtroom I'll ask for a short recess just to 
get you the draft order. 
THE COURT: That's fine. 
MR. RANKING: So, then turning back to the 
contempt motion record and given the fact that 
you have read the transcript of what happened on 
the 17th of November, I'm not going to take you 
through it. We obtained the certificate of non-
attendance, that appears under Tab 0, excuse me, 
M, and then what I did was - we decided rather 
than trying to get another date before Your 
Honour to deal with the contempt that we would 
afford Mr. Best a second opportunity to attend 
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and my letter of November 18th appears under Tab 

N, and I confirmed to Mr. Best the fact that he 
had not attended, and I also made reference to 
his own letter of November 16th, at the first 
page, and the fact of our telephone call and 
that's where, just to again- where I did make 
the error where I referred to January 17th, not 
November 17th. And I think what is important 

from this letter, and I should say both on 
behalf of Mr. Silver and myself and I think I 
also speak for Ms. Clarke, although she wasn't 
actually in the eyes of Mr. Best, so I actually 
never spoke to her about the accusations, but it 
goes without saying that we categorically reject 
Mr. Best's version of events that day. And what 
is important though is we tried to set the 
matter down for two o'clock, he wouldn't tell us 
where he was, he wouldn't tell us whether he was 
in the jurisdiction. Mr. Silver then offered to 
do the examination on Wednesday or Thursday. I 
offered to have the examination in my office. I 
think it's fair to say that while we were not in 

agreement with respect to whether or not he'd 
been served with materials, we certainly tried 
our utmost to afford him an opportunity to 
either do it later that day or later that week, 
and Mr. Best was thoroughly non-committal on all 
fronts and it was at that point that we 
ultimately said, you know, discussing matters 
further with Mr. Best wouldn't help and it was 
quite apparent that he wanted us to read the 
questions. Mr. Silver started and he said, 
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"Okay, that's" - and he asked where the minute 
book was and he said, "Okay, I have that 
question what's your next question?" And we 
made it very clear to him that we weren't going 
to be doing that, and I also pause to observe 
that Mr. Best had the written questions in his 
possession, because I'd served him on November 6 
with the various questions that Your Honour had 
ordered be answered. So, it was although this 
would have been an exercise in futility, because 
he wasn't answering the questions after Mr. 
Silver put the question to him. He simply said, 
"What's the next question?" 

So, what I then did was I set forth at the 
bottom of page 100 that he was in contempt and 
confirmed that his own letter - by his own 
letter he knew that he was to attend, and we 
then afforded him an opportunity to appear on 
November the 25th, and again, we indicated that 
we would be bringing a motion today for contempt 
if he failed to attend and that's at the top of 
page 3, and I then went on to tell him it was a 
very serious matter and I urged him to retain 
counsel, and I then said that either Mr. Silver 
or I would be prepared to speak with him, but I 
said, "Well, let there be no misunderstanding we 
expect you to appear to be examined on 
Wednesday, November 25th and we will move 
forthwith for a contempt order if you do not 
appear." I don't think I could have been any 
plainer. Now - and you will have seen that I 
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also invited him to attend the cross-examination 
of Mr. McKenzie and you will have seen from my 
letter that's now been deferred and- but that 
has not yet been re-scheduled. 

Mr. Best did not attend on the 25th. On this 
occasion he did not call. We heard nothing from 
him until his letter of yesterday, which came to 
my office when I was in court on another matter, 
but apparently about four o'clock; just before 
leaving the motion record and dealing with the 
letter. We, obviously, obtained a certificate -
a notice of examination is under various tabs 
and the certificate of non-attendance, the 
affidavit of Ms. Oullette - and I went through 
the same practice. On this occasion Ms. Rubin 
was not in attendance. Mr. Roman was there. 
Mr. Silver was there, Ms. Clarke was there, I 
was there, my student was there, but Ms. Rubin 
was not there on the second attendance and the 
statement that was made for the record appears 
under Tab R. 

So, for the purposes of today's motion I think 
the important points to emphasize are that 
virtually every time before we attend before you 
and the dates for you are October 30th, and we 
got the first letter from Mr. Best November 16th 

when we got his second letter and December the 
15 t. Mr. Best clearly knows what's going on. He 
surprisingly knows Ms. Traviss. He's able to 
call her and get information, but the bottom 
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line is if there were ever a case for 
substituted service I respectfully submit that 
this is it, and I respectfully submit that the 
appropriate course of action and the way in 
which we fashion the order is to require, as an 
order of this court, that he come back - much as 
we have in paragraph 3, that he comes to a 
hearing before you on a date to be set. What 
should then happen is, assuming Your Honour 
permits substituted service, I will then serve 
the order today, or tomorrow, upon Mr. Best at 
the address in Kingston and I'm happy to mail it 
to the Cloverdale Mall as well. I'm also happy 
to send it by email to the UPS store. I'm happy 
to do any and all of those things. We then will 
have a date for .... 
THE COURT: I'm sorry, you mentioned Kingston, 
Coverdale Mall and what was the third 
alternative? 
MR. RANKING: I was saying I was happy to email 
it to the Kingston UPS store. You'll recall, 
Your Honour ... 
THE COURT: Yeah. 
MR. RANKING: ... that- I found that last night 
when I was looking through that they've actually 
got an email. So, I'm happy to do that and I'll 
do that - undertake to do whatever it is you 
want me to do, I'll do. But just dealing with 
the theory of how this is going to play out; 
what I then think ought to occur is he ought to 
attend on whatever date and he should then be 
examined in your presence by me and Mr. Silver 



I r 
I r 
lr 
I r 
lr 
lr 
lr 
I r 
lr 
1r 
1r 
1r 
1r 
1r 
1r 
lr 
lr 
lr 
lr 

5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

30 

45. 
Nelson Barbados Group Limited v. Richard Ivan Cox, et al. 

AG 0087 (rev. 07.(11) 

and other defence if they have relevant 
questions that - that they wish to put that are 
within the bounds of your order, and if Mr. Best 
does not attend then the way we have fashioned 
the order is that we should then proceed to have 
the contempt motion heard. What we've done by 
proceeding in that fashion is the contempt 
motion will then have been - the service of it 
will have been validated, we'll then have him 
here, he can answer his questions. If he 
refuses to answer questions or we don't know 
what he's going to do, but one way or the other 
we think that the motion should proceed. If he 
doesn't attend, the motion should proceed in his 
absence and if he does attend, and we examine 
him, the motion may or may not proceed depending 
on what happens that day, but I think he should 
be told, in no uncertain terms, that the motion 
will proceed. Now, the only other observation I 
make is when I drafted the original order is I 
had asked for a warrant for his arrest to 
actually bring him here as opposed to a 
committal order, but I'm leaving all that aside. 
So, that's how we've now fashioned it. Okay. 
So, it's going to be emailed. So, subject to 
any comments that Mr. Silver may have, those are 
my submissions with respect to .... 
THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Silver? 
MR. SILVER: I really don't have any 
submissions. Obviously my client's want to get 
to the bottom of this and we need help of the 
court, because of the opposition that's being 
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put up and I think that - I submit that the 
order that Mr. Ranking has submitted as we've 
adapted it, pursuant to your comment, gets us a 
step closer to getting to the bottom of it. So, 
I support the submissions that Mr. Ranking made 
and don't have anything to add. 
THE COURT: Ms .... 
MS. CLARKE: Ms. Clarke, Your Honour. 
THE COURT: Ms. Clarke, yes. 
MS. CLARKE: We, as well, from First Caribbean 
support Mr. Ranking's submissions and we too 
would like to get to the bottom of this. Thank 
you. 
THE COURT: Just- I'll come to you one second. 
One matter that arises, although I sent a letter 
dealing with my annoyance, I don't like counsel 
communicating with me during the course of 
hearing a motion, or about to hear a motion, I 
think that my reasons are obviously, but Mr. 
Bristol, I think in this court, last attendance 
as well as correspondence that I received, 
raised an issue has troubles me, and because it 
troubles me I'd sort of like an answer, and that 
is if the costs were, in fact, going to be paid 
at whatever level they're assessed and the fact 
that costs were paid on a previous assessment by 
me, is that a question that should be answered 
before we continue down this tortured path? I 
think that's the thrust of this question, and I 
say it troubles me and I'm not looking for a way 
out, believe me, I'm pretty well saddled with 
the idea that this is going right to the bitter 
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end and I'll be writing and writing some more on 
this matter. What are your thoughts on that? 
On Mr. Bristol's approach? If you get paid the 
costs, then what's the issue? 
MR. SILVER: You want me to answer? 
MR. RANKING: I can - sure, you go ahead. 
MR. SILVER: I think that's a - I think it is a 
good question, but with the greatest of respect 
I think you're asking the wrong side the 
question, and if - if the respondents, whether 
it be Nelson Barbados - any, or all of them, 
carne to the court and said, "We can make these 
issues moot by posting the money in court." 
THE COURT: That's exactly the method I was 
thinking about. 
MR. SILVER: Subject .... 
THE COURT: To the assessment. 
MR. SILVER: Subject to the assessment, but 
these defendants would know that they're going 
to get their costs. If they get a cost award 
you may then conclude that it's not relevant to 
know. We may still have argument about that, 
but I would think that that would be something 
that has to be initiated on the other side and 
real security, like, security that we know that 
if there's a cost award and the appeal period 
runs, our clients get paid. That's how I see 
it. 
THE COURT: Sorry. 
MR. RANKING: Sorry. Subject to one other 
matter, which is a very real issue. The whole 
issue of this case being started in Ontario 
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through a sham corporation is as much alive 
today as it will be tomorrow when a different 
jurisdiction is chosen, another action is 
commenced, and I can tell you that there have 
been rumblings about actions being commenced in 
Florida. So, I am more than happy to settle 
this case today if my client were paid the 
caveat that I would insist upon, is that anybody 
related to- whether it's John Knox or Marjorie 
Knox, or whoever is behind all of this, provides 
a full and final general release that my client, 
and I'm sure I speak for all the defendant's, 
will not be sued anywhere else, because that is 
a legitimate concern. 
THE COURT: Haven't they - I'm sorry, but I'm 
trying to go back - I'm trying to recall what I 
wrote, and didn't I review the Barbadian actions 
that are already underway? 
MR. RANKING: Yes. 
THE COURT: And they are companion actions 
already in existence down there. 
MR. RANKING: I can tell Your Honour and - that 
my client has received letter from a Florida 
firm demanding production of financial 
statements and we said, "We're not going to 
produce them to you, you're acting for Marjorie 
Knox." But then - and there have been certainly 
suggestions of taking steps further. So, I take 
no issue with respect to what's happening in 
Barbados, but there are other law firms that 
have been engaged that are writing letters that 
give us concern, so I'm not in any way trying to 
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dodge your question, I'm happy to get this 
matter resolved by posting a bond and dealing 
with it, but I have to be very candid that one 
of the conditions I would insist upon is that my 
client, and I'm sure, as I say, I speak for 
everyone knows this is it, and that we're- the 
litigation is over everywhere. 
MS. RUBIN: Your Honour .... 
THE COURT: You can understand why I left you 
for last. 
MS. RUBIN: Yes. Let me start with that 
question, because it puts -of course we're in a 
very difficult position here. I don't act for 
Nelson Barbados. 
THE COURT: Well, I understand. 
MS. RUBIN: I don't act for Don Best, and that's 
- we've made that clear from the outset. We act 
only for Bill McKenzie and his firm and in 
respect of Your Honour's question about the 
possibility of the company, the plaintiff, 
posting amounts for costs and Mr. Ranking's 
submission that he would only accept that option 
if there were released. I'll say two things; 
firstly, it would serve my client very well if 
the company, the plaintiff, would post security 
for costs or would pay the costs now if there 
was an amount set. Of course that would take a 
lot of the risk away from my client and I 
believe there would be nothing that would please 
him more. However, I don't - I can't - I don't 
come from a place where I'm able to make any 
sort of submissions or take any position with 
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respect to that, because it's my client's former 
client, I have no knowledge of its capacity to 
do that, or its ability to do that, but should 
Your Honour choose after argument to make some 
kind of order that would give it the option to 
do that, I would take no position. 
THE COURT: Well, the reason I raised it is it 
can't come as a surprise to your firm, because 
Mr. Bristol, I think, copied everyone with that 
letter. He sent that message out and he sent me 
a letter which was copied to all the counsel and 
I just - and he followed up with a phone call 
saying, "Did Justice Shaughnessy read my 
letter?" And I - sort of annoyed by it, I read 
all the letters, but because I don't respond one 
should not - one should take from that that I 
won't be responding, but I guess what I'm saying 
it was an interesting - it was an interesting 
comment, and your firm is certainly aware of it 
and I'm not deciding anything, I'm just sort of 
looking at it and I really thought, yes, from 
your perspective it would make life a whole lot 
easier. 
MS. RUBIN: From our perspective it would be the 
best possible outcome, I think, to - for 
everybody, but as I said it- Mr. Ranking's 
submissions and that suggestion, and the 
suggestion that my firm has knowledge of it, 
therefore it should happen, presupposes that -
that we somehow have a connection or act for, or 
are acting in the interest of the company and 
Mr. Best, and that's absolutely not true and 
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unfortunately - perhaps it would good to 
communicate that option to Mr. Best, but as I 
said, because there is such a delicate situation 
here between my principle and his former client 
I can't really take a position on ... 
THE COURT: No, I ... 
MS. RUBIN: ... that. 
THE COURT: ... didn't expect you- I think what 
I'm really trying to do is I'm just planting a 
seed, and I'm sure that either Mr. Silver or Mr. 
Ranking will get back to Mr. Bristol and tell 
him that I heard the message, but frankly, it's 
not anything that I can control, it's not my 
hands. It might be a good idea that this 
message was conveyed to Mr. Best if he didn't 

receive a copy of Mr. Bristol's letter, he might 
be copied with that letter and who knows what 
will happen thereafter. I'm also saying to you 
that - I don't want to appear aloof, but I do 
want to stand distant from this, because there 

are serious allegations that deal with the 
administration of justice, which is a whole 
other component here that require me to remain 
neutral and as uninvolved in any discussions 
that may take place with Mr. Best, or any other 
parties for that matter. In any event, enough 
of that. 
MS. RUBIN: I think I should advise Your Honour 
while we're on the subject, I believe my friends 
will tell me if I'm wrong, but Shawn 
orchestrated this part of it. Mr. Bristol's 
client has settled - like, I believe that 
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matters have been settled with Mr. Bristol's 
client, so I don't believe he will be appearing 
again on this motion. 
MR. SILVER: I never heard that. 
MS. RUBIN: I had thought .... 
MR. SILVER: And I wonder whether you're 
confusing Mr. Bristol with Mr. Conklin ... 
MS. RUBIN: Oh. 
MR. SILVER: ... who Mr. Duart had indicated in 
the letter he might have struck a deal, although 
that hasn't ... 
MS. RUBIN: Your Honour ... 
MR. SILVER: ... been confirmed. 
MS. RUBIN: ... I'll confirm if there is a 
settlement with one of .... 
MR. SILVER: I think it might be Mr. Conklin ... 
MS. RUBIN: Okay. 
MR. SILVER: ... but .... 
MS. RUBIN: In any event, I take Your Honour's 
point. On the issue of a release, again, the 
parties who Mr. Ranking seeks a release from are 
not - I mean, there was never a disposition on 
the merits of the action. I don't think we can 
ask for that. 
MR. SILVER: Okay. 
MS. RUBIN: As officers of the court, I'm not 
speaking for any party here, it's a very 
unusual .... 
THE COURT: No, no. I think it you get it, take 
it for what it's worth, I drifted something out 
there and I'm going to leave it and I don't 
expect you to respond any further on that 
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matter. 
MS. RUBIN: All right, and just then to respond 
quickly to the motion today, again, I don't act 
for Mr. Best. I'm not here to make submissions 
on his behalf or on behalf of the plaintiff, but 
as counsel for Mr. McKenzie we are involved in 
the action and my submissions should be taken as 
submissions on behalf of an officer of the 
court, and my only - my concern, first of all, 
with the first draft order was slightly the same 
as Your Honour's concern and that is that Mr. 
Best should be afforded the procedural 
protections and the rules, and be provided with 
adequate notice of a motion which seeks to 
curtail his liberty, the most serious motion in 
the rules - under the rules, and I believe it 
sounds as if my friends have drafted the order 
in a form that seems to provide that protection. 
Again my only concern would be that if Mr. Best 
does not receive the materials with sufficient 
time to - if he decides to retain and instruct 
counsel then as officers of the court I think we 
would be failing in our - in all of our duties 
to ensure that the contempt motion proceeds in a 
proper fashion, and so, my only submission on 
that issue is that he be afforded an adequate 
time, and I take no position on the merits of 
the - the substance of the order, only that he 
be afforded the time that he requires should he 
decides to retain and instruct counsel to appear 
for him either on any cross-examination for Your 
Honour, or on a contempt motion. And so - for 
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example, if he is, in fact, out of the country 
as he says, that he have sufficient time to 
arrange his affairs so that he can appear on the 
date set by the court, or that he has the 
flexibility to contact counsel to arrange an 
alternative date if he's not available on that 
date if he decides to appear, and if the 
contempt motion is to go ahead on the date that 
the court have set for the cross-examination 
viva voce before Your Honour. So, I just - more 
as an observation and I put it out there to Your 
Honour that there should be some - in my 
submission, flexibility built in if Mr. Best, on 
the serious matter, where - there is a 
possibility that he could be arrested and 
imprisoned seeks to finally, hopefully, seek 
counsel and retain counsel to act for him. 
That's my position on the order. As far as the 
submissions of my friend, there were several 
submissions that did involve Mr. McKenzie, I was 
tempted to answer them today, but I think I'm 
going to save those submissions for the actual 
cost motion, should it proceed. There were 
several issues that my friend went into which, 
in my submission, went beyond what the evidence 
that was required in support of the motion 
against Mr. Best today, but I'm going to sit 
down and save my submissions for the hearing on 
costs. 
THE COURT: Keep your powder dry. 
MS. RUBIN: That's right. Thank you, Your 
Honour. 
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THE COURT: All right. 
MR. RANKING: We have a draft order 
THE COURT: Can I look at that, please? Madam 
Registrar, would you - destroy that one so we 
don't mix them up. 
MADAM REGISTRAR: Yes. 
THE COURT: You have a copy, Ms. Rubin? 
MR. RANKING: We only - Ms. Traviss only brought 
us one copy. That's the only copy we have in 
the court. 
THE COURT: Well, I'm going to let you look at 
it before I do anything. I guess we need Jackie 
Traviss on the line in any event. What kind of 
time are we talking about for the return at 
paragraph 3? 
MR. RANKING: We were thinking the week of 
December the 14th, Your Honour. 
THE COURT: That's pretty short notice though, 
isn't it? 
MR. RANKING: Well, we can - the problem is that 
we've got - we can go into January, I mean, I 
don't think it's being realistic to do it the 
week before Christmas, which is the only 
reason .... 
THE COURT: I don't either, I won't be here. 
MR. RANKING: Yeah. So, then it would be 
January. We were hoping that we could do it 
before Christmas, that was all. 
MR. SILVER: The concern is the February 22nd 

return date on the costs submissions, and as 
weeks slip by we - I predict we come closer to 
not being able to conclude the matter on 
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February 22nd, and so, and of course I don't know 
your availability at all, but I was hoping that, 
you know, two weeks from today, for example, is 
December 16th, which would get it done and I know 

you know this, but Mr. McKenzie's cross-
examination has been postponed on two occasions 
because everybody agrees that it makes sense to 
conduct that after Mr. Best. And so, there are 
other steps that are required to be taken after 
- if and when Mr. Best shows up, and so, the 
earlier we do those the more time we have to do 
the other steps without having to change the 
February 22nd date. So, that's the only rush. 
And yet, we're still - I'm proposing two weeks 
notice, which is certainly more than enough 
under the terms of the substituted service, and 
quite franking and, you know, I think it's 
reasonable to conclude that if he's going to 
attend it won't matter to him whether it's 
before Christmas or after, and more importantly 
if he's not going to attend it won't matter if 
it's before Christmas or after. That's why I'm 
pushing for an earlier than later date. 
MS. RUBIN: Your Honour, again, the only thing I 
would say is I believe the process should be 
fair to Mr. Best. I believe that Mr. Best 
should have ample notice, assuming he's not in 
the country, as he says he's not, that he have 
ample notice to return to arrange his affairs, 
to retain counsel. In my submission this motion 
was to be heard in November and Mr. Duart asked 
me to make it clear today, as he repeated so 
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many times when he was here, it was not to be 
moved, it was not to be adjourned, it was to go 
ahead and there is nothing urgent about this 
matter, it's a matter for costs, and we would 
all have liked it to be heard in November and we 
would all like it to be heard in February, but 
if a man is to be arrested and imprisoned 
possibly following a motion on December 15th, 
which would have him sitting in prison over -
possibly over Christmas, I believe that we 
should all step back and look at this with some 
perspective and provide him with the time that 
he needs, or requires, or at least to know that 
we've done it properly so that he has the 
opportunity to do what he wants to do to defend 
whatever proceedings are brought against him. 
Those are my submissions. 
THE COURT: Is Jackie Traviss there, or no? 
COURTROOM REGISTRAR: She is, Your Honour. I 
just have her on the line. 

... SCHEDULE DISCUSSED BETWEEN COURTROOM 
REGISTRAR, JACKIE TRAVISS (ON PHONE) AND 
CONVEYED TO JUDGE. 

COURTROOM REGISTRAR: Friday of the second week 
would be better. 
THE COURT: That would be the 15th? 

MR. RANKING: The 15th. 

THE COURT: Counsel? 
MR. RANKING: That's fine. 
MR. SILVER: Clear in my diary. 
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THE COURT: All right. Would you mark that in? 
That'll be a nine-thirty start, January 15th. 

COURTROOM REGISTRAR: Okay. Thank you. 

... CALL WITH JACKIE TRAVISS TERMINATED. 

THE COURT: Do you want to have a look at this 
order - what about the cost provision in 
paragraph 5? We had no submissions on that. 
MR. RANKING: Well, I didn't - I hadn't been so 
presumptuous as to make submissions on costs. 
Look, I'm happy to put costs over again. I'll 
be very candid; the reason that I wanted the 
cost order today is that if he then doesn't pay 
the cost and he then fails to appear, it's 
another bow in my quiver, but .... 
THE COURT: Well, let's put it over to the date. 
MR. RANKING: I'm happy to do that. Happy to do 
that, Your Honour. 
THE COURT: Why don't you look at this, Ms. 
Rubin. 
MS. RUBIN: All right, Your Honour. Just in 
paragraph 3 .... 
THE COURT: Yup, I haven't put that in yet. 
MS. RUBIN: And the only other issue that I can 
think of is if there are going to be 
supplementary materials served on Mr. Best that 
they be filed with - not on short notice, 
and .... 
THE COURT: Oh, I think the materials are ready 
to fire here. I think we've got the materials 
that are necessary to proceed. I don't think I 
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have to add anything in that regard. 
THE COURT: Have you had a chance to see this, 
I'm sorry. You have seen this? 
MS. RUBIN: Yes, Your Honour. It's fine. 

... JUDGE GETS CONFIRMATION OF THE COURT ADDRESS 
FROM THE REGISTRAR. 
... JUDGE WRITES ENDORSEMENT. 

THE COURT: I've made the following endorsement, 
back of the motion record, "In the usual course 
a motion to hold a person in contempt should be 
served personally. However the circumstances of 
the present case are most unusual. Mr. Donald 
Best, the present director and shareholder of 
the plaintiff corporation, has set up a somewhat 
elaborate procedure for mailings and other 
communications. He has a UPS post box address 
in Kingston which in turn forwards all 
correspondence to yet another UPS post box at 
the Cloverdale Mall in Toronto. Further, it is 
apparent from correspondence sent by Mr. Best, 
including conversations he states he had with 
the trial coordinator at Whitby that Mr. Best 
aware of all aspects of these proceedings 
including my order of November 2nd, 2009. Mr. 
Best called the Verbatim office on the day of 
the scheduled examinations and attempted to 
conduct the examinations over the telephone. 
Mr. Best has sent material to the trial 
coordinator, and me, which is not in affidavit 
form. Mr. Best refuses to provide any address 

is 
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where he resides, but suggests he is out of the 
country. Extensive investigations have not 
resulted in a location where he resides. I find 
that Donald Best is deliberately avoiding 
personal service of the contempt motion. There 
are no other steps that can be taken by the 
defendants to locate Mr. Best. In these unusual 
and unique circumstances I find that an order 
for substitutional service of the contempt 
application is appropriate, and it is so 
granted. Mr. Donald Best will be 
substitutionally served with the motion for 
contempt and this, my endorsement, at Number 1) 
the UPS address in Kingston, Ontario as detailed 
in the order of Eberhard, J., and 2) at the UPS 
address at the Cloverdale Mall in Toronto. The 
contempt motion is now set to be heard by me on 
January 15th, 2010 at nine-thirty at Whitby, 
Ontario. Costs of today's attendance and costs 
thrown away are reserved to the January 15th, 
2010 date. The cross-examination of Mr. 
McKenzie has been delayed pending this aspect of 
the proceeding. Further three days for the 
hearing of costs have been reserved for the end 
of February 2010. It is therefore necessary 
that all dates and timelines be adhered to in 
order that this matter can be completed in both 
a fair and expeditious manner." Anything else? 
Order signed. The only changes that I made to 
the order- well, you'll see them. I added to 
paragraph 3, "This court further orders that 
Donald Best shall appear before the Honourable 
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Justice Shaughnessy to give evidence at a 
hearing in Whitby on January 15th, 2010 at 9:30 
a.m. at the courthouse, 601 Rossland Road East, 
Whitby, Ontario", I added. I put in a date 
under paragraph 4 of January 15th, 2010 and I 
changed paragraph 5 to say, "The court further 
orders the cost of this motion are reserved to 
the hearing of January 2010." All right. 
MR. RANKING: Thank you, Your Honour. 
MR. SILVER: Thank you. 
MS. RUBIN: Thank you. 
THE COURT: Oh right, and I just wanted you -
before you duck out of here, I know it's late, 
but to take a look at the boxes that I've now 
told the CSO that I want to ship, but I want you 
to take a look at them before they go back to 
Barrie, because they go back there you never 
know what's going to happen. 
MR. RANKING: To be fair to Ms. Rubin it may be 
that what -we'll do that now, but it may also 
be that Ms. Rubin doesn't know what Mister - so 
we may have to come back again before - just to 
double check it, but we're going to do it now, 
but I just - in fairness to Ms. Rubin. 
THE COURT: All right. I guess that what I 
should do just for the purposes of the record, 
I'm going to file the - what Mr. Best sent to 
the trial coordinator, Jackie Traviss, really 
twice, but I guess one was meant for me, because 
it's addressed to me, and one to Jackie Traviss, 
as I say one got assembled, they didn't assemble 
the second set of materials. I'm just going to 
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jelson Barbados Group Limited v. Richard Ivan Cox, et al. 
Cerfication 

simply put them in the court file to remain 

there. Here's the other one. 

M A T T E R A D J 0 U R N E D 

FORM 2 

Certificate of Transcript 

Evidence Act, subsection 5 (2) 

I, Brenda Wakelin, certify that this document is a true and 

10 accurate transcript in the recording of Nelson Barbados Group 

Limited and Richard Ivan Cox, et al., in the Superior Court of 

Justice, held at 601 Rossland Road, Whitby, Ontario taken from 

Recording No. 2812-3-0216/2009 and No. 2812-3-0217/2009, which 

has been certified in the Form 1 by L. Buchanan. 

15 

(Date) 
q. c:l.c.•; ,:;_ , 

/} .-
{;jj,(}Q J( ---

20 (Signature of authorized person(sl) 
Brenda Wakelin, B.Sc., B.Ed., OCT, CCR, ICDR 
Certified Court Reporter, CRAO 
Internationally Certified Digital Reporter, IAPRT 

PLEASE NOTE: 
25 It is against Regulation 587/91, Courts of Justice Act, 

January 1, 1990, to reproduce this transcript in any form 
and/or format. This transcript is a certified true copy and 
bears the original signature in BLUE INK. This is not a valid 
transcript unless it bears the original signature. 

30 

Please contact the Courts Administration Office to obtain 
further copies from the reporter listed above at 905 743 2672. 

Thank you. 

AG 0087 (rev. 07-01) 
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Court File No. C57123 

COURT OF APPEAL FOR ONTARIO 

B E T W E E N : 

DONALD BEST 

Moving Party (Appellant) 

- and -

RICHARD IVAN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, 

PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, 

9 OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, 

10 

11 

12 

13 

DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, GLYNE BANNISTER, 

GLYNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES A.K.A. PHILIP 

GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, R.G. MANDEVILLE & 

CO., COTTLE, CATFORD & CO., KEELE WORRELL LTD., 

14 ERIC IAIN STEWART DEANE, ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, 

15 

16 

17 

18 

LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM DEANE, 

LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, EDWARD BAYLEY, 

FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, 

MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, 

19 G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, GOLF BARBADOS INC., 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS 

LIMITED, THORNBROOK INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., 

THORNBROOK INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION, THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT 

TRUST, PHOENIX ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, 

DAVID C. SHOREY AND COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY 
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LTD., FIRST CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) 

LTD., PRICE WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY 

GENERAL OF BARBADOS, THE COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, AND 

JOHN DOES 1-25, PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN 

GORDON LEE DEANE, DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, 

PETER SIMMONS, G.S. BROWN AND ASSOCIATES LTD., 

GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, 

CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED AND LIFE OF BARBADOS 

LIMITED C.O.B. AS LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, LIFE 

OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 

PRICE WATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION CANADA 

LTD., AND COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION INC. 

Respondents 

-- CONFIDENTIAL --

--- This is the Cross-Examination of COLIN PENDRITH 

on his Affidavit sworn September 26, 2013, taken at 

the offices of Regus, Yonge & Richmond, 151 Yonge 

Street, 11th Floor, Toronto, Ontario, M5C 2W7, on 

Tuesday, the 22nd day of October, 2013. 

frN Neeson-.\::... Associates 
COURT REPORTiti:G AND CAPTIONING INC 

www.neesoncourtreporting.com 
(416) 413-7755 (888) 525-6666 
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286 

things. 

And what you're asking for here is, it 

goes back to what Mr. Silver has been saying the 

whole time, which is that this is argument. 

MR. RANKING: Well, I can add to that. 

There's litigation in other 

jurisdictions. The reality is that there are 

positions being taken with respect to Nelson 

Barbados having a security interest over the shares 

of Kingsland. That is disputed. 

It's an issue which we were entitled to 

examine upon, amongst other things. And just 

because Mr. Best left the jurisdiction does not 

mean that that examination is now moot. 

MR. SLANSKY: So your position is, 

you're seeking to do it for a purpose, other than 

the stated purpose in the notice. 

The notice was for the purposes of costs in the 

action, but you want it for other purposes, so 

you're doing indirectly what you can't do directly. 

MR. RANKING: I don't accept that 

characterization. 

MR. SILVER: Nor do I. 

BY MR. SLANSKY: 

Q. There was repeated insistence or 

frN Associates 
COURT REPORTING AND CAPTIONING INC 

www.neesoncourtreporting.com 
(416) 413-7755 (888) 525-6666 
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BETWEEN 

COURT OF APPEAL FOR ONTARIO 

CITATION: Best v. Cox, 2013 ONCA 695 
DATE: 20131114 

DOCKET: M42922 & M42935 (C57123) 

Feldman J.A. (In Chambers) 

Donald Best 

Applicant (Appellant) 

and 

Richard Ivan Cox, Gerard Cox, Alan Cox, Philip Vemon Nicholls. Erio Ashby 
Bentham Deane, Owen Basil Keith Deane, Marjorie lima Knox. David Simmons, 
Bneth Kentish, Glyne Bannister, Glyne B. Bannister. Philip Greaves a.k.a. PhUip 

Greaves. Gittens Clyde Tumey. R.G. Mandeville & Co., Cottle, Catford & Co., 
Kable Worrell Ltd., Eric lalo Stewart Dgpe. Estate of Colin Qeane. Lee Deane, 

Errie Deane, Keith Deane, Malcolm Deane, Lionel Nurse, Leonard Nurse. 
Edward Bayley, Francis Daher. David Shorey, Owen Seymour Arthur, Mark 

Cummins, Graham Brown, Brian EdWBrd Turner, G.S. Brown Associates Limited, 
Golf Barbados Inc., Klngsl@nd Estates Llmlt§d, Classic Investments Limited. 

Thombrook International Consultants Inc., Thombrook lntemationallnc., S.B.G. 
Development Corporation. The Barbados Agricultural Credit Trust, PhoeniX 
Artists Management Umfted, David C. Shorey and Companyt C. Shorey and 

Company Ltd., Fjrst Caribbean lnternatfgnaJ Bank CBarbldosl Ltd •• Price 
Waterhouse Coopers (Barbados), Attorney General of Barbados, the Country of 

Barbados, and John Does 1-25, Philip Greaves, Esta1e of Vivian Gordon Lee 
Deane, David Thompson, Edmund Bayley, Peter Simmonsl G.S. Brown and 

Associates Ltd .. GBI Golf (Barbados) Inc., Owen Gordon Anlay Daane, Ctasslc 
Investments Limited and Life of Barbados Limited c.o.b. as Life of Barbados 

Holdings, Life of Barbados Umited, David Carmichael Shorey, 
East Caribbean Firm, Veco Corporation, 

Commonwealth ConstrtJCtion Canada Ltd .• and Commonwealth Construction Inc. 

Respondents (Respondent!) 
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Paul Slansky, for the appellant 

Robert Harrison and Gerald Ranking. for the respondent. 
PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm 

WHifam Burden and Lome Silver, for the respondent, Kingsland Estates Limited 

Heard: October 29a 2013 

On appeal from the orders of Justice J. Bryan Shaughnessy of the Superior 
Court of Justice, dated January 15,2009. and May 3, 2013. 

Feldman J.A.: 

[1} Two motions were heard in the context of an appeal by Mr. Best from: a) a 

finding of civil contempt made against him by Shaughnessy J. on January 15, 

2009, the imposition of a fine of $7,500, and an order that he be incarcerated for 

three months unless he purges the contempt; and b) an order of May 3, 2013, 

where Shaughnessy J. dismissed an application to set aside the finding of 

contempt. 

[2] One motion was brought by Mr. Best for an order that counsel for each of 

the two respondents, PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm and 

Kingsland Estates Limited, be removed and prevented from arguing the appeal 

based on allegations of misconduct in the proceedings appealed from. Mr. 
Harrison and Mr. Burden argued this motion as the conduct of the other two 

counsel was being impugned. The second motion was brought by the two 

respondents for security for the costs of the appeal. 
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(1) The Removal Motlon 

[3] The appellant seeks to have the court remove counsel and their law firms 

from the record for alleged misconduct in the contempt proceedings and In the 

proceeding to set aside the contempt order. The allegations against the lawyers 

that are raised on this motion were raised and rejected by Shaughnessy J. fn his 

May 3, 2013 ruling where he refused to withdraw the contempt order. All of the 

allegations and submissions made on this motion are also grounds of appeal on 

the main appeal. 

[4] The allegations relate primarily to the events surrounding the appellant's 

1ailure to attend for examination as ordered and what he knew about the order 

requiring him to attend and when he knew about lt He atleges that counsel for 

the respondents deliberately misled the motion judge on what occurred. Thls was 

not only reJected by the motion Judge, but he made it clear that his findings were 

based on the appellant's own letters, recorded words and actions. The appellant 

also argues that the lawyers now have a conflict of interest as they now have an 

Interest in protecting their own reputations which conflicts with their clients• 

interest on the appeal, He also says that he intends to bring a ftesh evidence 

motion where the respondents• lawyers will be witnesses. 

[51 The appellant Is effectively asking the court on the motion to make a 

preliminary determination that Shaughnessy J. erred in rejecting the allegations 
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of misconduct, or that he may have erred or that it is arguable that he erred, and 

on that basJs. to remove counsel at this stage. 

[6] Clearly that cannot be done. The record as it stands is that there was no 

misconduct. Shaughnessy J. stated repeatedly that the allegations were spurious 

and baseless. He was the case management judge aver a period of several 

years. Considerable deference is owed to his findings. To the extent that the 

misconduct issue is relevant to the finding of contempt, it wilt be determined on 

the appeal. The conflict of Interest allegation arises directly from and depends on 

the misconduct allegations. 

[7] No motion to introduce fresh evidence or to examine the respondents' 

lawyers has been brought. I will therefore not comment on the likely outcome of 

such a motlon. 

[8] This court has recently re-Iterated the principle that a court will only in the 

rarest of casas grant a removal motion: see Kaiser (Re). 201 1 ONCA 713, 205 

O.A.C. 275 {Cronk J.A. Jn Chambers); Manftoun v. Banitabs, 2012 ONCA 786, 

[2012] O.J. No.5375 (Weller J.A. in Chambers). As Cronk J.A. stated il Kaiser 

(Re), at para. 21: 

As the motion judge properly noted, "A litigant should 
not be deprived of counsel of its choice without good 
cause ... " For this reason, Canadian courts exercise the 
highest level of restraint before interfering with a par1Ys 
choice of counsel. Where such discretionary, equitable 
relief Is invoked, there must be a possibility of real 
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mischief should a removal order be refused. The test is 
whether a fair-minded and reasonably infonned member 
of the public would conclude that counsel's removal is 
necessary for the proper administration of justice ... 
[Citations omitted.] 

,, 

[9] I am satisfied that a fair-minded and reasonably informed member of the 

public would not conclude that removal of respondents' counsel is necessary for 

the proper administration of justice. The motlon Is therefore dismissed. 

[10] The appellant, through his counsel, has made serious allegations of 

deliberate misconduct against the two counsel for the respondents both In writing 

and in open court ln the face of a finding to the contrary. In my view, that tactic 

requires the court to express its condemnation by awarding cos1s on the full 

indemnity scale. Costs are fixed in the amount of $24.000 for 

PricewaterhouseCoopers and $48,000 for Kingsland, all inclusive. 

{2) The Security for Costs Motlon 

['11] The respondents move tor security for costs of the appeal. In light of what 

they and the motion judge say Is the egregious conduct of the appellant during 

this proceeding, all of which is discussed in detail by the mOtion judge, the 

respondents seek security for costs at the substantial indemnity leveL 

[12] They rely on rules 61 .06(1 )(a) and (c), which provide: 

In an appeal where it appears that, 
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(a) there is good reason to believe that the appeal is frivolous 
and vexatious and that the appellant has insuffiCient assets in 
Ontario to pay the costs of the appeal; ... [or] 

(c) for other good reason, security for costs should be ordered, 

a judge of the appellate court, on motion by the respondent. may 
make such order for security for costs of the proceeding and of the 
appeal as is just. 

[1-3) Under subrule (a), the respondents say that the appeal is frivolous and 

vexatious. They point to the record and the careful findings of the motion judge 

that the appellant knew of the order requiring him to appear and did not do so, 

either on the ordered day or on a number of days thereafter when he was given 

further opportunities to do so. They also point to the detailed findings of the 

motion judge on the motion to set aside the contempt finding, that the appellant 

did not purge his contempt as he said he did, but lied to the court, and to the 

motion judge's failure to accept the appellant's apology because he found that it 

was not genuine. 

[14] The appellant says he is Impecunious. That is sufficient for the second part 

of subrule (a). However. the respondents' counsel submit that the appellant has 

bee l able to fund this litigation, indicating that he has access to funds and will be 

able to pay Jf costs are ordered as a condition of proceeding with the appeal. 

[15) In my view, there is a legal issue that arises on the facts of this case which 

is not frivolous. The issue relates to the penalty imposed for the contempt and 

the appellants ability at this stage to purge his contempt. 
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[16} The appellant is the principal of the plaintiff in the action, Nelson Barbados 

Group Ltd. The action was dismiSsed in 2009 for lack of jurfsdiction in Ontario. 

Prior to the dismissal, the plaintiff withdrew against several defendants Including 

PrlcewaterhouseCoopers. The order of November 2, 2009, ordered the appellant 

to appear on November 17. 2009, at Victory Verbatim to answer questions the 

answers to which would be used by the court to determine and award the costs 

of the action. Some defendants 'Were seeking costs against the appellant 

personally. The appellant did not appear and was found ln. contempt of the 

November 2, 2009 order. 

[1 7) Following the contempt finding against the appellant, 1he entire action and 

costs were settled with all defendants and the agreed costs were paid. 

Apparently tt Is not known who provided the funds to pay the cpsts_. but the 

Minutes of Settlement provide that the costs agreed to are for the entire action. 

As a result. the action is over and the costs of the action have been paid. 

[18] In those circumstances, it Is unclaar to me on what basis the appellant 

could be required to now appear and answer questions in accordance with the 

original order. Counsel for the respondents advised this court. as they did 

Shaughnessy J., that they still need to find out information about the relationship 

between the appellant and the Barbados assets that were the subject of the 

action. They need the information for other litigation that was or is still being 
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pursued against the defendants In other jurisdictions. It is not clear on what basis 

they can now obtain that information in the context of this contempt proceeding. 

(19] If there is an Issue with the ability of the appellant to now purge his 

contempt this may also raise an issue with respect to the enforceability of the 

penalty of incarceration at this stage. 

[20] As l have concluded that the appeal raises a legal issue that is not 

frivolous. and in addition involves the liberty of the subject, this Is not a ease 

where security would be ordered under either subrule (a) or (c). The111 should be 

no order for security for costs. The motion is therefore dismissed with costs of 

$25,000 inclusive, payable in the cause. 
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Court File No.: 07-0141 

BETWEEN: 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD • 

-and-

Plaintiff 

RICHARD IV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASll.. KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE ll..MA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GL YNE BANNISTER, GLYNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES 

Lk.a. PHILP GREAVES, GITrENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., CO'ITLE, CATFORD & CO., 
KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE, 

ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 
DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 

EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEBER, DAVID SHOREY, 
OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 
BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 

GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 
CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, mORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., mORNBR0031te•_z.-.w--·-
INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT . 
mE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIXC"E:caus::. ; ..... 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS AITORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHnJP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID mOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERBOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALm CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

NOTICE OF MOTION 

Defendants 

THE DEFENDANT, PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm ("PWC"}, 

and all other defendants, will make a motion before the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy on 

1 

·. -Wit 
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I - Wednesday December 2, 2009, at 9:30a.m. or as soon after that time as the motion can be heard, I at the Courthouse in Whitby, Ontario. I 
I PROPOSED MEmOD OF BEARING: I - The motion is to be heard orally. 

I - THE.MOTION IS FOR: I 
I (a) an order declaring Donald Best to be in contempt of this Honourable Court by 

-:: reason of his failure to attend to be exan;rined on Tuesday, November 17, 2009 I 
I • and Wednesday, November 25, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. at Victory Verbatim in I 
I 

Toronto, Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, Suite 900, Toronto, Ontario 

MSK 1H6 ("Victory Verbatim'') in breach of paragraph 3 of the November 2, I 
I 2009 order of the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy (the "November 2, 2009 I Order''); 

I (b) an order declaring Donald Best to be in contempt of this Honourable Court by I 
I reason of his failure to produce documents at least one (1) week prior to his I .1 

examination on November 17, 2009, in breach of paragraph 4 of the November 2, 

I I 2009 Order; 
"" 

I • (c) an order issuing a warrant to arrest Donald Best and requiring him to attend at the I 
I ' hearing of this contempt motion to answer all proper questions by defence counsel I 

i in court (viva voce before the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy}, and sp.ecifically: 

I I • (i) all questions refused or taken under advisement at the cross-examination 

I of John Knox held on November 4, 2008 and all questions reasonably I il arising therefrom; I I -· I I I II 
I 
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(d) 

(e) 

2223 
-3-

(ii) all questions refused or taken under advisement at the Rule 39.03 

examination of Donald Best held on March 20, 2009 and all questions 

reasonably arising therefrom; 

(iii) all questions which Justice Shaughnessy directed to be answered on April 

8, 2009 and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

(iv) all questions relating to Donald Best's appointment, and subsequent 

duties/responsibilities as an officer of Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. 

(''Nelson Barbados''); his relationship, if any, to the matters pleaded in 

the within action, and his non-privileged association and/or relationship 

with K. William McKenzie and/or the law firm of Crawford, McKenzie, 

McLean, Anderson & Duncan LLP; and 

(v) all questions concerning the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited 

("Kingsland") including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 

the security over and ownership rights held by Nelson Barbados in the 

common shares of Kingsland and all questions reasonably arising 

thereform; 

in the alternative, an order that Donald Best must attend at Victory Verbatim. on a 

date to be determined by the Honourable Court ·for examination as required in the 

November 2, 2009 Order; 

an order that Donald Best pay a fine in the amount of $7 ,500.00; 
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(f) an order that Donald Best pay to PWC its substantial indemnity costs of the 

contempt motion, the attendance at Victory Verbatim on November 17, 2009, and 

the attendance at Victory Verbatim on November 25, 2009, forthwith; 

(g) an order allowing service of this notice of motion and any other motion materials 

relating to this motion upon Donald Best by an alternative to personal service, by 

mailing the documents to 427 Princess Street, Suite 200, Kingston, Ontario, K7L 

5S9; 

(h) an order validating service and abridging the time for service of this motion, if 

necessary, 

(i) an order granting leave to hear viva voce evidence; and 

(j) such further and other relief as this Honourable Court deems just. 

THE GROUNDS FOR THE MOTION ARE: 

(a) on November 2, 2009 the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy ordered that Donald 

Best attend to be examined on Tuesday, November 17, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. at 

Victory Verbatim, and that he deliver relevant documents to Mr. Ranking, counsel 

for PWC, at least one (1) week prior to examination; 

(b) Mr. Best has never delivered the documentation he was ordered to deliver and he 

is therefore in breach of the November 2, 2009 Order; 

(c) on November 17, 2009, Mr. Ranking, and other counsel, attended at Victory 

Verbatim to examine Mr. Best. Mr. Best was aware of his required attendance on 
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that day, because he called Victory Verbatim at 9:50 a.m. that morning and spoke 

with counsel, and ultimately stated his intention not to attend, as required; 

(d) during the phone conversation with Mr. Best at Victory Verbatim on November 

17, 2009, Mr. Ranking and Lome Silver told Mr. Best that he would be in 

contempt of the November 2, 2009 Order if he did not attend. Despite repeated 

requests, Mr. Best refused to disclose his location, refused to attend later in the 

afternoon on November 17, 2009, refused to attend on other dates suggested by 

counsel, and refused to suggest another day he could attend; 

(e) Mr. Best did not attend at Victory Verbatim in Toronto on November 17, 2009; 

(f) on November 18,2009, Mr. Ranking wrote to Mr. Best, to confirm that he was in 

contempt of the November 2, 2009 Order. In an effort to resolve the matter 

without further involving this Honourable Court, Mr. Ranldng proposed an 

alternative enrnination date of Wednesday, November 25, 2009; 

(g) Mr. Ranking served a second Notice of Examination in accordance with the 

November 2, 2009 Order; 

(h) Mr. Best did not appear on November 25, 2009, nor did he call or provide any 

explanation. In fact, the defence received absolutely no communication from Mr. 

Best; 

(i) Mr. Best therefore breached of the November 2, 2009 Order a second time; 
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G) it is in the interest of justice that Mr. Best be required to attend and give evidence 

at the hearing of the contempt motion. Given the history of this matter, he is not 

likely to attend voluntarily. 

(k) Mr. Best has not attended to be examined on two separate occasions. The defence 

requires Mr. Best's evidence (and the production of documents) for the costs 

motion to be heard on February 22, 23 and 24, 2010. The defence are concerned 

that a further order requiring Mr. Best to attend will be disregarded by him, or 

alternatively, that Mr. Best will attend and refuse to produce documents or answer 

relevant questions. As such, PWC seeks an order requiring Mr. Best to attend to 

purge his contempt and to answer all. relevant questions in Court viva voce before 

the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy at a date and time convenient to His Honour. 

Such a procedure will·obviate the delay and necessity of further court attendances 

(to deal with refusals) and permit the Court to hear the evidence, and rule on 

refusals; 

(1) Rules 3.02, 39.03(4) and 60.11 of the Rules of Civil Procedure, R.R.O. 1990, 

Reg. 194; 

THE FOLLOWING EVIDENCE will be relied upon on this motion: 

(a) The affidavit of Richard Butler sworn 27, 2009. 

(b) Such further and other evidence as counsel may advise and this Honourable Cour1; 

may permit. 

.) 
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Defendants 

I, RICHARD BUTLER, of the City of Toronto, in the Province of Ontario, 

MAKE OATH AND SAY: 
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1. I am an Associate at Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP, the solicitors for 

PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm ("PwC"). I have assisted with this case, and as 

such, I have knowledge of the matters hereinafter deposed, unless I state that my information 

is based on the information of others. In such case, I verily believe the information to be true. 

A. Information Obtained from The UPS Store Canada Franchises 

2. In my affidavit of November 2, 2009, I described the process by which I sent 

The UPS Store Canada head office, and two The UPS Store Canada franchises (collectively, 

the "Non-Parties") the Further Amended Notice of Motion of the defendants, dated October 

29, 2009, in which the defendants sought disclosure of documents from the Non-Parties. In 

my affidavit of November 2, 2009 I confinned that the Non-Parties did not object to the relief 

sought in the Further Amended Notice of Motion (i.e. the production of documents). 

3. On Monday, November 2, 2009, the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy ordered 

The UPS Store Canada located at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, ON, ("Kingston UPS 

Store'') to deliver to the defendants copies of the original contract for rental/use, and any 

billing records that exist for Box 200 from the date the mail box was opened until present. 

Justice Shaughnessy also ordered that The UPS Store Canada located at 250 The East Mall, 

Toronto, Ontario ("Toronto UPS Store'') deliver to the defendants copies of the original 

contract for rental/use, and any billing records that exist for mail boxes 1225 and 1715 from 

the date the mail boxes were opened until present. A copy of Justice Shaughenssy's order, 

dated November 2, 2009, (''November 2, 2009 Order'') is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 

4. On November 10, 2009, I sent an email to Ron Boratto, Executive Vice 

President & Corporate Counsel of MBEC Communications L.P ., which is the franchisor to 
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The UPS Store Canada stores. I advised Mr. Boratto that the motion on November 2, 2009 

went ahead and that the presiding judge ordered production of documents from two The UPS 

Store Canada franchises. I attached an unsigned copy of the November 2, 2009 Order to the 

email. A copy of that email is attached hereto as Exhibit "B". 

(a) Kingston UPS Store 

5. On November 12, 2009 I left a voicemail for the acting manager (who I knew, 

from previous correspondence, was named Darren) of the Kingston UPS Store identifying 

myself and the purpose of my call, being the production of documents reqlrired by the 

November 2, 2009 Order. I follow-up my voicemail with an email to the acting manager. I 

attached an unsigned copy of the November 2, 2009 Order to the email. A copy of that email 

is attached hereto as Exhibit "C". 

6. On November 12, 2009 I received a facsimile from Darren which included 

documents relating to Box 200 at the Kingston UPS Store. The customer's name for that box 

is "Nelson Barbados Group Ltd." I called and spoke to Darren immediately after receiving 

the facsimile. Darren confirmed that the owner of the Toronto UPS Store (Dave DeLyzer) 

was responsible for activating Box 200, at the Kingston UPS Store, on September 3, 2009. 

7. Darren also confirmed that pursuant to the instructions provided at the time 

Box 200 at the Kingston UPS Store was activated, the Kingston UPS Store automatically 

forwards back all mail received at the Kingston UPS Store to the Toronto UPS Store, and bills 

the credit card number provided in the file. Darren confirmed that the two most recent 

transactions (when the contents from l3ox 200 at the Kingston UPS Store), were sent to the 
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Toronto UPS Store, were November 3, 2009 and November 12, 2009. A copy of that 

facsimile is attached hereto as Exhibit ''D". 

(b) Toronto UPS Store 

8. On November 12, 2009 I spoke to the owner of the Toronto UPS Store, Dave 

DeLyzer. Mr. DeLyzer advised me that one of the two mail boxes included in the November 

2, 2009 Order (Box 1715) was closed a couple years ago. Mr. DeLyzer also told me that The 

UPS Store Canada franchises are required to destroy records for the box on closure of the 

account and that he had no documents for Box 1715. Mr. DeLyzer confirmed that he would 

provide the information for Box 1225. 

9. Mr. DeLyzer also noted that he the mailbox at the Kingston UPS 

Store at the request of the registered customer for Box 1225. 

10. Mr. DeLyzer requested a copy of the November 2, 2009 Order. I sent Mr. 

DeLyzer an email on November 12,2009, and attached an unsigned copy of the November 2, 

2009 Order to the email. A copy of that email is attached hereto as Exhibit ''E". 

11. On November 13, 2009 I sent an email to Mr. DeLyzer attaching a copy of the 

signed November 2, 2009 Order. A copy of that email is attached hereto as Exhibit "F". In 

my email, I stated that in addition to the production of any documents relating to Box 1225 at 

the Toronto UPS Store, the Order also required that if Mr. DeLyzer had documents relating to 

Box 200, at the Kingston UPS Store, those must also be produced. 

12. On November 13, 2009, Mr. DeLyzer sent me an email to which he attached 

documents regarding Box 1225 at the Toronto UPS Store. Although the information 
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contained in the documents states that the box number is 225, Mr. DeLyzer con:fumed to me 

by phone that there is no box 1225 at the Toronto UPS Store. The box was activated by 

Donald Best on behalf of The ''Nelson Group Limited" in 2007. A copy of that email and 

attachment is attached hereto as Exhibit "G". 

(c) Summary 

13. From the documents sent by the two The UPS Store locations, and from my 

discussion with Dmen and David I understood that any mail that anives in Box 200 at the 

Kingston UPS Store, being mail intended for Nelson Barbados Group Ltd., is automatically 

forwarded to Box 225 at the Toronto UPS Store, which box is in the name of The Nelson 

Group Limited. Mr. Best activated Box 225 at the Toronto UPS Store and requested that the 

owner of the Toronto UPS Store activate Box 200 at the Kingston UPS Store. 

B. Mr. Best Faill to Attend at the Scheduled Examination and Provide Documents 

14. In the November 2, 2009 Order, the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy o¢ered 

Donald Best to appear at an examination on Tuesday, November 17, 2009 at 10:00 am. at 

Victory Verbatim in Toronto, Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, Suite 900, Toronto, 

Ontario, MSK 1H6, (''Victory Verbatim") at his own expense. Mr. Best was also ordered to 

provide to Mr. Ranking all documentation touching on the issues at least one week prior to 

examination. See Exluoit "A" above. 

15. I am informed by Mr. Ranking, and believe, that Mr. Best never provided any 

docmnentation as required by the November 2, 2009 Order. 

16. I have reviewed the November 6, 2009 correspondence from Gerry Ranking to 

Mr. Best, in which Mr. Ranking informs Mr. Best that he is required to attend for examination 
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on November 17, 2009 at Victory Verbatim. A Notice of Examination was included with the 

letter. A copy of that letter is attached hereto as Exhibit "H'', and a copy of the Notice of 

Examination is attached hereto as Exhibit "r'. The Affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette, sworn 

November 17, 2009, states that Mr. Best was served with the November 6, 2009 

correspondence and the Notice of Examination on November 6, 2009. The November 17, 

2009 Affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette is attached hereto as Exhibit "J". 

17. I have reviewed the November 16, 2009 correspondence from Mr. Best to the 

Trial Coordinator's office, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit ''K.". In that letter, 

Mr. Best confirms that he is aware of the November 17, 2009 examination date. 

18. I am informed by Mr. Ranking, and believe, that Mr. Best did not attend at 

Victory Verbatim on November 17, 2009. I am also informed that Mr. Ranking, in the 

presence of other counsel, made a statement for the record (the "Statemenf') describing the 

events that morning. Mr. Ranking tells me, and I believe, that his Statement is a true and 

accurate description of the events of that morning. I have reviewed the Statement of Mr. 

Ranking, copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "L". Mr. Ranking marked the following 

as Exhibits: the November 2, 2009 Order, the November 17, 2009 Affidavit of Jeannine 

Ouellette, and the November 6, 2009 letter from Mr. Ranking to Mr. Best. 

19. In his Statement, Mr. Ranking outlines the events that transpired on the 

morning of November 17, 2009. At page 4 of the transcript, Mr. Ranking states that Mr. Best 

phoned the offices of Victory Verbatim on the morning ofNovember 17, 2009, and informed 

Mr. Ranking and others that he would not be appearing to be examined in person. At page 6 

of the transcript, Mr. Ranking states that he made it clear to Mr. Best that if he did not attend, 
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he would be in contempt of the November 2, 2009 Order. The November 17, 2009 Certificate 

ofNon-Attendance of Mr. Best on November 17, 2009 is attached hereto as Exhibit "M". 

20. I am further informed by Mr. Ranking, and believe, that he wrote to Mr. Best 

the following day. I have reviewed the November 18, 2009 letter from Mr. Ranking to Mr. 

Best, a copy of the which is attached hereto as Exhibit ''N''. 

21. In his correspondence, Mr. Ranking again informed Mr. Best that he was in 

contempt of the November 2, 2009 Order. Mr. Ranking also wrote that ''rather than moving 

for a contempt order now, we are prepared to give you one, and only one, opportunity to 

purge your contempt." Mr. Ranking provided a further Notice of Examination, requiring 

attendance of Mr. Best at Victory Verbatim on November 25, 2009. A copy of the Notice of 

Examination is attached hereto as Exhibit "0". 

22. The Affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette, sworn November 24,2009, states that Mr. 

Best was served with the November 18, 2009 correspondence and the Notice of Examination 

on November 18, 2009. The November 24, 2009 Affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette is attached 

hereto as Exhibit ''P". 

23. I am informed by Mr. Ranking, and believe, that Mr. Best did not attend to be 

examined on November 25, 2009 and that a Certificate of Non-Attendance was issued by 

Victory Verbatim, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "Q". 

24. I am further informed, and believe, ·that Mr. Ranking made another statement 

for the record descnbing the events of the morning ofNovember 25, 2009. I have reviewed 

the transcript of the statement of Mr. Ranking on November 25, 2009, a copy of which is 
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attached hereto as Exhibit "R". Mr. Ranking informs me, and I do believe, that his statement 

is an accurate and true description of the events of the morning ofNovember 25,2009. In his 

statement, Mr. Ranking marked the following as Exhibits: Mr. Ranking's letter to Mr. Best on 

November 18, 2009, the November 18, 2009 Notice of Examination, the November 17, 2009 

transcript and enclosed Exhibits, the November 17, 2009 Certificate of Non-Attendance, the 

November 25, 2009 Certificate of Non-Attendance, and the Affidavit of Janine Ouellette 

sworn November 24,2009. 

SWORN BEFORE ME 
at the City ofToronto, in the 
Province of Ontario, 
on November , 2009 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

RICHARD D. BUTI.ER. 
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THE HONOURABLE 

MR. JUSTICE SHAUGHNESSY 

20 
Court File No.: 07-0141 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

) 
) 
) 

MONDAY, THE 2ND DAY 

OF NOVEMBER, 2009 
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INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
THE BARBADOS AGRICULTIJRAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID mOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.h. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS L.IMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALm CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEALm CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendants 
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THIS MOTION made by the Defendant, Pricewaterhouse East Caribbean Firm, 

and the other defendants, for, among other things, an order compelling K. William McKenzie 

("Mr. McKenzie") to attend to be cross-examined upon his affidavit, sworn October 2, 2009, (the 

"McKenzie Affidavit") and to answer all questions that are related to matters raised on the 

motion for which it was sworn was heard this day in Whitby, Ontario. 

ON READING the Motion Record, affidavits and facta of the Defendants, and 

upon hearing the submissions of counsel for the Defendants and Mr. McKenzie, 

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service of all motion materials (relating to the 

costs motion) upon Donald Best is hereby and the service of all such materials was 

effective four (4) days after such materials were served upon Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. 

("Nelson Barbados'') by virtue of having been mailed to 427 Princess Street, Suite 200, 

Kingston. Ontario. 

2. TIDS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that service of any and all further 

materials (including motions, court orders and notices of examination) upon Donald Best will be 

effective four (4) days after mailing or couriering same to Donald Best c/o the address at 427 

Princess Street, Suite 200, K.jngston, Ontario, and this order shall supersede paragraph 2 of the 

order of Eberhard J., dated September 15, 2009. 

3. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Donald Best shall appear at an 

examination on Tuesday, November 17, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. at Victory Verbatim in Toronto, 

Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, Suite 900, Toronto, Ontario M5K 1H6 at his own 

expense, to answer: 
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22 
(a) all questions refused or taken under advisement at the cross-examination of John 

Knox held on November 4, 2008 and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

(b) all questions refused or taken under advisement at the Rule 39.03 examination of 
Donald Best held on March 20, 2009 and all questions reasonably arising 
therefrom; 

(c) all questions which Justice Shaughnessy directed be answered on April 8, 2009 
and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

(d) all questions relating to his appointment, and subsequent duties/responsibilities as 
an officer of Nelson Barbados; his relationship, if any, to the matters pleaded in 
the within action, and his non-privileged association and/or rela:tionship with K. 
William McKenzie and/or the law finn of Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, 
Anderson & Duncan LLP; 

(e) all questions concerning the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited ("Kingsland"), 
including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the security over and 
ownership rights held by Nelson Barbados in the common shares of Kingsland 
and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS with respect to the examination of Donald 

Best, referred to above, that Donald Best shall deliver to Gerald L.R. Ranking, at least one (1) 

week prior to the examination, all documents touching upon the issues identified in paragraph 3 

above, including by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an ownership interest 

in the shares of Kingsland, all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John 

Knox), the minute book, directors' register, shareholders' register, banking documents (including 

bank account opening documents, operating agreements and bank statements), and all books of 

account, ledgers and financial statements from the date of incorporation of Nelson Barbados 

through to the present 

5. TIDS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that the foregoing two paragraphs 

(paragraphs 3 and 4) shall not prevent Donald Best from refusing to answer questions on any 

basis, including privilege anll confidentiality, and the Court is making no detennination in this 

regard at this time. In the event that questions are refused and this Court's further determinations 
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are required, the motion in this regard shall be heard by Justice Shaughnessy at 9:30 am. on 

Wednesday, December 2nd, 2009 in Whitby. 

6. TIDS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Mr. McKenzie shall appear to be 

cross-examined upon the McKenzie Affidavit on Friday, November 20th, 2009 at 10:00 am. in 

Barrie, Ontario, at his own expense, to answer all questions that are related to matters in the 

McKenzie Affidavit. 

7. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that, subject to the further provisions of 

this paragraph, Mr. McKen:lie shall produce to Gerald L.R. Ranking by, or before Friday 

November 13, 2009, all books, contracts, letters, statements, records and copies of same of 

Nelson Barbados in the custody, possession or of Mr. McKenzie or his finn, including: 

(a) the incorporation documents for Nelson Barbados, minute book, directors' 
register, shareholders' register, banking documents (including bank account 
opening documents, operating agreements and bank statements); 

(a) all books of account, ledgers and financial statements of Nelson Barbados from 
the date of incorporation through to the present; 

(b) all documentc; by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an 
ownership intetest in the shares of Kingsland; and 

(c) all trust docWJ:ents (referred to in the cross-examinat;on of John Knox); 

provided that if, Mr. McKenzie refuses to produce such documents, then he shall so notify the 

defence by Friday, November 13,2009 and explain the grounds for such refusal. 

8. TillS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that The UPS Store Canada located at 427 

Princess Street, Kingston, ON, deliver to the defendants copies of the original contract for 

rental/use, and any billing records that exist from the date the mail box was opened until present, 

for the following mail box: 
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(a) Box 200, at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, Ontario; 

9. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that The UPS Store Canada located at 250 

The East Mall, Toronto Ontario deliver to the defendants copies of the original contract for 

rental/use, and any billing records that exist from the date the mail boxes were opened until 

present, for the following mail boxes: 

(a) Box 1225, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto Ontario (Cloverdale Mall); and 

(b) Box 1715, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto, Ontario (Cloverdale Mall). 

10. TIDS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that production by The UPS Store Canada 

located at 427 Princess Street. Kingston, ON, and UPS Store Canada located at 250 The East 

Mall, Toronto Ontario, will not come into effect until four ( 4) days after the date this order is 

mailed to Mr. Best and Nelson Barbados, thereby providing sufficient time for Mr. Best and 

Nelson Barbados, or a duly authorized representative, to bring a motion before the Superior 

Court objecting to the production of the above noted non-party documents. 

II. TillS COURT FURTHER ORDERS costs of this motion be reserved to a later 

date. 

12. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Justice Shaughnessy shall remain 

seized of this action and permit counsel to bring such further motions to, or seek. such further 

directions from, His Honour, as may be necessary. 
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Butler_Richard 

From: Butler_Richard 
Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2009 4:24PM 
To: 'Ron Boratto' 
Subject: RE: Disclosure of documents from The UPS Store Canada franchises 
Attachments: OM_ TOR-#3345589-v4-0rder_re_production.pdf 

Ron, 
As a follow-up to my voicemail, the motion on November 2, 2009 went ahead and the judge has ordered 
production of copies of the original contract for rentaVuse, and any billing records that exist from the date 
the mail boxes were opened until present, for the following The USP Store Canada locations: 

(a) Box 200, at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, Ontario; 

(b) Box 1225, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto Ontario, Store 122 (Cloverdale Mall); and 

(c) Box 1715, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto, Ontario, Store 122. 

The order is effective as of the date was made, so I would greatly appreciate if you could contact the 
individual franchisors as soon as possible and ask them to prepare copies of the documents and to fax 
them to me at the fax number, below. I will also contact the franchisors tomorrow, but the Etobicoke 
location mentioned that he wanted to speak to you before disclosing any documents. 
I have attached a draft copy of the written order to this email. It has not yet been signed by the court, but 
we expect that it will be approved by opposing counsel today in substantially the same form. The portions 
relating to the UPS stores were unopposed so those provisions will remain unchanged. 

Please don't hesitate to call me if you have any questions. 

Regards, 
Rich 

Richard D. Butler 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Tel: 416 868 3351 
Fax: 416 364 7813 
www.fasken,com 

66 Wellington St W 
Suite 4200 Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box 20 Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto ON M5K 1N6 
Canada 

From: Ron Boratto [mallto:rboratto@theupsstore.ca] 

11/26/2009 

II all 
Thfa I! ExM'+s:-.. to In thfl 

or .... .... u .... B.L.d:lff 
aworn before me, thfl .......... 23:: ................ cr 
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Sent: Friday, October 30, 2009 12:04 PM 
To: Butler _Richard 
SUbject: RE: Disclosure of documents from The UPS Store canada franchises 

Richard 

As we discussed MBEC Communications L.P., the master franchisor for The UPS STORE in Canada, 
has no Intention of opposing your motion. 

As discussed, our position is non-binding upon our respective franchisees .. 

Regards, 

Ron Boratto 
Executive VIce President & Corporate Counsel 
MBEC Communications L.P. 
505 Iroquois Shore Road, Unit 4 
Oakville Ontario, 
L6H 2R3 
(905) 338-9754 (286) 
(905) 338 -7492 

CONJ'IDINTIALJTY NOTICE 

26 

Thillnformitlon contilned In thls communlatlon is inllllded only for 1110 by !he lddrwiiiiC md canuu .. 1nfb!TIIItion that is priwte IIIII 
lillY be conlldcntial or privilepd, IIIII the does not wa1ve lilY ri&fllll'llllted thereto. If you 11111 not the intended reeipient, pleue 
the ISider immedlmly by teply emlillllll delete !he ori&inll meuqe. yoiU l1lply IIIII demly lilY copy or print ol& oflhil emlil. 
Airy distribution. 1111 or copyilll of this tmail or 1M infarmlllion conlained in it by any pe11011 othtrlhan the intended recipienl is unauthoriad. 
Thank )'OU fbr )'OIU COCifiiDiion. 
A V1S DE CONPIDENTIAUTt 

Ce c:oarricl" 6lec:lnmique est Jriw saalement • I'UIIP du destiralllire et contient d'infb"'*'On q .. est priWe et peut etre conficlentielle ou 
pnvil4ii& L'up6dilellr n'*=arte •ucun droit relil! ci-deuus. Si wus n'etes pu 1e destinlt11re prevu, informez l'exl*!ireur en dpCindant 
il1'llll!di.-ncnt • ce courri• .-:uonique etsupprimez de 111111i6re pemwnen11e ce messqe. ToU111 diSiribudon. ucililation ou duplicetion dec:. 
couri• 'lectronique ou de rinfbrrnation qui Sy trouve par IOUte penonne IUlnl que II deslilllllire Jriw n'est pa Votre coopl!rltion 
at llplftcil!e. 

From: Butler_Richard [mallto:RBuUer@fasken.com] 
Sent: October 30, 2009 11:40 AM . 
To: Rboratto@theupsstore.ca 
Subject: Disclosure of dOOJments from The UPS Store canada franchises 

Ron, . 
As a follow-up to our conversation this morning, we are counsel to a defendant in a civil action in Ontario. 
In the course of the action, we have become aware that parties are using The UPS Store Canada mail 
boxes. 
As I noted on the phone, we require access to the original contracts for for rentaVuse, and any billing 
records that exist from the date the mail box was opened until present, for the following mail boxes at the 
following The USP Store Canada locations: 

(a) Box 200, at 427 Princess Street. Kingston, Ontario; 

1112612009 
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(b) Box 1225, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto Ontario, Store 122 (Cloverdale Mall); and 

(c) Box 1715, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto, Ontario, Store 122. 

We have served a Notice of Motion on the opposing parties which details our request for production of the 
above noted documents from The UPS Store Canada, a non-party to the action. I have attached a .pdf 
copy of that Notice of Motion to this email, for your information. 

could you please confirm that The UPS Store Canada does not oppose the within motion. 

Regards, 

Rich Butler 

Richard D. Butler 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Tel: 416 868 3351 
Fax: 416 364 7813 
www.fasken.com 

66 Wellington St W 
Suite 4200 Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box·2o Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto ON MSK 1 N6 
Canada 

Vancouver Calgary Toronto Ottawa Montreal Quebec London (UK) Paris Johannesburg 

Tllia email contelna pnviJeQed or confklenliel infbnnalion end ts tntended 011ty for the named teeiplenta. If you have f'fiCeiV8d ltlia emel/ in 
error or- note Ml'llftd teelpient. pleae notify the aender and dUroy the email. A detailed atet_,t d the tenM of uae C8ll be found at 
tire following ana hltp:IJ!rww flsklo c::quylannsqftlu ltrllil/. · 

C. conllent c:onfidenllels ou eat duline IIJUiement a ;. pe13011ne I qui il eat Sl vou.s 
1v.z ce courrtel per etraur, S. V.P. le 18toumer a /'expedteur at 18 cltJtrtiW. Una YWIIon liMe/He diN mocllltdalt concltlona cl'utlllatJon 
• t111r0we • fadrntle alivMte I!Up:Jiwww fulwJ CQ!llo1i'AitanatjJM omtil/. 
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Court File No.: 07-0141 

THE HONOURABLE 

MR. JUSTICE SHAUGHNESSY 

BETWEEN: 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

) 
) 
) 

MONDAY, THE 2ND DAY 

OF NOVEMBER, 2009 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

-and-

Plaintiff 

RICHARD IV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PIDLIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE ILMA KNOX. DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GL YNE BANNISTER, GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES 

a.k.a. PIDLP GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE &: CO., COTTLE, CATFORD &: CO., 
KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN S'{EWART DEANE, 

ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 
DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 

El)WARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DA V1D SHOREY, 
OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 

BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 
GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 

CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1·25 
PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VMAN GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN&: ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLA V DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONwEALTH CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendants 
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TinS MOTION made by the Defendant, Pricewaterhou5e East Caribbean Firm, 

and the other defendants, for, among other things, an order compelling K. William McKenzie 

("Mr. McKenzie") to attend to be cross-examined upon his affidavit, sworn October 2, 2009, (the 

"McKenzie Affidavif') and to answer all questions that are related to matters raised on the 

motion for which it was sworn was heard this day in Whitby, Ontario. 

ON READING the Motion Record, affidavits and facta of the Defendants, and 

upon hearing the submissions of counsel for the Defendants and Mr. McKenzie, 

I. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service of all motion materials (relating to the 

costs motion) upon Donald Best is hereby._validated, and the service of all such materials was 

effective four ( 4) days after such materials were served upon Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. 

("Nelson Barbados") by virtue of having been mailed to 427 Princess Street, Suite 200, 

Kingston, Ontario. 

2. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that service of any and all further 

materials (including motions, court orders and notices of examination) upon Donald Best will be 

effective four (4) days after mailing or couriering same to Donald Best c/o the address at 427 

Princess Street, Suite 200, Kingston, Ontario, and this order shall supersede paragraph 2 of the 

order of Eberhard J., dated September 15, 2009. 

3. TillS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Donald Best shall appear at an 

examination on Tuesday, November 17, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. at Victory Verbatim in Toronto, 

Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, 900, Toronto, Ontario MSK IH6 at his own 

expense, to answer: 
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30 

(a) all questions refused or taken under advisement at the cross-examination of John 
Knox held on November 4, 2008 and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

(b) all questions refused or taken under advisement at the Rule 39.03 examination of 
Donald Best held on March 20, 2009 and all questions reasonably arising 
therefrom; 

(c) all questions which Justice Shaughnessy directed be answered on April 8, 2009 
and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

(d) all questions relating to his appointment, and subsequent duties/responsibilities as 
an officer of Nelson Barbados; his relationship, if any, to the matters pleaded in 
the within action, and his non-privileged association and/or relationship with K. 
William McKenzie and/or the law firm of Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, 
Anderson & Duncan LLP; 

(e) all questions concerning the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited ("Kingsland"), 
including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the security over and 
ownership rights held by Nelson Barbados in the common shares of Kingsland 
and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS with respect to the examination ofDonald 

Best, referred to above, that Donald Best shall deliver to Gerald L.R. Ranking, at least one (1) 

week prior to the examination, all documents touching upon the issues identified in paragraph 3 

above, including by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an ownership interest 

in the shares of Kingsland, all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John 

Knox), the minute book, directors' register, shareholders' register, banking documents (including 

bank account opening documents, operating agreements and bank statements), and all books of 

account, ledgers and financial statements from the date of incorporation of Nelson Barbados 

through to the present 

5. THIS COURT FlJRTHER ORDERS that the foregoing two paragraphs 

(paragraphs 3 and 4) shall not prevent Donald Best from refusing to answer questions· on any 

basis, including privilege and confidentiality, and the Court is making no determination in this 

regard at this time. In the event that questions are refused and this Court's further determinations 
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are required, the motion in this regard shall be heard by Justice Shaughnessy at 9:30 a.m. on 

Wednesday, December 2nd, 2009 in Whitby. 

6. TinS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Mr. McKenzie shall appear to be 

cross-examined upon the McKenzie Affidavit on Friday, November 20th, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. in 

Barrie, Ontario, at his own expense, to answer all questions that are related to matters in the 

McKenzie Affidavit. 

7. TinS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that, subject to the further provisions of 

this paragraph, Mr. McKenzie shall produce to Gerald L.R. Ranking by, or before Friday 

November 13, 2009, all books; contracts, letters, statements, records and copies of same of 

Nelson Barbados in the custody, possession or power of Mr. McKenzie or his firm, including: 

(a) the incorporation documents for Nelson Barbados, minute book, directors' 
register, shareholders' register, banking documents (including bank account 
opening documents, operating agreements and bank statements); 

(a) all books of account, ledgers and financial statements of Nelson Barbados from 
the date of incorporation through to the present; 

(b) all documents by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an 
ownership interest in the shares ofKingsland; and 

(c) all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John Knox); 

provided that Mr. McKenzie refuses to produce such documents, then he shall so notify the 

defence by Friday, November 13, 2009 and explain the grounds for such refusal. 

8. TIDS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that The UPS Store Canada located at 427 

Princess Street, Kingston, ON, deliver to the defendants copies of the _original contract for 

rentaVusc, and any billing records that exist from the date the mail box was opened until present, 

for the foiJowing mail box: 
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(a) Box 200, at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, Ontario; 

9. TinS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that The UPS Store Canada located at 250 

The East Mall1 Toronto Ontario deliver to the defendants copies of the original contract for 

rentaVuse, and any billing records that exist from the date the mail boxes were opened until 

present, for the foiJowing mail 

10. 

(a) 

(b) 

Box 1225, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto Ontario (Cloverdale Mall); and 

Box 1715, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto, Ontario (Cloverdale Mall). 

TinS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that production by The UPS Store Canada 

located at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, ON, and The UPS Store Canada located at 250 The East 

Mall, Toronto Ontario, will not come into effect until four (4) days after the date this order is 

mailed to Mr. Best and Nelson Barbados, thereby providing sufficient time for Mr. Best and 

Nelson Barbados, or a duly authorized representative, to bring a motion before the Superior 

Court objecting to the production of the above noted non-party documents. 

11. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS costs of this motion be reserved to a later 

date. 

32 

12. TIUS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Justice Shaughnessy shall remain 

seized of this action and permit counsel to bring such further motions to, or seek such further 

directions from, His Honour, as may be necessary. 

November , 2009 
Justice Shaughnessy 
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Butler _Richard 

From: Butler _Richard 
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2009 2:49PM 
To: 'store191 @theupsstore.ca' 
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Subject: FW: Follow-up to telephone conversation re: court motion 
Attachments: DM_ TOR...,3345589-v4-0rder _re_production. pdf 

Darren, 
As a follow-up to my voicemail, the motion on November 2, 2009 went ahead and the judge has ordered 
production of copies of the original contract for rental/use, and any billing records or 
information that exists from the date the mail boxes were opened until present, for Box 
200 at your The USP Store Canada location (at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, Ontario). 

The order is effective as of the date was made by the judge, so I would greaUy appreciate if you could 
prepare copies of the documents and to fax them to me at the fax number, below. I have attached a draft 
copy of the written order to this email; the relevant paragraphs for your store is paragraph 8. It has not 
yet been signed by the court, but we expect that it will be approved by opposing counsel today in 
substantially the same form. The portions relating to the stores were unopposed so those provisions 
will remain unchanged. 

Please don't hesitate to call me if you have any questions. 

Regards, 
Rich Butler 

Richard D. Butler 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Tel: 416 868 3351 
Fax: 416 364 7813 
www.fasken.com 

66 Wellington St W 
Suite 4200 Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box 20 Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto ON M5K 1 N6 
Canada 

From: Butler_Richard 
Sent: Friday, October 30, 2009 2:05PM 
To: 'store191@theupsstore.ca' 

II c.lf This Is Exhibit......... • ••.•.....•...•.. rererrep_ to In file 
atndavit or ..... .. .J;).);d!.Jr±!.ef 
:sworn before me, thla ........... ;l."l: ..................... . 
dey ot ......... JJ.au .......... 2o.a1. 

lg.UIISSIONER Fal T.H<IN3 AFFllAVIiS 

SUbject: Follow-up to telephone conversation re: court motion 

Darren, 

Following up on our phone call this afternoon, we are currently involved in litigation and are going to be 
seeking a court order on Monday, November 2, 2009 to obtain information relating to a post office box 

11126/2009 
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located at your UPS Store location (Store # 191 at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, Ontario). The relevant 
information we are seeking includes original contracts relating to the individual(s) renting the box as well 
as any billing information (including addresses and names on that billing information) you may have 
relating to the box. I have attached the Notice of Motion to this email, identifying the relief we are 
seeking. 

As you will see from the email below, we have discussed this matter with Ron Boratto, who is Corporate 
Counset to MBEC Communications LP. Ron has stated that he has no intention of opposing our motion. 
He has also asked us to contact you, the franchise. 

Please confirm by reply email back to me today that you do not oppose the relief being sought at the 
November 2nd motion. 

I will be in touch with you once we have obtained the court order. 

Regards, 

Rich 

Richard D. Butler 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Tel: 416 868 3351 
Fax: 416 364 7813 
www.fasl<en.com 

66 Wellington St W 
Suite 4200 Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box 20 Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto ON M5K 1 N6 
Canada 

From: Ron Borattc [mailto:rboratto@theupsstore.ca] 
Sent: Friday, October 30, 2009 12:04 PM 
To: Butler_Richard 
SUbject: RE: Disclosure of documents from The UPS Store canada franchises 

Richard 

As we discussed MBEC Communications L.P., the master franchisor for The UPS STORE in Canada, 
has no intention of opposing your motion. 

As discussed, our position is non-binding upon our respective franchisees .. 

Regards, 

Ron Boratto 
Executive Vice President & Corporate Counsel 
MBEC Communications L.P. 
505 Iroquois Shore Road, Unit 4 

llf26fl009 
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Oakville Ontario, 
L6H 2R3 
(905) 338-9754 (286) 
(905) 338 -7492 

CONFJDENTIAUTY NOTICE 
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Thill Information contained In this communication JJ intended only for use by lhc: llddreucc IIIII conlairw infOilllllion !hat ill priwtc llld 
may be coafidential or privilqed, IIIII the ICIIder does not 111y rishiJ related lherc111. If you are not !he intended recipient, pi-
lhc: !ellder immedillely by reply email and delete the oricital rnessqc. your reply llld destroy my copy or print this email. 
Any distribulion, 1111 or c:opyina oflhis email or the infonnalion contained in it by any person Olher than the intcnded =ipiem is unauthonzed. 
Thank )'011 for your cooperation. 

A. VIS DE CONFJDENllALrrt 

Ce courri,er tlcctronique at prtw seulement i l'usqe du desti1111aire et contient qui at priWe et peul etre confidentielle ou 
L'IX!*Ii11111' n'ane 1111:un droit ci-deaus. Si -.s n'tla pu le dclnnataue prtvu, informez l'expedileur 

inun6dilllemCIII ice courrier et suppimez de m111iere pennmente ce messap. Toute distribution, ••liliutian ou duplicalion de ce 
courier ou de !'information qui s'y trouw par lllute penome aull'e que le destillllaire pmu n'est •111rill!. Voll'e coopm!ion 
estlppRI;iW. 

11!26/2009 
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Court File No.: 07-0141 

TilE HONOURABLE 

MR. nJSTICE SHAUGHNESSY 

BETWEEN: 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

) 
) 
) 

MONDAY, THE 2ND DAY 

OF NOVEMBER, 2009 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

-and-

Plaintiff 

RICHARD IV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GLYNE BANNISTER, GLYNE B. BANNISfER, PHILIP GREAVES 

Lk.a. PIDLP GREAVES, GITIENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTTLE, CA TFORD & CO., 

KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEW ART DEANE, 
ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 

DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 
EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 

OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 
BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 

GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 
CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 

THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DA VlD CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTlON 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendants 
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ORDER 

TillS MOTION made by the Defendant, Pricewaterhouse East Caribbean Finn, 

and the other defendants, for, among other things, an order compelling K. William McKenzie 

("Mr. McKenzie'') to attend to be cross-examined up;an his affidavit, sworn October 2, 2009, (the 

"McKenzie Affidavit") and to answer all questions that are related to matters raised on the 

motion for which it was sworn was heard this day in Whitby, Ontario. 

ON READING the Motion Record, affidavits and facta of the Defendants, and 

upon hearing the submissions of counsel for the Defendants and Mr. McKenzie, 

1. THIS COURT ORDERS that the service Jf all motion materials (relating to the 

costs motion) upon Donald Best is hereby validated, and the service of all such materials was 

effective four (4) days after such materials were served upon Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. 

(''Nelson Barbados") by virtue of having been mailed to 427 Princess Street, Suite 200, 

Kingston, Ontario. 

2. 11DS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that service of any and all further 

materials (including motions, court orders and notices of examination) upon Donald Best will be 

effective four (4) days after mailing or couriering same to Donald Best c/o the address at 427 

Princess Street, Suite 200, Kingston, Ontario, and this order shall supersede paragraph 2 of the 

order of Eberhard J., dated September 15, 2009. 

3. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Donald Best shall appear at an 

examination on Tuesday, November 17, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. at Victory Verbatim in Toronto, 

Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, Suite 900, Toronto, Ontario MSK IH6 at his own 

expense, to answer: 
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(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

4. 

38 

all questions refused or taken under advisement at the cross-examination of John 
Knox held on November 4, 2008 and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

all questions refused or taken under advisement at the Rule 39.03 examination-of 
Donald Best held on March 20, 2009 and all questions reasonably arising 
therefrom; 

all questions which Justice Shaughnessy directed be answered on April 8, 2009 
and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

all questions relating to his appointment, and subsequent duties/responsibilities as 
an officer of Nelson Barbados; his relationship, if any, to the matters pleaded in 
the within action, and his non-privileged association and/or relationship with K. 
William McKenzie and/or the law firm of Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, 
Anderson & Duncan LLP; 

all questions concerrting the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited ("Kingsland"), 
including without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the security over and 
ownership rights held by Nelson Barbados in the common shares of Kingsland 
and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS with respect to the examination of Donald 

Best, referred to above, that Donald Best shall deliver to Gerald L.R. Ranking, at least one (I) 

week prior to the examination, all documents touching upon the issues identified in paragraph 3 

above, including by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an ownership interest 

in the shares of Kingsland, all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John 

Knox), the minute book. directors' register, shareholders' register, banking documents (including 

bank account opening documents, operating agreements and bank statements), and all books of 

account, ledgers and financial statements from the date of incorporation of Nelson Barbados 

through to the present. 

5. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that. the . foregoing two paragraphs 

(paragraphs 3 and 4) shall not prevent Donald Best from refusing to answer questions on any 

basis, including privilege and confidentiality, and the Court is making no determination in this 

regard at this time. In the event that questions are refused and this Court's further determinations 

405 
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arc required, the motion in this regard shall be heard by Justice Shaughnessy at 9:30 a.m. on 

Wednesday, December 21111
, 2009 in Whitby. 

6. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Mr. McKenzie shall appear to be 

cross-examined upon the McKenzie Affidavit on Friday, November 20th, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. in 

Barrie, Ontario, at his own expense, to answer all questions that are related to matters in the 

McKenzie Affidavit. 

7. TIDS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that, subject to the further provisions of 

this paragraph, Mr. McKenzie shall produce to Gerald L.R. Ranking by, or before Friday 

November 13, 2009, all books, contracts, letters, statements, records and copies of same of 

Nelson Barbados in the custody, possession or power of Mr. McKenzie or his firm, including: 

(a) the incorporation documents for Nelson Barbados, minute book, directors' 
register, shareholders' register, banking documents (including bank account 
opening documents, operating agreements and bank statements); 

(a) all books of account, ledgers and financial statements of Nelson Barbados from 
the date of incorporation through to the present; 

(b) all documents by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an 
ownership interest in the shares of Kingsland; and 

(c) all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John Knox); 

provided that it: Mr. McKenzie refuses to produce such documents, then he shall so notify the 

defence by Friday, November 13, 2009 and explain the grounds for such refusal. 

8. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that The UPS Store Canada located at 427 

·Princess Street, Kingston, ON, deliver to the defendants copies of the original contract for 

rentaVuse, and any billing records that exist from the date the mail box was opened until present, 

for the following mail box: 
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(a) Box 200, at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, Ontario; 

9. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that The UPS Store Canada , Jcated at 250 

The East Mall, Toronto Ontario deliver to the defendants copies of the original contract for 

rentaVuse, and any billing records that exist from the date the mail boxes were opened until 

present, for the following mail boxes: 

(a) Box 1225. at 250 The East Mall, Toronto Ontario (Cloverdale Mall); and 

(b) Box 1715, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto, Ontario (Cloverdale Mall). 

10. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that production by The UPS Store Canada 

located at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, ON, and The UPS Store Canada located at 250 The East 

Mall, Toronto Ontario, wiii not come into effect until four (4) days after the date this order is 

mailed to Mr. Best and Nelson Barbados, thereby providing sufficient time for Mr. Best and 

Nelson Barbados, or a duly authorized representative, to bring a motion before the Superior 

Court objecting to the production of the above noted non-party documents. 

11. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS costs ofthis motion be reserved to a later 

date. 

12. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Justice Shaughnessy shall remain 

seized of this action and penn it counsel to bring such further motions to, or seck such further 

directions from, His Honour, as may be necessary. 

November 2, 2009 
Justice Shaughnessy 
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:Ji The UPS Store• 
18' 42:7 Princess Street 

Kingston, ontario 

'

K7L5SS 
T 61 3--549-4224 
F 613-549-4694 

' store 191 OU1ttupsstore.ca 

'FAX 
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0 1 (' hr• .u. bLa.1.e.r affidavit ot....I:S:-. ·-.J.·"-'·u .. J.,;...... .:. .. . 
sworn before me, thls ......... ;2, .. 3: ............. ;C.· 
day ot ...... " ....... ....... 20 .. ... !. 

From Ooceo 
' Company 

' Fax number :1\ C 3(; ':\ .. \ 'b \ "3 
Phone number (g\"?l, SS\ 9 Y1..l.. Y 
Fax number G\ 3 S '-\ C\ '-\ Y 

Date f\.)cue."CJ bee \:2--\\-., 

Job number---------

Total pages 5 p\us c.ove.\ 
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' II 
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w,\\ 'r"M VJ'n-en "e. \s\n 
-t-o w <; t= r- , a o. \.f.. - o n 

Digital prirrling, copying, documern finishing, fexing services, mailbox rentals, <lOIA'iar aervtcss 
packaging suppfles and services ' 

The UPS Store· 

Fr.- Martineau .. , IJIII 
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Butler_Richard 

From: Butler_Richard 
Sent: Thursday, November 12, 2009 1:26PM 
To: 'store176@theupsstore.ca' 
Subject: FW: Disclosure of documents from The UPS Store Canada franchises 
Attachments: OM_ TOR-#3345589-v4-0rder _re_JJroduction.pdf 

David, 
Attached is a copy of the order. Many thanks for your help. 

Regards, 

Rich 
l'E." This Is Exhibit. .............................. reterred to In the 

affidavit of ..... .. f3.uti.U. Richard D. Butler 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Tel: 416 868 3351 
Fax: 416 364 7813 
www.faslsen.com 

66 Wellington St W 
Suite 4200 Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box 20 Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto ON M5K 1 N6 
Canada 

From: Butler_Richard 
Sent: Tuesday, November 10, 2009 4:24 PM 
To: 'Ron Boratto' 

swam before me, th/s .......................................... -
day of .......... lJD. . . bz.C. ............ 2o.Cfl.. 

SUbject: RE: Disclosure of documents from The UPS Store canada franchises 

Ron, . 
As a follow-up to my voicernail, the motion on November 2, 2009 went ahead and the judge has ordered 
production of copies of the original contract for rentaVuse, and any billing records that exist from the date 
the mail boxes were opened until present, for the following The USP Store Canada locations: 

(a) Box 200, at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, Ontario; 

(b) Box 1225, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto Ontario, Store 122 (Cloverdale Mall); and 

(c) Box 1715, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto, Ontario, Store 122. 

The order is effective as of the date was made, so I would greatly appreciate if you could contact the 
individual franchisors as soon as possible and ask them to prepare copies of the documents and to fax 
them to me at the fax number, below. I will also contact the franchisors tomorrow, but the Etobicoke 

11/26/2009 
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location mentioned that he wanted to speak to you before disclosing any documents. 
I have attached a draft copy of the written order to this email. It has not yet been signed by the court, but 
we expect that it will be approved by opposing counsel today in substantially the same form. The portions 
relating to the UPS stores were unopposed so those provisions will remain unchanged . 

Please don't hesitate to call me if you have any questions. 

Regards, 
Rich 

Richard D. Butler 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Barri.ters.& Solicitors 
Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Tel: 416 868 3351 
Fax: 416 364 7813 
www.fasken.com 

66 Wellington St W 
Suite 4200 Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box 20 Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto ON M5K 1N6 
Canada 

From: Ron Boratto [mallto:rboratto@theupsstore.ca] 
Sent: Friday, October 30, 2009 12:04 PM 
To: Butler_Richard 
SUbject: RE: Disclosure of documents from The UPS Store Canada franchises 

Richard 

As we discussed MBEC Communications L.P., the master franchisor for The UPS STORE in Canada, 
has no Intention of opposing your motion. 

As discussed, our position is non-binding upon our respective franchisees .. 

Regards, 

Ron Boratto 
Executive Vice President & Corporate Counsel 
MBEC Communications L.P. 
505 Iroquois Shore Road, Unit 4 
Oakville Ontario, 
L6H 2R3 
(905) 338-9754 (286) 
(905) 338 -7 492 

11126/2009 
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Thill Information contained in this communication is inlalded only for 11M by lhc addressee 111d conlains infiii'IMtion that il priwtellld 
may be confidential or pnY!le&ed. llld lhe sender doa n01 ,..ive 111y rip1S reWed thereto. If you are notlhe inlended rectpient, please notify 
the sender inunedialdy by reply email111d penn111e11tly delete lhe ori&iMl messqe, your reply llld desavy 111y copy or print out of lhis ematl 
Any distribution. use or copytnll of this email or the infonnalion contained in it by any person olher lhan the intended recapient is unauthoriud. 
Thank you for yoiX" cooperation 

Ce coumcr est seulement ll'115a1e du destina!Mre et comient d'infomauon qua est pri"" et peut eue contldentidle ou 
L"expedilellr n'ecarte aucun droit ci-dessus. Si vous n'etes pu le destinallire prnu, 1nfonnez l'expCditeur en 

l ce courrier elecavnquc et supprimez de manltre pennanente ce messap. Toull: dislnbution, utilisation ou duplication cle ce 
courier electronique ou de rinformation qui s'y avuw par toute pcrsonne autre que le destinataire prl!w n'eat pu Votre coopl!rltion 
est llpprS:i=. 

From: Butler_Richard [mailto:RButler@fasken.com] 
Sent: October 30, 2009 11:40 AM 
To: Rboratto@theupsstore.ca 
Subject: Disclosure of documents from The UPS Store Canada franchises 

Ron, 
As a follow-up to our conversation this morning, we are counsel to a defendant in a civil action in Ontario. 
In the course of the action, we have become aware that parties are using The UPS Store Canada mail 
boxes. 
As I noted on the phone, we require access to the originaf contracts for for rental/use, and any billing 
records that exist from the date the mail box was opened until present, for the following mail boxes at the 
following The USP Store Canada locations: 

(a) Box 200, at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, Ontario; 

(b) Box 1225, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto Ontario, Store 122 (Cloverdale Mall); and 

(c) Box 1715, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto, Ontario, Store 122. 

We have served a Notice of Motion on the opposing parties which details our request for production of the 
above noted documents from The UPS Store Canada, a non-party to the action. I have attached a .pdf 
copy of that Notice of Motion to this email, for your information. 

Could you please confirm that The UPS Store Canada does not oppose the within motion. 

Regards, 

Rich Butler 

Richard D. Butler 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Bllrrlaters & Solicitors 
Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

11126/2009 
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Tel: 416 868 3351 
Fax: 416 364 7813 
www raslsen.com 

66 Wellington St W 
Suite 4200 Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box 20 Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto ON MSK 1N6 
Canada 

Vancouver Calgary Toronto Ottawa Montreal Quebec London (UK) Paris Johannesburg 

50 

1'1111 eiMil contai!s privileged or conlfdenllal infonnatlon and Is mtended only for the named recipients. If you received thia emaH in 
error or.,. not a named raciplant, piAu notify the sander and de:stroy the email. A detailed stlllemant of the tetms of use can t» found at 
the fDIIowiJg lddrwst hlfD:IJINww. f11k111 collll1tnn101ita email/. 

Ce mesuge conlient des renaeignemlnts conffdetltlels ou pttvl18gra et e/11 destine aeulement It 1e per.sonne .t qui'' ut edres.M. Si vous 
- lfii;U Cll couniel Pll' arreur. S. V.P. le ratoumer 11/'axp«<teur et ill dMruira. Une vfll3ion detaiNee des mod.ntes at concitions cfutJJislllion 
sa l8llccNe .tl'ldrHie h!ID"IIw!m fu!cen cqmrfrAenn.sofuH emajl/. 
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CourtFileNo.: 07-0141 

11IE HONOURABLE 

MR. JUSTICE SHAUGHNESSY 

BETWEEN: 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

) MONDAY, TilE 2NO DAY 
) 
) OF NOVEMBER, 2009 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

-and-

Plaintiff 

RICHARD IV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE. OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GL YNE BANNISTER, GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PHIUP GREAVES 

a.k.a. PIDLP GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTILE, CA TFORD & CO., 
KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE, 

ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 
DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 

EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 
OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 

BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 
GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 

CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL CONSULT ANTS INC., THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK {BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHILIP GREAVES, EST ATE OF VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBAPOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWA TERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendants 
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ORDER 

TinS MOTION made by the Defendant, Pricewaterhouse East Caribbean Finn, 

and the other defendants, for, among other things, an order compelling K. William McKenzie 

("Mr. McKenzie'') to attend to be cross-examined upon his affidavit, sworn October 2, 2009, (the 

"McKenzie Affidavit'') and to answer all questions that are related to matters raised on the 

motion for which it was sworn was heard this day in Whitby, Ontario. 

ON READING the Motion Record, affidavits and facta of the Defendants, and 

upon hearing the submissions of counsel for the Defendants and Mr. McKenzie, 

I. TinS COURT ORDERS that the service of all motion materials (relating to the 

costs motion) upon Donald Best is hereby validated; and the service of all such materials was 

effective four (4) days after such materials were served upon Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. 

(''Nelson Barbados") by virtue of having been mailed to 427 Princess Street, Suite 200, 

Kingston, Ontario. 

2. TinS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that service of any and all further 

materials (including motions, court orders and notices of examination) upon Donald Best will be 

effective four (4) days after mailing or couriering same to Donald Best c/o the address at 427 

Princess Street, Suite 200, Kingston, Ontario, and this order shall supersede paragraph 2 of the 

order of Eberhard J., dated September 15,2009. 

3. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Donald Best shall appear at an 

examination on Tuesday, November 17, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. at Victory Verbatim in Toronto, 

Ernst &. Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, Suite 900, Toronto, Ontario MSK 1H6 at his own 

expense, to answer: 

9 
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I 



(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

4. 
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all questions refused or taken under advisement at the cross-examination of John 
Knox held on November 4, 2008 and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

all questions refused or taken under advisement at the Rule 39.03 examination of 
Donald Best held on March 20, 2009 and all questions reasonably arising 
therefrom; 

all questions which Justice Shaughnessy directed be answered on April 8, 2009 
and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

all questions relating to his appointment, and subsequent duties/responsibilities as 
an officer of Nelson Barbados; his relationship, if any, to the matters pleaded in 
the within action, and his non-privileged association and/or relationship with K. 
William McKenzie and/or the law firm of Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, 
Anderson & Duncan LLP; 

all questions concerning the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited ("Kingsland"), 
including without limiting the generality of the foregoing. the security over and 
ownership rights held by Nelson Barbados in the common shares of Kingsland 
and all questions reasonably arising therefrom; 

THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS with respect to the examination ofDonald 

Best, referred to above, that Donald Best shall deliver to Gerald L.R. Ranking, at least one ( 1) 

week prior to tbe examination, all documents touching upon the issues identified in paragraph 3 

above, including by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an ownership interest 

in the shares of Kingsland, all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John 

Knox), the minute book, directors' register, shareholders' register, banking documents (including 

bank account opening documents, operating agreements and bank statements), and all books of 

account, ledgers and financial statements from the date of incorporation of Nelson Barbados 

through to the present. 

s. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that the foregoing two paragraphs 

(paragraphs 3 and 4) shall not prevent Donald Best from refusing to answer questions on any 

basis, including privilege and confidentiality, and the Court is making no determination in this 

regard at this time. In the event that questions are refused and this Court's further determinations 
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are required, the motion in this regard shall be heard by Justice Shaughnessy at 9:30 a.m. on 

Wednesday, December 2nd, 2009 in Whitby. 

6. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Mr. McKenzie shall appear to be 

cross-examined upon the McKenzie Affidavit on Friday, November 20th, 2009 at I 0:00 a.m. in 

Barrie, Ontario, at his own expense, to answer all questions that are related to matters in the 

McKenzie Affidavit. 

7. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that, subject to the further provisions of 

this paragraph, Mr. McKenzie shall produce to Gerald L.R. Ranking by, or before Friday 

November 13, 2009, all books, contracts, letters, statements, records and copies of same of 

Nelson Barbados in the custody, possession or power of Mr. McKenzie or his firm, including: 

(a) the incorporation documents for Nelson Barbados, minute book, directors' 
register, shareholders' register, banking documents (including bank account 
opening documents, operating agreements and bank statements); 

(a) all books of account, ledgers and financial statements of Nelson Barbados from 
the date of incorporation through to the present; 

(b) all documents by which Nelson Barbados allegedly acquired security or an 
ownership interest in the shares of Kingsland; and 

(c) all trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John Knox); 

provided that if: Mr. McKenzie refuses to produce such documents, then he shall so notify the 

defence by Friday, November 13, 2009 and explain the grounds for such refusal. 

8. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that The UPS Store Canada located at 427 

Princess Street, Kingston, ON, deliver to the defendants copies of the original contract for 

rentaVuse, any billing records that exist from the date the mail box was opened until present, 

for the following mail box: 

421 
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55 
(a) Box 200, at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, Ontario; 

9. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that The UPS Store Canada located at 250 

The East Mall, Toronto Ontario deliver to the defendants copies of the original contract for 

rental/use, and any billing records that exist from the date the mail boxes were opened until 

present, for the following mail boxes: 

(a) Box 1225, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto Ontario (Cloverdale Mall); and 

(b) Box 1715, at 250 The East Mall, Toronto, Ontario (Cloverdale Mall) . 

I 0. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that production by The UPS Store Canada 

located at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, ON, and The UPS Store Canada located at 250 The East 

Mall. Toronto Ontario, will not come into effect until four (4) days after the date this order is 

mailed to Mr. Best and Nelson Barbados, thereby providing sufficient time for Mr. Best and 

Nelson Barbados, or a duly authorized representative, to bring a motion before the Superior 

Court objecting to the production of the above noted non-party documents. 

I I. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS costs of this motion be reserved to a later 

date. 

12. THIS COURT FURTHER ORDERS that Justice Shaughnessy shall remain 

seized of this action and permit counsel to bring such further motions to, or seek such further 

directions from, His Honour. as may be necessary. 

November 2, 2009 
Justice Shaughnessy 
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Butler _Richard 

From: Butler_Richard 
Sent: Friday, November 13, 200911:22 AM 
To: 'store176@theupsstore.ca' 
Subject: Disclosure of documents from UPS Store 
Attachments: Nelson Barbados Document.doc.rtf 

David, 
Please find attached, to update your records, a copy of the order with the judge's signature. I note that 
you advised me that one of the boxes listed in the order (1715) was close and the records destroyed 
pursuant to your privacy law obligations. 

In addition to any documents regarding the boxes at the 250 The East Mall location, the order requires 
that if you have any documents regarding Box 200, at 427 Princess Street, Kingston, those must also be 
produced. We received a copy of the agreement and information from Store 191, which notes that you 
opened the Kingston box. If you have any documentation regarding that box, please include with any 
information regarding the box at your location. 

Could you please send that information this afternoon. The order is effective immediately. 

Regards, 
Rich Butler 

Richard D. Butler 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Tel: 416 868 3351 
Fax: 416 364 7813 
www.tasken,com 

66 Wellington St W 
Suite 4200 Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box 20 Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto ON M5K 1N6 
canada 
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TilE HONOURABLE 

BET WEE,. 

COliRT OF E 

filE:'' ll.-W 

lllt:l.SON IL\JI.&WOS GRUl"P L 1 D. 

•lltld· 

rt:unull 

RICHAIID IVAN COX,GF.RARP COX. 4LAN COX, PHILIP :olll'HOLL'\. ERIC 
..smiY IIF1'1T1!4111 KriTll Df..\i'IF, 

M.UUORJI: ILMA ICIOX. 0,\\10 bi-"'MONS, F.I .. •O:l'll Kf.;I.'TISii. 
L IIAI'I"HSTnl. Pllll.ll' CIIEAVES 

•.luo. PIIIU' C.:R£.4\"F.S. GITr£:\S Tl"R:\F.l. 
R.G. lr CO. COTTL£. C'4lFOHil olo CIJ •• 
K£11.[ WORR£L.L LTIJ., EIIIC" JAI;\ STEW-"RT [)[A,\[. 

f.ST.I,l'"t OF COI.IS DF.A.NE, L[[ DEAS[, EIIRIY llEANE. KEITll 0'-ASf., MALC'OI.J\1 
LIONtL. Nl'RS£, u:CJNAHI> 'l\;111>[, 

tnWARD 1M YL[Y, FMAN("Il' Dt:HEM. DA \'10 !\HORF.Y. 
OW[!\ SE't'!lfOtJR ,\RTIIUR. !I-lARK C'l:MMINS. Gll\ll"-\1 IR0\\'1'1, 

BRI.\N F.DWAR!I Tllll:-IF.R. G..S. IIROW'I 
GOLF 1.-\RBADOS 1:-IC .. UT.\TfS LIMITED, 

CI..A.'i!IIC LI;\IITF.D, rnORNIIROOK 
llliTERI'IATJON.U. COi'iSUL T INC.. rHOR."IROOK 

'IN"l'F.RNATIOI'IAL JNC. $.D.C. DF.VT.LOPMF.NT CORPORATION, 
THE IIARB."nos AGRIC'UL ll'RAL (."REI.IIT I'HOC'IDI 
ARTISTS MANAGEMf.!loT UMIT£0, DA \"'Il C:. SliORT.t AND 

COI\II'ANV. C. !IHOREY A )II) C'OMI'ANV LTD, F'lltlo'T 
CAit .. IIEAN IN'nRNATIOfiiAL DANK IIMRIADOl'l LTD. PRIC'F. 
W.4TE11HOI:SE C'OOPEII!I IIIAIUIAD05l, ,\TJOR.'It:V GE:"4ERAL 

OF tao COC:\"TRY Of IIAKBAOO!.. JOIII'I DOES 
PKIL.JP G.REAVU. t:ST.UE or VIYIA."f GOIIOON LEE llt:AI'i'li. 

DAVID THQMI'IiON, F.IIMIJND IIA \J,f.'r. I'ETt:M 
G.S. BROWN A ,\.'I..'IOC.H l"lS LTD .. t;lll GULF 11.-I.KIIAIIUSllr'>C". 

0\\'T.N GORDON FISLA \" Dlo:.-1. '1;[, I:'IYr.,TMI::>n LI\IITt:D •IKI 
LIFf. Or BAJUIADQ!; ill11TED •·•-b. u LIFE OF hRIIAOO:. HOLIIINGS. 

Uf[ OF IARIIAIIO!I UMITED, DAVIIIl'AKMICH4r.L SHOll 
E..UT C.-\RIIMA.'I fiRM. 

\'f.C"O CORI'OR.4 TJON. ( EAL Tll 
C ANAOA LTD oad C l"ll,STRI'CTitl"'· IN<. 
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ORDER 

THIS )lOTION m:ad.o b) lllc DekndauL rriCC•vnh:rho""" ta;; r mn. 

;nl Ill< l)lflu ror. 11110111 other llliny•. Bn ,>nJor K. W1lll:>m 

t··Mr. t.kKcnlloj 10 :m•'llll "'II< UPI'n all\.J:wit '""•'m Clt""'-'r :. :•10'1 llh•• 

A ll'idli\il} :.nd to ltUS"'e-r ::1!1 iflk"Slioru; tJJHI II«' n:lnt"d lu m.1Uc:N" on the: 

rn.>liun r .... which il - ... ""' - heard thi< in '"""">. ()nwriu. 

01'1 RE:\DJNr; tho: \lot1nn Ro:.:.>r.l. olnJovib ond r...-w ,,r th•· D<ti:n<l"'"'· .,,J 

upon heanug lb.: submiw011' •ll" cmiiiSCIIf\1' ""' ond \lr .. 

THIS COl'RT ""'' 111e ..,,...;«or all mmi..,>mat<rial• (ro!Oiinl' "' 111< 

.:\,,.15 mcxa,,n) upon OoRAid Best is \"::lidalc<l. 11ILI ur 411 such m•lrn::t.l" a!IO 

lOur f4l dRys .ncr "i.Udl m:liL-t'IBb urnn llnrh:I.Jo\ <iMUJ"' I ld 

, .• nue ..-r ha\inK '"'"" m:tit"-..1 1u -=-11 l'•in.:..-...., !'oou1h!' :!•Xl. 

Kinws.1on. 

THIS C"Ol!llT f"LH.nu:R ORDt:Rs dllll oi an) •nd all lionh<r 

materiuls hnc:lud"'r. moli-.'fl:l.. C..'lW'I ord.:B :.l\1 ,.r..:s:..mmuuon1 up..N1 Or\lla&d \\'111 he 

eff«li•"<' fCIUr 141 days after or some 10 11.:>1 <'u lhe od.ho.- ol J27 

Princa:so S1 ... 1. Suu" ltiO. Klftllll""· 01W11r10. ollll <In• onk'J >lmll •uponoo.ic paroJ!NPh 1 ••I lh• 

M),., ofl:bertmnl J •. <IG!od !ocpmnbtr IS. 

). THIS COl!RT FURTHER ORDERS 1hol Oun:IIJ lkst >hull :IJ'P<-'111" >t :111 

••AmltllliM on l'ovemher 17. 2Uil1J •• IIJ,(JO Lm "' VortJnnm in r • .., •• lll. 
Em<l .t Youna lu\\'<'r. :!:!: Bay Suit• 'X•t. 1 nrun1o. (Jnwrio '13k IHn •• "" '"'" 
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all qu..-snlln." ur taken Wh.k:r 3• the ,,f 
Kno't l1dd on \.u\tmhcr -1. .am.l 6.111 '-IUI!.,Imm. 

:Ill ques1io111 n."'ll!!l:d N tak<.'ll unJer Old•i.a,.,l 11 the Rul< ;Q.lll 01 
Uonald BcSI ho:ld '"' Mm:h 211. 1<10') :uk.l all n.....,nt1hly 
1herrlrom: 

all Jll.'lti<c un :\pril H. 2(JO<l 
Mel all qiiCloU<'IlS r<o...nat-ly """'"@ tbcrtfrom: 

ali questions relating to his oppuinuncnL unJ suhmju.:nl as 
ill1 oRicer vr Buba<k ... hi• "l11ionslup. if 10 1111: I1IIIIICB 111•-adeJ in 
the \\ithin ilellun. und hiS noni)ri .. ilC"g.ed il!li:!l('l:l3ti&tn .FMJ.'or ""ilh K.. 
WtUtllll McKcnzk and/or lhc: Ia" linn of Cnm1bn1 \.kK.C117ic. ).·1<1...<1111. 
.o\nda(la It DuiiCtlll LLP: 

all quesllOIIO <anccminvthc .....,, .. of Ki"!:•l•nd F.II31C$ l1mncd r"l;.m,.,.<lonJ" J. 
iac:ludi"' withoul limi•inv. lh.: ol lhe: the 0\ cr ;mcJ 
'"'''''rship n.:ht> held 111 lht .omn111n """"" .. r Kmg>l•nJ 
ond 1111 q ... .uuns """"'nal>l> llisinv 1h<n:fm111, 

rHIS COURT Fl,;KTH£R ORD£RS \\llh ""'"""' tht "' l'l.•nuld 

\ks1. n:fcrr<d In 1bo>c, !hul Donn!.l l:lcsl Johall deh\Cr lo lo...m;d I.. H. kanlo.ID¥· 01 1<051 unc I II 

JOO\'C. iududinJ by whil:h illltbodos alk:wcdly ML"I!WrL'\1 ur :sn o\\..,.-shtp inlo.'n:M 

'" lh< •hares or Kini!-Wnd.. >ll lnDI .. Io.:lllnenl> (rtfencd 10 '" lhc Cl'<ll<>-c\llminllll"" uf Jnhn 

'"""IJ:il klliiC rr-111. 

5. THIS ('0\!RT Ft'RTHF.R ORDF.RS thlll Ill\: tw., p:uOiu-Jph, 

n:pnllll thiotia>t. In lbc .:'Vl>m thai questions""' refused ond this Caun·• 
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..., ""l•in:d. the ntutil>n in thi• n:;ard be: I.,.Mll Sh•UW>IIL"'") at ¥·30 Lm. ''" 

1\"odllftday. O.Ctmb..- :>"". 2tl0'1 in Whirbr. 

Tlll!i COlRT H'Rl"HEK ORDI:KS thnt \kKon1i< .lwll •JII'Cir to h< 

McKeuzic :\ffidtl\·11. 

7. THIS COltRT F'I.'RTHE.R ORDERS >hat. >11hi•"<t 1t1 rho t'unhl..,. pn>\ ;.,,.,. ol 

this pamp:aJ'h. Mr. Mcl<.o:uie slull prudlK>.' "' C"'rJid L.R "' ho:fore frit11y 

tol tho: tk>C111111.'111• tbr Scloon minute IU>L direerors' 
rqii>lor. st.Rho1Je11' rqti>k.'r. ok-cut1k"n1• Cindudino hllnL :.:ouunt 
op:ninw: dncumtnts. oCRCmcnt< ami han!< 

Cal :>II boob of ..:counl. JNam llld lin•n.:ial sllltcnomiS ,,( Rorloodn> lro1m 
!he dab: of inc."l''C'Dion •hn>uch "'th.: P'""'"" 

(b) all .. l>y whi<h S.loon &rhodo> ""'·uri•: ,., .m 
uw11er<tlir iutht ol•un ,,r ••lol 

pro•·ided thai if. \1r. tn pruduc:c .uoh lhtn h< <11:aJI tho 

JeMICt by triclol). ;\iovcmbtr I ,.2110'1 1111:1 ••plain tht ;rowMI• tilr •uLil "'fuli:U. 

I. l'HIS COlRT Fl. RTHF.R URDf .. RS dUll I ho at 

Prnll: ... Strtel, lUn.-.n. ON. d<livcr "' the CJll)ioS of ""' C<ltnr.lo:t r •• , 
n:nraltuoe. und :any hilline recunt. thor o.•iSithom the date !he mail bob "'"" o>pr!Uiumil rn:scnt. 

ior cho fallnwin!! 1n11l 
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r.."<juin:.J. lhc mali<'' 111 chi• Olh:lll he lxllld .lu>tll• ShauwJu•'"') 01 a.m. no 

\\'<"<lnada). o..:.-mbo:r !"'. !009 in 'l\.1•i•by 

6. THJS ('Ot;RT H RTHEII. ORDERS chac \icKervic ,1.,11 •PP<>r 10 bo 

On1:1rio. a< hi• '""' cxp:,.... 10 .. ,,.., all queoiouns clw1 ""' 1\'IOl•'<i l•> nlllll<:l'\ '" 1hr 

;, THIS COllllT F\lRTRER ORDERS ohd1. •uhj,,.l the lilnl>rr pron·iskm.• ol 

!his panagrnrh. Mr. 11-Jcl<l:ruie shall pNduc:o ,._, Ocr:IIJ LA. I<). or 1-c(urt friday 

tbl= !Ur Ow-bad"""'· mia1uu: "'•""-. d.in.oclors · 
"'Uio.ler. <harehohler>' d•ICU""'""' tin.:halillf l<:W. """"'un1 

du.:umm1o. np:ratinK •nJ h....U.. ""'' .. "'''"'): 

:til ol' IOCCDIInl. lo.-.!11 ... ;wd linun.:nu ""''"""'"'" ,,(' R.utodO\ frnm 
elM: dolte or' h> tl1< p,_-nr; 

ull do..'llnlelll> v•hieh '-lel.on Barb:>do> allq:,'dh ..,.,.ri•) or .., 
o•vtll.'roinr '""'....,. inllx ohum ,,r .-inpbmd. 

Jcfmct by friday. Novembo:r I), 200'1 Qlld C'<PIA1n llx fi'OUil•b lor ouch 1'1:111!1:11 

I. THJ!\ COL"RT Ft RTHEM ORDERS n .. l I'S ':>11111: ln.ul<'d at J17 
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'l. C"Ol:RT F\.'llTHER ORD£RS thou Tht liPS Stort Can:lolo lo<atcd 11 

n:n11111.....,. 01!01 any hillin' rttonb thai <>lSI from th.- d:tl< the moil bo'•• \\Ote nren<'ll 11n1il 

IQ) 81\IC I .... \inll. 1"omt1h.' CJnruno t(lc"nd:.tlc 

I h) 171 2)11 Tbt E:asl Mall. ToronlO, Oatario (Ciu\<'nlllk ;\,lAIIt 

111. THIS COGRT FLRTIIER ORDE-RS tbac pr.oducli<•n fh< Stnte l'•mKIII 

Mall. Torunb) Onlllriu. will n.ll cmnc into •!Teet 11111illilur .. alkr tho d01e this noder i• 

mailed 111 Mr. e,,., :and Nel11111 BGrNdus. tb<n:by pro•idin@ <uffioic:nt linN: for Mr S.:.t ono.l 

... ,.. Barbados.. or a dnly :wtharil.cd n:p«scrnti<o. In hrin& > """"'" !><fore Ute Superi.•r 

II. THIS COl'RT FURTHF.R OROERS C<lllt< .,,. moLklll b< I'OICrvo.ltll o l:u<r 

date. 

12. THIS COL'RT Fl-RfHER ORDERS thO! Ju.u<" shdll 

:1<1:zod ul'tbis ll<tion .,.1 permll ,"Ounsd Lo hrin1 such lurlllcr ntotk•n• 10. or .,.,h fu11her 
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Butler_Richard 

From: 
Sent: 

UPS Store 176 [store176@theupsstore.ca] 
Friday, November 13,2009 11:57 AM 

To: Butler_Richard 
Subject: Re: Disclosure of documents from UPS Store 
Attachments: 1225.pdf 

3 pg pdf attached 

Dave 

- Original Message -
From: Butler Richard 
To: store176@theupsstore.ca 
Sent: Friday, November 13,200911:21 AM 
Subject: Disclosure of documents from UPS Store 

David, 

2283 
63 

Please find attached, to update your records, a copy of the order with the judge's signature. I note that 
you advised me that one of the boxes listed in the order (1715) was close and the records destroyed 
pursuant to your privacy law obligations. 

In addition to any documents regarding the boxes at the 250 The East Mall location, the order requires 
that if you have any documents regarding Box 200, at 427 Princess Street. Kingston, those must also 
be produced. We received a copy of the agreement and information from Store 191, which notes that 
you opened the Kingston box. If you have any documentation regarding that box, please indude with 
any information regarding the box at your location. 

Could you please send that information this aftemoon. The order is effective immediately. 

Regards, 
Rich Butler 

Richard D. Butler 
Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Patent & Trade-mark Agents 

Tel: 416 868 3351 
Fax: 416 364 7813 
www.fasken.com 

66 Wellington St W 
Suite 4200 Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box 20 Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto ON M5K 1N6 
Canada 

11126/2009 
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Vancouver Calgary Toronto Ottawa Montreal Quebec London Paris Johannesburg 

This conllins ptMieged or confidential infotmalion and IS intended only for the named 18Cipients. If you have received this email in 
etror or .,. not 1 named raciplent, pleua notify the sender lllld destroy the email. A detailed :statemfHit of the terms of use can be found 
II the following ectcna /Jitp"/Mww fuken CQf!'llfetznapfuse ema!V 

Ce rneaaege c:onlfent des renseignement:s conlld!!ntfels ou st s destine seulsment Ia Pfi/SOIIIIfl qui H 1St ldtus6. Sl vous 
•- ret;U ce oourriel par S. V.P. 1e retoumer • raxp«Jiieur It le dMruire. Une vers1011 d8trliiiH des mode/itlts et conditiona 
cfutilialtion • tWtrouve • radr!!sae suiv111te 1111!! 'lt.rww fl.sken collllfrAennsofu3e amaiV. 

11126/2009 
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SUITE # ______ _ 

r------MAILBOX SERVICE AGREEMENT------, 

This Mailbox Service Agreement is co provide mailbox service to the customer at the Mail Boxes Etc. (MBE) 
Centre identified below. The c:ustomcr understands that the MBE facilities and services may nor be used for 
any illegal or illegitimate purposes prohibited by the Canada Post Corporation Act or the regulations 
thereunder. MBE shall act as agent on behalf of the customer only for the receipt of mail and parcels 
ddivered to the mailing address listed below by Canada Post and ocher courier companies. 

The customer funher agrees to use the mailbox service in conformity with all applicable Federal. Provincial, 
and local laws . .AJJ infomuuion provUJea by the CJIJlDmtr 1t confitknrilzl arui will not be disclosed whm 
kf•lly compelkJ or 

Possession of a mailbox key is considered by MBE to be valid evidence chat the is duly authorized 
co remove any contents from any mailbox rented under this agreement. 

Mailbox service fees arc all due and payable at last quarterly in advance. There will be no prorations or 
refunds for cancellation ofrny service. Accurmrr tkli"'f"C'r after the dJM d4u arui will be he/J pnuling 
JHI]mtnt. A late fcc of S will be charged if payment is not received within five (5) days of the due 
date. Services may be terminated at the option of MBE thirty (30) d2ys after the due date. If 
amznremmts Are nor m..tU for the forwaraint of mttil when tht hilS is cttnce/lul. or is 
tnminatui. the Custllmn'S 1NlU will bt mu.rntd ttl snuMr. or datrD]td. Upon voluntary termination of semcc, 
MBE wiU the c:ustomcr"s mail for 30 days, provided the customer pays the postage, packqing 
materials. and service fees in advance. A deposit is required for this service. Thereafter, if the: customer 
requires forwarding of mail, additional fees will be required and charted for this service. 

The c:u.stomcr further agrees that MBE may terminate or caned this Agreement for good cause at any time by 
providing thirty (30) days written noric:c. Good awe shall include, but is nor limited to: 1) abandonment; 
2) usc for criminal, illegal, or illegitimate activity; 3) failure to pay monies owed MBE; 4) we of mailbox 
inconsistent with this Agrcc:menr, including receipt of unreasonable volume of mail; and 5) non-performance 
of terms of this Agreement. Renew21 of this Agreement for additional terms shall be at MBE's sole disctction. 

C.O.D. items wiU be aa:cptcd only if prior arrangements have been made and payment in advance is left 
with MBE. The customer further agrees to protect, indemnify, and save harmless MBE from and against any 
and all claims. demands, and causes of personal injury or property damage arising from such usc or 
possession; for f:Wurc of Canada Post to ddivcr on rime or otherwise any items includins mail and parc:ds, 
for dama!e to or loss of mailbox contents by any cause whaaocvcr: and for any violation by the customer of 
applicable Federal, Provincial, or local laws. 

THE CUSTOMER HEREIN AGREES THAT THE TOTAL LIA.BIU1Y OF MAIL BOXES ETC. 
FOR ANY AND ALL CLAIMS IS UMITED TO S50. 00 REGARDLESS OF THE. NATURE OF 
THE CLAIM. (CUSTOMER'S INITIALS __ ) . 

The Mailing address for mailbox service shall be: 

"J, ... "l...; Suite No • 
.. 250 The East Mall 

M986L3 
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AUTHORIZATION TO ACCEPT REGISTERED MAIL 

I. the undersigned, hereby agree that Mail Boxes Etc., who is acting as my agent, only for the 
receipt of mail, registered documentS, and parcels from Canada Posr and other couriers, may sign 
for registered mail on my behalf. In the event I refuse to accept any such mail, I shall pay postage 
and all other fees associated with refusal and return. 

Customer's 

Name: f'rt.. 1> 

D:uc: __ ...... -' _'1]+1----

c 

(Piosc Print) 



IDENTIFICATION: 

Two (2) types of idc:ncific.t.ion are required .• '-.. copy of each musr be kept on file by MBE. 

1. ________________ _ 

2.----------------

-y 
.. I co ·-v J . .. / 

/ 
./ 

Acceptable: forms of identific.cion include: A v:alid Driver's Licence with photo I. D., Major 
Credit Card or a Bank Client Card (debit card or ATM.) 

..--·OTHER AUTHORIZED NAMES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT: 

1.-£ {#-} 
l. 3.----------------------

... 3) 4----------------------
Additional not sharing the same family surname of rhc: primary complerc a 
separate agreement and present idcncifia.tion. f.o_us arc limited co additional 
names, Business and Corporate boxes arc limited ro names. 

A monthly fee of$ __ will be assessed for each name in excess of the above 
limitations. 

C · s· ..-..1..;.7 ;i7VG' 17'..., • uscomcr s ...:..,_ _ _.:...,h;_;:Lo":.__:__ 
."J ... 

Date: 

Address: _________ -------

1-h··'-'" Work i'Jho,ne: 'ill;, ] \ 'L HomePhone: ___________________ __ 

MBE Representative: MBE Centre: _..._l-=-j1._--Jill(..,..._._ __ _ 

How did you hear about -=-:::...::L.::...'i=L-----------------

/J,-
Conrracr Term: ----r-----T---
Suice Number: ''--)...(. ( "l-"'v' { ) 

Tow Paid; ... ...,-... ______ __ 

Renewal Da.tc:: --------

Key Deposit: 

en 
H I LJ t7./t7('7 

(.( tlo.{ Lv'Ui 

.fe-y_ 
17 M--fl<• 

I 
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Fasken DuMoulin UP 
Barristers and Solic1tors 
Patent and Trade-marl< Agents 

66 Wellington Street West 
Suite 4200, Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
Box 20, Toronto-Dommion Centre 
Toronto, Ontario, Canada MSK 1 N6 

416 366 8381 Telephone 
416 364 7813 Facsimile 

November 6, 2009 
File No: 211200.00002 

BY COURIER AND REGULAR MAIL 

www.fubn.com 

FASKEN 
MARTINEAU 

Gerald LR. Ranking 
Direct 416 865 4419 

granking@fasken.com 

68 

Mr. Donald Best 
427 Princess Street 
Suite200 
Kingston, Ontario 
K7LSS9 

Dear Mr. Best: 

Re: McKenzie et aJ ats Nebon Barbados Group Ltd. 

We are the solicitors for PricewaterbouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm in the above-
noted action. 

On Monday, November 2, 2009, we attended before the Honourable Justice Shaughnessy r 
seeking, among other things, an order that you attend in Toronto to be ex!llllined as a f/ 
witness to the pending cost motion. 

His Honour ordered you to attend on Tuesday, November 17, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. at·· 
Victory Verbatim in Toronto, Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, Suite 900, Toronto, 
Ontario, to be examined. That order became valid and enforceable on November 2, 
2009, the day it was made by His Honour. You must attend this examination. You must 
also bring with you the documents set out in the Notice of Examination for Donald Best, 
which is enclosed. 

We &lsci enclose a copy of a draft order. We expect to have the draft order approved in 
substantially the same form. Also enclosed are a number of court records, which will 
help you which documents you must bring with you: 

• a copy of the Transcript from the cross-examination of John Knox dated 
Novcmber4, 2008; · 

• a copy of the affidavit of John Knox sworn November 12, 2007; 

Calpry Toronto Montrial Qu ...... City London 

435 
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MARTINEAU \Y 
Page2 

o a copy of the affidavit of John Knox sworn January 11, 2008; and 

• a copy of the Transcript of the proceedings on motion before the 
Honourable Justice Shaughnessy dated April 7 and April 8, 2009-. 

If you have any questions, please call me. Otherwise, I look forward to your attendance 
on November 17, 2009. 

Yours very truly, 

GLRR/jo 
Ends. 
c.c. Lome Silver/Jessica Zagar 

Paul Schabas /Ryder Gilliland 
Adrian Lang 
Lawrence Hansen/Larry Keown 
David I. Bristow 
Andrew Roman 
David D. Conklin 
Scan Dewart 
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Court File No.: 07-0141 

ONTARIO 
\1-jl/ 

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE This Is &lltb'}r) ...... .m. ... _ .••.•...... teferred to in the 
lffldl'lit of ••••• BETWEEN: 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. awom before me, tiUa ....... .:t.. ............................. . 
de' ot ..... _hJOJ.e.L ...... . 

-and-
A Fat TAI<IN3IfFI»MTS 

RICHARD IV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN cox, PIDLIP VERNON NICHO LS, ERIC E u-""". 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, · n.""' 

MARJORIE ll..MA KNOX, DA VlD SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GLYNE BANNISTER, GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES 

a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, GriTENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTTLE, CATFORD & CO., 

KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE, 
ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 

DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 
EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 

OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 
BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 

GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 
CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 

THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHILIP GREAVES, EST ATE OF VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DA V1D THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c..o.b. u LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

NOTICE OF EXAMINATION 

TO: DONALD BEST 

Defendants 

YOU ARE REQUIRED TO ATTEND, on Tuesday, November 17, 2009, at 
10:00 a.m., at Victory Verbatim in Toronto, Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, Suite 900, 
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Toronto, Ontario MSK 1H6, for an examination (as a witness before the hearing of a pending 
motion pursuant to the provisions of Rule 39.03(1) of the Rules of Civil Procedure. 

YOU ARE REQUIRED TO BRING WITH YOU and to produce at the 
examination the documents referred to in the Order of Justice Shaughnessy dated November 2, 
2009, a copy of which is enclosed, and the following specific documents and things: 

All books, contracts, letters, statements, records and copies of same in your 
custody, possession or power in any way relating to the matters which are within 
the scope of this proceeding or have any reference thereto, including: the 
incorporation documents, minute book, directors' register, shareholders' register, 
correspondence (particularly letters, emails, faxes) relating to the matters in issue 
in this proceeding and/or the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited ("Kingsland") 
banking documents (including bank account opening documents, operating 
agreements and bank statements), all books of account, ledgers and financial 
statements ofNelson Barbados Group Ltd. ("Nelson Barbados") from the date of 
incorporation through to the present, all documents by which Nelson Barbados 
allegedly acquired security or an ownership interest in the shares of Kingsland, 
and trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John Knox and 
paragraphs 22 and 25 in the affidavit of John Knox sworn November 12, 2007). 

November 6, 2009 FASKEN MARTINEAU DuMOULIN LLP 
Barristers and Solicitors 
Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
66 Wellington Street West 
P.O. Box20 
Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto, Ontario M5K 1N6 

Gerald L.R. Ranking [LSUC #238551] 
Tel: 416-8654419 
Fax: 416-364-7813 

Solicitors for the Defendant, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Finn 

Prepared for, and on behalf of, all Defendants 

I I 
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TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

SACK GOLDBLATT MITCHELL LLP 
Barristers and Solicitors 
20 Dundas Street West 
Suite 1100 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5G2G8 

Sean Dewart 
Tel: 416-979-6970 
Fax: 416-591-7333 

Solicitors for the K. William McKenzie 
and Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, Anderson & Duncan LLP 

GOODMANS LLP 
250 Yonge Street, Suite 2400 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5B2M6 

David D. Conklin 
Tel: 416-979-2211 
Fax: 416-979-1234 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Commonwealth Construction Canada Ltd. and Corrunonwealth Construction Inc. 

BLAKE, CASSELS & GRAYDON LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Box 25, Commerce Court West 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5L1A9 

Paul Schabas [LSUC #26355A] 
Tel: 416-863-4274 
Fax: 416-863-2653 

Ryder Gilliland [LSUC #45662C] 
Tel: 416-863-5849 
Fax: 416-863-2653 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
. David Simmons, Peter Sinunons, Philip Greaves, David Shorey, 
David C. Shorey and Company, David Cannichael Shorey 
and S.B.G. Development Corporation 
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AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL LLP 
Lawyers 
21 00 Scotia Plaza 
40 King Street West 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H3C2 

Lorue S. SUver [LSUC #24238L] 
Tel: 416-869-5490 
Fax: 416-640-3018 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Richard Ivan Cox, Gerard Cox, Alan Cox, Gittens Clyde Turney, 
R.G. Manderville & Co., Keble Worrell Ud., Lionel Nurse, 
Owen Seymour Arthur, Mark Cummins, Kingsland Estates Limited, 
Classic Investments Limited, The Barbados Agricultural Credit Trust, 
Attorney General of Barbados, the Country of Barbados, Elneth Kentish., 
Malcolm Deane, Eric Ashby Bentham Deane, Owen Basil Keith Deane, 
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Estate of Vivian Gordon Lee Deane, David Thompson, Owen Gordon Finlay Deane, 
Life of Barbados Holdings, Life of Barbados Limited and Leonard Nurse 

TEAM RESOLUTION 
480 University Avenue 
Suite 1600 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5G IV6 

David Bristow 
Tel: 416-597-3395 
Fax: 416-597-3370 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Philip Vernon Nicholls and Cottle, Catford & Co. 

DEVRY, SMITH & FRANK LLP 
100 Barber Greene Road 
Suite 100 
Toronto, Ontario 
M3C3E9 

Lawrence Hansen 
Tel: 416-449-1400 
Fax: 416-449-7071 

Solicitors for the Defendant, Glyne Bannister 
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AND TO: 

AND TO: 

STIKEMAN ELLIOTT LLP 
5300 Commerce Court West 
199 Bay Street 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5L 1B9 

Adrian Lang 
Tel: 416-869-5500 
Fax: 416-947-0866 

Solicitor for the Defendant, 
First Caribbean International Bank 

MILLER THOMSON LLP 
40 King Street West 
Suite 5800, P.O. Box 1011 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H3S1 

Andrew Roman 
Tel: 416-595-8604 
Fax: 416-595-8695 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Eric lain Stewart Deane and the Estate of Colin Ian Estwick Deane 
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NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. -and-
Plaintiff 

RICHARD IV AN COX ET AL. 
Defendants 

Court File No. 07-0141 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

Proceeding commenced at Barrie 

NOTICE OF EXAMINATION 

FASKEN MARTINEAU DuMOULIN LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 

Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
P.O. Box20 

Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto, Ontario 

M5K 1N6 

Gerald L.R. Ranking [LSUC#23855J] 
Phone: 416 865 4419 

Fax: 4163647813 

Lawyers for the Defendant, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Finn 

Prepared for, and on behalf of, 
all Defendants 
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76 I Court File No.: 07-0141 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 'j'' 1: This Is ExhibJti······ .................. in the 

BETWEEN: amdavlt ot ... .............. k:r .. 
awom before me, this .. ...... .. "1:::. .................. .. 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. day ot.." .... L:OJ . .e.. .. . mtiff .......... .2oQl .. . 

-and-

RICHARD IV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON NI 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISB, 
GL YNE BANNISTER, GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES 

a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, GITI'ENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTI'LE, CATFORD & CO., 

KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE, 
ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 

DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 
EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 

OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 
BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 

GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 
CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, TBORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 
THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, aod JOHN DOES 1-25 
Defendants 

AFFIDA VlT OF JEANNINE OUELLETIE 
Sworn November 17,2009 

I, JEANNINE OUELLETIE, Legal Secretary, of the City of Toronto, in the 

Province of Ontario, MAKE OATH AND SAY: 

1. 

a) 

b) 

I served Donald Best with copies of the following documents: 

the letter from Gerald Ranking to Donald Best dated November 6, 2009; 

the Notice of Examination dated November 6, 2009; 
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' 

c) 

d) 

- 2-

the draft order of Justice Shaughnessy dated November 2, 2009; 

2297 
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the transcript from the cross-examination of John Knox dated November 4, 
2008; 

e) the affidavit of John Knox sworn November 12, 2007; 

f) the affidavit of John Knox sworn January 11, 2008; and 

g) the transcript of the proceedings on motion before the Honourable Justice 
Shaughnessy dated April 7 and AprilS, 2009. 

by sending true copies of such docwnents by Purolator, a courier, to Donald Best at 427 

Princess Street, Suite 200, Kingston, Ontario, K7L 5S9. 

2. The copy was given to the courier on November 6, 2009. 

SWORN BEFORE ME 
at the City of Toronto, in the 
Province of Ontario, 
on November 17, _A, 

DAVID A. GOURLAY 
Barrister and Solicitor 

) 

) 
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Court FOe No. 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

Proceeding commenced at Barrie 

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 

FASKEN MARTINEAU DuMOULIN LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 

Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
P.O. Box 20 

Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto, Ontario 

M5K1N6 

Gerald L.R. Ranking [LSUC#23855J] 
Phone: 416 865 4419 

Fax: 416 364 7813 

Lawyers for the Defendant, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm 

Prepared for, and on behalf of, 
all Defendants 
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Nllaon Bar._.. Graup Ud. 
4!0 Straat. Suftal200 

Kingston. ON K7L 5S9 

Nmlembar 18- 2009 

AHn: Trial Coordinator Jackie Travis 
SJperlor Caurl at JUBtlce 
CCUtHaule 
Whitby. OnRio 
VIA FAX: 905-43D-5104 

DeEr Us. Tnrvls, 

\)VII 
This Is Exhiblf. ....... ................... reterred to In the 

affidavit ot .... ... .. kf 
sworn betore me, thi$ .......... Q.. ........................... . 
dayo' ................ •........... 
..... .... '-': .• 

f. f"\«"c,.t 

On behalf of Nelson Barbados Group Ud,. thlrK ycu fDr taking tt» ume1D speak 
wfth ma lhl& mamlng. As I explained. it was thought that COBIB WOUld nave bien 
auad by Juatlce Sttaughnaesy at the peremptory eos11 hearing held on 
Novembar 2. 3 and 4, 2009 and it is a aurpa lhat thiS did not nappen. 

Nelllon Bnados Group Ltd. has always paid 1fl8 costa aa dEJI'ermlned by lhe 
Honourable Court As 11old YDU I haW b8Bn tnMtrtg rnf NelSOn Barbados 
wrotlf* r.a. to 1he Judge In Novamber 11klng him to go rn.1 wHh the 
peremptary hearing and set 1he 00818 and 1hat the company trusted tim 1o be 
fair. 

You Informed me that the matter was not heard lll1d was put owar to Febnay 22, 
23 end 24, 2010. You told me U'Uit lhw. wa5 an order requoMed by Mr. Ranldng 
that came out Of 1he NovtJmber 2, 2008 00\11 dat. and 1hat the ora. 
was "appravad Dy aiii&Wyar8. • r lnfunnud you that 1 had nat eeen any ardor nor 
did Nelson BllltJ8dOI appraw il. 

You a&kad I Nallon Barbafo& had 11 lawyer 1or It Ill tho com• motion and 
wnen l'lrKSICBIIJtl U1B11he cumpany dkf not, you edYJ:Icd tt.t the company mlghf 
want to a• ona Ute 1s huge and ycu cannot go thraugh 1m lOok for 
dOCUrnen1B lbr Nallar a&IVadO& every time the company calla you. 

lllkad If aH UIUIIB court doaJmantB were not auppoeod to be cant to tha 
axnpany mJ you uplailad that they were eant to.Mr. McKenzie and wu he nn1 
ltlll gllllrJ411'18 documentls. 1 explained that Mr. McKenZie had been t111ean off tM 
C'8IMI by the caurt rnonlha ago and won, act fn any Wf11 for Nalcon Barbadol and 
1hat lh• company had au.mptecl to find a aultllblelawyer but wu unable to . 



80 
2. 
You then salactad some pa1s of Mr. Ranking'& ccurt order and read them to m0._ __ _ 
starlinG wtth a part 1111 said somdllng to the etrecl tJ1at -.ne coun CleCWes mat 
pall •rvlca on Donald Baal or au court dacut'I'MII\fl about tha cost matron Is valid· 
and !hataarvlc:IJ 11 four days after the docUmentt wara servec2 m NelSon 
Balbadol" when rnaDad 1D Klngaton. 

I 
I 
I 
I You than read a pan that said 1D the effacl1h81 In futura aJ aeiVIC81o Donald 

Basi was va1c:1 only 1DUr dayS anar tha C2DCI.Imenl8 ara maaw ID 10 gsluiL , 

Then you aaJd that the Judge. Oltiered me to appeartamarmw (Tuesday f?'-) in J 
Toronto at Vldory Vel'batlm at 1 oam at 222 Bay Streel to anawur an questtona 
from "ssccanna, b, c. d." 

When 18Xp1'81158d IUrprll8 you SBid 1hal you WfHVIUr& 1hat Mr. McKenzie'S 
hal b8Bn flllltrng 10 me about this •d I cnwered "NO M'AM". I don't 

know Who Informed you that 1 have been talldrtg wfth Mr. McKenzle'alawyer but 
that IS not true. 

You salactad a 1UI1her part at the ord .. and rvad that the Judge eaid I had 1D 
answer "1111 1 rapUect that 1 have nothtlg to hide or faar and 1 always 
Obey an ordar by a Judge to the best of my ability and r waurd contnJe to do so 
and II the jUdge aa:ya I arn lo be queetroned by tho Jawywa tomorrow {17"), 
mak8 myrauJr avallablo.. 

You suggen,d thai I might want to oantoct either Mr. Mct<ena's omce or Mr 
fwnldng's alllce aa he wu the one that took the arder aut 

I asked about Mr. Oankfng'- ordarand you1old m.th:at It wa just sf(]Md by 
Justice Shll.lghneeey and eent out 10 Mr. Ranawtg 1111 Frtdray the 19" or 
November. Mr. Ranking gat tho approval tram all the lawyara And he an the 
arder In to be e91ad by JWdic8 Shaughnessy. and when I W&lllgnad yOU &art H 
aut ta Mr. l'lanfclng b)' oourior on Alday tho 1:1', but 1he lllgnad nrdar was not 
8Mt out 10 anybody elee ar Nelson BIU'badDe by you. 

I eald that eacplafh8 why I had not recaved the Order And you &Qraad and said I 
ehould phcmo Mr. Ranking. 

1 said that baed on the little that Noison BarbAdca had racaMM:IIn Kingston and 
biMd upcn wtmt yau told me about tha -mJga plrA- af daruments that haw 
in tho C08t mctlan. 1 1ael that tn1 dafandantR, by ac:cldent 1 suppose. have 
Incorrectly toJd 1he Judge thllt NNRon Barbldots and I have been nrved With 
cortaln documenta and that Ia TVlt 1M case. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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Vau said that yoet had no idea What documents the defendanta aaid 1hat they had 
iiOrved on NGison BArbados and ma. I B$ked and dartfted for rna 1hat When 
lawyArR documar1ll theY have to dedara that ofllclally with 1he court and 
pn:Mde an -affidavit cf servlca" and 1hat all thc6e dooumen1s and servtce 
aflldavlls 1Wuld be wnh the aourt . 

.Aglln an behalf Of N111011 Barbadoa Group Ud., thank you for taking 1he tlmato 
explain the procese and &titus of the coat motlan. The company will cansldar 
your ll.QIIIIian ID get a laWyer or to phone Mr. Ranking or Mr. McKenzie'& 

81 

: 111111kl, 1 want 111 omphlllllzB flail Wll make m,.all avallallle 1ar / 
bY lhalawylrs tomorrow, Tullday Navambar 17, 2009. =.:! 
Youra truly, 

Nelson Barbacloa Group Ud. 
per 
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Court File No. 07-0141 

B E T W E E N: 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

II L-This fa Exhlblt ............................... referred to In the 
affldavlt ot .... lQ.cbai.d .... J>..: .. 6.J:t.la.. 
awom before me, th/t ..... 2.f.. ...................... -.. . 
dey ot ...... .IDJ. .. . . ( .............. 2o.Qi.. 

I 
I 
I 
I 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

Plaintiff E" · I 
- and -

RICHARD IVAN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON 
NICHOLLS, ERIC ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, 

MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, GLYNE 
BANNISTER, GLY.NE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES a.k.a. PHILP 

GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY,. R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., 
COTTLE, CATFORD & CO. , KEELE WORRELL LTD. , ERIC IAIN STEWART 
DEANE, ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH 

DEANE, MALCOLM DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, EDWARD 
BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, 

MARK COMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G. S . BROWN 
ASSOCIATES LIMITED, GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES 

LIMITED, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC. , THORNBROOK INTERNATIONAL 

INC. , S. B. G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, THE BARBADOS 
AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX ARTISTS MANAGEMENT 

LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY 
LTD. , FIRST CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD. , 
PRICE WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL OF 
SARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25, 

PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANS, DAVID 
THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, G.S. BROWN & 

ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., OWEN GORDON 
FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and LIFE OF 

BARBADos LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, LIFE 
OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, VECO 
CORPORATION, COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION CANADA LTD and 

COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, INC . 

Defendants 

ERNST &. YCUN!a TQWER, za:z BAY STREET, SUITE vee, TCRCNTC, CNTARIC, MSIC 1 H6 
WWW.VICTCRYVERBATIM.CCM 1-41&1 360•61 17 INF'C(ivU::TORYVERBATIM.ceM 
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This is a Statement for the Record in the above-noted 
matter, taken at the offices of VICTORY VERBATIM REPORTING 
SERVICES, Suite 900, Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, 
Toronto, ontario, on the 17th day of November, 2009. 

APPEARANCES: 

GERALD L.R. RANKING 
SEBASTIEN KWIDZINSKI 
(Student-at -Law) 

SARAH CLARKE 

LORNE S. SILVER 

HEIDI RUBIN 

MARC LEMIEUX 

for the Defendant, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 
East Caribbean firm 

for the Defendant, 
First Caribbean 
International Bank 

for the Defendants, Richard 
Ivan Cox, Gerard Cox, Alan 
Cox, Gittens Clyde Turney, 
R.G. Mandeville & Co., Keble 
Worrell Ltd., Lionel Nurse, 
Owen Seymour Arthur, Mark 
Cummins, Kingsland Estates 
Limited, Classic Investments 
Limited, The Barbados 
Agricultural Credit Trust 
(more properly, Barbados 
Agricultural Credit Trust 
Limited), the Attorney 
General of Barbados, the 
Country of Barbados, Elneth 
Kentish, Malcolm Deane, Eric 
Ashby, Bentham Deane, Errie 

Owen Basil Keith 
Deane, Keith Deane, Leonard 
Nurse, Estate of Vivian 
Gordon Lee Deane, David 
Thompson, Owen Gordop Finlay 
Deane, Life of Barbados 
Holdings and Life of 
Barbados Limited 

for the Responding Parties, 
K. William McKenzie and 
Crawford McKenzie McLean & 
Wilford LLP 

ERNST A YOUNGI TCWER, :ii:Z:Z BAY STREET, &UITE 9CC, TORONTO, ONTARIO, M!5K 1 He 
WWW,VICTCRYVERI!IATIM.CCM (o4 t l!il 3150•8 1 1? INF'C@viCTCRYVERBATIM.COM 
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r.ow 10:30. Ic 

is and : am making 

at Verbat:m in a 

the presence of Lorr.e Silver, 

Lemieux, Eeidi Rubin, Sarac Clarke, 

and my student, Sebast:.:.en KwiC.zinsk:... :!: 

want to briefly go ov2r events of 

morning before I mark a of 

as exhibits. 

When I arrived at the reception of 

Verbatim at 9:50 

a.m., Mr. Best was or. the phone. 3e was 

calling ir. and speaking to 

I offered speak with 

and the substance of tee discussion was 

that he was going to but 

he .,.;anted the examination to take place 

over ti:.e telephone. 

I indicated that that was not 

in accordance with the order of Just:..ce 

Sha:.1gh.."'1essy, and - asked him if he cou:..d 

tell me where he was so we could 

determine if he could, in fact, attend to 

1n 

ERNST & 'I'OUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1 HIS 
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.CCM 141 Gl 360·61 17 INFO@VJCTCRYVERBATIM.CCM 



...;qa VICTORY VERBATIM 

86 
for t:.e - 5 

!'tlr. 5-cst reft:.sed to ar:s·11er t::C:a-: 

rlnd after 

discussion, he asked if he could speah 

with SilveY. A: point, at 

appr-oxima:e:y 9:55a.m., we tt.er.. ret:ired to 

a small teleptor-e room off the at 

Victo:-1 Ver!:::ati::t, ar..d Mr. Silver then put 

Mr. Best or: the call ir-

presence and the of my student, 

Senastien Kwidzinski. 

The call proceeded, and Mr. Best 

=hat ceYtain had been 

posted or. the Darbados undergyound website 

and some othe= blog, which I be:ieve was 

sonething co do a 

and he indicated that he was concerned for 

his safety. 

He asked particular- whether or 

not we .!:lad been surveilling him, o= whether 

there would be surveillance at the 

And Silver made clear 

that the=e !tlot:ld ::::e no sucb. suYvei:.lance, 

alsc he, r.or 

member of h!s or his !tsel:, had 

ar.y rcle :.:: post.::.n3' wl:atever i:. was :.hat 

ERNST & YOUN!S TOWER, 222 BAY SUIT!: 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1 HIS 
WWW.VICTORYVERBATIM.COM (41 Sl 360-5: 17 INF"::l@VIC::TCRYVERBATJM.C0:-.1 
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Statement for the Record - 6 

Mr. Best was referring to. 

And I add that neither Mr. Silver 

nor myself or, to the best of my knowledge, 

anyone else in this room today have any 

knowledge of what Mr. Best was referring 

to, although it may well be on the website 

but we haven't accessed it. 

The discussion with Mr. Best 

proceeded until 10:12 a.m., and I summarize 

the salient points as follows: Firstly, 

Mr. Silver and myself made clear that if 

Mr. Best did not attend, that he would be 

in contempt of Mr. Justice Shaughnessy's 

order, dated November 2nd. 

In that regard, Mr. Silver offered 

to put the matter down to 2:00 in the 

afternoon, to which Mr. Best indicated that 

he could not attend. I renewed my request 

for Mr. Best to disclose his whereabouts, 

and went so far as to say that I did not 

need to know a specific address, but I 

needed to know generally whether he was in 

the jurisdiction, and if so, his general 

whereabouts. And the example I used was, 

was he in Barrie or elsewhere? So that we, 

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 222 BAY STREET, BUITE 9001 TDRCNTD, ONTARIO, M51< 1 Hl5 
WWW.VICTDRVVERSATIM.CQM 1-4161 360·151 1 '7 JNFD@viCTQRVVER8ATIM.COM 
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I 
was net tc I 
tte a I 

=o 

might be, given the fact =hat I 
Shaugh..'J.essy' s to deliver tl:e 

documents tc me a week in advance. 

Fir-ally, one last point, which 

is for the purposes of today, 

is the fact tl:ac Mr. Best indicated that he 

not ::::-eceived any of the materials buc 

l:ad spoken to Jackie Travis, although he 

had net used chat but he said the 

trial which :;: assume to be 

Jackie Travis, and t!lat c.here was a package 

of materials were have been sent to 

!lim. 

He that had net received 

=r.e materials, and I then ir.dicated to 

that I had sent the to by 

letter dated November 6th, in scrict 

ccmp:::.iance with Shaug.b:.essy' s 

order. 

: I if he 

in =o post c!f!ce bcx 

ERN!I'T & YOUNS TCW!:R, 222 E!AY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSI< 1 HI!: 
WWW.VICTCRYVERBATIM.COM 141 6) ::360-6 1 17 I NF"C@v1CTORYVERBAT1M.COM 
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Statement for the Record - 9 

to collect the materials, and despite the 

fact that I asked this question on at least 

three occasions, Mr. Best refused to answer 

and to let us know whether or not he had 

picked up the materials. 

Subject to the comments of others 

that I will invite momentarily, I would 

like to mark as exhibits the signed order 

of Justice Shaughnessy, dated November 2nd. 

That will be Exhibit 1. 

EXHIBIT NO. 1: Signed order of Justice 

Shaughnessy, dated November 2, 2009 

MR. RANKING: And I would also like to 

mark the affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette, 

sworn November 17th, to which is 

the notice of examination, dated November 

6th, 2009. And for the purposes of 

brevity, if I could put it that way, I have 

not attached to Ms. Ouellette's affidavit 

the rest of the material that was, in fact, 

served that day because our volumes, being 

the transcript from the cross-examination 

of John Knox, dated November 4th, the 

ERNST&:. YCUNIJ TCWER, aaa IIAY ISTRE:ET, SUITE vee, TCReNTC, CNTARIC, MSK 1 He 
WWW.VIC:TCRYVIU=!ISATIM.CCM 141 &I :see•6117 INI"C@viCTCRYVIIRBATIM.CCM 
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=he tra=scrip= of 

before J;.;.stice Shaus-1-..r:essy or:. .P.pri: 1 

and April a, :oo9. 
Those items 

C;.;.el:!.etce 1 s a:::.da·.rit o: :Ceen 

couriered to Mr. 3esc en November 6th, 

2889. So if I could the affidavit cf 

Jeanr-ine as Exhibit 2. 

EXHIBIT NO. 2: Affidavit of Ouellecte, 

sworn November 17, 2009 

3. l'-".R . RF..NKING : I w:.11 also as 

Exhibit 3 my letter to Best, 

November 6=h. 

EXi1:3IT NO. 3 : Letter to Donald Best from Gera:d 

dated 6, 2009 

4. Let me just check my 

r.otes, and t!:.er. : will te comme::1=s from 

ERNST .a. YOUNG T0Wf:R 1 :1122 BAY STREET, SUITE SClr::J, CN7ARIC, MSK 1 H6 
WWW,VICTCRYVERE!AT!M.CCM 141 el ::;HSC-61 17 INF'Cl@viCTCRYVERBATIM.CCM 
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as co1..:.:::sel, cc':...l.ld o, . .,.. sc£:eC..ules 

try co 

Mr. Silver also of:ered other days, 

being Wednesday or Thursday, and Nr. 

respor.se, as best I recall, was that no 

was and 

did corr.mi t to any of the of:ers made by 

eitr.er or Mr. Silver tc to be 

examir.ed ac another time. 

I should also add that Sarar. Clarke 

jo:ned the call at 10:05, and I be:ieve 

that the approximate t:me that 

Rubin :oined tr.e call as well. I am just 

checking my notes to see if there 

anything further. Yes, the other poir.t 

that :: should make clear is ':hat Best 

really was qui::.e insistent that: the 

examination take place by way of conferer.ce 

call. 

Mr. Silver asked the first questio::1 

as tc whether or r:.ot he ... "ne" bei::g Mr. 

3est ... had che records o: Nelsen Barbados. 

:VIr. Best: reft:.sed to ar..swer, a:1d t:hen asked 
M.,.. ·-..1... Silver to pt:.t second questior. to 

t.im, Mr. Silver made clear that this 

ERNST & YOUNG TCW!:R, 222 SAY STREET, SUITE 9:::JO. TORONTO, ONTARIO, M:SK 1 HIS 
WWW.VJCTORYVERSATIM.COM (4 1 Sl 360·6 1 17 1"--F"O@viCTCRYVEREATIM.Ci:IM 



VICTORY VERBATIM 

92 

Statement for the Record - 11 

MR. SILVER: It is Lorne Silver. The 

only other two things that I would add is 

that, in the conversation that Mr. Ranking 

describes, I made it clear to Mr. Best that 

we were just following the protocol set out 

in court orders, and because the difficulty 

that we had experienced previously in 

serving him, we were proceeding by way of 

court order, and that the court order that 

we were here on today was one that required 

him to be cross-examined today. 

And that if he had any problems with 

the court orders, he would have to deal 

with that with the court and not with us. 

The other thing that I think I might have 

missed but was also indicated was I, in 

trying to reschedule this cross-examination 

to tomorrow or this afternoon or tomorrow 

or Thursday, I also specifically asked Mr. 

Best when he would be available for the 

cross-examination, and he would not answer 

that question. Anybody else want to add 

anything to the record? 

MS. RUBIN: Just to be fair to Mr. Best, 

my notes say that he indicated that he 

ERN.T &r. YOUNG TOWER, 222 I!IAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, CNTARIC, M5K 1 H6 
WWW,VICTORYVERI!IATIM.CCM 141 &I 3&C•& 1 1 7 INF"D@viCTORYVII:IIl.ATIM.CCM 
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Statement for the Record - 12 

hadn't received a copy of Justice 

Shaughnessy's November 2nd order, and that 

he had asked for a copy to be sent to him. 

MR. SILVER: I don't think that is 

right, actually. I think he said that he 

got it for the first time last night. 

MS. RUBIN: My notes say that he 

indicated that he hadn't seen it, but maybe 

I misheard. That is what I heard him say. 

MR. LEMIEUX: Marc Lemieux, just to ... 

MR. SILVER: But in response to that, he 

obviously knew ... sorry, Marc. 

MR. LEMIEUX: No problem. 

MR. SILVER: He obviously knew about the 

examination because he knew to call in this 

morning at 10:00. 

MR. RANKING: Well, I don•t want to 

really get into ... my recollection is 

similar to Mr. Silver's, that he, indeed, 

indicated that he had obtained the court 

order, and that he, in fact, called the 

trial coordinator to find out about the 

material. 

MS. RUBIN: Well, that might have 

happened before I got on the call. 

ERN•T A YCUNIJ TCWER, 22:Z SAY STREET, SUITE 900, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MI5K 1 H6 
WWW,VJCTDRYVERSATIM,CCM (-41 &l 3&0•& 1 1? INF'C@viCTCRYVW:RBATJM.CCM 
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Statement for the Record - 13 

MR. SILVER: And Mr. Ranking asked 

repeatedly for him to confirm that he had 

received and seen the materials that were 

sent to the post office box in accordance 

with Exhibit 3 that he just marked, and he 

refused to answer that question. 

MR. LEMIEUX: Marc Lemieux. I just wish 

to be clear for the record that I was not 

here today for the examination of Donald 

Best. OUr firm is no longer on the record, 

and I have no specific knowledge of any of 

these things that were being discussed with 

respect to the particular court order of ... 

what packages were sent to him, or what was 

in those packages, or anything else. 

I was not present for the entire 

phone call, so I don't have any specific 

knowledge of the entirety of the phone 

call, or the context of the entire phone 

call, nor did I take any notes of that 

which I was present for. So, from my 

position ... and I take no position with 

respect to any of the things that have 

transpired or what has taken place this 

morning. Thank you. 

ERNST A YCUNCI TCWER, a:a:z BAY STREET, SUITE 9CC, TCRCNTC, CNTARIC, MSK 1 H6 
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Statement for the Record - 14 

INPEX OF EXHIBITS 

DESCRIPTION 

Signed order of Justice Shaughnessy, 
dated November 2, 2009 

Affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette, 
sworn November 17, 2009 

Letter to Donald Best from Gerald 
Ranking, dated November 6, 2009 

PAGE 
NUMBER 

9 

10 

10 
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Court File No. 07-0141 97 

ONTARIO Th . ,, m, I fa Ia ExhltJP.r ............................. reterred to tn the 
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE affidavit ot ... K.\e.ba.fd .. D., .. B.u.t..\tT. ... . 

sworn me, lhls ......... :Z."J: .................... .. 
BETWEEN: day of.......... • .. .. tl:J.:: .......... 2o.ch .. 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

-and-

RICHARD IVAN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, 
ERIC ASHBY BENI'HAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, MARJORIE l1MA 

KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, GLYNE BANNISTER, GLYNE B. 
BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, GITI'ENS CLYDE 
TURNEY, R.G. MANDEVIllE & CO., COTTLE, CATFORD & CO., KEBLE 

WORREU LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWART DEANE, ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE. LEE 
DEANE, ERRJE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOlM DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, 

LEONARD NURSE, EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 
OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, BRIAN 

EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES liMITED, GOLF BARBADOS 
INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, CLASSIC INVESTMENI'S LIMITED, 

THORNBROOK INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 
INIERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVEWPMENT CORPORATION, THE BARBADOS 
AGRICULTURAL CREDrT TRUST, PHOENIX ARTISTS MANAGEMENI LIMITED, 
DAVID C. SHOREY AND COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 

CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE WATERHOUSE 
COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY 
OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25, PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN 

GORDON LEE DEANS, DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER 
SIMMONS, G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENI'S LIMITED and LIFE 
OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, LIFE OF 

BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, VECO CORPORATION, 

COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION CANADA LTD and COMMONWEALTH 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendants 

Certificate of Non-Attendance 

I, Robyn Arndt, Examiner, hereby certify: 
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That an was tssued for the 17th cay of 2009, at 
my office, Victory Verbatio Report:J.ng Services, Suite 900, Ernst & Young To•..vcr, 
222 Bay Street, Toronto, Ont:uio, at the hour of 10:00 a.m. for the examination oi 
Dona2d Best, as a witness before the hearing of a pending motion purscai1t to ihe 
provisions of Rule 39.03(1) of the Rules of CiV11 Procedure. 

That at the said bst above mentioned time and place, I was attended by 
Gerald L.R. Ranking, from the offices of Fasken Martineau DuMoulin LLP, 
appearing as solicitors for the Defendant, PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbear. 
Finn. who waited more than fifteen (15) minutes. but the said Donald Best did not 
appear, nor did anyone on his behalf. 

Dated at Toronto this 17th day of :1\ovember, 2009. 

f 
(_ ''W·S Orr ) 

Robyn Arndt 
Examiner 

2317 
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2 DuMoulin LLP 
Barristers and SolicitOB 
P..atent and Trade-mark Agents 

66 Wellington Street West 
Suite 4200, Toronto Dom1nion Bank Tower 
Box 20. Toronto-Dommion Centre 
Toronto, Ontario, Canada MSK 1 N6 

416 366 8381 Telephone 
416 364 7813 Facsimile 
800 268 8424 Toll free 

November 18, 2009 
File No: 211200.00002 

www.fasken.com 
99 

MARTINEAU \.Y 

Gerald LR. Ranking 
Direct 416 865 4419 

granklng@fasken.com 
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\1 "-1'' This Is Exhibit ............................... referred to In tJ 
BY ORDINARY MAIL AND COURIER 

Mr. Donald Best 
c/o 427 Princess Street 
Suite 200 
Kingston, Ontario 
K7L5S9 

Dear Mr. Best: 

. o . fDa..··'\ affldavit of .. l1-.. \C.b.a..[C: ........ ... {£. .... 
Mr. Donald Best awom ..... -2_-J. ............... -;:;:. 
c/o Cloverdale Mall day of .............. ................. 2fA.J:l 

...?'b.Jf=·········-···=·· .. -· COMMISSIONER FOR TN<ItG N'F1DM11 
Toronto, Ontario C, 1\J .... 
M9B 6L3 c;;. '-\U'f 
(by mail only, without enclosures) 

Re: McKenzie et al ats Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. 

A. Your Examination 

I am writing further to your telephone discussion with me, Lome Silver, Heidi Rubin, 
Sarah Clarke and Marc Lemieux (all of whom were at Victory Verbatim) yesterday. 
Please note that I am sending this letter to both ofyom post office box numbers. 

First, and by reason of the fact that you failed to attend to be examined, I enclose the 
Certificate ofNon-Attendance issued by Victory Verbatim. 

Second, I confirm that you called ViCtory Verbatim at 9:50a.m. yesterday morning. You 
did so because you knew that you were to be examined .at 10:00 a.m. I have also now 
seen yom letter daij:(j November 16, 2009 (received ·after· I ret\D"ned to the office 
yesterday).· It is apparent from your own letter that you were aware that Justice 
Shaughnessy had ordered you to appear on Tuesday, January 17th to be examined. 

Third, and by reason of yom failure to attend, I confirm the following salient points from 
om telephone discussion: 

(a) when you indicated that you did not intend to appear to be 
examined (asking instead to have counsel put questions to you over 

C.. !gary Mantr6al L.ondaft P'aril JoMnnoosburg 
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the phone) both Mr. Silver and I told you (on repeated occasions) 
that you would be in contempt of Justice Shaughnessy's order 
dated November 2, 2009 if you failed to appear; 

(b) you refused to respond to my repeated request to identify your 
location, even generally. You also refused Mr. Silver's offer to 
have the examination stood down to 2:00p.m. and his subsequent 
offer to conduct the examination today (Wednesday) or tomorrow 
(Thursday). Despite repeated requests, you refused to tell me 
where your were or to commit to be examined on any of those 
days. You also did not provide alternate dates; 

(c) when you claimed that you were concerned for your safety and that 
certain information had been posted to a ''blog" (allegedly posted 
you said by Mr. Silver or his finn), Mr. Silver categorically 
rejected that he or his firm bad posted anything on any blog. 
Likewise, when you asked if there would be surveillance, both 
Mr. Silver and I confirmed there was no surveillance. I also 
offered, as a further gesture to you, to have the examination 
conducted at my office. You refused my offer; 

(d) you also claimed that you had not received the Notice of 
Examination, or other materials, which I sent to you on November 
6, 2009. However, you refused to answer my repeated questions as 
to whether or not you had picked up materials from your post 
office box. I also note that, while you claim you did not receive 
my letter dated November 6th, you knew to call Ms. Traviss on the 
morning of Monday, November 16th (the day prior to your 
scheduled examination); and 

(e) with respect to the service of docwnents, you did not provide a 
residential address or alternate address for us to provide duplicate 
copies. Likewise, you did not provide us with any email address or 
telephone numbers. 

Page2 

Having not appeared, you are now in contempt of-Justice Shaughnessy's order dated 
2, 2009. Your very own letter dated November 16th con:fums your knowledge 

of that order, which you flagrantly disregarded. · 

If possible, we would like to resolve this matter without further involving Justice 
Shaughnessy. Accordingly, rather than moving for a contempt order now, we are 
prepared to give you one, and only one, opportunity to purge your contempt. Mr. Silver 
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and I have re-arranged our schedules and we enclose herewith a further Notice of 
Examination which requires you to appear on Wednesday, November 25th (one week 
from today's date) at 10:00 a.m. at Victory Verbatim in Toronto, Ernst & Young Tower, 
222 Bay Street, Suite 900 to answer the questions set forth in Justice Shaughnessy's 
order dated November 2, 2009. If you fail to appear on that date, we will move for 
contempt and our motion will be returnable in Whitby before the Honourable Justice 
Shaughnessy on Wednesday, December 2, 2009 at 9:30a.m. 

467 

lOl 

This is a very serious matter. We urge you to retain counsel and to seek advice with / 
respect to the matters in issue and the seriousness of your having failed to attend to be 
examined pursuant to court order. Mr. Silver and I are also prepared to speak with you, 
or your counsel, if you have questions. And we will also do whatever we can to 
accommodate your reasonable requests. By way of example, the examination can be 
conducted at my office (or Mr. Silver's) if you prefer. But let there be no 
misundersta.nding} we expect you to appear to be examined on Wednesday, November 
2fl' and we will mow forthwith for a contempt order if you do not appear. 

I also enclose a bound brief containing the transcribed statement I made for the record (at 
Victory Verbatim yesterday) following our telephone call. The statement also attaches 
the signed order of Justice Shaughnessy (Exhibit "1} the affidavit of Jeannine Ouellette 
(Exhibit "2") and my letter to you dated November 6 (Exhibit "3"). 

Would you also please send Mr. Silver and I a fax identifying whether or not you have in 
your possession, power or control the documents identified in paragraph 4 of Justice 
Shaughnessy's order dated November 2, 2009. All such documents should be delivered 
to me in advance of your examination, or at a minimum, brought with you to your 
examination on November 25th. 

B. Mr. McKenzie's Cross-Examination 

By reascin of your refusal to attend to be examined on November 17m, I also wish to 
advise that Mr. McKenzie's cross-examination has been re-scheduled from Friday, 
November 20th to Monday, November 30th, 2009. Unless we advise otherwise, the 
examination will take place in Barrie, Ontario at Simcoe Court Reporting, 134 Collier 
Street, Barrie, ON, Phone No. (705) 734 2070, commencing at 10:00 a.m. 

You are invited, and welcome, to attend that cross-examination if you wish. 

1 also wish to put you on notice that any questions refused on either your examination or 
the cross-examination of Mr. McKenzie will be the subject matter of a motion to be heard 
by Justice Shaughnessy at 9:30a.m. on Wednesday, December 2, 2009 in Whitby. The 
outcome of that motion may directly affect the interests of Nelson Barbados Group Ltd., 
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REPORTER'S 

Ple<J.se be advised that any undertakings, objections. under advisements 
and refusals a:e provided as a service to all counsel. for their guidance only. 
and do not purport to oe legally binding or necessarily accurate anc are ::1ci. 
binding upon Victory Verbatim Reporting Services be. 

I hereby certify foregoing to be a true and accurate transcription of 
the above noted proceedings held before me on the 17th DAY OF 
:"l'O,lE:MBER, 2009 and taken to the best of my skill, ability and 
understanding. 

} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 
} 

Certified Correct: 

7 w .. m Reporter 
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or personally, and I therefore bring the motion date to your attention, We invite you 
to attend the courthouse in \Vhitby on December 2, 2009, and vou should set that date 

because questions which Mr. McKenzie may refuse answer (on November 
30th) ipay affect your interests. or the interests of Nelson Barbados Group Ltd., and you 
may wish to make submissions to Justice Shaughnessy on whether or not His Honour 
shoUld order the questions to be answered. 

Yours very truly, 

(J _.,.--J 

Gerald L. R. Ranking 

GLRR/jo 
Encls. 
c.c.: Lome Silver/Jesstca Zagar 

Paul Schabas /Ryder Gilliland 
Adrian Lang 
Lawrence Hansen/Larry Keown 
David I. Bnstow 
Andrew Roman 
David D. Conklin 
Sean Dewart 
Jessica Duncan 

(Enclsoures to c.c's will be delivered) 

02 

0 
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F. 



470 

I 
I-. 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

2323 

Court File :-.!o.: 07-0l-ll 
ONTARIO II c II 

Sul'ERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE This is .. :··: ............. .... reterred tc in the 
"d . , u,r,h.r.....r. r" 12. 

BETWEEN: atil SVIt Ot .. .. )..l..t..J..I.bl. ... .. l.,."\..t:\Jc.f. ..... 
sworn before me, this ............ Q .. f 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD I" { ................. :: .. . 

-and- ....... 
ACCM NEf\ FOR ............ _., 

TAKJfG N'FIDAIIITS 

RICHARD IV AN cox, GERARD cox, ALAN cox, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERic E . Mc:ti"X 
ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASU. KEITH DEANE, 

.MARJORIE KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GL YNE BANNISTER, GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PHil-IP GREAVES 

a.k.a. Pllll.P GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TVRNEY, 
R.G. MA.'H>EVILLE & CO., COTTLE, CATFORD & CO., 

KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEW ART DEANE, 
ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEA...'m, MALCOLM 

DEANE, LIONEL NL'RSE, LEONARD NURSE, 
EDWARD BAYLEY, FRA.l'fCIS DEHER, DA V1D SHOREY, 

OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, 
BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LOUTED, 

GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 
CLASSIC Th"VESTl\-IENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL CONSL'LTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 

THE BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARffiBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK t'BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
PHll.IP GREAVES, ESTATE OF GORDON LEE DEANS, 

DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, 
G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and 
LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, 

LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CAR..."IICHAEL SHOREY, 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIRM, 

VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION 
CANADA LTD and COl\tiMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendants 

NOTICE OF 

TO: DONALD BEST 

YOU ARE REQUIRED TO ATTEND, on Wednesday, November 25, 2009 at 
10:00 a.m., at Victory Verbatim in Toronto, Ernst & Young Tower, 222 Bay Street, Suite 9oo , 

I 
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To:-onto, Ontario MSK IH6, for an examinatio!1 (as a \\itness before the hearing of a pending 
motion pcrsuant to the provisior:s ofRule 39.03(1) of the Rules of Civil Procedure. 

YOU ARE REQUIRED TO BRING WITH YOL'" and to produce at 
examination the documents referred to in the Order of Justice Shaughnessy dated No'lember 2, 
2009, a copy of which is enclosed, and the following specific documents and things: 

All books, contracts, letters, statements, records and copies of same m your 
custody, possession or power in any way relating to the matters which are within 
the scope of this proceeding or have any reference thereto, including: the 
incorporation documents, minute book, directors' register, shareholders' register, 
correspondence (particularly letters. emails, faxes) relating to the matters in issue 
in this proceeding and/or the shares of Kingsland Estates Limited ("Kingsland") 
banking documents (including bank account opening documents, operating 
agreements' and bank statements), all books of account, ledgers and fmancial 
statements of Nelson Barbados Group Ltd. Barbados") from the date of 
incorporation through to the present, all documents by which Nelson Barbados 
allegedly acquired security or an ownership interest in the shares of Kingsland, 
and trust documents (referred to in the cross-examination of John Knox and 
paragraphs 22 and 25 in the affidavit of John Knox sworn November 12, 2007). 

November 18, 2009 F ASKF..N :\IARTINEAU Dul\lOL'LIN LLP 
Barristers and Solicitors 
Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
66 Wellington Street West 
P.O. Box 20 
Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto, Ontario M5K JN6 

Gerald L.R. Ranking [LSUC #2385 5J] 
Tel: 416-865-4419 
Fax: 416-364-7813 

Solicitors for the Defendant, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm 

Prepared for, and on behalf of, all Defendants 
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TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

SACK GOLDBLATT .:\ID'CHI:LL LLP 
Barristers and Solicitors 
20 Dundas Street West 
Suite 1100 
Toronto, Ontaf.o 
M5G2G8 

Sean Dewart 
Tel: 416-979-6970 
Fax: 416-591-7333 

Solicitors for the K. William 
and Crawford, McKenzie, McLean, Anderson & Duncan LLP 

GOODMANS LLP 
250 Yonge Street, Suite 2400 
Toronto, Ontario 
MSB 2::vf6 

David D. Conklin 
Tel: 416-979-2211 
Fax: 416-979-1234 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Commonwealth Construction Canada Ltd. and Commonwealth Construction Inc. 

BLAKE, CASSELS & GRAYDON LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 
Box 25, Commerce Court West 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5L IA9 

Paul Schabas [LSUC #26355A] 
Tel: 416-863-4274 
Fax: 416-863-2653 

Ryder Gilliland [LSUC #45662C] 
Tel: 416-863-5849 
Fax: 416-863-2653 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
David Simmons, Peter Simmons, Philip Greaves, David Shorey, 
David C. Shorey and Company, David Cannichael Shorey 
a::1d S.B.G. Oevelopment Corporation 

2325 
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AND TO: 

AND TO: 

AND TO: 

CASSELS BROCK & BLACK\\'ELL LLP 
Lawyers 
2100 Scotia Plaza 
40 King Street West 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H 3C:2 

Lorne S. Silver [LS1X #24238L] 
Tel: 416-869-5490 
Fax: 416-640-3018 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Richard Ivan Cox, Gerard Cox, Alan Cox, Gittens Clyde Tumey, 
R.G. Manderviile & Co., Keble Worrell Ltd., Lionel Nurse, 
Owen Seymour Arthur, Mark Cummins, Kingsland Estates Limited, 
Classic Investments Limited, The Barbados Agricultural Creclit Trust, 
Attorney General of Barbados, the Country of Barbados, Elneth Kentish, 
Malcolm Deane, Eric Ashby Bentham Deane, Owen Basil Keith Deane, 
Estate of Vivian Gordon Lee Deane, David Thompson, Owen Gordon Finlay Deane, 
Life of Barbados Holdings, Life of Barbados Limited and Leonard Nurse 

TEAM RESOLUTION 
480 University Avenue 
Suite 1600 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5G 1V6 

David Bristow 
Tel: 416-597-3395 
Fax: 416-597-3370 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Philip Vernon Nicholls and Cottle, Catford & Co. 

DEVRY, Sl\UTH & FRANK LLP 
I 00 Barber Greene Road 
Suite 100 
Toronto, Ontario 
M3C 3E9 

Lawrence Hansen 
Tel: 416-449-1400 
Fax: 416-449-7071 

Solicitors for the Defendant, Glyne Ban."lister 
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TO: 

AND TO: 

STIKEMA1'i ELLIOTT LLP 
5300 Commerce Court West 
199 Bay Street 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5L 1B9 

Adrian Lang 
Tel: 416-869-5500 
Fax: 416-947-0866 

Solicitor for the Defendant, 
First Caribbean Internatior.al Bank 

MILLER THOMSON LLP 
40 King Street West 
Suite 5800, P.O. Box lOll 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H 351 

Andrew Roman 
Tel: 416-595-8604 
Fax: 416-595-8695 

Solicitors for the Defendants, 
Eric lain Stewart Deane and the Estate of Colin Ian Estwick Deane 
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RICHARD IVAN COX ET Al .. 
!Jcft:llllartls 

Court File No. 
to..'\ 

(X) 
ONTARIO 

I SUPERIOR COURT 01' .JUSTICE 

l,1·oceeding commenced al 8&\rrie 

\ 
NOTICE OJf EXAMINATION 

-

FASKEN MARTINI!:AIJ llnMOlJI .IN I .LP 
Barristers & Solicitors 

Toronto Dominion l3:mk Tower 
P.O. Box 20 

Toronto-Dnminion 
Toronto, Onlario 

M5K IN6 

Gcntld L.R. Ranking LI.SUC#::>JH55Jl 
Phone: 416 865 4419 

Fax: 416 364 7R13 

Lawyers for the 
PriccwaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm 

Prepared fhr, and on behalf of, 
all Defendants 

Q 
00 

,. 
-...1 
til 
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Cour. File };o.: 07-01-n 

... tlpll . 
ONTARIO This ts .............................. raterred to :n the 

BET WE EN: 
SUPERIOR COURT OF Jl'STICE affidavit of ... .. J3Lti-.1t:C. .... .. 

sworn tefore me, thjs..... ... .. ..1:. ..................... .. 
day ot ............ ......... 

NELSON BARBADOS GRO _ ---

-and-
SS!CNE.q FORT,IIO/'IG "fFFCA\IITS 

RICH..<\.RD IV AN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON NICHOLLS, ERIC 
ASHBY BENTBAl'\11 DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH 

MARJORIE ll..MA KNOX, DAVID SIM."\IIONS, ELNETH KENTISH, 
GL YNE GL YNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP GREA YES 

a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, 
R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTTLE, CA. TFORD & CO., 

KEBLE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEW ART DEANE, 
ESTATE OF COLIN LEE DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM 

DEANE, LIONEL NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, 
EDWARD BAYLEY, FRA.'\'CIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY, 

OWE::"J SEYMOUR ARTHL'R, MARK CUM.i\'IINS, GRAIIAM 
BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, 

GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, 
CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 

INC., THORNBROOK 
INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, 

THE BARBADOS AGRICULTUR...<\.L CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX 
ARTISTS 1.\'IANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND 

COl\'IPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 
CARIBBEAN INTERL'\'ATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICE 
WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL 

OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25 
Defendants 

AFFIDAVIT OF Ol)ELLETIE 
Sworn November 24,2009 

I, JEANNINE OUELLETTE, Legal Secretary, of the City of Toronto, in the 

Province ofOntario, MAKE OATH AND SAY: 

1. I served Donald Best with copies of the following documents: 

a) the letter from Gerald Ranking to Donald Best dated November 18, 2009; 

b) the Notice of Examination dated November 18, 2009; and 
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c) a bound brief con:aining Statement for the Record taken et offices 
Victory Verbatim 0!1 November 17, 2009 and the Exhibits. 

by sending true copies of such documents by regular letterrnail and by Purolator, a courier, to 

Donald Best c/o 427 Princess Street, Suite 200, Kingston, Ontario, K7L 5S9. 

2. The copy was given to the courier on November 18, 2009. 

3. I served Donald Best with the letter from Gerald Ranking to Donald Best 

dated November 18, 2009 by sending a true copy by regular lettermail on November 18, 

2009 to Donald Best c/o Cloverdale Mall, 250 The East Mall, Suite 1225, Toronto, Ontario, 

M9B 6L3. 

SWORN BEFORE ME 
at the City of Toronto, in the 

A COMMISSIONER FORT AKJNG AFFIDA Vl'I'S 

DAWN K. ROBERTSON 
Barrister and Solicitor 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

LmANNINE OUElLETTE 
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NELSON JJARHADOS GROUP LTD-

QC 

-and- RICHARD IV AN COX ItT AL-
Do::f<:IH.lanls 

CourtFii"No_ 07-0141 

ONTARIO 
SUPERIOR COURT 01•' .JlJSTICE 

Proceeding commenced at 

AFFIDAVIT OF SF:RVICE 

FASKEN MARTINEAU DuMOULiN LU' 
Barristers & Solicitors 

Toronto Dominion Bank Tt)WtT 

P.O. Box 20 
Toronto-Dominion Ct>lllrt:: 

Toronto, Ontario 
M5K IN6 

Gerald Ranking J 
Phone: 416 865 4419 

Fax: 4163647813 

Lawyers for the Defendant, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers Cmibhcan Finn 

Prepared li.>r, and on hchalf or: 
all Deftndanlo; tv w w 

!>-,_. 
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0 0 ..., This is Exhib,iL .. .. :: ....... ...... referred to in the 
SUPERIOR COVRT OF JUSTICE affidavitot .. 

!worn before me, this ........ 2..'1.' ................... .. 
BET N: dayot. ......... .... 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

Plaintiff e · 
-and-

RICHARD IVAN COX, GERARD COX, .1lAN COX, PHILIP VER"A/ON NICHOLLS, 
ERIC ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE. OWEN BASIL KEITH DEANE, IllvlA 

KNOX. DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, GLYNE BANNISTER, GLYNE B. 
BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE 
TUR1VEY. R.G. MANDEVILLE & CO., COTTLE, CATFORD & CO .. KEELE 

WORRELL LTD., ERIC L1IN STEVv"'ART DEANE, ESTATE OF COLIN DEA1VE, LEE 
DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOUd DEA1VE, LIONEL NURSE, 

LEONARD NURSE, EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, DAVID SHOREY. 
OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, GRAHAM BROWN, BRIAN 

ED'W'ARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN ASSOCIATES LL'AITED, GOLF BARBADOS 
INC., KINGSI.Al'lD ESTATES UA!lTED, ClASSIC INVESBlENTS LIMITED. 

THORNBROOK INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC.. THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION. THE BARBADOS 
AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX ARTISTS lvlANAGEMENT U\JITED, 
DAv7D C. SHOREY AND COMPANY, C. SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST 

CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL BANK (BARBADOS) LTD .. PRICE WATERHOUSE 
COOPERS (BARBADOS), ATTORNEY GENERAL OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY 
OF BARBADOS. and JOHN DOES 1-25, PHILIP GRE4VES. ESTATE OF VIVL4N 

GORDON LEE DEANS, DAVlD THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER 
SLMMONS, G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIA.TES LTD., GBI GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., 

OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED and LIFE 
OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOWINGS, LIFE OF 

BARBADOS LIMITED, DAVID CARlv!ICHAEL SHOREY. 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST CARIBBEAN FIR.lvl, VECO CORPORATION, 

COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION C4.NADA LTD and COMMOlvWEALTH 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendanrs 

Certificate of 1Von-Attendance 

I, Robyn Arndt, Exa..."J1.;.11er, hereby cenify: 

I I 
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That an ">VCS issued for the 251.:.., day cf 2009. at my 
of:ice, Victory Verbatim Rcpcrting Services. Suite 900, Emst & You.<1g Tower, 222 Bay 
Street. Toronto, Ontario. at the hour of 10.00 a.m. for the exani.1ation of Donald Best. 
as a witness before the hearing of a pending motion pursuant to the provisions of Rt..:le 
39.03(1) of the Rules of Civil Procedure. 

That at the said last above mentioned time and place, I was attended by 
Gerald L.R. Ranking, from the offices of Fasken DuMoulin LLP, appearing 
as solicitors for the Defendant, PricewaterhouseCoopers East Caribbean Firm, who 
waited more than tifteen ( 15) minutes. but the said Don:tld Best did not appear, nor did 
anyone on his behalf. 

Dated at Toronto this 25th day of 2009. 

Robyn Arndt 
Examiner 
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?ile No. Cl7-02.4l 

ONTARJ:O 
ll k'' This is Ex,'libit .••• H ................ ....... referred to In the 

:; \. ' ":"\. 0 -L...l l:t.· C SUPE:;(2'0R COURT OF JUS'!'ICE . . -.· ; -, U·D t..l affid<lVIt of ••. D.\C.. )(:;Jr. .... ;,················· .. ······· 
sworn before me, this .......•.•• 6. .. 3:::. .................. . 

)'.-'e. b" 1 day of .....•• ..•. . ..... ................ , , .... .. 
E E '7' W E E N: 

1 r Mlvi'SS".OI-IER FOR T,t,KJNG AFFIDAVITS NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 

Plaintiff 

- and -

RICHARD COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP 
NICHOLLS, ERIC ASHBY BENTHAM OWEN 

BASIL KEITH DEANE, ILMA KNOX, DAVID 
SIMMONS, ELNETH KENTISH, GLYNE BANNISTER, GLYNE B. 

BANNISTER, PHILIP GREAVES, a.k.a. PHILP GREAVES, 
GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, R.G. MAND-EVILLE & CO., COTTLE, 
CATFORD & CO., KEELE WORRELL LTD., ERIC lAIN STEWAP.T 

DEANE, ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE DEANE, ERRIE 
DEANE I KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM I LIONEL NURSE I 

LEONARD NURSE, EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, 
DAVID SHOREY, OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK 

CUMMINS, GRAHAM GROWN, BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. 
BROWN ASSOCIATES LIMITED, GOLF BARBADOS INC., 

KINGSLAND ESTATES LIMITED, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS 
LIMITED, THORNBROOK INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS 

INC., THORNBROOK INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. 
DEVELOPMENT THE BARBADOS 

AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHOENIX ARTISTS 
LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND COMPANY, 

C. SHOREY AND LTD. 1 FIRST 
INTERNATIONAL BANK {BARBADOS) LTD. r PRICE 

WATERHOUSE COOPERS (BARBADOS) , ATTORNEY GENERAL 
OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY OF and JOHN 

DOES 1-25, PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF VIVIAN GORDON 
LEE DEANE, DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND BAYLEY, PETER 
SIMMONS, G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI 

(BARBADOS) INC., OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC 
INVESTMENTS LIMITED and LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED 

c.o.b. as LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, LIFE OF BARBADOS 
LIMITED, DAVID CARMICHAEL 

EAST CARIBBEA}l FIRM, VECO 
CORPORATION, CONSTRUCTION CANADA LTD. 

and COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendants 

&.Mw?L 

ER.NS'T' &. YOUNG TOWER., :<:22 SAY STREET, SUITE 900, 'T'CR.O,.,'T'C, ONTARIO. MSK 1 HE': 
WWW.VICTCRYVER.SATIM.COM (4 1 6) 35C·6 1 17 INF'C@viCTCR.YVERSATIM.CCM 
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is tr.e Record taker- at 
o:fice.s o: REPO::.::::l'G SERVICES, Suite 980, 

2rnst & 222 Bay 
Centre, Toroncc, on day of November, 
2009. 

A P P EAR AN C E S: 

LORN'S S. SE.o'v'ER. 

GERALD L.R. 
KWIDZINSK! 

(Student-at -law} 

ANDREW J . ROf.'L'!\.N 

SARAH CLJ>_'qKE 

-- for the Defendants, 
Richard Cox et 

-- for the Defendant, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 
East Caribbean Firm 

-- for tee ne:er.dants, 
Iain Deane et al. 

-- for the De:endanc, 
First Caribbean Bank 

1 ,.. 
•. J. ;) 

ERNST & YOUNG TOWER, 22:iil BAY STREET, SUITE: 900, TORONTO, CNTAR:C, :o.!SK 1 HE: 
WWW.VlCTCRYYERSATlM.COM (41 Sl 360·61 17 lNF"O@viCTCRYVERBATIM.COM 
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Stai:ement - 4 

S'::C..TEMEN':' ?0::<. T!-:E R::'CO:?-D BY MR. RANI\.ING: 

2. 

MR. F..l.J'JICNG: is now :0:50 a.m. 

It Gerald ar.d : am the 

at Victory Verbatim in a boardroom in tt-e presence 

of Lorne Silver, Sarah Clarke, Andrew Roman, and my 

Sebastien Before ... I am 

marking a number of documer-ts as I wish 

co state for the record that, for the second time, 

Mr. Donald Best has attended, despite the fact 

that we served with a number of docuoents 

insisting that he I would like to mark the 

documents that were served upon him. The first 

document that I to mark is my letter dated 

November 18, 2009, which was addressed to Mr. Best, 

not only at the 427 ?rincess Street address 

Kingston, but also to his address at Cloverdale Mall 

in post office box 1225 at 250 The East Mall. My 

letter of November 18, 2009 will be Exhibit 1. 

EXHIBIT NO. 1: Le:::ter dated Ncvember 18; 2009 

MR . In addition, I also wish 

to mark the Notice of was 

returnable today, November 25, thac was 

served upon Mr. 3est and ir-cluded with my 

ERNST & TOWER, 2.22 EAY STREET, SUITE 9CC. TCRCNTO, CNTARIC, MSK 1 HIS 
WWW.VICTCIRYVERBATIM.COM (41 el ::3150•61 17 INF"O@VICTCRYVEReATIM.CCIM 
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da::ed 1.'3. I will r.:a:=-K the No.:ice o: 

as 2xeibit 2 . 

NO. 2: .i!_r:tached Notice o: E:xa!:"\:.:J.atior.. 

3. l'tiR. RANKING: In addir:ion, a 

enclosure to my letter was a bound The 

brie: tee statement that I made for the 

record as transcr:.bed by Vic::ory Verbatim on 

November 17, 2009. It also included three exhib:.ts, 

beir..g Exhibit 1, the signed order of Justice 

Shaughnessy, dated November 2, 2009. As Exhibit 2, 

the affidavit of my assistant, Janine Ouellette, 

sworn November 17, 2009. And Exhibit 3, letter 

to Mr. Best, which served all of tee materials for 

the first attendance on November 17, being my let::er 

dated November 6, 2009. I will mark that 

brief as ::he r.ext being Exhibit 3. 

EXHIBIT NO. 3: Bound brief 

4. MR. RJIJ-I"'KI!'iG: I will also mark as 

4 the Cert:.ficate of Ncn-At::endar.ce from the 

at::enda:1.ce 0:1 No-·,.-er:l.cer 17, 2809. T::.at will l::e 

Exh::.bit 4. 

ERNST & Yt:UNG TOWER., 222 SAY STR.E:£1", 5UITE 90!:1, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1 HIS 
WWW.VICTr.lRYVERBATIM.C:OM 360·6 I 17 INFO@VlCTORYVERBATIM.t:OM 
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4: 8£ dated 

MR . P.Jili:i<ING : I mark as Exhibit 

s tee of Non-At:endance that was issued 

Robyn today, November 25, 2C09, to confirm 

that Mr. Best did not attend today. 

EXHIBIT NO. 5: Certificate of Non-Attendance, dated 

November 25, 2009 

MR. Rk'lKING: finally, I will 

as Exhibi: 6 original affidavit of my assistant, 

Ouellette, sworn November 24, 2009, whicr. 

indicates all of the documents tnat were, in fact, 

sent to Mr. Best, both by mail and by courier. 

EXHIBIT NO. 6: of Documents of 

Ouellette, sworn November 24, 2009 

MR. Subject to other 

comments anyone else in attendance may 'have, 

those a:::-e the st:bmissior:s and my stat.ement. for +:.he 

record 

' : 9 

ERNST&. YCUNS TOWER, 222. aAY STREC:T1 SUITE SCC, TORONTO, ONTARIO, MSK 1 He. 
!41 61 :360·61 17 INF"C@VICTCRYVEREiATIM.CCM 



EXEIBIT 
l'r:.J}tBER 

. 
.!. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 
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datec November 18, 2009 

Attached of Examination 

BoWld brief 

of 
dated November 17, 2009 

Certificate of Non-Atter-dance, 
dated 25, 2C09 

Af=idavit cf Documents of Janine 
Ouellette, sworn November 24, 2009 
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REPORTER'S NOTE: 

Please be advised that any undertakings. objections, under advisemems 
and refusals are provided as a service to all counsel, for their guidance 
only, and do not purpon to be legally binding or necessarily accurate and 
are not binding upon Victory Verbatim Reporting Services Inc. 

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and accurate transcription of 
the above noted proceedings held before me on the 25th DAY OF 
NOV'K"ffiER, 2009 and taken to the best of my skill, ability and 
understanding. 

Certified Correct: 

Frances McBride 
Verbatim Reporter 

ERNST & YOUNG Ti:IWI::R, 222 E!AY STREET, SUITE SuO, "r'CRONTC, ONTARIO, M5K 1 HIS 
WWW.VU:lTCRYVERBATIM.CCM [411Sl 36C•IS 1 17 JNF"C@viCTCRYVERBATIM.COM 
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-and- RICHARD IVAN 

Plaintiff 

Court file No. 07-0141 
·- ---.. ... - ----- -----·- - ---------. -· ·-- --·--. 
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SUPERIOR COURT OF .JUSTICE 

- at JJar · , 
FILED otPOSE nc 
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I 1---- 0E.CO\ Z009 ' ... 

FASKEN MARTINEAU UuMOULlN LLP 
Barristers & Solicitors 

Toronto Dominion Bank Tower 
P.O. Box 20 

Toronto-Dominion Centre 
Toronto, Ontario 

M5K IN6 

Gerald L.R. Ranking [LSUC#23855.TJ 
Phone: 41 G 865 4419 

Fax: 416 364 7813 

Lawyers for the Defendant, 
PriccwatcrhouseCoopcrs East Caribbean Finn 
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THIS IS EXHIBIT "P" REFERRED TO 
IN THE AFFIDAVIT OF 

Donald Best 

SWORN BEFORE ME, THIS 5th DAY 
OF February, 2015 

A Commissioner etc. 

Kerry Ann Eckstein, a etc., 
Province of Onlarfo, for the Gover1IMt ot 
Oalarb,llnlllry ot tbe AtiDmlr ...... 
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Court File No. 0141/07 

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE 

E T W E E N 

NELSON BARBADOS GROUP LTD. 
Plaintiff 

- and -

RICHARD IVAN COX, GERARD COX, ALAN COX, PHILIP VERNON 
NICHOLLS, ERIC ASHBY BENTHAM DEANE, OWEN BASIL KEITH 

DEANE, MARJORIE ILMA KNOX, DAVID SIMMONS, ELNETH 
KENTISH, GLYNE BANNISTER, GLYNE B. BANNISTER, PHILIP 

GREAVES, a.k.a PHILP GREAVES, GITTENS CLYDE TURNEY, R.G. 
MANDEVILLE & CO., COTTLE, CATFORD & CO., KEBLE WORRELL 

LTD., ERIC IAIN STEWART DEANE, ESTATE OF COLIN DEANE, LEE 
DEANE, ERRIE DEANE, KEITH DEANE, MALCOLM DEANE, LIONEL 

NURSE, LEONARD NURSE, EDWARD BAYLEY, FRANCIS DEHER, 
DAVID SHOREY, OWEN SEYMOUR ARTHUR, MARK CUMMINS, 

GRAHAM BROWN, BRIAN EDWARD TURNER, G.S. BROWN 
ASSOCIATES LIMITED, GOLF BARBADOS INC., KINGSLAND ESTATES 

LIMITED, CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LIMITED, THORNBROOK 
INTERNATIONAL CONSULTANTS INC., THORNBROOK 

INTERNATIONAL INC., S.B.G. DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, THE 
BARBADOS AGRICULTURAL CREDIT TRUST, PHEONIX ARTISTS 
MANAGEMENT LIMITED, DAVID C. SHOREY AND COMPANY, C. 

SHOREY AND COMPANY LTD., FIRST CARIBBEAN INTERNATIONAL 
BANK (BARBADOS) LTD., PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS 

30 (BARBADOS) , ATTORNEY GENERAL OF BARBADOS, the COUNTRY 
OF BARBADOS, and JOHN DOES 1-25, PHILIP GREAVES, ESTATE OF 

VIVIAN GORDON LEE DEANE, DAVID THOMPSON, EDMUND 

AG 0087 (rev. 07-01) 
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Court File No. 0141/07 

BAYLEY, PETER SIMMONS, G.S. BROWN & ASSOCIATES LTD., GBI 
GOLF (BARBADOS) INC., OWEN GORDON FINLAY DEANE, CLASSIC 

INVESTMENTS LIMITED and LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED c.o.b. as 
LIFE OF BARBADOS HOLDINGS, LIFE OF BARBADOS LIMITED, 
DAVID CARMICHAEL SHOREY, PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS EAST 

CARIBBEAN FIRM, VECO CORPORATION, COMMONWEALTH 
CONSTRUCTION CANADA LTD. AND 

COMMONWEALTH CONSTRUCTION, INC. 

Defendants 

M 0 T I 0 N P R 0 C E E D I N G 

BEFORE THE HONOURABLE JUSTICE B. SHAUGHNESSY 
on December 11, 2012 

PPEARANCES: 
. Lutes 
. Ranking 

AG 0087 (rev. 07-01) 

at OSHAWA, Ontario 

********** 

Counsel for the Plaintiff 
Counsel for the Co-defendant 
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- ---- -----------

23. 
Submissions 

was going to pick it up today but I don't .•.. 
THE COURT: Well, I don't know if I got into this 
discussion with counsel but I clearly indicated 
that you know, I was available, I would make time 
in October for this hearing. I'd hear it in 
November. I would hear it in December. 
Mr. Greenspan got off the record and now we had a 
date fixed; no objection was taken for January 11th. 

MR. RANKING: January 11th for the cross-
examination ... 
THE COURT: Right. 
MR. RANKING: ... and January 25th for the return of 
the application. 
THE COURT: Right. 
MR. RANKING: And I don't know about the return 
date because I thought he had not fixed that, that 
that was left out. But what I said, I believe I 
said, I don't know, but to counsel is that I will 
not be here between somewhere around February 22nd, 
right out to March 25th. I then come back in and I 
begin, from March 25th to approximately May 6th, 

pre-trial motions in a criminal homicide. And that 
I'd begin the homicide with a jury May 6th, running 
right through to July. And I think that's where a 
lot of this information is probably now being 
understood. And then I said, I need to rest a 
little this summer and then I've got to get ready 
for another homicide which will start in September 
and will run through to December. And then I'm 
going supernumerary on January 1, 2014. So what 
I'm - if I didn't outline it and maybe Mr. Best has 
the transcript, he can tell me. That's what we 
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were working against and hence, I was trying to do 

my level best to squeeze everything in and get it 

done before I leave towards the end of February. 

And my schedule - I have to be the one to hear this 

because it's my finding of contempt. And again, I 

just remind Mr. Best, your application brought by 

your then counsel, was to purge the contempt. In 

other words, change it, alter it, or expunge it, or 

none of the above. And that's- that was what's 

before the court. Now, in your various letters to 

the Law Society that you put in, to Law-Pro, which 

we might even discuss whether that's appropriate or 

not, but everyone of your letters is a lengthy, 

lengthy letter where you go into needing lawyers, 

on malpractice, and I don't know if they 

specifically refer to Mr. Ranking or Mr. Silver. 

But from your affidavit materials, clearly, you 

know, you've turned your sights on them and I just 

want to say to you Mr. Best, that's not what I'm 

dealing with. I'm dealing with contempt, already 

found. I've already found you in contempt of the 

court and in contempt of court orders and you're 

seeking to change that. It's as simple as that. 

It's not about malpractice. You want to go into 

forensic voice analysis; you're saying that the 

somehow the court has been misled by these counsel. 

MR. BEST: That's exactly what I'm saying Your 

Honour. 

THE COURT: You're entitled to say that but I'm 

telling you right now, if you're saying that you're 

going prove that the fundamental basis to set aside 

was the contempt, was maleficence on the part of 
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Mr. Ranking and Mr. Silver, and I'm going to say to 
you, go back and read again, my reasons which were 
then supported in court and you chose not to attend 
court when you had notice of the application. But 
I'm saying to you, I'm not expanding this to a 
brand new hearing. I'm not re-litigating. You 
must understand this Mr. Best; I am not the Court 
of Appeal. I made - I gave a judgment. I made a 
finding. I am not the Court of Appeal. The Court 
of Appeal deals with anything that they feel I did 
wrong. The Court of Appeal is where you make 
applications for new evidence, not me. 
MR. BEST: Your Honour, I have no wish to offend 
the court. I don't know what I'm doing here. 
THE COURT: You're not offending me. I'm trying 
to ... 
MR. BEST: And I'm sorry. 
THE COURT: •.. get you focused. That's what I'm 
trying to do. 
MR. BEST: I didn't mean to anger you. 
THE COURT: I'm not angry at all. I wanted to say 
to you, how long did it take you to prepare that 
material that you have in front of you right now 
that you've served or sent to me? 
MR. BEST: I .... 
THE COURT: Any estimate? 
MR. BEST: All weekend, Your Honour. 
THE COURT: A weekend? 
MR. BEST: All weekend, yes. I guess it all comes 
from other things too. But Your Honour, I really 
do need more but may I - may I file this? 
THE COURT: We'll come back to that in a moment. 
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